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OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

JOHN A. DELANEY 117 W. DUVAL STREET
MAYOR JACKSONVILLE, FL 32202

Dear Members of the City Council and Citizens of Jacksonville:

It is my pleasure to submit to you the City of Jacksonville’s Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year 1999/2000.

The year 2000 was an exciting one for Jacksonville. The City continued
efforts to improve public services, strengthen neighborhoods, manage growth and
preserve our natural assets. And Jacksonville voters approved The Better
Jacksonville Plan — a growth management initiative that will go far to improve the
quality of life in our city.

Efficiencies in city government continued to provide greater resources for
critical needs such as social services, children’s programs, land acquisition and the
arts. Our employees are committed to an efficient and responsive government, and
through this document, the City of Jacksonville is proud to offer residents a full
disclosure of the City’s financial status. Sound and prudent financial management
is a key component of any effective organization, and this report clearly reflects the
City of Jacksonville’s commitment to responsible public service.

I hope you will find this document useful, and I look forward to continuing to
work with you to make Jacksonville’s local government the most responsive and
efficient city government in America, and Jacksonville, the best place in the nation
to live, work and raise a family.

Sincerely,
/

John A. Delaney

iii



(This page is intentionally left blank.)



DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION AND FINANCE

Office of the Director

March 360, 2001

The Honorable Mayor
Members of the City Council
and Citizens of the City of Jacksonville

Introduction

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (Report) of the City of Jacksonville, Florida (the City), for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2000 is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the
completeness and fairness of presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City. The Report fulfills the
requirements set forth in the City Charter, Section 5.11; Florida Statutes, Chapter 166.241; and the Rules of the
Florida Auditor General, Chapters 10.550 and 10.600 requiring publication of financial statements which have
been audited by independent auditors.

We believe that the Report, prepared by the City's Department of Administration and Finance - Accounting
Division, and based on generally accepted governmental accounting principles, presents fairly and consistently
the City's financial position and results of operations and conforms to the standards of governmental accounting
and financial reporting principles as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). We

believe the data, as presented, is accurate in all material respects; that it is presented in a manner designed to set
forth fairly the financial position and the results of operations of the City; and that all disclosures necessary to
enable the reader to gain an understanding of the City's financial activity have been included.

Report Format. The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in three sections: Introductory;
Financial, including the report of independent auditors, general purpose financial statements and the combining
statements and individual fund and account group financial statements and schedules; and Statistical, containing
financial and other data of an economic, financial and demographic nature for prior and current years. The Notes
to Financial Statements, in the financial section, are necessary for an understanding of the information included
in the statements. They include the summary of significant accounting policies and other necessary disclosures
of matters relating to the financial position of the City.

Financial Reporting Entity. The financial reporting entity includes all funds and account groups of the primary
government (Consolidated Government City of JacksonvilleDuval County), as well as all of its component units.
Component units are legally separate organizations for which the City is financially accountable and, for financial
statement purposes, are ¢ither blended with the activities of the City or discretely presented. The criteria used to
determine whether an organization should be a part of the City of Jacksonville's reporting entity were those
outlined by the GASB under Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity. The criteria considered in
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establishing financial accountability, set forth in GASB Statement No. 14, include appointing a voting majority
of the organization's governing body and either (1) the ability to impose its will on the organization or (2) the
potential for the organization to provide specific benefits to or to impose financial burdens on the City. Also
included are component units where the nature and significance of their relationship with the City are such that
their exclusion would cause the general purpose financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

The Jacksonville Public Library Board has been classified as a dependent special district by the State of Florida
Department of Community Affairs. Per GASB Statement No, 14, the Library Board is not considered a component
unit of the City, as it is not a legally separate organization. Therefore, its activity is included as part of the primary
government.

Biended component units, although legally separate entities, are reported as part of the City because they are so
intertwined with the City that they are, in substance, the same as the City. The Police and Fire Pension Fund and
the Metropolitan Planning Organization are component units of the City blended into the appropriate fund types.
The JEA, the Jacksonville Port Authority, the Jacksonville Transportation Authority, the Jacksonville Economic
Development Company, Inc., the Jacksonville Economic Development Commission, the Duval County Housing
Finance Authority, and the Jacksonville Health Facilities Authority are reported as discretely presented component
units. The Jacksonville Housing Authority is considered a related organization. The Duval County School Board
did not meet the above criteria and is not a component unit of the City.

The City's Constitutional Officers (Sheriff, Tax Collector, Property Appraiser, Supervisor of Elections, and Clerk
of the Circuit Court) are reported as part of the City's primary government activities because they do not possess
the corporate powers necessary to meet the GASB Statement No. 14 definition of separate legal standing.

The reader is directed to Note 1.B. in the Notes to the Financial Statements for a more complete description of the
factors used to define the reporting entity.

Form of Government. The City provides a full range of services including police and fire protection, parks,
recreation facilities, courts, planning and zoning, street maintenance, elections and voter registration, emergency
transport system, community health, housing and human services, planning and economic development programs,
agricultural extension, and general administrative services. The City also owns and operates five enterprise
activities, the major ones consisting of a solid waste disposal, collection, and recycling system; and a sports
complex, convention center and performing arts center.

The City is a home-rule municipal corporation operating under the laws of the State of Florida, first organized and
incorporated as a city February 11, 1832. The City’s current charter, its municipal constitution, has been amended
many times since its original adoption by the electorate on October 1, 1968, when the City of Jacksonville and
Duval County governments were combined into the single, consolidated government of the City of Jacksonville.
The laws of the State of Florida prevail when conflicts exist between the charter and the state constitution and in
matters where the charter is silent. The City's charter can only be amended by the Florida Legislature and/or by
a majority of the City's voters.

The Charter provides for a strong mayor-council form of government. Legislative authority is vested with a 19-
member council; 14 members are elected by district and 5 members are elected at-large to serve for four-year
terms. The Council fixes compensation of City officials and employees and enacts ordinances and resolutions
relating to City services, tax levies, appropriations and borrowings, licensing and regulating of businesses and
trades, and other municipal purposes. The City's Chief Executive Officer is the Mayor, elected to a four-year term.
The Mayor has the power to veto any legislation passed by Council with certain limited exceptions. The present
term of the elected Mayor and members of the City Council expires on June 30, 2003. To conform to the
traditional organization of county governments within the State of Florida, the City retained the elected
constitutional offices of Sheriff, Property Appraiser, Tax Collector, Supervisor of Elections, and the Clerk of the
Circuit Court.
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Economic Condition and Outlook

Situated in the corner of Northeast Florida, Jacksonville is considered to be the metropolitan market for over ten
Florida and South Georgia Counties. The city is the hub of an array of services that include a deep-water port, an
international airport, tourism, sporting events, shopping and cultural amenities. With a Metropolitan Statistical
Area (MSA) population of over a miilion, Jacksonville is on the verge of being classified as a first-tier city.

Summary of local economy:

Population Growth: The Jacksonville MSA population increased from 1,096,326 in 1999 to 1,118,481 in 2000,
a 2.0% increase. Of the Jacksonville MSA, St. Johns County experienced the greatest increase in population with
a 3.6% increase. Duval County’s population increased from 778,341 to 791,507, an increase of 1.7%. With a
median age of 35.1, Jacksonville is the “youngest™ major city in Florida.

Employment: The Jacksonville MSA continues to possess a strong labor force. Qver the past two years, there have
been over 27,500 jobs created in the Jacksonville MSA, for a growth rate of just over 5% (2.5% per year). The
services industry employment leads the way with 34% of the total employment, with retail and total government
at 19% and 12%, respectively. The unemployment rate remains a low 3.1%, while the total number of employees
is 571,500. The average yearly wage in 1999 for Duval County was $31,379.

2000 Economic Activity

The Cornerstone Division of the Jacksonville Chamber of Commerce announced 40 business projects in 2000,
which retained a total of 1,630 jobs and brought 16,908 new jobs to the area. Private capital investment associated
with these projects totaled $260 million.

The Jacksonville International Airport serviced over 5.2 million passengers in 2000. This total reflects a 6.8%
increase over 1999 and reflects the City’s position as an emerging tourist and business center.

Jacksonville MSA’s economy is strong as indicated by solid growth in the transportation & public utilities, 6.4%,
and wholesale, 4.6%, sectors.

Employment By Industry*

January January % of Total

Jacksonville MSA by sector 1999 2000 Change %Change Change
Construction 30,100 31,000 300 3.0 5.9
Manufacturing 38,600 39,400 800 2.1 5.2
Transportation & Public Utilities 39,100 41,600 2,500 6.4 16.3
Wholesale 30,700 32,100 1,460 4.6 92
Retail 105,200 107,600 2,400 23 15.7
Financial, Insurance, Real Estate 57,800 58,200 400 0.7 2.6
Services 188,600 194,900 6,300 33 41.2
Government 66,100 66,700 600 0.9 3.9

Total 356,200 571,500 15,300 28 100.0

* Source: FL Department of Labor, Current Employment Statistics Program
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Retail sales in the Jacksonville MSA are on the rise with a reported $11.4 billion in 1999 as compared to $10.7
billion in 1998, a 7.1% increase.

Retail Sales 1998-1999 (in thousands)

Jacksonville MSA 1998 @ % Change
Duval County $ 8,032,967 $ 8,547,915 6.4
Clay County 1,226,045 1,350,439 10.1
Nassau County 419,572 448,048 6.8
St. Johns 1,003,102 1,090,756 8.7
TOTAL $ 10,681,689 $ 11,437,158 7.1

Future Economic Activity

The strength of Jacksonville’s economy lies in its uniquely diversified structure, not heavily dependent on any one
major employer or employment sector. The community enjoys a natural location for distribution and warehousing
activities. Quality lifestyle, labor force, and cultural/educational/medical facilities are key resources in the market’s
ability to sustain continued high growth in 2001 and beyond. The following listing from various sources highlights
the community:

. Expansion Management Magazine ranked Jacksonville fourth in its annual “America’s Hottest Cities”
article in January. This is the third consecutive year that Jacksonville has been ranked in the top ten.

. Jacksonville is the second fastest growing city in the Southeast and the eighth fastest growing large city
in the U.S. according to the Bureau of the Census.

. Jacksonville was ranked the eleventh best small metro area for entrepreneurial businesses in the December
2000 issue of /nc. magazine.

. According to One Source Information Services, Jacksonville is ranked in the Top Ten Cities for High-
Tech jobs in the Southeast (April 2000).

. Jacksonville was recently in Yahoo Internet Life Magazine, ranking 415t in Yahoo’s America’s 50 Most
Wired Cities and Towns.

. Entrepreneur Magazine ranked Jacksonville second in its “Best Big Cities for Small Business.”

. The Jacksonville MSA boasts two premier medical research facilities: Shands Jacksonville and the Mayo
Clinic.

. The Jacksonville International Airport is the 7th fastest growing airport in the U.S. (Based on the largest

100 airports) and the fastest growing in Florida.

viii



Major Initiatives

On September 5, 2000, Jacksonville voters approved The Better Jacksonville Plan, a $2.2 billion growth
management initiative that includes improvements to roads and infrastructure, environmental protection, targeted
economic development as well as new and improved public facilities. The City of Jacksonville also continued
efforts to enhance government efficiency while also working to improve neighborhoods and protect the
environment. Information on a number of initiatives, including The Better Jacksonville Plan, follows:

The Better Jacksonville Plan

The Better Jacksonville Plan is a comprehensive growth management strategy that provides road and infrastructure
improvements, environmental preservation, targeted economic development and new and improved public
facilities. The Plan is funded through a half-penny sales tax and by leveraging existing revenue sources.

With $1.5 billion set aside for road and infrastructure improvements, neighborhoods in all parts of the City will
see a direct benefit from the Plan. Further, targeted economic development will encourage job growth in areas
that have lagged in development opportunities. The Plan includes funding to improve the environment through
land preservation, enhancing neighborhood parks, and sewer infrastructure in critical areas. Finally, the Plan seeks
to provide residents with quality public facilities and includes funding for improved neighborhood libraries as well
as a new main library, sports and entertainment arena and baseball park, and county courthouse.

The Better Jacksonville Plan marries all of these key elements into a design that will encourage and support
responsible and managed growth while creating a better quality of life for all of Jacksonville’s residents.

An integral piece of The Better Jacksonville Plan is the accountability measure that is actually a part of the
legislation. The ordinance calls for a Financial Administration Committee and a Program Administration
Committee. In addition, the Mayor will report annually to a Citizens Oversight Committee.

Government Efficiency

Total Quality Government. The City of Jacksonville’s strategic plan provides a road map for achieving the City’s
vision and mission. Major areas of focus are effective, responsive customer-focused government, families,
neighborhoods and schools, growth management, promoting Jacksonville as a green community and economic
development. Some of these initiatives are further highlighted in this section. Resources are allocated based on
these key areas of focus. In addition, departments continue to review their key service processes in an ongoing
effort to improve and better meet customer needs.

Tax Cut. In fiscal year 2000/2001, Mayor Delaney again reduced the property tax rate, this year by 2/10 of a mil.
This sixth consecutive property tax cut set the lowestmillage rate in two decades. The six years of tax cuts has
saved taxpayers more than $57.5 million dollars.

Neighborhoods

Intensive Care Neighborhoods. The City continues to focus services and resources on six targeted neighborhoods
in Jacksonville. The plan aims to improve learning environments for kids, enhance infrastructure, improve
recreational opportunities as well as improve public safety, social services and housing. For example, the City's
Community Development Division provides nearly $1 million annually for home rehabilitation through the
Limited Repair Program. These grant monies can be used for [ow-income homeowners whose homes could pose
a health or safety threat if not repaired.

Neighborhoods Department. The City's Neighborhoods Department serves as a model for cities throughout the
nation. With neighborhood coordinators assigned to the six planning districts, the department helps navigate
through area problems and helps to resolve them. In addition, the department helps organize residents to improve
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their own communities. Through the Clean It Up, Green It Up division, residents join together for more than 1,000
neighborhood cleanups each year. The division hosts annual tree giveaways through a partnership with JEA and
have given away 60,000 trees to residents each of the past four years. In addition, residents will soon meet the
Mayor’s challenge of planting one million trees in five years.

Growth Management/Environment

Preservation Project

In January 1999, Mayor Delaney established the Preservation Project, a major land acquisition initiative, designed
to manage growth, preserve environmentally sensitive lands, improve water quality and access to the city’s unique
natural areas.

The Preservation Project was launched with a vision of setting aside 10 to 20 square miles of developable land
in Duval County within five years. In just two years, the city and its partners have set aside more than 30 square
miles -over 19,000 acres- creating one of the largest urban park systems in the country. The City of Jacksonvilie
initially committed $21 million to the program, and voters, through The Better Jacksonville Plan, added another
$50 million to the program in September 2000. Thebalance of the funds are continuing to be raised through state,
federal and private sources.

St. Johns River. Designated in 1998 by the President of the United States as an American Heritage River, the St.
Johns River continues to play a critical role in the everyday life of our community. Mayor Delaney meets
regularly with federal, state and local officials to ensure that the needs of the river are met. Having completed three
years of a five-year plan for the river, the City and other river partners continue to commit time and resources to
restore the river and its water quality. A number of these agencies are also working together to eliminate septic
tanks in sanitary nuisance areas and help homeowners hook up to sewer lines.

General Governmental Functions

The City's general governmental activities are accounted for in four fund types. The fund types are as follows: the
General Fund, the Special Revenue Fund, the Debt Service Fund, and the Capital Projects Fund.

Revenues. Revenues for general governmental functions totaled $809.6 million in fiscal year 2000, an increase
of $78.7 million, or 10.8%, over 1999. The amounts of revenue by source and the changes from last year are
shown as follows (in thousands):

Increase Percent

Percent (Decrease) of Increase

Sources Amount of Total from 1999 (Decrease)
Taxes $464,004 574 $38,002 39
Licenses and Permits 13,970 1.7 776 59
Intergovernmental 202,150 25.0 19,607 10.7
Charges for Services 62,302 7.7 7,027 12.7
Fines and Forfeitures 9,938 1.2 990 11.1
Payment in Lieu of Taxes 3,583 0.4 (216) (5.7
Interest 29.864 37 7,491 33.5
Other 23,790 2.9 4,970 26.4
Total $809.,601 100.0 $78,737 10.8




GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL REVENUESI

Intergovernmental Charges for Services 7.7%
25.0%

Fines & Forfeitures 1.2%

Payment in Lieu of Taxes 0.4%
Interest 3.7%

Other 2.9%

Licenses and Permits
1.7%

Taxes 57.4%

Taxes, the largest source of City revenue, include ad valorem property taxes, utility service taxes, local option
sales and gas taxes, and convention and tourism development taxes. This category reported an 8.9% increase in
2000, or $38.9 million, over last year largely due to new construction and growth in Jacksonville's continuing
strong economy. The City's strong revenue tax base is represented by increases in ad valorem taxes of $10.5
million to a total of $282.8 million in 2000. Over the last five years, taxable assessed values have increased by
$7.2 billion, as the City lowered the millage rate to 10.7861 mills, the lowest rate since 1980. In addition, the
budgets for the past ten fiscal years 1991-92 to 2000-01 were prepared under a budgetary policy that sets a 3%
tax cap on ad valorem revenues excluding new construction for any year over the ad valorem taxes of the previous
yeat. The local option sales tax increased $14.9 million due to strong retail sales in 2000 and improved timeliness
of remittances of sales tax to the City from the State.

Intergovernmental revenues account for the City's second largest source of revenue. Growth in this category also
reflects an improved Jacksonville economy. The collection of intergovernmental revenues for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2000, totaled $202.2 million, an increase of $19.6 million, or 10.7%, over fiscal year 1999. The
7 cent sales tax, reflecting our strong economy, showed an $11.1 million increase in 2000. The revenue also
reflects the improved timeliness of remittances of sales tax to the City from the State. Also reflected in the 2000
intergovernmental revenue is a $4.7 million refund of the intangible tax from the State Department of Revenue.

Charges for services increased $7.1 million due to improved collection of ambulance service fees, new 911
charges for wireless phones, and court cost fees remitted to the General Fund.

Fines and forfeitures were higher due to the City making a concerted effort to collect alcohol andtraffic fines.
More court cases were heard in 2000 than in 1999.

Interest income increased due to a higher average interest rate of 5.972% during 2000 as compared to 5.158% in
1999, a 15.8% increase. This increased rate was applied to higher daily balance of cash, especially in the capital
improvement fund due to increased monies from the 19994 issue of Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding and
Improvement Bonds.

The increase of 26.4% or $5.0 million in the Revenue category entitled Other is largely due to private contributions
from Healthy Families Florida to help fund the Florida Ounce of Prevention program at the Jacksonville Children’s
Commission.
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Expenditures. Expenditures for general governmental functions totaled $837 million in 2000, an increase of $67
million, or 8.7%, over 1999. The amount of expenditures, including the increases (decreases) over the prior year
are shown in the following tabulation (in thousands):

Increase Percent

Percent  (Decrease) of Increase

Expenditures Amount of Total from 1999 {Decrease)
General Government $92,281 11.0 $ 7,068 8.3
Human Services 81.451 9.7 6,093 3.1
Public Safety 298,131 35.7 21,770 7.9
Culture and Recreation 40,725 4.9 2,375 6.2
Transportation 119,741 143 9,722 8.3
Economic Environment 43,296 5.2 (1,259) (2.3)
Physical Environment 15,352 1.8 1,461 10.5
Debt Service 70,451 8.4 6,008 9.3
Capital Outlay 75,548 9.0 13,722 222
Total $836,976 100.0 % 66,960 8.7

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES

Capital Qutlay
9.0% General Governmetit

0,
Debt Service 8.4% 11.0%

Human Services

3 H 0,
Physical Environment 1.8% 9.7%

Economic Environment 5.2%

Transportation
14.3%

Culture and Recreation Public Safety
4.9% 35.7%

xii



The major component of the general governmental expenditure increase in FY 2000 was $21.8 million in Public
Safety, or an increase of 7.9% compared to FY 1999. The Sheriff’s Office received additional funding from the
United States Department of Justice, which enabled them to hire 50 new police officers. The Fire Department
added 33 firefighters to support Atlantic Beach, Cecil Field, and other West Jacksonville areas.

Capital Outlay increased $13.7 million, or 22.2%, due primarily to funding for JPA, economic development
incentives to businesses, and land purchases.

Transportation increased $9.7 million for increased transfers to JTA. This was due to more gasoline taxes received
due to higher gasoline prices and additional funds available reflecting improved timeliness of remittances of
gasoline tax to the City from the State.

Human Services increased $6.1 miilion, or 8.1%, primarily due to a $2 million increase for assistance to Shand’s
Hospital for indigent care. An additional $2 million provided after-school activities for school children. A
miscellaneous appropriation of $2.3 million was made to the Cultural Council of Greater Jacksonville to
administer and fund the art programs for the City.

Debt Service increased $6 million, or 9.3%, for increases in principal and interest payments on bonds.

General Fund Balance. At September 30, 2000, the unreserved, undesignated portion of the fund balance for the
General Fund reflected a positive balance of $888 thousand after providing $34 million for FY2001 budget
appropriation, $17.2 miilion for FY2001 budget stabilization, $14 million for encumbrances, and $8.0 million
carry forward for capital projects.

Proprietary and Other Financial Operations
The City of Jacksonville has a number of enterprise operations. The largest are highlighted as follows:

Public Parking System. The Public Parking System manages and operates public parking facilities, bothon-street
and off-street, within the City. This enterprise activity also provides for installation and maintenance of the parking
meters and collection and management of revenues generated by the System. Results of operations indicate an
operating loss for 2000 of $359 thousand with charges for services of $3.0 million. The Parking System
experienced a net loss of $100 thousand.

Solid Waste Enterprise Fund. The Solid Waste Enterprise Fund is responsible for residential collection of garbage,
vard waste, blue bin recycling, appliances, and tires. Solid Waste is also responsible for the City’s landfill
operations, yard waste facilities, recycling facilities, and monitoring all closed landfills in Duval County.
Jacksonville is a leader in the State of Florida, recycling over 47% of the waste stream through blue bin recycling,
yard waste composting, waste oil collection, tire and used appliance recycling, household hazardous waste
collection and commercial recycling. -

In 2000 the Solid Waste Disposal Enterprise Fund experienced a net income of $3.5 million on operating revenue
of $32.5 million compared to a $4.0 million net income on revenue of $29.2 million in 1999.

At September 30, 2000, the estimated liability for landfill closure and postclosure care costs recorded in the Solid
Waste Disposal Enterprise Fund was $21.8 million compared to $19.5 million as of September 30, 1999. The
increase was attributed to an increase in estimate for post closure costs at the three closed landfills. It is the intent
of the City to fund these costs through future operating revenues of the Solid Waste Disposal Enterprise Fund.
Accordingly, a deferred charge for landfill closure and postclosure care of $38.4 million has been established that
will be recognized as an operating expense to the Fund as enterprise revenue is earned over future periods.
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Internal Service Operations. The City has several internal service funds, which provide a variety of services to
City agencies. These include fleet management, information and communications services, copy center, general
counsel, and self-insurance and group insurance programs.

In fiscal year 2000 the City's internal service operations experienced charges for services of $123.8 million. For
2000 the internal service funds reported a net income of $13.6 million compared to $8.4 million for 1999. This
increase was primarily due to a reduction in expenses in the self-insurance for the estimated liability for incurred
but not reported claims. Excess equity of $18.9 million in the self-insurance fund was transferred to the General
Fund as compared to $15.2 million transferred in FY 1999.

Pension Trust Funds. The City sponsors two public employee retirement systems administered by two separate
and distinct pension Boards of Trustees that provide retirement, death, and disability benefits to 7,446 active City
employees, 408 DROP participants for the Police and Fire Pension Plan and 5,537 retirees and beneficiaries at
September 30, 2000. The General Employees Pension Plan (a multi-employer contributory defined benefit plan)
covers substantially all full-time employees of the City and the JEA, a discretely presented component unit of the
City, except for police officers and firefighters. The Police and Fire Pension Plan (a single-employer contributory
defined benefit plan) covers eligible employees of the Office of the Sheriff and the Department of Fire and Rescue.
In addition, certain City employees (less than 1% of total payroll) participate in the State of Florida Retirement
System.

During fiscal year 2000, the net pian assets of the General Employees Pension Plan ($1.5 billion at September 30,
2000) increased a net of $87.1 million and the actuarial accrued liability of $1.4 billion is 100.01% funded. The
net plan assets of the Police and Fire Pension Plan ($814.9 million at September 30, 2000) increased a net of $53.7
million during fiscal year 2000, with the plan being 86.71% funded.

The City made all of its required contributions in 2000 to the respective pension funds in accordance with
actuarially determined contribution requirements. The City's pension plans are further explained in Note 9 in the
Notes to Financial Statements.

Debt Administration. The City's sound financial condition is evidenced by the continuation of its long-held high
grade of bond ratings on indebtedness from the major credit rating services. Among the factors most commonly
cited by these services in support of the "Aa2" rating from Moody's Investor Services on its general obligation debt
include the following: (1) a well-diversified employment and tax base that provides a solid foundation to absorb
future spending requirements; (2) moderate debt burden and well-managed finances; (3) sound financial condition;
and (4) a consolidated city/county government structure. The City of Jacksonville also maintains an "A+" rating
from Standard & Poor's, a “AA” rating from Fitch, and an "A1" rating from Moody's Investors Service on its
revenue bond issues. The City continues to follow prudent fiscal policies and practices to maintain these strong
credit ratings.

The City does not borrow for operating needs. All of its outstanding long-term indebtedness is for capital needs
only. At September 30, 2000, the City of Jacksonville had $1.8 million in general obligation bonds payable from
ad valorem taxes, $718 million in special obligation bonds payable from specific revenue sources other than ad
valorem taxes, $85 million in bonds payable from Enterprise Funds, and $77 million in commercial paper and U.S.
Government-Guaranteed Notes. The direct net debt per capita as of September 30, 2000, was $1,112.

All required principal and interest payments on outstanding debt were remitted timely and in full. The reserve

requirements and sinking fund remittances mandated by the bond covenants remain funded at the prescribed levels
at September 30, 2000.
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On November 4, 1999, the City closed on the sale of $45 million Capital Project Revenue Bonds, Series 1997-2.
The 1997-2 bonds represent the second tranche of a series of bonds pursuant to a bond authorization in the
principal amount of $99 million. These bonds are issued as 7-day Variable Rate Demand Bonds in a tax-exempt
mode. The proceeds of this bond issue will be allocated for various drainage and capital improvement projects
of the City.

The City anticipates that future debt activity will surround The Better Jacksonville Program. This program will
incur debt of approximately $1.5 billion to construct $2.2 billion of capital projects. These projects comprise $1.5
billion in road construction and resurfacing, $525 miliion in new public facilities, $60 million in targeted economic
development, and $165 million in environment/quality of life projects. The new public facilities to be built are a
main library, courthouse, arena, and baseball stadium.

In addition, the City has the opportunity to refinance several bond issues. These bonds will be refunded when the
net value savings targets are met.

Cash Management. The City has a detailed written statement of investment policy which it follows. The
investment goal of the City is to invest public funds in a manner which will earn a competitive yield on its
portfolio, consistent with its primary function of safeguarding public assets by minimizing credit and market risks.
Safety of principal is regarded as the foremost objective of the investment program. Maintaining sufficient
liquidity is also an important investment objective. In keeping with this policy, at September 30, 2000, of the $2.9
billion of cash and investments, $2.6 billion are categorized under GASB Statement No. 3,Deposits with Financial
Institutions, Investments, and Reverse Repurchase Agreements, as "Category 1," or the most secured custodial
relationship. The remaining $314.9 million, representing U.S. Government and Agency Securities and Repurchase
Agreements held by a counterparty or its trust department not in the City's name, are categorized as "Category 3."
These investments are stated at fair value. The City's investment policies are periodically reviewed for
classification under the lowest risk category. The City's investment portfolio contains no derivative securities,
floating rate securities, collateralized mortgage obligations or reverse repurchase agreements. Cash, investments,
and the City's collateralizing process are further explained in Note 3 of the Notes to Financial Statements.

All of the City's deposits and the deposits of certain of the City's component units are held in qualified public
depositories, pursuant to State of Florida Statutes, Chapter 280, Florida Security for Public Deposits Act ("the
Act"), and are covered by federal depository insurance, and, for the amount in excess of such federal depository
insurance, by the Act. Cash is pooled, except for that held by revenue bond trustees, fiscal and escrow agents, and
certain debt service and trust and agency funds, for maximum investing efficiency. Cash temporarily idle during
the year is aggregated and invested in certificates of deposit, money market instruments, obligations of the U.S.
Government, and repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S. Government securities for all funds except the
City's pension trust funds, which are administered separately outside the City's pooled cash operations. Assets
of the City's pension plans are maintained in separate investment pools, and investment management responsibility
rests with the two pension Boards of Trustees.

Earnings on investments, other than those held by the City's pension funds, totaled $40.9 million during the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2000. From this total, $33.0 million was derived from a City-administered, commingled
investment pool which generated a total weighted average yield of 5.972% on an average daily invested balance
of $550.8 million. The remaining $7.9 million in earnings was derived from a variety of segregated investments
and investment programs primarily linked to the investment of bond proceeds.

The City utilizes an overnight repurchase agreement mechanism to ensure full investment of all funds and to
provide adequate cash liquidity; 101.2% of all funds were invested due to this reinvestment program. The City
has a short-term investment horizon to minimize the level of market risk. At September 30, 2000, the general
investment portfolio of government securities carried a weighted-average number of days to maturity of 134 days
and a weighted average yield of 5.972%.
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Risk Management. The City administers a comprehensive risk management and loss-control program, the primary
objectives of which are to (1) identify potential exposures to loss, (2) evaluate the frequency and severity of losses,
(3) reduce or eliminate risks or losses through established procedures and practices, and (4) determine the most
efficient use of financial resources to satisfy losses.

The City's risk management policy is to rely primarily on the concept of self-insurance, supplemented by excess
insurance coverage, when dealing with its various loss exposures, including workers’ compensation, automobile
liability, and general liability. Participants in the risk management pool include the City and independent agencies
electing to be included. The City funds its risk retention losses dollar-for-dollar on an actuarially computed basis.

Unlike commercial insurance, establishment of a self-insurance fund, accounted for by the participant, does not
result in the pure transfer of risk. The program’s self-insured liability remains among and between the participants
in varying degrees of risk sharing. State sovereign immunity statutes limit the liability to the participants for
certain general liability risk exposures to $100,000 per individual and $200,000 per occurrence. There isa $1
million retention for workers' compensation and no excess insurance for automobile liability and general liability,
Various cost containment measures, such as managed care, are utilized by the workers' compensation self-
insurance program in order to appropriately minimize medical claim costs.

Commercial insurance has been purchased for other risk exposures, including aviation, marine, property, fidelity
bonding and employee benefits (medical, disability, dental, vision, prescription drug, and life).

General Fixed 4ssets. The general fixed assets of the City are those fixed assets used in the performance of
general governmental functions and exclude the fixed assets of enterprise and internal service funds. In addition,
they do not include infrastructure (roads, bridges, sidewalks, gutters and drainage, etc.). As of September 30,
2000, the original cost of general fixed assets of the City was $614.9 million, which is considerably less than their
replacement cost. This amount represents the valuation of general fixed assets in accordance with generally
accepted accounting standards and the City's capitalization policy as described in Note 6 of the Notes to Financial
Statements.

General Information

Discussion of Controls. Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining an intemal control
structure designed to ensure that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure that
adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements, in conformity with
generally accepted governmental accounting principles. The internal control structure is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance
recognizes that (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and (2) the valuation
of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgements by management.

Accounting System. The City's accounting system is organized and operated on a fund basis. A fund is defined
as an independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. The types of funds to be used
are determined by generally accepted governmental accounting principles and the number of individual funds
established is determined by sound financial administration and statutory and ordinance requirements of the
Council.

The City's records are maintained on a modified accrual basis for all Governmental Fund Types. Accordingly,
revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual, i.e., both measurable and available. Expenditures, other than
interest on long-term debt and compensated absences, are recorded as fund liabilities when incurred. The accrual
basis of accounting is utilized by all Proprietary Fund Types. Fiduciary Fund Types include expendable trust, non-
expendable trusts, pension trust, and agency funds. The measurement focus of the expendable trust funds is the
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same as for governmental funds. The measurement focus of the pension trust funds and non-expendable trust
funds are similar to proprietary funds. Agency funds are purely custodial and thus do not involve measurement
of results of operations.

Budget System. Detailed provisions regulating the City's budget, tax levies, and appropriations are set in the Laws
of Florida, in the City Charter, and in the City’s Ordinance Code. The Mayor is required to submit his
appropriations budget, called "The Mayor's Proposed Budget," to Council by the second Tuesday in July of each
year. The Mayor's Proposed Budget is to comply with state and local legal requirements for a balanced financial
plan of operation for the government which coincides with and is limited to the City's fiscal year. As a financial
plan, the Mayor's Proposed Budget identifies revenues and other financial resources which are anticipated to be
available for appropriations, makes recommendations for appropriations, expenditures and uses of financial
resources, and otherwise presents concise policy direction and guidance for the continuing financial operation of
the City. At the beginning of each new fiscal year the Council adopts a balanced annual budget in the form of an
ordinance which contains estimated revenues and other financing sources, appropriations, authorizations of full
time positions and temporary employee hours, and any amendments to the Ordinance Code which relate to the
Annual Budget.

The Annual Budget includes the activities of the General Fund, certain individual Special Revenue Funds, the
Proprietary Fund Types, and certain Fiduciary Fund Types. Project-length or program financial plans, which may
not comncide with the City's fiscal year, or which may exceed a single annual period are adopted by separate
ordinance for individual Capital Project Funds and other individual Special Revenue Funds. Budgets are not
formally adopted for individual Debt Service Funds, since internal spending controls are set by compliance with
bond covenant requirements. Also not budgeted are certain Expendable Trust Funds, Nonexpendable Trust Funds
and Pension Trust Fund accounts, where existing legal requirements obviate the need for formal budgets, or the
City has elected to use internal spending controls established by management instead of formally-adopted budgets.

The City maintains budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed
appropriations) at the fund level. Lower levels within each individual fund are accounted for and reported
internally. Such lower levels are referred to as objects (personnel services, supplies, capital outlay, etc.) within
each division. Estimated expenditure amounts must be encumbered prior to release of purchase orders to vendors
and finalization of other contracts. Encumbrances which would exceed their available object level appropriation
are not approved or recorded until either the Mayor and/or City Council authorizes additional funding or transfers.
Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balance and are reappropriated as part
of the following year's annual budget. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year unless
carried forward by ordinance.

Independent Audit. The City Charter, Section 5.11, and Florida Statutes, Chapter 166.241, require the City's
financial statements to be audited by an independent firm of certified public accountants selected by the City
Council. This requirement has been complied with, and the report of the independent auditors, rendered by Ernst
& Young LLP, is included in the financial section of this report. The audit was conducted in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards set forth by the Comptroller General
of the United States. The financial statements of certain component units were audited by other auditors as
described in the Ernst & Young LLP audit opinion.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the City is also required to undergo an annual audit in
conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act of 1984; U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular
A-133, Audits of State and Local Governments and Non-profit Organizations; and the Rules of the Auditor
General of the State of Florida, Chapter 10.600, dudits of State Grants and Aid Appropriations. As a part of the
City's Single Audit, tests are made to determine the adequacy of internal control, including that portion related to
federal and state financial assistance programs. The information related to the Single Audit, including the schedule
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of federal awards, reports of the independent auditors on internal control and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, and findings and questioned costs, is in a report to be issued separately at a later date.

Reporting Achievements. The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Jacksonville for its
comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1999. The Certificate of
Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation
of state and local government financial reports.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform to program standards. Such
comprehensive annual financial reports must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable
legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The City of Jacksonville has received this
Certificate for twenty consecutive years (fiscal years 1980 through 1999). We believe our current report continues
to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA.

Use of the Report and Acknowledgments. The Report represents the thirty-second (1969 - 2000) Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report of the City audited by a nationally recognized firm of certified public accountants, since
the City of Jacksonville and Duval County Governments were consolidated on October 1, 1968. Approximately
400 copies of this report will be distributed. In addition to citizens of the community, the recipients will include
city, state, and federal officials; university students; schools; libraries; newspapers; investment banking firms;
banks and rating agencies.

The Report will be made available to any person or organization requesting it. The extensive effort of preparation
and distribution of this report fulfills the Department of Administration and Finance's goal of full disclosure of
the City's finances. We are committed to issuing reports that are informative and meet the highest standards of
governmental accounting and financial reporting. Reports that meet these standards provide the reader with an
opportunity to make more informed judgements about the government's financial position and results of
operations.

The 2000 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report represents our commitment to this goal and could not have
been prepared without the efficient and dedicated efforts of the entire staff of the Department of Administration
and Finance - Accounting Division and Treasury Division, who devoted many hours in compiling and assembling
the report. We also wish to express our appreciation to all other City personnel who have contributed to its
preparation. In addition, we thank the City's independent auditors, Ernst & Young LLP and the Office of the
Council Auditor for their efforts and professional conduct throughout the audit engagement,

xviii



Special acknowledgment is due Mayor John Delaney, Council President Alberta Hipps and Councilperson Jim
Overton, Finance Committee Chairman, and other members of the City Council, for their strong and effective
leadership and continued support in the coordination and planning of the financial affairs of the City of
Jacksonville in a responsible and progressive manner.

Respectfully submitt : ,
Calvin C. Ray evin G. Stork, CPA, CGFM
Director, Department of City Comptroller -

Administration and Finance Chief, Accounting Division
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i’IERNST& YOUNG & Ernst & Young LLp & Phone: (904) 358-2000

Suite 1800 WWW.EY.COm
1 Independent Drive
Jacksonville, Florida 32202

Report of Independent Auditors

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Jacksonville, Florida

We have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements of the City of
Jacksonville, Florida (the City), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2000, as listed in the
table of contents. These general-purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general-purpose financial
statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the following
component units, which statements reflect total assets and total revenues as of September 30,
2000 and for the vear then ended of the respective fund type as follows:

Total Total Type of
Assets Revenues Component Unit
(in thousands)

JEA $ 5,133,519 $933,554 Proprictary and
Similar Fund Types

Jacksonville Port Authority 767,145 64,260 Proprietary and
Similar Fund Types

Police and Fire Pension Trust Fund 844,215 107,073 Trust and Agency
Fund Types

Jacksonville Economic Development

Company, Inc. 2,543 199 Governmental and

Similar Fund Types

Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to
us, and our opinion on the general-purpose financial statements, insofar as it relates to the
amounts included for the aforementioned component units, is based solely on the reports of the
other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general-purpose
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general-purpose financial

Ernst & Young LLP is @ member of Emst & Young International, Ltd.
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statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall general-purpose financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

The schedules of employer contributions and funding progress listed under required
supplemental information in the table of contents are not a required part of the general-purpose
financial statements but are supplemental information required by the Government Accounting
Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the
supplemental information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on
it.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the general-purpose financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
City as of September 30, 2000, and the results of its operations and the cash flows of its
proprietary fund types and nonexpendable trust fund for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
March 16, 2001 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our
audit.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial
statements taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund and account group financial
statements and schedules listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the general-purpose financial statements of the City of
Jacksonville, Florida. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the general-purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all
material respects in relation to the general-purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

The mformation presented in the introductory and statistical sections is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the general-purpose financial statements. Such
information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general-
purpose financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

St ¥ MLLP

March 16, 2001
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COMBINED STATEMENTS



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET

ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS, AND
COMPONENT UNITS (in thousands)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS

ASSETS:
Equity in cash and Investments..............cccociirivnerniininiannanns
Cash and equiValENIS.............iiriiiiiii i v r e ae s
IVESIMENES. ...
Cash in escrow and with fiscal agents............covvvnverinvinnerinns
Receivables (net, where applicable, of

allowances for uncollectibles):

Due from component units....
Due from primary gOVErNmMEDt. .. ... uuieeecnrrreenreeeaeeneenenaen.
Due from independent agencies and other governments.............
Advances to other funds..............co s
INVENEOTIES. . oeeeeeen et ee e e et e et e e e e et e e eean e aee
Prepaid expenditures, prepaid expenses, and other assets...........
Restricted assets:
Cash and equivalents........ooveviiiiiii e
TNVESHMEIS. ... oot e
Sinking fund cash and investments.............cooeiiiiiiineen...
Construction fund cash and investments. ..

Fixed assets and infrastructure, net............coeeviiiniiiiiiineinnnn.
Electric plant in SEIVICE.......o.vieriiiii it
Buildings and improvements
Improvements other than buildings
BUSES. ittt e e
Fumniture and equUIPIENt. ......ocueeie i
Construction WOk in ProCess......c.ocovitviieiiiii e eaeeee
Less accumulated depreciation...........c.ceeeiiiion

Deferred landfill closure and postclosure care Costs.................
Unamortized debt iSSUANCE COSES...vrvirurrirrnerinericeriiaeeieeannns
Unamortized service THghts.........iieiimviriennirinrissceensaneens
Costs to be recovered from future Tevenues.......o..vuvvreneennnens.
Real estate under development..........ocvvvviiiiviiiincenianns
Other deferred charges........oooviiin i
OTHER DEBITS:

Amount available for retirement of

general long-term obligations.............ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiis
Amount to be provided for retirement of

general long-term obligations... ..o iciiiiiii e

TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS.........cccccvieiinnerenne

PROPRIETARY
GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES FUND TYPES
SPECIAL DEBT CAPITAL INTERNAL
GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE PROJECTS ENTERPRISE  SERVICE
$52,245 § 106,587 $47.393 5 162,308 $ 49,681 § 147,439
- 4,751 249 1,108 - .
28 - - . - -
2,049 172 - - 2,473 245
- 20,611 . - - -
214 - - - - 75
4199 227 - - . 3.360
- 584 - - . -
37,440 31,353 - 2,918 375 3,086
- - - - - 13,551
1,287 - - - 2 1,371
- - - - 205 14
- - - - 697 -
- - . - 11,333 -
- - - - 58 -
- - - - 24112 58
. - - - 223,393 3,886
- - - . 87,987 4,868
. . - . 17,384 113,502
- - - . 656 132
- - - - (78,778) {82,226)
- - - - 38,421 -
- - - - §17 -
$97462  $ 164,285 $47642  §166,334 $ 378,616 $ 200,370




FIDUCIARY

FUND TYPES ACCOUNT GROUPS TOTALS o NENT TOTAL
TRUST GENERAL  GENERAL (Memorandum only) GOVERNMENTAL PROPRIETARY (Memorandum only)
AND FIXED  LONG-TERM  PRIMARY GOVERNMENT  AND SIMILAR  AND SIMILAR REPORTING ENTITY
AGENCY ASSETS  OBLIGATIONS 2000 1999 FUND TYPES  FUND TYPES 2000

$2416739  § - - $2962392  $2746.181 § 11,176 - $ 2,993,568
- - - . - 36,995 74,110 111,105

- - - - - - 57,877 &7.877

- - - 6,108 19,896 - 6.108

- - - 28 4,225 - - 28

319 - - 5,258 8,733 894 135,165 141,317

3,940 - - 3,940 2,978 - - 3,940

. - - 20,611 13,583 8,997 - 29,608

. . - - - - 8,049 8.049

- - . 289 318 - - 289

246 - - 8,041 25,328 2,439 2,466 12,946

- - - 584 584 - - 584

- - - - - - 800 800

- - - 75,172 53,970 22,108 5,502 102,782

- - - 13,551 14,000 - - 13,551

- - - 2,660 2,589 - 106.710 108,370

- - - 219 216 - 29.989 30,208

- - - - 22,193 145768 376,010 521,778

- . - - - - 499,270 499,270

- - - 697 3,308 - - 697

- - - 11,333 8,867 - - 11,333

- - - 58 697 404 53,780 54,242

24 98,883 - 123,077 113,619 - 125,393 248,470

- - - - - 220.975 - 220,975

- - - - - - 4,121,997 4,121,997

155 463,002 - 690,436 676,998 - 230,242 920,678

97 - - 92,952 91,850 - 349,366 442,318

- - - - - - 55,638 55,638

321 53,034 - 184,241 179.189 - 144,211 328,452

- - - 788 510 - 994,854 995642
(303) - - (161,307) (150.738) - (1.815,622) (1.976,929)

- - - 38,421 40,348 - - 38,421

- - - - - - 2,829 2829

- - - - - - 3,775 3,775

- - - - - - 538,150 538,150

- - - - - 662 - 562

- - . 617 . - - 617

- - 47,370 47,370 41,859 28,769 - 76,159

- - 803,306 803,306 791,564 341,746 - 1,145,052

$ 2.421.538 $ 614,919 $ 850,676 $4950,842 _ $4.712,955 $ 820,853 $ 6,009,561 $ 11,871,256

See accompanying notes.




CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET

ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS, AND
COMPONENT UNITS (in thousands)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

PROPRIETARY
GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES FUND TYPES
SPECIAL DEBT CAPITAL INTERNAL

GENERAI., REVENUE SERVICE PROJECTS ENTERPRISE SERVICE

LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 9,304 $ 12,967 $ - $ 4,658 $ 4,594 $ 4,796
Contracts payable............. o b - - - 876 514 -
Due to other funds 37 2,334 - 998 - -
Dug to COMPONENE UMiS. ...vevuieeieeeiriiiiiiesaeiiee e cee e - - - - - -
Due {0 Primary GOVEITHIENL. ... c.oevmetiiniierrrnvanrerrseraeraraasrans - - - - - -
Pue to independent agencies and other governments.................... 4,935 4,103 - - 25 16
Due to Individuals. .......oooiiii s - - - - - -
Capitalized lease obligations, current portion.......vvevveernrverinrannens - - - - - 332
Estimated liability for self-insured 10s8es....c..ovviieerieiiiiienivenenen. - - - - - 56,147
Accrued compensated absences due within one year.................... - - - - 76 327
Matured bonds and interest payable.............oociiin, - - 39 - - -
DEPOSIES. ... oo cieiei i veeaer v vt r e e nr e e - 138 - - 117 -
Deferred revemie. ..ottt e 6,831 - - - 190 -
Payable from restricted assets:
Deposits held for construction and events................ccccoeeunees - - - - 755 -
Accrued interest pavable.......ooiiiiiiii e - - - - 835 -
Current portion of long-term obligations.............oocvevveiriivann - - - - 2,115 -
Construction contracts, retainage and accounts payable............. - - - - - -
Renewal and replacement TeSeIVe. ...oovuieiere e ieeeeieiiaeenainnns - - - - - -
Customers’ dePOSIS. .....v.vrsvervanrirrerreria s e rere i rerae s aerenas - - - - - -
Other.......coovieeeenanns - - - - - -
Deposits held in escrow - - - - - -
Advances from other funds..........cooooiiii i “ - - 13,5561 - -
Liability for landfill closure and postclosure care...........oeoeeeueee. - - - - 21,752 -
Accrued compensated absences......................an., - - - - 562 2,410
Commercial paper NOES...........vrvvrrnvrmirrrreernrrrreernsrerienianans - - - - - -
General obligation bonds.......oooi i - - - - - -
Special obligation bonds..........oooi - - - - - -
Revenue bonds - - - - 79,564 -
Long-term debt and other long-term obligations...............c.cocoeeee - - - - - -
Capitalized lease obligations, less current portion........cocceeeveeinnnns - - - - - 777
Deferred credits and Other.........ocoveireriiiier e s - - - 688 - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES.......cooiiiiimevncrenrncssnnesransesssesnaensennens. 9 21,107 $ 19,542 $ 39 $ 20,772 $ 111,099 $ 64,805




FIDUCIARY

FUND TYPES ACCOUNT GROUPS TOTALS COMPONENT UNITS TOTAL
TRUST GENERAL GENERAL (Memorandum only} GOVERNMENTAL PROPRIETARY (Memorandum only)
AND FIXED LONG-TERM PRIMARY GOVERNMENT AND SIMILAR AND SIMILAR REPORTING ENTITY
AGENCY ASSETS OBLIGATIONS 2000 1999 FUND TYPES FUND TYPES 2000
$ 3,928 - $ 40,247 39,859 $ 5,743 $ 107,182 $ 153172
35 - 1,425 836 - - 1,425
4,672 - 8,041 25,328 2,466 2,439 12,946
- 800 800 1,200 - - 800
- - - - 584 - 584
14,459 - 23,538 18,444 686 962 25,186
30,281 - 30,281 28,429 - - 30,281
- - 332 38 - 1,214 1,546
- - 56,147 65,580 - 1,939 58,086
6 - 409 439 - - 408
- - 39 39 - - 38
- - 255 210 - - 255
- - 7.021 6,693 1,253 267 8,541
- - 755 1,180 - - 755
- - 835 2,186 - 80,024 80,859
- - 2,115 1,925 - 90,231 92,346
- - - - - 93,912 93,912
- - - - - 90,241 90,241
- - - - - 17,705 17,705
- - - - - 680 680
18,011 - 18,011 13,318 - - 18,011
- - 13,551 14,000 - - 13,551
- - 21,752 19,533 - - 21,752
44 53,017 56,033 55,229 - - 56,033
- 60,000 60,000 60,000 - - 60,000
- 1,755 1,785 2,285 - - 1,755
- 718,300 718,300 697,915 - - 718,300
- - 79,564 80,761 370,535 189,478 639,577
- 16,565 16,565 19,425 - 3,056,320 3,072,885
- 239 1,016 466 - 22,917 23,933
- - 689 151 - 149,166 149,855
$ 71,436 $ 850,676 $ 1,159,476 $ 1,155,470 $ 381,267 $ 3,804,677 55,445,420

See accompanying notes.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET

ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS, AND
COMPONENT UNITS (in thousands)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

PROPRIETARY
GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES FUND TYPES
SPECIAL DEBT CAPITAL INTERNAL
ENERAL, REVENUE SERVICE PROJECTS ENTERPRISE SERVICE
LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS
EQUITY AND CTHER CREDITS:
Investment in general fixed a8SetS....ocoovveiinieienieiie e ieee e, % - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Contributed capital................. - - - - 226,652 11,345
Retained earnings:
L a4 oo S - - - - 40,885 133,220
Fund balances:
Reserved for encumbIances.........coviiiriine i e, 14,314 47,203 - 37,280 - -
Reserved for imprest cash and cash in eserow............ccocolll 330 4,751 210 1,508 - -
Reserved for mortgages receivable...... ...l o - 20,611 - - - -
Reserved for inventories and prepaids...............coocvceivvievnnn., . 1,287 - - - - -
Reserved for employees' retitement benefits.........coovvvvinnnnenn. - - - - - -
Reserved for debt service - - 47,160 - - -
Unreserved:
Designated for capital projects...........ocoevvmrvivicrririarenninns 8,018 - - 109,221 - -
Designated for subsequent years' budget..............c..coeoune. - 26,978 - - - -
Designated for budget stabilization............ovovivvinviinnnionnns 17,205 - - - - -
Designated for self-InSUrance........ooooueieeeeiicieeniineiniinnns - - - - - -
Designated for changes in fair value of investments.............. 271 524 233 797 - -
Designated for next year's budget appropriation...........c...... 34,042 - - - - -
Undesignated (deficit).......overivniiniiiiiiicic e 888 44,676 - (2,844) - -
TOTAL EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS.....ccccoetivinriennnann. 76,355 144,743 47,603 145,562 267,517 144 565
TOTAL LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS....... $ 97,462 $ 164,285 $ 47,642 $ 166,334 $ 378,616 $ 208,370

-10 -



FIDUCIARY

FUND TYPES ACCOUNT GROUPS TOTALS COMPONENT UNITS TOTAL
TRUST GENERAL GENERAL (Memorandum only) GOVERNMENTAL PROPRIETARY  (Memorandum only)
AND FIXED LONG-TERM PRIMARY RNMENT AND SIMILAR AND SIMILAR REPORTING ENTITY
AGENCY ASSETS OBLIGATIONS 2000 1999 FUND TYPES FUND TYPES 2000

$ “ $ 614,919 - $ 614,919 $ 595,090 § 220975 $ - $ 835894

- - - 237,997 244,908 - 881,504 1,119,501

- - - 174,085 153,393 - 1,313,380 1,487,465

- - - 98,797 76,188 347 - 99,144

- - - 6,399 5,247 - - 6,359

- - - 20,611 13,550 - - 20,611

- - - 1,287 1,210 - - 1,287

2,344,614 - - 2,344,614 2,203,816 - - 2,344 614

- - - 47,160 41,859 28,712 - 75,872

- - - 117,239 95,303 - - 117,239

- - - 26,978 14,720 - - 26,978

- - - 17,205 17,486 - - 17,205

- - - - - 200 - 200

26 - - 1,851 1,074 6 - 1,857

- - - 34,042 33,242 - - 34,042

5,462 - - 48,182 60,399 189,346 - 237,528

2,350,102 614,919 - 3,791,366 3,557,485 439,586 2,194,884 6,425,836

$ 2,421,538 $ 614,919 $ 850,676 $ 4,950,842 $4,712,955 $ 820,853 $ 6,099,561 $ 11,871,256

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES, EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS, AND SIMILAR DISCRETELY

PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS ( in thousands)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

SPECIAL DEBT CAPITAL
GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE PROJECTS
REVENUE:
B (T PO PSS $ 355,610 $ 108,394 $ - 3 -
Licenses and PEITIES. ... .ccoirneureiarii e caria e eeenaa e 13,970 - - -
Intergovernmental......coviieeiricine e e e e 125,119 75,780 - 1,251
Charges for SErviCES.. ..ot e 48,430 13,872 - -
Fines and forfeitures. .. ....ccveniiie i e eeaen 7,744 2,194 - -
Payment in et 0f 1AXeS......vuvveeeiienciren i eraver e rrnannans 3,583 - - -
6511 () SO PPROUPPP 10,171 7,391 2,952 9,350
L8130 S P 7,575 11,078 - 5137
TOtal REVEIUE, ... .uiitirrsirrrreririnrirnrrareirnssrrrrasrirrrsasssnrsirrrnsnssnns 572,202 218,709 2,952 15,738
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General GOVETMTIENE. .. ... .ou ettt cae e eee e aarannees 86,101 6,180 - -
I UIman SBIVICES. . cvverert i inrier et es e rne st s e s eanra e rnaeras 55,610 25,841 - -
Public safety.......ocuin i e 280,895 17,236 - -
Culture and recreation...........cooooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i aeanaan, 37,032 3,693 - -
TransSpOrtatioN.......coiiiiire i e e 30,792 88,949 - -
ECONOMIC ENVIOMITIENT. v v\ tvvrrsvrenrernrnenereensrrrsssoneesrsenrernars 4,357 38,939 - -
Physical environment...........cocooiiiiiiiiii i 11,019 4333 - -
Capital outlay..... ... - - - 75,548
Debt service:
Principal.. . ..o e - - 28,200 -
Interest on fiscal charges.........o.oooeiiiiiiiiiii e - - 42,251 -
ATDIIAZE. .o\ as - - - -
ORI .. e - - - -
Total EXPenditires. .....vuuucuiencnen it e ee e 505,806 185,171 70,451 75,548
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES........ 66,398 33,538 (67,498) (59,810)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds from sale of notes and bonds
and issuance of other debt obligations.............covvvvirivrvennennnn. - - - 44,939
Proceeds from sale of refunding bonds...........c.cooiiiiini i - - - -
Operating transfers iM...o.ooooevr e e, 6,399 15,815 73,107 34,479
Operating transfers QUL .........ooiiiii e rirres s raeaas (130,428) (14,840) - {448)
Payments to refund escrow agent.........oooveiiiiii i, - - - -
Transfers - In from component Units. .........c..coooveiiiiiciiieiinann., 71,434 - - -
Transfers - Out to COMPONENT UMILS.......evierienrarenrearnrnarnrereneenens (5,999) (8,904) - -
Transfers - In from primary SOVEIMmMent.......c.oovvvriisirirnniinnnn. - - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)......ccoivienieiiiiiiiiiiiiiicenenns (58,594) (7,929) 73,107 78,970
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE AND OTHER SOURCES
OVER (UNDER)} EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES.......... 7,802 25,609 5,608 19,160
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR........ccocevvvvivniceannes 68,476 119,300 41,995 126,236
Change in reserve for inventory of supplies.......cccovivicviiiiniinan.. 77 - - -
Residual equity transfer in (OUE}.........oooeviiiiii s - {166) - 166
FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR......ccccciiiiinienimcnincaniessncnnns $ 76,355 $ 144,743 $ 47,603 $ 145,562
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FIDUCIARY TOTALS TOTALS

FUND TYPE (Memorandum only) (Memorandum only)
EXPENDABLE PRIMARY GOVERNMENT COMPONENT REPORTING ENTITY
TRUST 2000 1999 UNITS 2000
$ - $ 464,004 $ 425912 $ 58,185 $522,199
- 13,970 13,194 - 13,970
- 202,150 182,543 11,316 213,466
- 62,302 55,275 - 682,302
- 9,938 8,949 - 9,938
- 3,583 3,799 - 3,583
96 29,960 22,380 12,738 42,698
3,051 25,841 20,589 1,019 27,860
3,147 812,748 732,641 83,268 896,016
478 92,759 85,323 2,432 95,191
87 81,538 75,412 - 81,538
1,057 299,188 277,648 - 299,188
281 41,006 38,678 1 41,007
- 119,741 110,019 2,288 122,029
127 43,423 44,781 7,460 50,883
61 15,413 13,977 - 15,413
- 75,548 61,826 31,897 107,445
- 28,200 25,437 10,550 38,750
- 42,251 39,006 20,861 63,112
- - - 48 48
- - - 31 31
2,091 839,067 772,107 75,568 914,635
1,056 (26,319) (39,4686) 7,700 (18,619)
- 44 939 32,999 - 44,939
- - 43,492 - -
162 129,962 120,363 - 129,962
(12) {145,728) (145,330) {13,079) {158,807)
- - (43,492) - -
- 71,434 66,494 - 71,434
- (14,903) (13,185) - {14,903)
- - - 6,703 6,703
150 85,704 61,341 (6,376) 79,328
1,206 59,385 21,875 1,324 80,709
3,972 359,979 337,658 221,952 581,931
- 77 23Q - 77
- - 216 (4,665) (4,665)
$ 5,178 $ 419,441 § 359,979 $ 218,611 $ 638,052

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ALEL BUDGETED GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

GENERAL FUND
VARIANCE
BUDGETARY FAVORAELE
ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BASIS BUDGET {(UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUE:

TaXES. e eiten et $ 355,610 $ - $ 355,610 $ 342,882 $ 12,728

Licenses and permits.........ccooveeeeniirienieeniannn. 13,970 - 13,970 13,492 478

Intergovernmental.......o..oevvveiieieinniincicniienn 125,119 - 125,119 113,197 11,922

Charges for Services.....coovvverieiieeeniieiieeeneennn, 48,430 - 48,430 47,271 1,159

Fines and forfeltures.....covvvviievivninnivnernierirannes 7,744 - 7,744 7,200 544

Payment in lieu of taxes...........oeviievieianninnennns 3,583 - ' 3,583 3,773 {190}

IMErest. e e 10,171 - 10,171 7.563 2,608

L0 3T U U PR 7,575 - 7,575 3,838 3,737
Total REVEIIE . ......ooiiiiiie e eet e e eaeeas 572,202 - 572,202 539,216 32,986
EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES:

General gOVernment. ... ...c...oeveeninieneieieeennns. 86,101 3,429 89,530 118,006 28,476

Human SeIviCes. ....vuvveviuniiiireiniennieieeiiaianinns 55,610 1,003 56,703 56,166 {537)

Public safety.......coooiiieiiee i eeans 280,895 3,068 283,963 276,978 {6,985)

Culture and TeCTEAtOM. . ..vvvvarrirviriirrriisiianiinnns 37,032 1,729 38,761 39,307 546

TrAnSPOTAHON. «.veveeeeeeeerieeerie e eeecee e eeeieeee, 30,792 1,837 32,629 33,457 828

Economic environment..........o.covvvvieeneeennennnn, 4,357 2,040 6,397 7,050 853

Physical environment................ccceoeiiverenin, 11,019 1,074 12,093 13,136 1,043
Total Expenditures and Encumbrances................... 505,806 14,270 520,076 544,100 24,024 -
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND

ENCUMBRANCES.....ccoovuimtinnrmmssrencrrassrenns 66,396 (14,270} 52,126 (4,884) 57,010
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Operating transfers in............coovviieiieins 6,399 - 6,399 6,261 138

Operating transfers out..........cocoovviiiiininiannan. {130,428) - {130,428) (135,990) 5,562

Transfers - In from component units................. 71,434 - 71,434 74,897 (3,483)

Transfers - Out to component units.................. {5,999) - {5,999) (6,499) 500
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses).......cveeeenean.. {58,584) - {58,594} (61,331) 2737
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER

SOURCES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES,

AND OTHER USES.. ...t vnaas 7,802 (14,270) {6,468) (66,215) 59,747
FUND BALANCE ALLOCATION...................... - - - 66,215 (66,215)
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER

SOURCES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES,

AND OTHER USES......ccvtniivrmenrersensenseasiane $ 7,802 {$ 14.270) (3 6,468) $ - (5 6,468)
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BUDGETED SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

VARIANCE
BUDGETARY FAVORABLE
ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BASIS BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE)

$ 108,394 $ - $108,394 $ 92,251 $ 16,143
37,649 - 37,649 45,684 (8,035)
12,233 - 12,233 10,925 1,308
2,083 - 2,083 1,023 160
5,541 - 5,541 4,351 1,190
9,502 - 9,502 3,465 6,037
175,402 - 175,402 158,599 16,803
4,118 373 4,491 6,241 1,750
18,998 4,934 23,932 25,261 1,329
8,832 692 9,524 11,189 1,665

813 - 813 998 185
88,927 26,930 115,857 112,135 (3.722)
25,343 718 26,061 54,788 28,727
3,789 222 4,011 4,776 765
150,820 33,869 184,689 215,388 30,699
24,582 (33,869) (9,287) (56,789) 47,502
12,705 - 12,705 12,790 (85)
(14,483) - (14,483) (14,483) -
(8,515) - (8.515) (8,315) (200)
{10,293) . {10,293) {10,008) (285)
14,289 (33,869) (19,580) (66,797) 47,217

- - - 66,797 (66,797)

$ 14289 (3 33,869) ($ 19,580) $ - ($ 19,580)

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS -
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES, SIMILAR TRUST FUNDS, AND SIMILAR

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY
FUND TYPES FUND TYPE
INTERNAL NONEXPENDABLE
ENTERPRISE SERVICE TRUST
OPERATING REVENUE:
Operating revenue and charges for services........ooviieiiiiiiciicn i e, $ 47,585 $ 123,781 $ -
Earnings On VeSS . ... oo i eecn et iat e rartaraet e eneten e s enaeaanesenaenenn - - 19
L€ 1 U SN P - 352 -
Total Operating REVENUS.......cuiiniiiiii it et en et v e e aen s 47,585 124,133 19
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Bl s - - -
Purchased POWET. ... v e - - -
Operations and MAIMENANCE. ... ..vveiitiiiiit i et eee e e e nn e ees - - -
General and adminiStEALIVE. .. ......vvuvruvreriies e s irs s ar s ses s aee i e beennans - - -
Persomnal SeIVICES. .. uuuiiiii ittt et ettt er et e aaens 14,909 19,837 -
Supplies and MALErTAlS. .. .iuvure i cien et e ei ettt e eaas 2,284 11,609 -
L00S L0 VI o (e O N 160 4,046 -
Interdepartmental ChaT@ES..........iviiiiiniei e e e e 586 - -
Other services and charges. ..o 58,489 18,108 -
Bad debts, net of reCOVETIES. ..vu i i e 138 - -
Casualty and iMSUIANCE. .........oiiiiiiii ittt rre e erae it e re i eneaneraenaanannas - - -
Taxes and JCEMSES. . .u ittt ittt e e et e et e vt aa e an e - - -
Depreciation and amoOrtiZation. .. ....ouuveesreaeermererninriinie et s e aee s eaenanss 9,315 13,198 -
Claims and LOSSES.......ceimie i e - 327 -
Insurance premiums and participant dividends.............c.cocooiiii s - 37,722
L0111 S U U PO U PN - - 8
Total Operating EXPeRSEs. ..o...iiie it ci vt rre s rres e ves e e sa e anrseranes 85,882 104,847 8
OPERATING INCOME (LIOSS) . ittveiittrinreriornerreesenrassassseacssnssacanssonsesarsssasse (38,287) 19,286 11
NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES):
LB oL d B (o= LU 2,987 7,968 . -
INEETESt EXPEISE. tuu ettt sttt aee e iee e e et e e e e e eme e eenr e eea e e s renennsteanransbnnnh (2,087) - -
Public funding:
United States GOVEINITENT. ...v\'ierieerireisaaerserresseriasscninssinesesieninreaenaenns - - -
State of Florida....oou it - - -
Other SUBSIIES. .......oiiii i i it ans - - -
OPETALINE BIANES. ..ot tiii ittt vt ettt e e e e emeneeeeaneterrnsrenrnseennes 914 - -
L6 5 PR 4,884 (497) -
Total Non-Operating Revenue {EXPenses)......cioviviverrniiiiiiiriinsiisneasniinisssannans 6,688 7,471 -
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS AND
EXTRAORDINARY TTEM. ...ttt e ieee e eee e et e v e {31,609) 26,757 11
OPERATING TRANSFERS:
Operating ransfers iN....... ... e e 31,646 5776 -
Operating transfers OUL........oii e e e an e a e nas (2,581) (18,913) -
Transfers - In from primary gOVEIMMeNT. ..........vimeiiieeieeie i iieee it eceiaeeeenvranan - - -
Transfers « Out to primary gOVErNMENt. .. ..c.uivvreririreiiieeiiintentenrenneeneeneraeennss - - -
Total Operating Transfers In (OUL). .....oiee i e 29,065 {13,137) -
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEM......ccvvvvevviniiniiicncinen (3 2,544) $ 13,620 $ N
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TOTALS TOTALS
(Memorandum only) {(Memorandum only}

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT COMPONENT REPORTING ENTITY
2000 1999 UNITS 2000

$ 171,366 $ 157,846 $ 973,666 $ 1,145,032
19 11 195 214
352 1,146 30,714 31,066
171,737 159,003 1,004,575 1,176,312
- - 271,662 271,662
- . 95,509 96,509
- - 241,149 241,149
- - 15,178 15,178
34,746 35,505 23,675 58,421
13,893 10,796 3,606 17,499
4,206 3,391 - 4,206
586 629 - 586
76,597 65,979 6,830 83,427
139 130 - 139
- - 784 784
- - 16,790 16,790
22,513 22,386 172,083 194,596
327 9,968 - 327
37,722 35,877 - 37,722
8 6 - 8
190,737 184,667 848,266 1,039,003
{19,000) (25,664) 156,309 137,309
10,955 5,396 45,045 56,000
(2,097) {1,808) (147 583) (149,680)
- - 2,391 2,391
- - 3,273 3,273
- - 444 444
914 720 - 914
4387 (7.340) (11,987) (7,600)
14,159 (3,030) (108,417) (94,258)
(4,841) (28,694) 47,892 43,051
37,422 43,887 13,079 50,501
(21,494) (18,797) - (21,494)
- - 8,200 8,200
- - (71,434) (71,434)
15,928 25,090 (50,155) (34,227)
$ 11,087 (¢ 3,604) (5 2,263) $ 8,824

See accompanying notes.

{continued)
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS -
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES, SIMILAR TRUST FUNDS, AND SIMILAR

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (in thousands; continued)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY
FUND TYPES FUND TYPE
INTERNAL  NONEXPENDABLE
ENTERPRISE SERVICE TRUST

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEM.......ccvvniimiiiiiniiieeneineeans ($ 2,544) $ 13620 $ 1
Extraordinary item - (loss) on advance refundings and early retirements................... - - -
NET INCOME.....cciiimiiiiinrerinieitieniiieniasiis s s ststssststsvarsnranrrarsrssssnrs (2,544} 13,620 11
Add depreciation on contributed assets. ... ...ttt e 8,124 1,492 -
Increase (decrease) in retained EarMINES. ... ocoovi it re e e aeaaens 5,580 15,112 11
Retained Earnings, Beginning of Year........oocoviiiiieiiiiiiiiii i 35,285 118,108 299
Residual equity transfer (OUL).......ov i e e - - -
Retained Earnings, End of Year.......ccciciiiiiiiiiiiminiciieerrerrercescecsernsesessanes $ 40,865 $ 133,220 $ 310
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TOTALS
{Memorandum only)

—_ 2000 199
$ 11,087 ($ 3,604)
11,087 (3,604)

9,616 9,913

20,703 6,309
153,692 147,599

- (218)

$ 174,395 $ 153,692

COMPONENT
UNITS

($ 2,263)
(33)
(2.296)
28,227
25,931

1,257,614

$ 1,283,545

TOTALS
(Memorandum only)

2000
$ 8824
(33)
8,791
37,843
46,634
1,411,306

$ 1,457,940

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES, NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS AND

SIMILAR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS). ..ttt ettt e aea e ee e
Adjustments to reconcile operating income / loss to
net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortiZation. ....o..o....ooiiiiiii et ee e et et e e eans
Bad debt expense, net Of TECOVETIES. ... vrv i iiirirenisiii ittt sereee e e en e
Other non-operating reveRUe/ (EXPEISES). .. oo tv o eetrrrrrrrrrerrarrrersnrrarrsersrsssissseemennns
LG v L a1 ) L OO
Change in assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in accounts and interest receivable, restricted...............ocooviviiiiinans
Decrease (increase) in receivables and other current assets, net
Decrease (increase} in due from other funds.........oooi
Decrease (increase) in due from independent agencies and other governments...................
Decrease (INCISASE} Ml IMVETIIOTIES . 1t u it et i ie e vae e eeneen s enee s enseeesaensen et sansansneoaeeenns
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses and Other.............ovvuveriminiiiin e iieiineranan.
Decrease (increase) i deferred charges. . ...
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and acerued eXpenses........vveeveriierinrirrenennnnnnn.
Increase (decrease) in contracts payable.......... e e e vt
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds.........
Increase (decrease) in due to component units
Increase (decrease) in cdue to independent agencies and other governments
Increase (decrease) in current portion long-term liabilities. ...........ocoeeeeeeeen..e..
Increase (decrease) in liabilities, restricted.................vvvvenennes T
Increase (decrease) in deposits held for construction and events.....................coviiann,
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities and deferred revenue
Increase (decrease) in deferred TevemUE. .. ...oociei i ST
Increase (decrease) in accrued landfill closure and postclosure care .........ooooiiitiiiivnnnns
Increase (decrease) in accrued compensated ADSENCES. .vuvvuirrreernniie e i eeeeerraeaananees
Increase (decrease) in hability for self-insured 10SSES. ..vuvvuvviviiiiineiiiiiii e e,
Contribution to primary gOVerament..............c.eae... e et

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS. ..ot et e ee s

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES...........coeeiennnne.
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Operating grants reCeiVed. ... ... ...ovoiiiiiiisieniis i ee e rere e ere s eat e e eana
Cash received through operating transfers from other funds ..
Cash payments through operating transfers to other funds..........cocoeeeeeieininnn,,
Cash payment on advances received. ......vvuuvireiiiiiiiiii e e eeeeeere e eaena e
Cash assumed from primary SOVEITIMEDL. .. ... ouiii ittt s e s e e e eee e eneeemees

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES....

-20 -

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
INTERNAL

ENTERPRISE SERVICE
($ 38,297 $ 19,286
9,315 13,198
139 .
4,384 (497)
1,043 (105)

- 9,702

205 1,580

(1) 7

(3) -

1,310 -
851 196

178 .

(23) (560)

- (1,839)

(11) -

(415) -

107 -
2,219 .
73) (29)

- (9,433)

19,725 12,220
(18,572) 31,506
914 .
31,646 5,776
(2,581) (18,913)

$ 29,979 ($ 13,137




TOTALS

(Memorandurn only)
NONEXPENDABLE PRIMARY GOVERNMENT COMPONENT
TRUST 2000 1999 UNITS

5 11 ($ 19,000) ($ 25664) $ 156,309
- 22,513 22,386 172,083

- 139 122 -

- 4,387 {7,343) 2,349

(19) (19 (1 -

- - - (4,855)

- 938 729 631

- 9,702 (21,435) -

- 1,785 1,206 -

- 6 161 (14,861)

- (3) 156 (247)

- 1,310 10,133 -

1 1,048 {1,228) (1,349)

- 178 (153} -

- (583) 560 (382)

- - 83 -

- (1,839) 1,586 883

- an (8 -

- - - 29,203

- (415) 628 -

- - - (1,192)

- 107 (202) -

- 2,219 (6,445) -

- (102) (443) -

- (9,433) (1,858) 357

- - - (71,434)

(18) 31,927 (1,174) 111,266
(7} 12,927 (26,838) 267,575

- 914 720 6,109

- 37,422 43,938 13,079

- (21,494) (18,797 -

- - {700) -

- - - 8,200

$ - $ 16,842 $ 25158 $ 27,388

(continued)

See accompanying notes.
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TOTALS

(Memorandum only)
REPORTING ENTITY

2000

$ 137,309

194,596

139

6,736
(19}

(4,855)
1,569
9,702
1,785

(14,855)

(250)
1,310
(301)
178
(985)

(876)
{11
29,203
(415)
(1,192)
107
2,219
(102)
(9,076)

(71,434)
143,193

280,502

7,023
50,501
(21,494)

8,200

$ 44,230



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES, NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS AND
SIMILAR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (in thousands)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
INTERNAL
ENTERPRISE SERVICE
CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to property, plant and eqUIPIIED. ... .vvuviveiiiiniree et e e e e e e ee e eaaeas ($ 1,925) ($ 28,554)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment......... 594 11,394
Customer CONMIBIONS .. ... ittt e et et e e et e et aae e e e e et ae e e e e e em e emaererras - -
Cash receipts from contributlons i aid.....co.viii o e - -
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt, met....... ..o, - -
Defeasance of capital debt..............c.ovevvennnn, - -
Principal paid on long-term debt obligations (1,007) 777
Interest paid on debt..........ooii e aaaanan - -
Interest and payments to refunded bond escrow agent...............ociiiiiieiierieii e ieeeaaanas (3,448) -
Passenger facility charges and other ... - -
Assets transferred t0 OPETAtONS. ... ... oottt iree e rr s r e e eees - -
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES. .....iiiiin s siietisast e bin eee e eet e eeeeeee e eeesmn e eeanesnaneees {5,786) {16,383}
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest and dividends 0N BVE ST IEIIS . . avrus e et ireraerns s e et s st esin e aee e eae e eeraee e enens 2,987 7.968
Purchase of IAVESIMERES. .. ...oen et et et ey e e e - -
Proceeds from sale and maturities of Investtments. .........oviiiiiiiniiiic e - -
Investment in The Energy AWOIILY. .......c.iirriiriiirereirere i sereisinneae e eemeee e eeneeeeas - -
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES.........coooiiiiei e 2,887 7,868
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS......cooiiiiiiiiieeie e 8,608 9,954
Cash and cash equivalents at October 1. ... i et 53,103 137,485
Cash and cash equivalents at September 30. ...t $ 61,711 $ 147,439
CLASSIFIED AS:
[0 Ty (o A T TR O $ 49,681 $ 147,439
L 4 T B L O 12,030 -
TOTALeoicvieeiiis e ettt $ 61,711 $ 147,439
NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of contributed capial BSSEIS.......ciiirriieii it e s $ 2,539 $ 166
Accrual of landfill closure, postelosure and decoOntamination Costs. ..........vvvueerrerreneeieneennnenen. 40 -
TOTAL NONCASH INVESTING, CAFITAL AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES... ...ttt e i s $ 2,579 $ 166
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TOTALS

{(Memorandum only)
NONEXPENDABLE PRIMARY GOVERNMENT COMPONENT
TRUST 2000 1999 UNITS
$ - ($ 30,479) ($ 30,724) ($ 683,338)
- 11,988 28,102 722
- - - 8,699
- - - 48,481
- - - 064,453
. - - (341,772)
- (230) 17,597 {119,908)
- - - (157,437)
- (3,448) (1,397) -
- - - 7,078
_ - (2186) (278)
- (22,169} 13,362 (273,298)
19 10,974 5,288 45139
- - - (1,702,228)
- - - 1,788,019
- - - 10,919
19 10,974 5,288 141,849
12 18,574 16,970 163,514
299 190,887 173,917 286,606
$ 311 $ 209,461 $ 190,887 $ 450,120
$ 311 $ 197,431 $ 156,429 $ 74,110
- 12,030 34,458 376,010
$ 311 $ 200,461 $ 190,887 $ 450,120
- $§ 2,705 $ 848 -
- 40 40 -
3 - $§ 2745 $ 888 3 -

TOTALS
{Memorandum only)
REPORTING ENTITY
2600

($ 713,815)
12,710
8,699
48,481
964,453
(341,772)
{120,138)
(157,437)
(3,448)
7,078
(278)

(295,467)

56,113
(1,702,228}
1,788,019

10,819
152,823
182,088
477,483

$ 659,581

3 271,541
388,040

$ 659,581

$ 2,705
40

$ 2,745

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF PLAN NET ASSETS (in thousands)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

GENERAL POLICE
EMPLOYEES AND FIRE
PENSION PENSION TOTALS
PLAN PLAN 2000 1999
ASSETS
Cash and short-term investments............cocoveeiiiniiininiiennnn.n. $ 8,980 $ 24,907 $ 33,887 $ 121,924
Receivables (net, where applicable, of
allowances for uncollectible):
Interest and dividends.........coooiiiiiiiiiii s 8,135 5,446 13,581 10,845
Due from other funds..........c.oooiiiiiiiiiii e - 246 246 196
Due from other gOVErnmMents. ... .....cocoviiiriiniieiiiireanaaans - - - 7,357
Accounts receivable... ... i e, 9 72 81 168
Total receivables......oiiiiiii e 8,144 5,764 13,908 18,566
Investments, at fair value:
U.S. Government obligations............oocvveiiiiiiniiinnnnn.. 313,948 195,845 509,793 417,354
Municipal Bonds. .......oviviimmii e - - - 1,004
Domestic corporate bonds.........o.coooiiiiiitiiiiiiean, 264,600 99,212 363,812 380,953
DOmMESIIC STOCKS. 1 eua e inavit ittt iie ittt eaee e eeeeenenn 731,117 465,770 1,196,887 1,063,556
International StOCKS. ... viirvieri o 202,901 50,162 253,063 199,033
Real EState. . ..ot cvve e en e - 2,321 2,321 2,055
Total INVeStMENTS. . ....ovuitinie e eeeen i ceen et eeeaaennenss 1,512,566 813,310 2,325,876 2,072,955
Property, Plant and Equipment:
Land. ..o e e e - 24 24 24
Buildings and improvements.........c.ccoveeeereeeivereanniennnnns - 252 252 252
Furnitures and equipment. ..., 128 193 321 317
Accumulated depreciation. ... (68) {235) (303) (252)
Net property, plant and equipment..............ccoceieiienae.. 60 234 294 341
TOTAL ASSETS....ciiiiiieiiiiieniciccniieisiscsscsrsssosrasssrnsnraes 1,529,750 844,215 2,373,965 2,213,786
LIABTLITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities..................coooel. 13 880 893 1,199
Accrued Compensated Absences.. .........coooviiiiiviiineinn. 12 38 50 48
Due t0 Drop ParticipantS...........vvveeererverseereereiseeerienienes - 28,408 28,408 8,723
TOTAL LIABILITIES......ccoivuimrirminicnraricnisicrasacenees 25 29,326 25,351 9,970
NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS... $ 1,529,725 $814,889 $ 2,344,614 $ 2,203,816

(See schedule of funding progress at page 170.)

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS (in thousands)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

GENERAL POLICE
EMPLOYEES AND FIRE
PENSION PENSION TOTALS
PLAN PLAN 2000 1999
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
2051 15) (01 OO PP TP $ 11,698 $ 9,186 $ 20,884 $ 24013
Plan Member. . i e 17,414 7,986 25,400 24,325
Total CORTIBULIONS. ... ee e eeneenns 29,112 17,172 46,284 48,338
Other additions:
State insurance Contributions. . ...cvvrivs v vrierriirieeeraeans - 4,299 4,299 4,246
Court fines & penalties.... ... viviieieireriirrrririr e rreaieas - 2,942 2,942 2,708
Atlantic Beach Firefighter's Fund................................ - - - 1,615
Miscellaneous. .....ooontiii e e aaeas 1 32 33 39
Total other additions. ... ...coevviiiiiii i iieeeeeenenes 1 7.273 7.274 8,608
Investment income:
Net appreciation
in fair value of INVeSIMEeNS......coovvirrreiirrarierrenneranes 83,880 59.136 143,016 187,181
Interest and dividends..........oooieiiiiiiiiii e 53,193 27,258 80,451 76,729
Total INVeStMeNt INCOME. .. .vveirerierriieneerieeieeanennnn 137,073 86,394 223 467 263,920
Less Investment XPenSe. ..o e vreirsriiensieririanieieasins (4.271) (3,766) {8,037) (8,092)
Net investment iMCOMIE. ...\ vvrerrerrnrinrarinrrenrrernsnenes 132,802 82,628 215,430 255,828
TOTAL ADDITIONS...c.ciiiriieiienriertacesnssnsncrunasesrransass 161,815 107,073 268,988 312,774
DEDUCTIONS
Benefits payments. . ......oooiiiiiii s 70,098 52,142 122,240 96,818
Refunds of contributions........ooveeiivevoviiieiieeieeeee s 3,314 307 3,621 2,885
Operating transfers ouf...........ooooiiiiiiiiiii e, - 162 162 123
Administrative EXPeNSES. . cuvr e irinraeerraintirrreesircraaaiaes 1,402 765 2,167 1,234
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS. ..ccuvierirciiinresieenesresiiesions 74,814 53,376 128,190 101,060
Iy [ A (T = - 87,101 53,697 140,798 211,714
NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS:
BEGINNING OF YEAR . ...ovivieiiiiiaiei e ieeneerriensrians 1,442 624 761,192 2,203,816 1,982,102
END OF YEAR. ..o $ 1,529,725 $ 814,889 $ 2,344,614 $ 2,203,816

See accompanying notes. -25-
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COMPONENT UNITS

Component Units are legally separate organizations for which the primary government is
financially accountable. Financial accountability is defined as appointment of a voting
majority of the component unit's governing body with certain exceptions, and either (a) the
ability to impose will by the primary government, or (b) the potential for the organization
to provide financial benefits to, or impose financial burdens on the primary government.

These are presented in two reporting groups, Governmental Fund Type and Proprietary Fund

Type.
GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPE:

The Duval County Housing Finance Authority provides money for loans and technical
assistance for construction and rehabilitation of housing to alleviate a shortage of housing
and capital for investment in housing in Jacksonville.

The Jacksonville Economic Development Commission provides a focal point for
economic development in the City that results in a centralization of economic development
programs.

The Jacksonville Economic Development Company, Inc. provides financial assistance in
the form of venture capital loans, grants and other economic incentives to promote new small
business development throughout the City.

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE:

The JEA manages and operates an electric utility system and a water and sewer utility
system in the Consolidated City of Jacksonville/Duval County area.

The Jacksonville Port Authority manages and operates the City's major marine port and
aviation/airport facilities.

GOVERNMENTAL AND PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE:

The Jacksonville Transportation Authority is responsible for construction, improvement,
and maintenance of the Jacksonville Expressway System (governmental fund type) and
operation of the City's mass transit systems, including bus and automated skyway express,
throughout Duval County (proprietary fund type).



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES (in thousands)
SEPTEMBER 38, 2000

DUVAL COUNTY
HOUSING
FINANCE
AUTHORITY
ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and InVeSIMENS. . .....ooveiiiiien i rr e e aes § 9,839
Cash and equivalents. ......o.vir i e -
Receivables (net, where applicable, of
allowances for uncollectibles):
AccoUnts and HITEIESE. ... ..uvtvrrrieras e et st enret et asteanenneeneanneeeens -
MOTtEAZES. ... e e e e 7,744
Due from other funds.........ocviiiiiiiiii e -
Due from other GQOVernments................ocooiiiiiii e e -
Restricted assets:
Cash and equivalents.........cooiiiiiii e s e e e -
Interest receivable. ... -
Fixed assets and infrastricture, NEL ..., ..v.vuvein e eversinerrensersssrerasseearasseasenns 40
Real estate under develOPmMEnt. ... .oouvuieiiiii e e e e -
Amount available for retirement of general long-term obligations................... -
Amount to be provided for retirement of general long-term obligations............ -
TOTAL ASSETS...cuiiririieiieiirtiiieisiitricinesessesisiesiassiossosssrsstssnsnnsrrnes $ 17,623
LIABIETTIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and acerued liabilities. .........oooviiieiiiiiiiiniiii e, $ 21
Due to other funds.......c.oo -
Due to primary SOVEITIIEN. .. ... ouiiitiie it eiee e ceen i eaen et eeeatenvanarerenenaeen -
DDue t0 Other GOVEIMMENES. . ... v ue i ceiie e eeee et eaee e et eeeneeeeaanes -
Deferred revenUe. ... oo et aens -
Revenue bonds. ... e -
TOTAL LIABILITIES.....cotuiiiiniiiinienieriiniinrsesissrsssssrinrerrensiornssasranes 21
FUND EQUITY:
Investment in general fixed assets...........ovevvriiiiee oo 40
Fund Balances:
Reserved for enCUMDIANCES. .. vvuivvvre it iiieria vt eee e eans -
Reserved for debt Service............oivvniiiiinii e -
Unreserved:
Designated for self-INSurance.........c..covivviviiinin i eeeens -
Designated for changes in fair value of investments..............ovvuev.n.. -
Undesignated. ... e 17,562
Total Fund Balances...........cooviiiiiiiiiiiii et 17,562
Total Fund EQUILY. ... ...oinii i e e e e e a e 17,602
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY ..cc.ccimmiirtiiniarsnsanserrnsereanes $ 17,623
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JACKSONYILLE
ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT
COMMISSION

$ 1337

148

200

347

1,118

1,471
1,671

$ 1819

JACKSONVILLE
TRANSPORTATION
AUTHORITY -
JACKSONVILLE
EXPRESSWAY SYSTEM

5 -
36,257

886

2,439
21,804

145,768
404
220,735

28,789
341,746

$ 798,868

$ 5335
2,466

686

370,535

379,022

220,735

28,712

200

170,199
189,111
419,846

$ 798,868

JACKSONVILLE
ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT COMBINED
COMPANY, INC. TOTALS
$ - $ 11,176
698 36,995
- 894
1,253 8,997
- 2,439
30 22,108
- 145,768
- 404
. 220,975
562 562
. 28,789
- 341,746
$ 2,543 $ 820,853
$ 239 $ 5743
. 2,466
584 584
- 686
1,253 1,253
- 370,535
2,076 381,267
- 220,975
- 347
. 28,712
- 200
- 6
467 189,346
467 218,611
467 439,586
$ 2543 $ 820,853

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF JACKSONYVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

DUVAL COUNTY
HOUSING
FINANCE
AUTHORITY
REVENUE:
B (S U U PR $ -
INtergovernITEntal. . ... e et e e ee e e -
D= = PP - 525
L0711 U OO 492
B T 4T 1,017
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General SOVEIMIMEN. ... uuitiuin it ee e eee e e e v e e raan s e naanennees -
Cultuare and reCreation. ... oo e e e ea e aes -
TranSpOITAtION. . ....evn e it e e e et trea e e en s e ean e e e r e eneanraaens -
Economic envirONMENt. ... ... .ouiiiuiiitiiiieiit e e e e eeen et erensrvens 1,337
Capital OUELAY. ..ottt et et e a b e b st et e eneeneen e -
Debt service:
Principal.......oiviii i crn e e e a e e eae s -
B4t £ -
ATDIITAZE . e -
L1 = S SO -
Total EXpenditures. ... oooen e et e eie e eee e e e et ean e reans 1,337
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)} EXPENDITURES.......ccoocoerivaviens {320)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating transfers Out.......oovveiiiiiiiii e -
Transfers - In from primary gOVEITINENE. .. ..vvevsiiieisaiie it eeeeeneeeeeennans. 389
Total Other Financing Sources (USES) .. .umeinieriieieeieee e v neesianeanreeaeanns 389
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES...c00itivrtnmirrecrersenseranss 69
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR.......ooiiiiviiiin i en 17,493
Residual equity transfer (01U ... ouuve e e e et eeeannas -
FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR...c..cvvtiiiiieriincrancnnieiissnressessrnssnnsenne $ 17,562
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JACKSONVILLE

JACKSONVILLE TRANSPORTATION JACKSONVILLE
ECONOMIC AUTHORITY - ECONOMIC

DEVELOPMENT JACKSONVILLE DEVELOPMENT COMBINED

COMMISSION EXPRESSWAY SYSTEM COMPANY, INC. TOTALS
3 - $ 58,195 $ - $ 58195

388 10,904 24 11,316

93 12,098 22 12,738

102 272 153 1,018

583 81,469 199 83,268

- 2,432 - 2,432

1 - - 1

- 2,288 - 2,288

6,033 - 80 7,460

- 31,897 - 31,897

- 10,550 - 10,550

- 20,861 - 20,861

- 48 - 48

. 31 - 31

6,034 68,107 90 75,568

(5,451) 13,362 109 7,700

- {13,079) - {13,079)

8,314 - - 6,703

6,314 {13,079) - {6,376)

863 283 109 1,324

508 203,493 358 221,952

$ 1,471 $ 199,111 $ 467 $ 218,611
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
PROPRIETARY AND SIMILAR FUND TYPES (in thousands)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

JEA
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and equivalEIIS. .. ..ot ce ettt et e e enens $ 50,949
14T ¢ TN 28,202
Receivables (pet, where applicable, of allowances for uncollectibles):
AccoUNtS and IMEEBLESE. . ...ttt et et ee e e e et e rrnaes 129,915
L 111 SRR -
Due from other fundS.........vviiiiiiieiii e e -
Due from primary gOVEITIMEIt. ... ouit ittt ittt et eeae et eieeeevrenensrvnrarevnns 800
Due from Other BOVEIMMENTS. .. ..oeu .ttt e ei e eee e eai et e i aeeaneeenemeaeaens -
IIIVEIEOIIBS. . ev v vvsenstnsansvaeaeteenee st seseseeas s anae bt asiba e e sa e e es e e e e eneeneansens 103,653
Prepaid expenses and other assets...........oc.civiiiiririinriirine s eaee e 26,861
Total CUITEIE ASSRIS. c .. e et ie e et et et v rae s et s e et e s e e et sa st et tneneransanens 340,380
RESTRICTED ASSETS:
Cash and equIVALEILS. ...ttt et aaas 344,844
TV IIEIIES . .0 st es vt et et e e vre e e e eme e et e et e e et eut st s b s et e et a et aen e eneanennn 434,411
Accounts and Interest TECEIVADIE. ... ... i i e e e aens 53,390
TOta] RESITICIEA A BSOS ... vtitrrvririseieressiiaetiir i esinettnteemaeeeemem e e emen e rranranrasnenens 832,645
PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT:
L 1 T U SRURO -
ELECHTiC PIANt IN SETVICE. .o tet ittt e r s et e e e e e st e anenas 4,121,997
Buildings and iMProVEmMENS. ... v.u.iaeiaiirin e ieeei e eeae et eee e eneeatneerrenraee s enenes -
Improvements other than BUildings..........couieriiiiiii e -
B . oottt e e e e et b e e aa e aans -
EQUIPITIEIL. . 1o ve ettt et e et s e e a i aaaas -
ConStIUCHION 1N PIOZIESS. .. ..iiteuiit et earte e ar e tr it etet s teeerm e e et anneeaanneins 838,112
Total. ..o e, et ea et re ettt st neneeanns 4,961,109
Less accumulated depreCiation.. ... ...vvuieiuiiie e v e ea e eaas (1,538,765)
Total Property, Plant and Equipment - Net........oouuvieiniiiniiiieiiieieee e ceeeeeeeaeieenns 3,422,344
OTHER ASSETS:
Unamortized debt ISSUANCE COSS. ... tvevariiirerrerrertareererstinie e e ee e eae e eaneees -
Unamortized SEIVICe TIERES. ... ittt eyt reea et e ranenanns -
Costs to be recovered from fUIUrE TEVEIUES. . ...iuiurie ittt eee e 538,150
Tota]l Other ASSRLS. ...\ inirein ittt ettt ettt e e e et e e et rn e e e aans 538,150
TOTAL ASSETS .ciriieiienretiestesientetantonsestnnrensnsernesassssssssssssssessssrensersennsnnsns $5,133,519
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JACKSONVILLE

TRANSPORTATION
JACKSONVILLE AUTHORITY -
PORT MASS TRANSIT COMBINED
AUTHORITY SYSTEM TOTALS

$ 11,827
29,675

4,761
8,049

1,139
2,962

58,413

31,166
64,859
390

96,415

112,262

143,118
349,366

90,875
127,118
822,740

(217,027)

605,713

2,829
3,775

6,604

$ 767,145

See accompanying notes.

11,334

489
2,466
5,502

918
166

20,875

13,131
87,123

55,638
53,336
28,624
237,852

{59,830)

178,022

__ 5198807

{continued)
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$ 74110
57,877

135,165
8,049
2,466

800
5,502
105,710
29,989

419,668

376,010
499,270

53,780

920,060

125,393
4,121,997
230,242
349,366
55,638
144,211

994,854

6,021,701

(1,815,622)

4,206,079

2,829
3,775

538,150
544,754

_ 86099561



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

PROFPRIETARY AND SIMILAR FUND TYPES (in thousands; continued)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. ... ...
Due 1o other fUNS. . ..vviiein i e
Due to other BOVEIMIMENTS. ... ..oiutiiiiit it irctt e et rrreanseraarrerrrasteeansseranaasrenas
Capitalized lease obligations, current POTtION. ... ...vooeiiieinerie et eeeeeeeaeanss
Estimated liability for self-insured L0SSES. . ....vviviiiiirsiiiins s e eaee i
Deferred revenue and other...........o e
Total Current Liabilities. .......vviiniine i e e

LIABILITIES PAYABLE FROM RESTRICTED ASSETS:

Accrued interest payable. ..o
Long-term obligations, CUITEnt POTHION. ....o. e it e aiai i eae e e iae e eeaneaenanaaenas
Construction contracts, retainage and accounts payable..........c.covvieviiiiiceinenenn.s
Renewal and replacement reserve. ... .....ociuiiiiiiiiiiii e

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES, net of current pertion:

Revenue bonds and note Payable.......co.vvvveiiiie i s
Long-term debt and other long-term obligations., ... .....cvvvveveiviinsiirisiiiriarinans
Capitalized lease obligations, less current portion...........o.oocoeeiviiiicieiiiiiainenn...
Total Long-Term Liabiliies. . .....euii i i ere e eee e eet e e e eanes

OTHER LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED CREDITS:

TOTAL LIABILETIES.....ercetiineeiriieerieesiseassiiisssiinssissnsensrmnsresresnesassassnssas

FUND EQUITY:

Contributed CAPItAl......eieiieie ittt annas
Retained armings. ... ..o e e

TOTAL FUND EQUITY..c.ccuttrtrserierrirrrssnnrrssressensiesasssasserisrossossssmssinsssnrsnnas

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY ....ceuvvtranrrrerrransrransimenseensseennnees

73,886
85,115
81,594
90,241
17,705

348,541

3,056,320

3,066,320

149,166
149,166

3,650,391

329,596

1,163,632
1,483,128

$ 5,133,519
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JACKSONVILLE

TRANSPORTATION
JACKSONVILLE AUTHORITY -
PORT MASS TRANSIT COMBINED
AUTHORITY SYSTEM TOTALS

$ 5302 $ 5426 $ 107,182
- 2,439 2,439

- 962 962

1,214 - 1,214

- 1,939 1,939

- 267 267

6,606 11,033 114,003
6,138 - 80,024
5116 - 90,231
12,318 - 93,912

- - 90,241

- - 17,705

680 - 680
24,252 - 372,793
189,478 - 189,478

- - 3,056,320

22,917 - 22,917
212,395 - 3,268,715

- - 149,166

- - 149,166

243,253 11,033 3,904,677
370,447 181,461 881,504
153,445 6,403 1,313,380
523,892 187,864 2,194,884

$ 767,145 $ 198,857 $ 6,099,561
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

PROPRIETARY AND SIMILAR FUND TYPES (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

JEA
OPERATING REVENUE:
OPEIAtING FEVEIUE. ... \vuerniiern it rnetnennrieens i enn e tastasans st aatenstnnenemnranseanensenreneeneens $ 902,840
Earnings on iNVeStMEIIS. ... c..enie ittt et eean e n e s rmra s eea s en s e enstesnreaesaanes -
L0 1o U 30,714
Total Operating REVEIUE. ......ouiiirttiereetieaet e eesarre s ars s e aaasts e ittt ess e e s e et eeneeeenneeees 933,554
OPERATING EXPENSES:
L O P PP UPRN 271,662
PURChased POWET. ... e e ettt e 96,509
Operations and MAINEENANICE. ... c.uvtiveirrieriae et ere e ar s e ereiasis bt en e rnenaeenenneenennns 216,132
General and AdmInIStIALIVE . ... oottt ee et ea e e e aanas -
Lo 0] ) (o P -
Supplies and MAterials.. ... cvoiiiiiin i e e -
Other services and charges. . .......ooviiiiei i e e -
Casualty and IMSUIRICE. .. uuiuen ottt cee e et e e s e s e e e v ra e s saranenarans -
TaXES AT LCBIIS8E . 11 vvrtetirn e eins it et i st e bt e et e e e e e eae e e e e an e en e et anee e 16,671
Depreciation and amOTHZatioN. ..ottt e at et st e i an e e e ans 137,657
Total OpPerating BXDEISES. ... et i iiiitiieti et e et e e et ee e eeae e rann st e s raenenssrntnstsanasnen 738,631
OPERATING INCOME (LiOSS). 1ectuettiiarmarncniierseresicsimasirsursissrsestossrasresrssrasrsnsserarons 194,923
NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES):
11U (A 1= 111 SRR 38,322
IDEETESE BXPEISE. ..t eeee i eeeieeeee e e et e et e e e e et ata ittt esan s enaaetaneran e enreen s enaaesieeensennenrnes (138,141)
Public funding:
United States GOVEIMIMEN. ... ..uutiiiiet e e e cee e cae e v reaterra e e en s s ae s rraananens -
State Of FIOTAa. ..... i e et e e e e e en e e e eae st e aas -
Other SUDSIAIES. ... e e e a e eea s -
L0 1 1.] O (17,637}
Total Non-Operating Revenue (EXPenses). ... ..ottt ee e {116,456}
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS AND EXTRAORDINARY ITEM...... 78,467
OPERATING TRANSFERS:
Operating transfer M., e e e a e naas -
Transfer - In from primary SOVEIMMENL. .. .. oo ittt eeee e eeie e ein e ee e eernereran s ens -
Transfers - Out t0 PriMAary SOVEITINENT. .. ... c.cuuviurrvrarrtersrneressresarsssnssatenaneennannenns (71,434)
Total Operating Transfers In (OUE). ... et e r e e (71,434)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEM.......oouiiiiiiiniiiiieeeee e e anans 7,033
Extraordinary item - (loss) on advance refundings and early retirements...................oecvvvenann.s {33)
NET INCOME (LSS cucutiiucerrentarieninriensmnmniorieniorieeieriiisrtiorstimrrsresresrassassassnssanen 7,000
Add depreciation on contributed assets / grant assets consumed in operations.......................... 8,192
Increase in retained ArMINES. .. cuniee i et aeiaaee e sttt eie e ei et eaeteeae et een erennerterierinraanns 15,192
RETAINED EARNINGS, BEGINNING OF YEAR.........cociivviiiiiiier v 1,138,340
RETAINED EARNINGS, END OF YEAR.....ccoiiitiimrrroererecnissasareersrsesiesssmnssrianssnns $ 1,153,532
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JACKSONVILLE

TRANSPORTATION
JACKSONVILLE AUTHORITY -
PORT MASS TRANSIT COMBINED
AUTHORITY SYSTEM TOTALS
$ 64,260 $ 6,566 $ 973,666
- 195 195
54,260 6,761 1,004,575
. - 271,662
- - 96,509
25,017 - 241,149
15,178 - 15,178
- 23,875 23,675
- 3,606 3,606
. 6,830 6,830
. 784 784
- 119 16,790
23,831 10,595 172,083
64,026 45,609 B48,266
234 {38,848) 156,309
5,482 241 45,045
(9.442) - (147,583)
- 2,391 2,391
- 3,273 3,273
- 444 444
5,650 - (11,887)
1,690 8,349 {108,417)
1,924 (32,499) 47,892
- 13,079 13,079
- 8,200 8,200
- - {71,434)
N 21,279 {50,155)
1,924 {11,220) {2,253)
- - (33)
1,924 {11,220 {2,296)
8,920 11,115 28,227
10,844 {105) 25,931
142,601 8,508 1,287,449
$ 153,445 $ 6,403

S 1313380

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
PROPRIETARY AND SIMILAR FUND TYPES (in thousands)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

JEA

OPERATING ACTIVITIES: _
OPERATING INCOME (LSS} .ttt i st ia st si ittt e e e e ae st e na e s aeesenneaananennas $ 194,923
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortiZation. ..........uviiriinsirin it et st r st e sa e ra st etn e e anans 137,657
Other NON-OPEerating FEVEIUE, NMEL.........o..ieninie et ieenet e eeeanteeee et eneeasanrearrnrrrrnrnrnssentnttenranes 2,288
Change in assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in accounts and interest receivable, restricted. ... vuiuveen e orer e e eeeeeaneanaanns (4,855)
Decrease (increase) in receivables and other Current assets, DL, .........c.coveeveeeereeneineineieenaresrennns 2,401
Decrease (INCTEase) M INVEITOTIES. ..o\ttt rsirsrassieraass it st raseseinsasesssntsossnrnenrnnnnannenan . (14,581)
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses and other... ...t -
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued eXPenSes........c..ieeeeiinieeniimeiieeineeaeeaieeeananes } (1,365)
Increase (decrease) in due to Other fUNdS. .. ..o i et e e e enenenens -
Increase (decrease} in due t0 Other ZOVEIMINENTS. ... uvu.vriee et teiesttanetn e eenemneeneeneeneeareneeneennens -
Increase (decrease) in liabilities, Testricted..........o.ooiiiiir it e aaans e 29,203
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities and deferred revemue. ... ..o e ‘ (1,286)
Increase {decrease} in liability for self-InSUred T0S5E8. .uuuu ie it ittt i et at s it e et e e e e e e anaas -
Contribution {0 PriMAary SOVEITUTIEIIE. .. ..\ ..ot ti et aen i eae et e eaat e eaeeaeaen s rnensrenearaenasresnasrersassones {71,434)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES.........coviniiiiieiieeicvveerierenans 272,951
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Operating gramts TECIVEU. ovuu ittt ittt ettt e ae e e e e et s e s e e et i ra s raeaanas -
Cash received through operating transfers from other funds..............ccoooviiieiiiiiiiiii e, -
Cash received through operating transfers from primary gOVEImment. ......c.oo.oevvieinviinreen e ieeee e -
NET CASH PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES.......coovireiiiiieeieaeeeaans -
CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to property, plant and BQUIPIENE. ........veiiieie it eee e e e e e eee e eetae it e e et rna s (584.838)
Proceeds from sales of property and equiPMent. ... ... .....c.veirviinieiiiiriirie i eieee e eie e eee e eenenas 650
CUSIOMET COMITIULIONS. . ettt et ettt e e et ettt vt e en e ea s ee e e e asa s anaasenns 8,699
Cash receipts from contribUtions i id. ... .....ceeerreetii e e e -
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt, Det..... oot ennas 917,709
Defeasance of CapItAl debl. ... ... oo e e e e e et e e raanraraanas (341,772)
Principal paid on long-term debt obligations............oooiviiieiiiin e (113,934)
Interest PAIA OI EDE.. ... iu ittt e et et e e e e (147,793)
Passenger facility charges and other...........ooiiiiiiii e e -
Assets transferred 10 OPETAONS. ..o ittt e e s e e et ean et eee e e et e ran s e aennnn e -
NET CASH (USED IN) CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES.........cooovviveennnn, (261,279)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest and dividends ON IMVESTMEIES. ... vun e eeee et ie e et s e a v s aess e ea s s an s s senenn e aneanas 37,138
PUTCHASE Of IIVESIIBIILS . . ...\t ietier e ies it ies s bt ra st et st es e bteseee s s men e st e e e e e e ensaessnenenssreannenens (1,604,398)
Proceeds from sale and maturities of INVESIMENES. ... v iiee e e et eee e ee e eeeaaeans 1,685,140
Investment in The ENergy AUthOIIY. ...t r i e e 10,919
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES.......c.ccovivinrieeieie e enae _ 128798
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS.. ..o, 140,471
Cash and cash equivalents at OCLODET 1.......ii ittt e e e e e e s e eee et 255,322
Cash and cash equivalents at September 30........o.o i e $ 395,793
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JACKSONVILLE

PORT
AUTHORITY

JACKSONVILLE
TRANSPORTATION
AUTHORITY -
MASS TRANSIT
SYSTEM

$ 234

23,831
61

(84,394)
58

30,696
46,744

(5,974)
(9.644)
7.078

(15,436)

7,749
(97,830)
102,879

12,798
20,774

22,219
$ 42,993

{$ 38,848)

10,595

(1,695)
(145)
(34)
307
(382)
963

94
357

(28,788)

6,109
13,079
8,200

27,388

(14,104)
14

17,785

252
2,269

9,065
$ 11,334

COMBINED

TOTALS

$ 156,309

172,083
2,349

(4,855)
631
(14,861)
(247)
(1,349)
(382)
963
29,203
(1,192)
357

(71,434)

267,575

6,109
13,079
8,200

27,388

(683,336)
722
8,699
48,481
964,453
(341,772)
(119,908)
(157.437)
7,078
(278)

(273,298)

45,139
(1,702,228)
1,788,019

10,919

141,849

163,514

286,606
$ 450,120

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES......ooeiivieiiieeene,

Financial Reporting ENtity .........ccovvivievieieieneee et eeee e ene e
Fund SrUucture.......c.ooveoiiieinice st ere e
Basis 0f ACCOUNLINZ ...c.vevverteetieciectietieeee e et eae ettt s eae e s

D I M O IES . 11 evieeee ittt et e et eecet e e e e e e e e et e e e e ese et e eee e seteaseeeaeeetameeveensseesararereeereen

Contributed Capital....c..coceoeiririiereerer e

Compensated ADSENCES ....cocererciirieeiieee et esae e ee s sae e eesaseas
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the City of Jacksonville, Florida (the City) conform to generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applicable to governments. The following is a
summary of the more significant policies. Notes 1.D. through 19 are note disclosures of the
primary government. Disclosures of major discretely presented component units essential
to the fair presentation of the City's General Purpose Financial Statements are set forth in
Note 20.

A. Basis of Presentation:

The accompanying financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity
with GAAP as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB),
the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB), and the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (AICPA). Under the auspices of GASB Statement No. 20,
the City does not apply FASB pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989, for
proprietary activities, unless the GASB amends its pronouncements to specifically adopt
FASB pronouncements issued after that date. GASB is the accepted standard-setting
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles for
units of local government.

B. Financial Reporting Entity:

The City is a consolidated city/county political entity created by Chapter 67-1320 of the
Laws of Florida. When consolidation occurred on October 1, 1968, all existing
municipalities, authorities, and public agencies within Duval County, except for the
Duval County School Board, were merged into a single new corporate and political entity
also known as the City of Jacksonville. At the same time, however, the cities of
Jacksonville Beach, Atlantic Beach, Neptune Beach, and the Town of Baldwin elected
to retain local autonomy for certain municipal purposes and were reconstituted as
separate and distinct urban service districts. The Consolidated City government, which
is comprised of an elected City Council (19 members) and Mayor, provides, under the
administration of an appointed Chief Administrative Officer, services to approximately
792,000 residents living in an 840.1 square mile area.

To conform to the traditional county organization of government in the State of Florida,
the City retained the offices of the Sheriff, Property Appraiser, Tax Collector, Supervisor
of Elections, and Clerk of the Circuit Court, which are also elected by the citizenry.
These officers are considered to be not only county officers, but also officers of the
consolidated government as well, and therefore are considered as part of the primary
government. The three beach cities and the Town of Baldwin continue to function as
separate municipal governments.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. Financial Reporting Entity: (continued)

This report includes all funds, account groups, departments, agencies, boards and
commissions, and other organizational units that are administered by the Mayor and/or
controlled by or dependent upon the City Council as set forth in the City Charter. The
City, a primary government, has also considered for inclusion all potential component
units for which it may be financially accountable and other organizations for which the
nature and significance of their relationship with the City are such that exclusion would
cause the City's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. In accordance with
GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, the GASB has set forth criteria
to be considered in determining financial accountability. These criteria include
appointing a voting majority of an organization's governing body and (1) the ability of
the City to impose its will on that organization or (2) the potential for the organization
to provide specific financial benefits to or impose specific financial burdens on the City.

As required by GAAP, these financial statements present the City of Jacksonville (the
primary government) and its component units. The City has identified and included
within the financial reporting entity, as its component units, legally separate
organizations for which the City is financially accountable or for which a significant
relationship with the City exists such that exclusion would cause the City's financial
statement to be misleading or incomplete.

The Jacksonville Public Library Board has been classified as a dependent special district
by the State of Florida Department of Community Affairs. Per GASB Statement No. 14,
the Library Board is not considered a component unit as it is not a legally separate
organization. Therefore, its activity is included as part of the primary government.

Blended Component Units. There are two component units, which are legally separate
from the City, but are so intertwined with the City that they are, in substance, the same
as the City. They are reported as part of the City and blended into the appropriate funds.

The Jacksonville Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) was established
under Chapter 339.175, Laws of Florida, to encourage and promote the development
of transportation systems for the Jacksonville urbanized area. The members of MPO
are also members of the City Council. MPO provides services exclusively to the City
in the form of transportation planning and capital improvement program
development.

The MPQ is blended in the Special Revenue Funds. There are no separately issued
financial statements for the MPO.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. Financial Reporting Entity: (continued)

The Jacksonville Police and Fire Pension Board of Trustees, created under Article
22 of the City Charter, provides retirement services and benefits to eligible
employees of the Office of the Sheriff and the Department of Fire and Rescue. The
City appoints two of the five-member board; one member is a police officer; one
member is a firefighter; and the remaining member is appointed by the other four
members. As sponsor, the City has the ability to modify the plan and to approve the
defined benefit contribution to the Police and Fire Pension Board of Trustees in the
City's annual budget. The Police and Fire Pension Board of Trustees issues separate
financial statements on the fund, which may be obtained from its administrative
office at 3200 Emerson Street, Jacksonville, Florida 32207. These transactions are
blended in the Trust and Agency Funds.

Discrete Component Units. These component units are entities which are legally
separate from the City, but are financially accountable to the City, or whose relationships
with the City are such that exclusion would cause the City's financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete. The component units are reported in a separate column to
emphasize that they are legally separate from the primary government and are governed
by separate boards. The Component Units column of the combined financial statements
includes the financial data of these entities. Each component unit listed below has a
September 30 fiscal year end.

Major Component Units

JEA (formerly known as the Jacksonville Electric Authority) was created by Chapter
67-1569 of the Laws of Florida to own, manage, and operate an electric utility system
and a water and sewer utility system in the City and any or all counties adjacent
thereto. The governing body of the JEA consists of seven members appointed by the
Mayor and confirmed by the City Council. The City has the ability to impose its will
on the JEA manifested principally through formal budgetary approval. The JEA
1ssues separate financial statements, which may be obtained from its administrative
office in the JEA Plaza at 21 West Church Street, Jacksonville, Florida 32202.

The Jacksonville Port Authority (JPA) was created in 1963 by Chapter 63-1447 of
the Laws of Florida, to own and operate marine and aviation facilities in the
Consolidated City/County Govemnment of Jacksonville/Duval County. The governing
body of the JPA consists of seven members, four of whom are appointed by the
Governor of Florida, and three of whom are appointed by the Mayor and confirmed
by the City Council. The JPA is, however, fiscally dependent upon the City under
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. Financial Reporting Entity: (continued)

Section 14 of the City Charter through approval of its budgets, which ensures strong
accountability to the local constituent citizenry. The relationship of the City to its
independent authorities under Jacksonville's consolidated form of city/county
government would make it misleading to exclude it from the financial statements.
The JPA issues separate financial statements, which may be obtained from its
administrative office at 2831 Tallyrand Avenue, Jacksonville, Florida 32206.

The Jacksonville Transportation Authority (JTA) is a public body politic and
corporate agency of the State of Florida under Chapter 349 of the Florida Statutes.
The governing body of the JTA consists of seven members, three of whom are
appointed by the Governor of Florida, three of whom are appointed by the Mayor and
confirmed by the City Council, and the seventh member is the district engineer of the
Florida Department of Transportation. The JTA is empowered to construct, improve,
operate, and lease the Jacksonville Expressway System. The JTA is, however,
fiscally dependent upon the City under Section 14 of the City Charter through
approval of its budgets which ensures strong accountability to the local constituent
citizenry. The relationship of the City to its independent authoritics under
Jacksonville's consolidated form of city/county government would make it
misleading to exclude it from the financial statements. The JTA issues separate
financial statements, which may be obtained from its administrative office at 100
North Myrtle Avenue, Jacksonville, Florida 32203.

Non-major Component Units

The Duval County Housing Finance Authority (DCHFA), created under Chapter
65.105 of the City Ordinance Code pursuant to Chapter 78-89 of the Laws of Florida,
provides money for loans and technical assistance for construction and rehabilitation
of housing to alleviate a shortage of housing and capital for investment in housing
in Jacksonville. The City appoints DCHFA board members and has the ability to
impose its will. There are no separately issued financial statements for the DCHFA,
whose financial activity is accounted for by the City as a special revenue fund during
the year. Accordingly, no fund type data is presented for this component unit.

The Jacksonville Economic Development Commission (JEDC), created July 1,
1997, under Chapter 92-341, Laws of Florida, provides a focal point for economic
development in the City that results in a centralization of economic development
programs under the auspices of one agency, thus ensuring a more efficient and
practical means of addressing the goals, objectives and strategies for future economic
development in the City. The JEDC operates with all the powers and authority
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. Financial Reporting Entity: (continued)

of a community redevelopment agency under Part III, Chapter 163, Florida Statutes
and as an industrial development authority under Part III, Chapter 159, Florida
Statutes. The mayor appoints the board members and a chairman, who are confirmed
by the City Council, and the City has the ability to impose its will. There are no
separately issued financial statements for the JEDC, whose financial activity is
accounted for by the City as a special revenue fund during the year. Accordingly, no
fund type data is presented for this component unit.

The Jacksonville Economic Development Company, Inc. (JEDCO), was
established as a not-for-profit corporation under the Laws of Florida in 1981 to
provide a centralization of economic development programs. The JEDCO is
governed by a Board of Directors which is selected by the Mayor's Economic
Development Council. The City has the ability to impose its will on JEDCO
principally through budgetary approvals. JEDCO issues separate financial statements
on the company, which may be obtained from its administrative office at 220 East
Bay Street, Room 416, Jacksonvilie, Florida 32202.

The Jacksonville Health Facilities Authority (JHFA), created under Chapter 490
of the City Ordinance Code pursuant to Chapter 154 Part III, Laws of Florida,
provides appropriate additional means to assist in the development, improvement and
maintenance of the public health. The JHFA provides a method for the financing and
refinancing, on a tax-exempt basis, of projects on behalf of private corporations and
organized not-for-profits that are authorized by law to provide hospital or nursing
home services, thus providing facilities at favorable interest costs with a resultant
decrease in health care costs for the users of health facilities within the City. All five
members are appointed by the City Council, and the City is able to impose its will
on the JHFA.

The bonds issued by the JHFA are special limited obligations of the JHFA and the
principal and interest are payable from rental payments. The principal and interest
on the bonds shall never constitute an indebtedness of the City of Jacksonville, Duval
County, the State of Florida or any municipality or political subdivision thereof.
Accordingly, the bonds issued and outstanding are included in Note 8. H. Conduit
Debt. During the fiscal year presented, JHFA had no financial transactions or assets
and liabilities to report. Therefore, there are no separately issued financial statements
for JHFA.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. Financial Reporting Entity: (continued)

Related Organizations

The Jacksonville Housing Authority (JHA), is governed by a seven member Board,
whose members are appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by City Council.
However, the City does not have the ability to impose its will on JHA. The City
cannot remove appointed members of the JHA's Board at will. JHA's managers are
appointed by the JHA Board of Directors. The Board approves the operating budget
and amendments to the budget. The City does not exercise influence in JHA's
management or operations. It does not approve JHA budgets, and does not provide
or collect major revenues of the JHA. Accordingly, the financial activities of the JHA
are not included in the City's general-purpose financial statements.

The Duval County Research and Development Authority (Authority) is governed
by a five member Board whose members are appointed by the City Council.
However, the City does not have the ability to impose its will on the Authority. The
City does not exercise influence in the management or operations of the Authority
and 1s not financially accountable for the actions of the Authority. Accordingly, the
financial activities of the Authority are not included in the City's general-purpose
financial statements.

C. Fund Structure:;

The City's accounts are maintained in accordance with the principles of fund accounting
to ensure compliance with limitations and restrictions placed on the use of resources
available to it. Under fund accounting, individual funds are established for the purpose
of carrying on activities or attaining objectives in accordance with specific regulations,
restrictions, or limitations. Each individual fund is a self-balancing set of accounts
recording assets and other financing resources, together with liabilities and residual
equities or balances, and changes therein. For financial statement presentation, funds
with similar characteristics, including those component units referenced above, are
grouped into generic fund types as required by GAAP. A brief description of these fund
types and account groups and categories into which they are grouped follows:

Governmental Funds. Transactions related to resources received and used for those
services traditionally provided by city/county government. Governmental funds include:

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to

account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another
fund.

- 49 -



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
C. Fund Structure: (continued)

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of
specific revenue sources (other than major capital projects) that are legally restricted to
expenditures for specified purposes.

Debt Service Funds - Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of
resources for and the payment of interest and principal on most general governmental
obligations that are included in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

Capital Projects Funds - Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial
resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities or
improvements (other than those financed by the Proprietary Funds).

Proprietary Funds. Transactions related to activities similar to those found in the
private sector. Proprietary funds include:

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations (a) that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the
intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of
providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or
recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided
that periodic determination of revenue earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is
appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability,
or other purposes.

Internal Service Funds - Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of
goods or services provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies
of the City or another governmental unit on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Funds. Transactions related to assets held by the City in a trust or agency
capacity. The City's fiduciary funds include Pension Trust, Expendable Trust,
Nonexpendable Trust and Agency funds as follows:

Pension Trust Funds - Pension Trust Funds are used to account for assets, liabilities, and
net assets available for plan benefits of City defined benefit retirement systems.

Expendable Trust Fund — The Expendable Trust Fund reflects the transactions, assets and

liabilities, and fund equity of trusts whose principal and income may be used to fund the
activity.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
C. Fund Structure: (continued)

Nonexpendable Trust Fund — The Nonexpendable Trust Fund reflects the transactions,
assets and liabilities, and fund equity of trusts whose income only may be used to fund
the activity.

Agency Funds - Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the City as an agent
for individuals, private organizations, other governments and/or other funds.

Account Groups. The Account Groups are maintained to account for general long-term
obligations and fixed assets not accounted for in other funds of the City.

General Fixed Assets Account Group - This account group is used to account for all fixed
assets of the City, except fixed assets of proprietary funds, certain trust funds, and
component units.

General Long-Term Obligations Account Group - This account group is used to account
for all the outstanding principal balances of any general and special obligation bonds or
notes, accrued compensated absences, and capitalized leases of the City, exclusive of
liabilities of proprietary funds, certain trust funds, and component units.

Component Units. Accounts for assets, liabilities and operations of discretely presented
component units. The financial statements for discretely presented component units are
reported as if they were a fund type using a similar basis of accounting.

. Basis of Accounting:

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its
measurement focus. All governmental funds and expendable trust funds are accounted
for using a current financial resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus
only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet.
Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e. revenues and other financing
sources) and decreases (i.e. expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets.

Agency funds are accounted for on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Agency
funds are custodial in nature (i.e. assets equal liabilities) and do not measure the results
of operations.

All proprietary funds, nonexpendable trust funds and pension trust funds are accounted
for using a flow of economic resources or "income determination" measurement focus.
With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation
of these funds are included on the balance sheet. Fund equity (i.e. net total assets) is
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
D. Basis of Accounting: (continued)

segregated into contributed capital and retained earnings components. Proprietary fund-
type operating statements present increases (e.g. revenues) and decreases (e.g. expenses)
in net total assets.

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used by all governmental fund types and
expendable trust funds. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e. when they become both measurable and
available). "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined and
"available” means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be
used to pay liabilities of the current period. Major revenues that are determined to be
susceptible to accrual include property taxes, taxpayer-assessed tax revenues including
sales and utilities services taxes, state shared revenue, intergovernmental revenue,
charges for services and investment income. Federal grants collected on a reimbursement
basis are recognized as revenue when reimbursable expenditures are made.

Revenues collected on an advance basis, including certain federal grant revenue, to which
the City does not yet have legal entitlement, are not recognized as revenue until the
related commitment arises. Generally, the City considers a 60-day availability period for
revenue recognition.

Property taxes billed but uncollected as of the end of the fiscal year are reflected in the
accompanying financial statements as due from individuals offsetting a liability due to
other governments in the Tax Collector Agency Fund. These amounts are not considered
to be available by the City to finance current operations. Accordingly, property taxes are
recognized as revenue in the fiscal year in which they are collected and remitted to the
City's General Fund by the Tax Collector Agency Fund. (See Note 5.)

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for items
that are not planned to be liquidated with expendable available resources. Exceptions to
the general modified accrual expenditure recognition criteria include principal and
interest on general long-term indebtedness which are recognized when paid and the long-
term portion of the liability for compensated absences or capital lease obligations.

The accrual basis of accounting is utilized by proprietary fund types, nonexpendable trust

funds and pension trust funds. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

E. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments:

Cash, cash equivalents and investments and related accrued investment earnings are
reported in the financial statements as "Equity in cash and investments" under the City's
"pooling" concept. (See Note 3.} All monies, which are not legally restricted to separate
administration, are pooled together for investment purposes while each individual fund
and/or account is maintained on a daily transaction basis by the City Treasurer.
Investment earnings are distributed in accordance with the participating funds' relative
percentage of investments. All Fund Types deposit monies into the Equity in Cash and
Investments Pool of the City. The Proprietary Fund Types use this pool as a demand
deposit account, and accordingly all amounts in the pool are considered cash and
equivalents for purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows. Investments are stated at fair
value. Increases and decreases in the fair value of investments are reported as investment
income.

. Encumbrances:

Encumbrance accounting (under which purchase orders, contracts and other
commitments for the expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion
of the applicable appropriation) is utilized in the General, Special Revenue, and Capital
Projects Funds during the year to facilitate effective budgetary control. Unencumbered
appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year, with encumbrances outstanding at year
end being reported as a reservation of fund balances since they do not constitute
expenditures or liabilities. Encumbrances at year-end are reappropriated and honored
during the subsequent year.

. Receivables:

Receivables are stated net of estimated allowances for uncollectible amounts, which are
determined based on past collection experience and current economic conditions, except

for mortgages receivable which are reported as a reservation of fund balance because

they are not considered a current financial resource available for expenditure. Types of
receivables include amounts that are principally due from the State of Florida for state-

shared revenues. Receivables in other funds have arisen in the ordinary course of
business.

. Inventories:

Inventories of materials and supplies are determined by both physical counts and through
perpetual inventory systems stated at cost, which approximates market, using the average
weighted costing method. In governmental fund types, inventories are recorded as
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
H. Inventories: (continued)

expenditures when purchased. Reported inventories in governmental funds are equally
offset by a reservation of fund balance since they are unavailable for appropriation. In
proprietary fund types, inventories are expended when consumed.

Fixed Assets:

All purchased fixed assets are recorded at cost where historical records are available and
at estimated cost where no historical records exist. Donated fixed assets are valued at
their estimated fair market value on the date received. Infrastructure "public domain™
assets such as highways, curbs and gutters, bridges, streets and sidewalks, drainage and
lighting systems, which are immovable and of value only to the City, are not capitalized
except as disclosed in Note 20 by certain component units. Generally, fixed assets
costing more than $500 or having a useful life of more than one year are capitalized. The
costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Governmental, Expendable Trust and Agency Funds - Fixed assets are not capitalized
in the funds used to acquire or construct them. Instead, capital acquisition and
construction are reflected as expenditures in these funds, and the related assets are
reported in the General Fixed Asset Account Group. Assets in the General Fixed Asset
Account Group are not depreciated.

Proprietary and Pension Trust Funds - Fixed assets are referred to as fund fixed assets
and are accounted for in the acquiring fund. Interest during construction is capitalized
and depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over the assets' estimated useful
lives. When property is disposed of the related cost and accumulated depreciation are
removed from the accounts with gains or losses on disposition reflected in current
operations. The following lives are used:

Buildings and improvements 12 - 45 years
Equipment and fixtures 3 - 10 years

Component Units - Fixed assets are recorded in accordance with their similar fund type
of the primary government except for those component units as separately disclosed
under Note 20.

. Contributed Capital:

Contributed capital accounted for in the Proprietary Fund Types represents contributions
from other funds and/or State and Federal Aid programs and is recorded at the cost of the
related asset at the time of asset transfer or receipt. Depreciation is recorded on
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
J. Contributed Capital: (continucd)

contributed fixed assets and is reflected in the Statement of Revenue, Expenses and
Changes in Retained Earnings.

The depreciation on contributed fixed assets of all Proprietary Fund Types is charged
against the related contributed capital account and is "added back" as an increase to
retained earnings.

. Interfund Transactions:

Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses.
Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditure/expenses initially
made from it that are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as
expenditure/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses
in the fund that is reimbursed.

All other interfund transactions, except quasi-external transactions and reimbursements,
are reported as transfers. Nonrecurring or nonroutine permanent transfers of equity are
reported as residual equity transfers. All other interfund transfers are reported as
operating transfers.

. Restricted Assets:

Mandatory asset segregation is presented in various enterprise funds as restricted assets.
Such segregation is required by bond covenants and other external restrictions for debt
service, construction, and renewals and replacements. The excess of restricted assets over
liabilities payable from restricted assets will first be used for bonds payable. The
remainder, if any, is included in reserved retained earnings.

. Compensated Absences:

City employees may accumulate earned personal leave benefits (compensated absences)
at various rates within limits specified in collective bargaining agreements. For all funds,
this liability reflects amounts attributable to employee services already rendered,
cumulative, probable for payment, and reasonably estimated in conformity with GASB
Statement No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
M. Compensated Absences: (continued)

Compensated absences liabilities for governmental funds and expendable trust funds are
recorded in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group. No expenditure is
reported for these amounts until payment is made. All other fund types report this
liability as a fund liability that is recorded as an expense as the benefits accrue to the
employees. No liability is recorded for nonvesting, accumulated sick pay benefits.
Compensated absences liability is determined based on current rates of pay.

. Risk Financing:

The City is self-insured for general and automobile liability and up to $1 million per
occurrence of workers' compensation. (See Note 14.) The liability for self-insured losses
is based on individual case estimates for reported claims, historical loss data, and
valuations performed by independent actuaries at September 30, 2000, for incurred but
not yet reported claims and claims development. The liability for self-insured losses is
accounted for in the Self-Insurance Fund (internal service fund) that pays for claims
made against the City.

. Pension Costs:

Substantially all permanent, full-time employees of the City are covered under two City
sponsored defined benefit pension plans. Employer contributions are recorded as pension
expenditure/expenses when the related payroll is accrued based on an actuarially
determined rate in accordance with GASB Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions
by State and Local Governments.

. Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs:

The City recognizes municipal solid waste landfill closure and postclosure care costs
under the State of Florida's Solid Waste Management Act of 1988 (the "1988 Act"),
regulations of the Federal Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), and GASB No. 18,
Accounting for Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs. For
those landfills that stopped accepting solid waste prior to final implementation of the
1988 Act and EPA regulations, the estimated total cost of municipal solid waste landfill
(MSWLF) closure and postclosure care is recognized as a deferred charge and a
corresponding liability in the Solid Waste Disposal Enterprise Fund, in accordance with
FASB Statement No. 71, Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation,
(FAS 71). The City issued bonds to pay for closure costs on closed landfills. Post-closure
costs on closed landfills are recorded as a liability based on engineers’ estimates. The
City Council establishes rates that are designed to recover costs and believes it is
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
P. Landfil! Closure and Postclosure Care Costs: (continued)

reasonable to assume that such rates, which will recover the costs, can be charged to and
collected from customers. Accordingly, the provisions of FAS 71 are applied. The City
intends to recover these MSWLF costs through future operating revenues of the Solid
Waste Disposal Enterprise Fund. Accordingly, MSWLF costs are recognized as expense
each year to match the flow of revenue and bonds principal payments, thereby reducing
the deferred charge. Expenses for closure and postclosure costs are recorded each year
and the liability is adjusted to the engineer’s estimate. MSWLF closure and postclosure
costs incurred for landfills accepting solid waste after final implementation of the 1988
Act and EPA regulations are recognized as an expense. A liability is recorded based upon
the landfill capacity used during that year applied to the engineer’s estimate of closure
and postclosure costs. (See Note 15.D.)

. Long-Term Obligations:

Revenue bonds and other forms of long-term debt used to finance Proprietary Fund
operations and which are payable from revenue of the Proprietary Funds are recorded in
the applicable Proprietary Fund. (See Note 8.) General obligation bonds, special
obligation bonds, and other forms of long-term debt are accounted for in the General
Long-Term Obligations Account Group. General obligation bonds are supported by ad
valorem taxes and constitute a debt of the City and a lien upon any property situated
within the City. Special obligation bonds which are supported by certain general
revenues (other than ad valorem taxes) do not constitute a debt of the City within the
meaning of any constitutional or statutory limitation or provision, and the City is not
obligated to pay the bonds except from revenues pledged for such purposes.

. Reservations and Designations of Fund Equity:

Reservations of fund balance are established to identify the existence of assets that have
been legally segregated for specific purposes. Assets of legally restricted budgetary funds
are an example of this type of reservation. Reservations are also established for assets
that are not current in nature, such as long-term advances, mortgages receivable,
appreciation in market value of investments, and inventories. Designations of fund equity
reflect management's plans for financial resource allocation in a future period. Such plans
or intentions are subject to change and may never result in expenditures.

Explanations of significant designations include:
(1) Fund Balance Designated for Capital Projects - Tentative plans for utilization of fund

balances in future periods for capital projects designated in the City's Annual Budget
for the coming fiscal year.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
R. Reservations and Designations of Fund Equity: (continued)

(2) Fund Balance Designated for Subsequent Years’ Budget - Tentative plans for
utilization of fund balances for expenditures designated in the City's Annual Budget
for upcoming fiscal years, primarily associated with multi-year grants.

(3) Fund Balance Designated for Budget Stabilization - The General Fund's fund balance
not otherwise appropriated as a source of funding in future periods to be designated
as a financial resource to prevent budgetary deficits.

(4) Fund Balance Designated for Next Year’s Budget Appropriation - Tentative plans
for utilization of fund balances for other expenditures designated in the City's Annual
Budget for the coming fiscal year.

. Bond Discounts and Issuance Costs:

In Governmental Fund Types, bond discounts and issuance costs are recognized in the
current period. Material bond discount and issuance costs for Proprietary Fund Types are
deferred and amortized as a component of interest expense over the term of the bonds
using the straight-line method, which approximates the effective interest method.
Issuance costs are recorded as deferred charges and bond discount/premium are included
in Long-Term Liabilities - Revenue Bonds.

. Deferred Loss on Debt Refundings:

Losses resulting from advance refundings of debt in proprietary funds are deferred and
amortized over the shorter of the life of the new debt or the remaining life of the old debt.
The amount deferred is reported as a component of Long-Term Liabilities - Revenue
Bonds in the accompanying financial statements and is amortized and reported as a
component of interest expense.

. Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements, in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amount of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
V. Comparative Data:

Comparative totals for the primary government for fiscal year 1999 are presented in the
financial statements to provide an understanding of the changes in the City's financial
position and operations. Disclosures relevant to the prior year are available in the City's
fiscal year 1999 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

W. "Memorandum Only' Total Columns:

Total columns on the financial statements are captioned "memorandum only" to indicate
that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do not
present financial position, results of operations, or cash flows in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles. Furthermore, this information is not
comparable to a consolidation of funds as interfund transactions have not been
eliminated.

X. Reclassification:

Certain amounts in the separately issued financial statements of component units have
been reclassified to conform to the presentation of the primary government. In addition,
certain prior year amounts of the City have been reclassified to conform to the current
year’s presentation.

BUDGETARY DATA

The City uses the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements.

A. The City adopts its budget in accordance with Chapters 129 and 200, Florida Statutes,
the City Charter and Municipal Ordinance Code.

(1) The Mayor's Proposed Budget is presented to the City Council on the second
Tuesday in July; the budget ordinance, millage levy ordinance, and related
resolutions are introduced.

(2) During the first Council meeting in September, public hearings are held on both the
budget and the millage rate. Following the public hearings, the Council adopts a
tentative budget and tentative millage rate. A final budget and millage is adopted by
full Council to be in effect on October 1.

B. All funds of each governmental fund type with legally adopted annual budgets are
included in the Combined Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balance - Budget and Actual.
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2.

BUDGETARY DATA (continued)

C. The City adopts annual budgets for the General Fund, certain Special Revenue Funds,

certain Proprietary Fund Types and certain Fiduciary Fund Types. Project or program
budgets, which may not coincide with the City's fiscal year, or which may exceed a
single annual period, are adopted by separate ordinance for most Special Revenue Funds
and Capital Project Funds. Budgets are not formally adopted for Debt Service Funds as
internal spending controls are set by compliance with bond covenants. The Special
Revenue Funds which are not budgeted annually include the following: Community
Development Block Grant, Housing Rehabilitation and Home Investment and
Opportunity Grants, Job Training Partnership Act Grant, Maintenance, Parks and
Recreation, Metropolitan Planning Organization, Other Federal, State and Local Grants,
State Housing Initiative Partnership, and Non-Budgeted General Government.

. Level of Budgetary Control - Expenditures may not exceed appropriations and are

controlled in the following manner:

(1) The budget is controlled according to Chapter 129, Florida Statutes, at the total fund
level.

(2) The City has adopted more stringent administrative policies that control expenditures
at the major category (Personal Services, Operating Expense, Capital Outlay, Debt
Service) level within divisions within individual funds.

(3) The City, additionally, has adopted a Municipal Ordinance Code Policy that provides
transfer authority to the Mayor, without City Council approval, within an individual
fund.

. Supplemental Appropriations - The City Council may, through passage of an ordinance,

amend the budget in any manner permissible under State and Local Law, with one
exception. Bond covenants, trust and agency agreements, and certain clauses of
ordinances in effect may restrict certain budgetary items in terms of amount or use.

In certain instances the City may supplement the appropriations in a fund due to
unexpected high levels of receipts or under estimates of carry forward balances.
Supplemental appropriations to the Fiscal Year 2000 Annual Budget Ordinance were
made throughout the year, the effects of which were not material.

. All appropriations in annually budgeted funds, except for amounts corresponding to

outstanding encumbrances, lapse at year-end or at the close of the authorizing
project/program, unless specifically carried forward by ordinance.
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2.

BUDGETARY DATA (continued})

G.

H.

Budget to actual comparisons are provided in the financial statements for all
Governmental Fund Types where the City has legally adopted annual budgets. All budget
amounts presented in the accompanying financial statements have been adjusted for
legally authorized revisions of the annual budgets during the year. Budgets are prepared
on the modified accrual basis (GAAP) of accounting except that budgetary expenditures
include encumbrances for purchase orders and contracts that will not be fully executed
prior to the end of the fiscal year.

Formal budgetary integration is used as a management control device for all funds of the
City, except certain Debt Service Funds as explained in Note 2.C.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

A.

Equity in Cash and Investments:

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds
except for monies which are legally restricted to separate administration (i.e. pension
plan custodians and deferred compensation plan administrators). This gives the City the
ability to invest large amounts of idle cash for short periods of time and to maximize
eamings potential. The "Equity in cash and investments" consist of cash and investments
owned by each fund and defined as resources that can be liquidated without delay or
penalty. In addition, cash and investments separately held and individually accounted for
by several of the City's funds where contractual arrangements and bond covenants
provide for and require such arrangements are classified as "restricted assets."

Investment earnings are allocated to the individual funds as provided by statute; earnings
for all other participants are credited to the General Fund.

Cash on Deposit:

At September 30, 2000, the City's cash on deposit in its bank accounts was $110.9
million including interest bearing accounts, all of which was insured by federal deposit
insurance or collateralized pursuant to Chapter 280, Florida Statutes. The related book
balance was $107.3 million. The City has a compensating balance arrangement with a
financial institution for $2.8 million in the form of a zero percent certificate of deposit.
Monies which are placed on deposit with financial institutions in the form of demand
deposit accounts, time deposit accounts and certificates of deposit are defined as public
deposits. All of the City's public deposits are held in qualified public depositories
pursuant to State of Florida Statutes, Chapter 280, "Florida Security for Public Deposits
Act" and covered by federal depository insurance and, for the amount in excess of such
federal depository insurance, by the Act. Under the Act, all qualified public depositories
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3.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)
B. Cash on Deposit: (continued)

are required to pledge eligible collateral having a market value equal to or greater than
the average daily or monthly balance of all public deposits, times the depository's
collateral pledging level. The pledging level may range from 50% to 125% depending
upon the depository's financial condition and establishment period. The Public Deposit
Security Trust Fund has a procedure to allocate and recover losses in the event of a
default or insolvency. When public deposits are made in accordance with Chapter 280,
no public depositor shall be liable for any loss thereof. Any losses to public depositors
are covered by applicable deposit insurance, sale of securities pledged as collateral and,
if necessary, assessments against other qualified public depositories of the same type as
the depository in default.

All cash deposits of the City are placed with qualified financial institutions and are
classified as Category 1 credit risk, which means they are insured or collateralized. Credit
risk is the exposure to the default of another party to the transaction (the counterparty).

. Investments and Investment Practices:

The City is authorized to invest in certificates of deposit, money market certificates,
obligations of the U. S. Treasury, its agencies and instrumentalities, repurchase
agreements collateralized by U. S. securities, the Florida Counties Investment Trust. The
pension trust funds are also authorized to invest in obligations of the City of Jacksonville,
of the State of Florida, commercial paper rated A-1 or P-1 by a nationally recognized
rating service, bankers' acceptances, corporate bonds, including collateralized mortgage
obligations, preferred stocks, common stocks, and real estate limited trusts. No derivative
or similar investment transactions, as defined by GASB Technical Bulletin 94-1, were
used, held, or written by the City during fiscal 2000,

Investments at September 30, 2000, are categorized in accordance with GASB Statement
No. 3 in the following table (in thousands) to indicate the level of risk assumed by the
City: Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or for which the
securities are held by the City or its agent in the City's name; Category 2 includes
uninsured or unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the
counterparty's trust department or agent in the City's name; Category 3 includes
uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the
counterparty, or by its trust department or agent, but not in the City's name. Due to
significantly higher cash flows at certain times during the vear, the City's investment in
overnight repurchase agreements, for which the underlying securities were held by the
dealer, fluctuated throughout the period. As a result, the amounts that were in Category
3 at those times were marginally higher than at year-end.
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3. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)
C. Investments and Investment Practices: (continued)

(in thousands)
Credit Risk Category
Classified as to ) 5 3 Fair
Credit Risk Value
All Fund Types
Except For Pension
Repurchase Agreements $ - $ - $306,644 $ 306,644
U.S8. Government and
Agency Securities 244,775 - 8,290 253,064
Total $244,775 $ - $314,934 559,708
Pension Trust Funds
U.S. Government and
Agency Securities $ 509,794 3 - 3 - 509,794
Corporate Bonds 363,812 - - 363,812
Common Stock 1,449,949 - - 1,449,949
Real Estate 2,322 - - 2,322
Total $2,325.877 $ - 5 - 2,325,877
Total Risk-Classified [nvestments 2,885,585
Unclassified as to Credit Risk:
Accrued Interest Receivable 18,813
Cash Bank Deposits 107,308
Less: Equity in cash and investments of certain
component units discretely presented and
related organizations (11,176)

Total Cash and Investments at September 30, 2000

Summary of Cash and Investment Accounts:

Equity in Cash and Investments

Cash in Escrow and with Fiscal Agents

Restricted Cash and Investments

Total Cash and Investments at September 30, 2000
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4.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The accounts receivable balances in the funds listed below, in thousands, are shown net of
an allowance for doubtful accounts in the combined balance sheet. No other funds had an
allowance for doubtful accounts at September 30, 2000.

Accounts Allowance for Net Amount Shown
Fund Receivable Doubtful Accounts on Balance Sheet
General Fund $ 20,659 ($18,610) $2,049
Enterprise Funds 2,577 (104) 2,473

PROPERTY TAXES

A. Ad Valorem Property Taxes:

Property tax collections are governed by Chapter 197, Florida Statutes. The Duval
County Tax Collector bills and collects all property taxes levied within the Consolidated
City/County. Discounts of 4, 3, 2, and 1% are allowed for ecarly payment in November,
December, January, and February, respectively. The total millage rate levied by the City
was 10.7861 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2000.

The Florida Constitution, as amended under Article VII, Section 4, limits the increase
in homestead property valuations for ad valorem tax purposes to a maximum of the lessor
of (1) three percent (3%) of the assessment for the prior year, or (ii) the percent change
in the Consumer Price Index for the preceding calendar year. The first tax year in which
the limitations of these constitutional provisions apply is January 1, 1995. Calendar year
1995 is the base year upon which assessed just value of the homestead property is
determined.

. Property Tax Calendar:

The Tax Collector remits collected taxes at least monthly to the City. The City
recognizes property tax revenue as it is received from the Tax Collector since virtually
all taxes levied will be collected through the tax collection process. The calendar of
events is as follows:

January 1 Property taxes are based on assessed value at this date as determined by the
Duval County Property Appraiser.

July 1 Assessment roll approved by the state.

September 30 Millage resolution approved by the City Council.

October 1 Beginning of fiscal year for which taxes have been levied.

November 30 Last day for 4% maximum discount.

April 1 Unpaid property taxes become delinquent.

May 31 Tax certificates are sold by the Duval County Tax Collector. This is the first

lien date on the properties.
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6.

CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

A summary of changes in general fixed assets follows (in thousands):

Retirements
Balance and Other Balance
October 1,1999 Additions Deletions September 30, 2000

Land $ 91,233 § 7,651 s 1 § 98,883
Buildings and improvements 449,720 14,911 1,629 463,002
Fumniture and equipment 54,137 3.838 4.941 53,034
Total $ 595,090 $26,400 $ 6,571 $614.919

Under an agreement with a not-for-profit corporation, Shands Jacksonville, formerly known
as University Medical Center, the City leases to Shands certain general fixed assets,
principally land and buildings, over a term to September 30, 2027 with an option to renew
for an additional forty years to 2067 at $1 per year. In addition, Shands is to be a full service
hospital in support of the indigent care programs of the City of Jacksonville and Duval
County under the agreement. Shands is to maintain, in good condition, and make
improvements and betterments to the Hospital as necessary over the life of the lease. The
fixed assets of Shands are included in the General Fixed Assets of the City and total $232.4
million at September 30, 2000, and consist of all property real, personal or mixed and other
facilities whether presently or subsequently owned, operated or leased by Shands during the
term of the lease. At termination of the lease, all such demised and leased property shall
revert to the City.

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)
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7. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

A summary of interfund transactions follows (in thousands):

DUE TO OTHER FUNDS

GENERAL FUND

General Fund

General Fund

General Fund
Total

SPECIAL REVENUE

Community Development Block Grant

Metropolitan Planning Organization
Total

CAPTTAL PROJECTS
Grant Capital Improvement Projects
Total

TRUST AND AGENCY

Tax Collector

Clerk of the Circuit Court

Clerk of the Circuit Court

Clerk of the Circuit Court

Clerk of the Circuit Court
Total

TOTAL

ADVANCES FROM OTHER FUNDS

CAPITAL PROJECTS
General Projects

TOTAL

AMOUNT

14
21
37

2,182
152

2,334

998
998

2,246
1,953
224

246
4,672

3 8,041

AMOUNT

$ 13,551

$ 13,551
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7. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (continued)

TRANSFERS IN AMOUNT TRANSFERS OUT
GENERAL FUND
General Fund $ 110 Concurrency Management
General Fund 93  General Government - Budgeted
General Fund 35 Community Development Block Grant
General Fund 166 Maintenance, Parks and Recreation
General Fund 23 Other Federal, State and Local Grants
General Fund 5,810  Self Insurance
General Fund 162 Police and Fire Pension

Total ' 6,399
SPECIAL REVENUE
Air Pollution Control and Monitoring 50 General Fund
Transportation 368 Bond Projects
Transportation 80  General Projects
General Government - Budgeted 150  General Fund
Tax Increment Districts 168 General Fund
Jacksonville Children's Commission 11,839 General Fund
Jacksonville Children’'s Commission 50  Other Federal, State and Local Grants
Maintenance, Parks and Recreation 132 General Fund
Metropolitan Planning Organization 104  General Fund
Other Federal, State and Local Grants 2,468 General Fund
Other Federal, State and Local Grants 391 Jacksonville Children's Commission
Other Federal, State and Local Grants 2 Maintenance, Parks and Recreation
General Government - Non-Budgeted 13 General Fund

Total 15,815
DEBT SERVICE
Special Bonded Debt Obligations 52,836  General Fund
Special Bonded Debt Obligations 8,880  Sports, Convention and Tourism Development
Special Bonded Debt Obligations 1,691 Tax Increment Districts
Special Bonded Debt Obligations 1,344  Public Parking System

Sports Complex, Convention Center and

Special Bonded Debt Obligations 943 Auditorium
Other Non-Bonded Debt Obligations 4,714  General Fund
Other Non-Bonded Debt Obligations 2,699 Tax Increment Districts

Total 73,107
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7. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (continued)

TRANSFERS IN
CAPITAL PROJECTS
General Projects 20,996
General Projects 400
General Projects 282
General Projects 12,475
General Projects 12
Grant Projects 233
Grant Projects 81
Total 34,479
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
Public Parking System 183
Public Parking System 12
Sports Complex, Convention Center and Auditorium 4,043
Sports Complex, Convention Center and Auditorium 317
Solid Waste Disposal 26,450
Mayport Ferry - 636
Tatal 31,646
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
Fleet Management 4,056
Fleet Management 219
Legal 118
Legal 308
Self Insurance 1,072
Group Health 3
Total 5,776
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
Expendable Trust 162
Total 162
TOTAL $
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167,384

AMOUNT TRANSFERS OUT

General Fund

General Government - Budgeted
Solid Waste Drisposal

Self Insurance

Expendable Trust

General Fund

Maintenance, Parks and Recreation

General Fund
Motor Vehicle Inspection
General Fund
Self Insurance
General Fund
General Fund

General Fund

General Government - Budgeted
General Fund

Self Insurance

General Fund

Insured Programs

General Fund
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7. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (continued)

A summary of intra-entity transactions follows {in thousands):

DUE FROM COMPONENT UNITS AMOUNT DUE TO PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Community Development Block Grant $ 584 Jacksonville Economic Development Company, Inc.
Total $ 584

OTHER AMOUNT OTHER

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT DISCRETE COMPONENT UNIT

General Long-Term Obligations Account Group -
JEA - Due from Primary Government -
Due to Compoenent Unit - Note Payable $ 800 Note Receivable

Total $ 800

TRANSFERS IN FROM COMPONENT UNIT  AMOUNT TRANSFERS OUT TO PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

General Fund $71,434 JEA

Total 571,434

TRANSFERS OUT TO COMPONENT UNIT  AMOUNT TRANSFERS IN FROM PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

General Fund $ 5,999 Jacksonville Economic Development Commission
Transportation 8,200 Jacksomville Transportation Authority
Tax Increment Districts 315 Jacksonville Economic Development Commission
State Housing Initiative Partnership 389  Duval County Housing Finance Authority

Total $ 14,903
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

7.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (continued)

During fiscal year 1999, the self-insurance fund advanced $14,000,000 to the capital projects
fund for the purpose of fulfilling City obligations under a redevelopment agreement for a
new 900-room hotel with substantial convention and business space. The total capital
investment for the project is $126.0 million. The City Council passed an ordinance to treat
the funding from the self insurance fund as a loan which will be repaid from general fund
revenues commencing on May 1, 2000 in equal annual instaliments over 20 years, plus
simple interest of 4.45%.

During fiscal year 2000, the City had financial transactions with its discretely presented
component units classified as follows for financial reporting purposes:

JEA:

Note Payable - At September 30, 2000, the City's outstanding obligation to the JEA
under a note payable was $800,000, which is accounted for in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group. During fiscal 2000, the City made a $400,000 payment on
the note payable to the JEA recorded in the City's General Fund. The terms of the note
were revised in prior years at which time the remaining $3,600,000 was to be repaid in
nine equal installments of $400,000 with the final installment due and payable on or
before October 1, 2001. The note bears interest at the coupon equivalent vield for 26-
week U.S. Treasury Bills.

Commercial Paper Program - In fiscal year 1994, JEA and the City worked together
to develop a mutually beneficial structure for the City's Commercial Paper Program to
provide financing for the River City Renaissance (RCR) Program. Currently, JEA makes
an annual contribution to the City's General Fund based upon gross kilowatt-hours sold
by JEA during the 12-month period ending on May 31 of each fiscal year. As part of the
RCR Program, the City and JEA have entered into an agreement, which requires JEA to
pay a supplemental contribution after October 1, 1997, to offset any increase in financing
costs for the RCR Program incurred by the City as a result of the initial financing of the
RCR Program with commercial paper. To the extent that funding costs for the RCR
Program would result in debt service being greater than $17,403,000 the supplemental
contribution would be equal to the amount in excess of $17,403,000. For fiscal year 2000
no additional supplemental contribution was required.

Enhanced Joint Agency Financing Program - On November 5, 1996, JEA and the City
executed a Financial Agreement in relation to the use of an “enhanced joint agency
financing program” (the “EJ Program”) in conjunction with the issuance of $57,150,000
Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 1996B for the benefit of various marine facilities
for the Jacksonville Port Authority (JPA). The City and JEA have agreed that JEA’s
annual contribution to the City under Article 21 of the City Charter and Section

-70 -
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7. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (continued)
JEA: (continued)

106.202(¢) of the City Ordinance Code will be supplemented to offset any shortfall in
certain cash flows in the City revenues dedicated for the benefit of the JPA (See
discussion below concerning the allocation of three sources of revenue by the City to the
JPA). As of September 30, 2000, revenues dedicated for the support of debt service
requirements of the 1993 Bonds and the 1996B Bonds have been sufficient so as to avoid
the need to call upon supplemental contributions from JEA in support of the EJ Program.

Jacksonville Port Authority:

Interlocal Agreement - In connection with a major port and marine facilities capital
improvement project (the Project), the City and the Jacksonville Port Authority (JPA)
entered into an Interlocal Agreement upon the issuance of $43,605,140 Excise Taxes
Revenue Bonds, Series 1993. Subsequent to this transaction, the parties entered into an
Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement in conjunction with the issuance of
$57,150,000 Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 1996B. Under the Amended and
Restated Interlocal Agreement, the City agreed to issue the 1993 Bonds and the 1996B
Bonds to finance the port and marine facilities capital improvement project, and the JPA,
1n consideration therefore, agreed to reimburse the City for debt service payments on the
1993 Bonds and the 1996B Bonds from certain revenues allocated to the JPA. Any
insufficiency in the extent of such revenues allocated to the JPA under the Amended and
Restated Interlocal Agreement or any changes in the Amended and Restated Interlocal
Agreement does not affect in any manner any obligation of the City pursuant to the terms
of the 1993 Bonds or the 1996B Bonds. The Amended and Restated Interlocal
Agreement is not for the benefit of the holders of the 1993 Bonds or the 19968 Bonds
and the JPA has no obligation under that Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement
to any third party bondholder. The revenues allocated to the JPA and supplemental
contributions to the City from the JEA in conjunction with the EJ Program are not
pledged as security for the 1993 Bonds and the 1996B Bonds.

The Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement provides for the allocation of three
sources of revenue (collectively referred to as the “pledged revenues™) by the City to the
JPA. The first source of revenue relates to the allocation of half of the increased revenues
from the change in method of collection of the City's public utilities services tax on
telecommunications services from 10% to 7% percent (the "Authority Allocation No. 1").
The second source of revenue relates to the amount calculated by multiplying one quarter
(.25) mills by the gross kilowatt hours (as defined in Article 21 of the City Charter) sold
by JEA during the twelve month period ending May 31 of the prior fiscal year (the
“Authority Allocation No. 2"). The third source of revenue relates to the $800,000 annual
contribution remitted to the JPA as described in Section 5(a) of the JPA act. Such
pledged revenues are to be applied by the City to the payment of debt service on the
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7.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (continued)
Jacksonville Port Authority: (continued)

1993 Bonds and the 1996B Bonds for such fiscal year prior to being paid to the JPA. To
the extent that the debt service on the 1993 Bonds and the 19968 Bonds in any fiscal
year exceeds the allocation of revenues to the JPA for such fiscal year, then the amount
of such deficiency shall be paid by the JEA to the City.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2000, the allocation of revenues from the City
to the JPA exceeded the debt service requirements of the 1993 Bonds and the 1996B
Bonds by the amount of $2.1 million for a cumulative total of $4.9 million at September
30, 2000. This amount will be applied to future debt service requirements of the 1993
Bonds and the 1996B Bonds through a funds transfer to the City's Debt Service Funds
or released to the JPA for capital projects in the event that such amounts are in excess of
anticipated debt service requirements in the near future.

In previous years, the City expended $43.1 million on the Project from proceeds of the
1993 Bonds for the benefit of the JPA under the Amended and Restated Interlocal
Agreement, which completed the 1993 Bond Program. In addition thereto, during the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2000, the City expended $13.5 million on the Project
from proceeds of the 1996B Bonds for the benefit of the JPA under the Interlocal
Agreement for a total of $63.4 million spent on the Project to date. The City accounts for
these expenditures in the Capital Projects Funds. The City does not capitalize these
capital outlay expenditures.

Jacksonville Transportation Authority:

Local Option One-Half Cent Sales Tax - On August 11, 1989, Jacksonville citizens
voted removal of all tolis from county/city bridges and certain roads and replaced the
revenue with a local option one-half cent sales tax that provides a permanent funding
source for the construction and maintenance of the City's roads and bridges; the operation
and maintenance of the bus system and the refinancing of existing bonds issued for the
construction of such bridges and roads. All collections from the one-half cent sales tax
are statutorily required to be remitted to the JTA. Accordingly, the City remitted all
collections from the one-half cent sales tax to the JTA in the amount of $56.8 million in
fiscal 2000. Such collection and payment by the City of this local option one-half cent
sales tax is recorded in the Transportation Special Revenue Fund as revenue and a
transportation expenditure in an equal amount. The JTA reports the $56.8 million transfer
from the City as sales tax revenue.
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7. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (continued)
Jacksonville Economic Development Company, Inc.:

Short-Term Construction Loan Financing Program - On January 12, 1994, the City
entered into a loan agreement with the Jacksonville Economic Development Company,
Inc. (JEDCO) under the City's Short-Term Construction Loan Financing Program. Under
the terms of the loan agreement, the City is obligated to loan up to $1 million with
interest to JEDCO to provide affordable housing to low and moderate income persons.
During fiscal year 2000 the City did not disburse funds to JEDCO under the loan
agreement with a remaining loan commitment balance of $416 thousand at September
30, 2000. JEDCO is obligated to the City for $584 thousand at September 30, 2000.

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)
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8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

A. Long-term Obligations at September 30, 2000 are comprised of the following (in thousands):

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE INTEREST
FROM AD VALOREM TAXES: RATES PRINCIPAL

Duval County Certificates of Indebtedness of 1972
payable in semi-annual installments to 2003 4.50-525% $1,755

Total General Obligation Bonds Payable
From Ad Valorem Taxes 1,755

SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYARLE
FROM SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES
OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXES:

Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1991
payable in semi-annual installments to 2009 6.20 - 6.30% 2,980

Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1992
payable in semi-annual installments to 2014 5.80-6.50% 64,330

Guaranteed Entitlement Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1992A
payable in semi-annual installments to 2013 5.30 -5.90% 62,830

Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 1993
payable in semi-annual installments to 2021 4.90-6.30% 43,050

Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1993A.
payable in semi-annual installments to 2012 4.60-5.375% 26,435

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1994

payable in semi-annual installments to 2026 495-5875% 43,695
Sunshine State Governmental Financing Commission, Series 1994 Variable Rate
payable in monthly installments to 2006 Assumed at 9.20% 5,575

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1995
payable in semi-annual installments to 2026 4.90 - 5.875% 26,980

Sales Tax Revemue Bonds, Series 1995
payable in semi-annual installments to 2019 5.00 - 6.00% 94,660

Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1995A
payable in semi-annual installments to 2010 4.875-5.125% 7,580
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8, LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)
A. Long-term Obligations at September 30, 2000 (continued)

SPECIAL OBLIGATIONS BONDS PAYABLE
FROM SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES
OTHER THAN AD YALOREM TAXES: (continued)

Guaranteed Entitlement Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1995A
payable in semi-annual installments to 2002

Sunshine State Governmental Financing Commission, Series 1995A
payable in semi annual installments to 2012

Sunshine State Governmental Financing Commission, Series 1995B (AMT)
payable in semi-annual installments to 2016

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1996
payable in semi-annual installments to 2019

Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 1996B
payable in semi-annual installments to 2010

Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 1996C
payable in semi-annual installments to 2007

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1997
payable in semi-annual installments to 2026

Capital Project Revenue Bonds, Series 1997-1
payable in monthly installments to 2017

Capital Project Revenue Bonds, Series 1997-2
payable in menthly installments to 2022

Capital Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1998
payable in semi-annual installments to 2025

Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding and Capital Improvement Bonds,
Series 1999A payable in semi-annual installiments to 2019

Total Special Obligation Bonds Payable From Specific

Revenue Sources Other Than Ad Valorem Taxes

TOTAL GENERAL AND SPECIAL OBLIGATIONS BONDS
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INTEREST

4.375-4.40%

4.75-5.65%

4.50-5.75%

4.20-5.50%

4.60-570%

4.25-4.85%

4.10-5.25%

Variable Rate

Assumed at 7.81%

Variable Rate

Assumed at 8.89%

3.80 -5.00%

3.30 - 5.00%

PRINCIPAL

$ 6,330

9,050

13,390

61,735

51,775

3,295

7,980

30,000

45,000

36,420

75,210

718,300

720,055



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (contimied)
A. Long-term Obligations at September 30, 2000 (continued)

INTEREST

BONDS PAYABLE FROM ENTERPRISE FUNDS: RATES PRINCIPAL
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1993A

payable in semi-annual instaliments to 2012 4.60 -5.375% $ 12,030
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1995A

payable in semi-annual installments to 2010 4.25-5125% 12,270
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1996A

payable in semi-annual installments to 2017 3.90-500% 19,965
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding and Capital Improvement Bonds,

Series 1999B payable in semi-annual installments to 2016 4.20-575% 40,835

TOTAL BONDS PAYABLE FROM ENTERPRISE FUNDS 85,100
TOTAL BONDS PAYABLE 805,155
NOTES PAYABLE FROM GENERAL REVENUE:
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1994A (Vistakon)

payable in semi-annual installments to 2003 6.31 - 6.53% (Taxable) 4.700
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1995 (Coach)

payable in semi-annual instaliments to 2014 8.22 - 9.03 % (Taxable) 3,735
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1996 (Sally Beauty)

payable in semi-annual installments to 2012 6.21 - 6.88% (Taxable} 855
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1996-B (Hilton Hotel)

payable in semi-annual installments to 2015 6.21 - 7.03% (Taxable) 2,710
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (Lavilla)

payable in semi-annual installments to 2016 6.21 - 7.08% (Taxable) 1,700
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (HTV Associates)

payable in semi-annual installments to 2010 6.21 - 6.78% (Taxable) 570

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (Jacksonville Landing)
payable in semi-annual installments to 2000 6.21%  (Taxable) 1,020
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8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)
A. Long-term Obligations at September 30, 2000 (continued)

NOTES PAYABLE FROM GENERAL REVENUE: (continued)

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Secries 1997 (Armor Holdings)
payable in semi-annual instailments to 2016 6.21 - 7.08% (Taxable)

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (Hampton Inns)
payable in semi-annual installments to 2015 6.21 - 7.03% (Taxable)

TOTAL NOTES PAYABLE FROM GENERAL REVENUE

TOTAL BONDED INDEBTEDNESS
COMMERCIAL PAPER NOTES:

Outstanding in the amounts of $60,000,000 with interest rates ranging from
3.25% 10 3.65% at original issue and maturing no later than 270 days after
date of issuance, and in no event later than September 27, 2001; renewable
annually, at the City's option, per credit agreement dated October 27, 1993

CAPITALIZED LEASE OBLIGATIONS:

General Long-Term Obligations Account Group:
Installment lease purchase of a Sheriff's fingerprint machine payable
semi-annually at $123,811 to May 2001 including interest at 4.99% with a
collateralized value of $.8 million

Internal Service Fund:
Installment lease purchase of voice mail system payable monthly
at $7,563 to October 2001 including interest at 6.18% with a collateralized
value of $95 thousand

Installment lease purchase of software payable monthly at $19,054 to
May 2004 including interest at 5.60% with a collateralized value of $756 thousand

Installment lease purchase of telephone switches and wiring payable monthly
at $5,423 to February 2005 including interest at 5.20% with a collateralized
value of $258 thousand

Total Capitalized Lease Obligations
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520

16,565

821,720

60,000

239
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756

258
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
A. Long-term Obligations at September 30, 2000:

ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES:

Represents the vested portion of accrued vacation and sick leave. See Note 1.M.

for a summary of the City's policy regarding compensated absences.

General Governmental Funds
Proprietary and Pension Trust Funds

Total Accrued Compensated Absences

DUE TO COMPONENT UNITS:
JEA: For a term of up to five years with a minimum annual principal
installment of $400,000, interest payable on each October 1, equal 1o
yield on the 26-week Treasury Bill

TOTAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Less Current Portion:
Bonds payable from enterprise funds
Capitalized lease obligations
Accrued compensated absences
Total Current Portion:

Total, less current portion

Less Unamortized Discount/Premium and Deferred
Loss on Advance Refunding

Total, less current portion and Unamortized Discount/
Premium and Deferred Loss on Advance Refunding
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$ 53,017
3,425

56,442

800

940,310

($2,115)
(332)

(409)

(2,856)

937,454

(3,421)

_$ 934,033



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

8.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)
B. Debt Service Requirement to Maturity:

Debt service requirement to maturity on the City's Long-Term Obligations at
September 30, 2000, are as follows (in thousands):

Commercial
General Bonds Paper and Total
Fiscal Year Long-Term Bonds Payable From Other Long-Term
Ending General Special Enterprise Long-Term Obligations
September 30 Obligation Obligation Funds Obligations And Interest
2001 $633 $68,141 $ 6,319 $ 64,707 $ 139,800
2002 - 2006 1,251 347,172 38,743 8,832 395,998
2007 - 2011 - 321,446 45,737 6,597 373,780
2012 - 2016 - 225,665 28,687 4,631 258,983
2017 - 2026 - 219,212 5,447 - 224,659
Total Principal and Interest 1,884 1,181,636 124,933 84,767 1,393,220
Less: Interest to Be Paid (129) {463,336) (39,833) (8,202) (511,300)
Total Principal 1,755 718,300 85,100 76,565 881,720
Less: Current Portion - - (2,115) - (2,115)
1,755 718,300 82,985 76,565 879,605
Unamortized Discount/Premium
and Deferred Loss on Advance
Refunding - - (3,421) - (3,421)
Totals $1,755 $ 718,300 3 79,564 $ 76,565 $ 876,184
Long-Term Obligations Not Included Above:
Accrued Compensated Absences 56,033
Due to Component Units 800
Capitalized Lease Obligations 1,016
TOTAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS, Less current portion $ 934,033

@ public Parking System $1,485 and Solid Waste Disposal $1,936
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8.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)
C. Changes in Long-Term Obligations:

Changes in long-term obligations for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2000, are
summarized as follows (in thousands):

Balance Balance
October 1, September 30,
1999 Additions Deductions 2000
General Long-Term Obligations:
Commercial Paper Notes $ 60,000 5 - $ - $ 60,000
General Obligation Bonds 2,285 - 530 1,753
Special Obligation Bonds 697,915 45,000 24,615 718,300
Notes Payable 19,425 “ 2,860 16,565
Capitalized Lease Obligations 466 - 227 239
Accrued Compensated Absences 52,132 885 - 53,017
Due to Component Units 1,200 - 400 800
Total General Long-Term Obligations 833,423 45,885 28,632 850,676
Long-Term Obligations of Proprietary
and Fiduciary Fund Types:
Revenue Bonds, less current portion 85,100 - 2,115 82,985
Unamortized Discount/Premium and,
Deferred Loss on Advance Refunding {4,339) 018 - (3,421)
Total Revenue Bonds, less current portion,
and Unamortized Discount/Premium and,
Deferred Loss on Advance Refunding 80,761 918 2,115 79,564
Capitalized Lease Obligations - 1,109 332 777
Accrued Compensated Absences 3,097 - 81 3,016
Total Long-Term Obligations of
Proprietary and Fiduciary Fund Types 83,858 2,027 2,528 83,357
TOTAL LONG-TERM
OBLIGATIONS, less current portion $917,281 $47,912 $ 31,160 $ 934,033

Additions and deletions of accrued compensated absences are shown net since it is impractical

for the City to determine these amounts separately.
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8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)
D. New Indebtedness and Refundings Issued by the City:

On November 4, 1999, the City closed on the sale of $45,000,000 Capital Project
Revenue Bonds, Series 1997-2. The 1997-2 Bonds represent the second tranche of a
series of bonds pursuant to a bond authorization in the principal amount of $99,000,000.
The 1997-2 Bonds are issued as 7-day Variable Rate Demand Bonds in a tax exempt
mode. The proceeds of the bonds program are allocated for various drainage and capital
improvement projects of the City.

{The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (in thousands)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)
E. DEFEASED DEBT:

The City has defeased certain serial bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust
to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets
and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the City's financial statements.

The City presently has outstanding the following serial bonds, which are legally defeased (in thousands):

INVESTMENT
PRINCIPAL BALANCE WITH
BALANCE AT ESCROW AGENT AT
ISSUE (a) REFUNDED BY SEPTEMBER 30, 2000 SEPTEMBER 30, 2000 (b)

Excise Taxes Revenue 1984 C Excise Tax Revenue

Refunding Bonds, Series 1977 Refunding Bonds $22,545 $ 14,251
Capital Improvement Revenue 1999 Capital Improvement and

Bonds, Series 1994 Revepue Refunding Bonds 31,030 32,340
Excise Taxes Revenue 1999A Excise Taxes Revenue

Refunding Bonds, Series 1991 Refunding Bonds 13,950 15,627

(a) Special Obligation Bonds payable from Specific Revenue Sources Other Than Ad Valorem Taxes
(b) Source: Escrow Agent's Records
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8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

F. Lease Obligations:

'The City’s capital lease agreements include the Sheriff’s Office fingerprint machine. The
leases meet the criteria of a capital lease as defined by Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 13, Accounting for Leases, which defines a capital lease generally as one
which transfers benefits and risks of ownership to the lessee. The lease agreements
contain options that allow the City to cancel the leases if sufficient funds are not
appropriated. Since cancellation of the leases is not foreseen, the leases have been
capitalized. Further, upon satisfaction of the lease obligations, asset title will pass to the
City. These assets have a carrying value of $.8 million and are recorded in the General
Fixed Asset Account Group.

Additionally, the City has a voice mail system, software and telephone switches and
wiring which was acquired through capital leases (recorded in the Information
Technologies Internal Service Fund). The carrying value for these items (capitalized cost
less accumulated depreciation) is $1.1 million at September 30, 2000. Depreciation of
the items acquired through these capital leases was $426 thousand in fiscal year 2000.

The future minimum lease obligations as of September 30, 2000, were as follows (in
thousands):

General Information
Long-Term Obligations Technologies
Fiscal Year Ending September 30, Account Group Internal Service Fund
2001 $ 248 $ 384
2002 - 300
2003 - 293
2004 - 217
2005 - 27
Total minimum lease payments 248 1,221
Less: Amount representing interest (9 ( 112)
Present value of minimum lease
Payments $239 $1,109
Classified as: :
Current $332
Non-current 777
Total $1,109

The City does not have any material operating leases.
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8.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

G. Arbitrage Liability:

The City had no outstanding arbitrage liability as of September 30, 2000.

. Conduit Debt:

The City issued certain conduit debt in the form of industrial development revenue bonds
(IDB's) and private activity bonds (PAB's) to provide financial assistance to private-
sector entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial and commercial facilities
deemed to be in the public interest. Conduit debt refers to certain limited-obligation
revenue bonds or similar debt instruments issued by the City for the express purpose of
providing capital financing for a specific nongovernmental third party. Although conduit
debt bears the name of the City as issuer, it is collateralized by the resources provided
by the loan with the third party on whose behalf they are issued. The City acts solely as
a conduit issuer with respect to the debt.

Conduit debt is collateralized by the property financed and is payable solely from
payments received on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the IDB's and
PAB's, ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the private-sector entity served
by the bond issue. None of the assets or revenues of the City arc pledged to the payment
of IDB's or PAB's and under the constitution and laws of Florida, the City may not
legally pledge any of its revenues or assets to the payment thereof. Neither the City, the
State, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of
the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying
financial statements.

Effective January 1, 1983, the City pursuant to Chapter 159, Florida Statutes, assumed
responsibility for approving applications for IDB's and PAB's previously made through
the Jacksonville Port Authority. As of September 30, 2000, the City had authorized
$1,195,973,120 in IDB's and PAB's, of which $1,026,171,902 have been issued. From
time to time, certain of such conduit debt may be in technical default or under
investigation as to tax-exempt status of interest on such debt, however, this has no effect
on the City's financial position.

As of September 30, 2000, the City has authorized a total of $1,073,480,970 Duval
County Housing Finance Authority (DCHFA) Single Family and Multi-Family Bonds
of which $993,230,293 have been issued. The amount of Single Family Housing
Revenue Bonds authorized and issued are $797,000,000 and $742,370,331 respectively.
The amount of Multi-Family Housing Bonds authorized and issued is $276,480,970 and
$253,419,961, respectively. The amount of Single Family Housing Revenue Bonds
authorized and issued during the fiscal year ended 2000 are $50,000,000 and
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8.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)
H. Conduit Debt: (continued)

$45,426,142, respectively. There were no Multi-Family Housing Bonds authorized or
issued during the fiscal year ended 2000. Refundings of previous issues make up
$211,385,439 of the total amount authorized and issued.

As of September 30, 2000, the City has authorized $567,700,000 of Jacksonville Health
Facilities Authority (JHFA) Bonds, of which $441,381,184 have been issued. The
amount authorized and issued during the fiscal year were $14,000,000 and $12,960,000,
respectively. Of the total amount of JHFA Bonds, refundings of previous issues make up
$332,850,834 of the authorizations and $257,559,166 of the issuances.

I. Special Assessment Debt - The City has no special assessment debit.
J. Demand Bonds - The City has no demand bonds.
PENSION PLANS

The City sponsors two employer public employee retirement systems (PERS), administered
by two separate and distinct pension boards of trustees, that provide retirement, death, and
disability benefits: the General Employees' Pension Plan and the Police and Fire Pension
Plan. Substantially all employees of the City participate in one of these two plans. In
addition, less than 1% of City employees participate in the State of Florida Retirement
System.

Under both the General Employees' and Police and Fire Pension Plans, the State of Florida
requires Plan contributions be made based upon an actuarial valuation and any contribution
shortfalls are the responsibility of the City to fund.

The General Employees’ Pension Plan and Police and Fire Pension Plan are considered to
be a part of the City’s financial reporting entity, as discussed in Note 1.B. Effective for the
fiscal year ending September 30, 1997, these PERS adopted GASB Statement No. 25,
Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans, intended to provide information
needed to assess (1) funding status of a PERS on a long-term, going-concern basis; (2)
progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due; and (3) whether
employers are making actuarially determined contributions. These PERS also follow GASB
Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Emplovers,
which requires measurement and disclosure of an amount for annual pension cost on the
accrual basis of accounting, regardless of the amount recognized as pension expenditures.
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9.

PENSION PLANS (continued)

A. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

(D)

(2)

Basis of Accounting -The City's financial statements are prepared using the
accrual basis of accounting. Plan member contributions are recognized in the
period in which the contributions are due. Employer contributions to each plan
are recognized when due and the employer has made a formal commitment to
provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the terms of each plan.

Method Used to Value Investments - Investments are reported at fair value. Short-
term investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. Securities,
traded on a national or international exchange, are valued at the last reported
sales price at current exchange rates. Mortgages are valued on the basis of future
principal and interest payments, and are discounted at prevailing interest rates for
similar instruments. The fair value of real estate investments is based on
independent appratsals. Investments that do not have an established market are
reported at estimated fair value.

B. General Employees Pension Plan:

(D

Plan Description - The General Employees' Pension Plan is a cost-sharing,
multiple-employer contributory defined benefit pension plan. All full-time City
employees and the employees of JEA are eligible to participate in the Plan upon
employment. There are no separately issued financial statements for the General
Employees Pension Plan. The Plan is administered by a seven-member board of
trustees.

The payroll for members covered by the Plan was $202.3 million during the 2000
fiscal year, consisting of $117.6 million City of Jacksonville payroll, $81.3
million JEA payroll and $3.4 million JHA payroll. The total 2000 payroll was
$275.3 million for the City, $92.7 million for the JEA and $14.8 million for JHA
for a total of $382.8 million.

The Plan provides for retirement, survivor, death and disability benefits. Under
normal retirement provisions, a member may retire after reaching the age of 55
with 20 years of credited service or at 65 with 5 years or more of credited service.
The requirements for early retirement are: (1) when an employee reaches age 50
and has 20 years of service, reduced 1/2% per month for retirement prior to age
55; (2) any age after 25 years of service adjusted to a benefit accrual rate of 2%
per year; and (3) any age after 30 years of creditable service at an unreduced rate
of 2 1/2% per year.
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9.

PENSION PLANS (continued)
B. General Employees Pension Plan: (continued)

@

Benefits vest after 10 years of credited service equal to 2 1/2% of a member's
average earnings for each year of credited service up to 32 years with a maximum
of 80%. Average earnings is the average monthly salary or wages for the highest
36 months of employment within the ten years preceding retirement. The regular
benefit is increased by up to 3% on the April 1 nearest the fifth anniversary of the
initial benefit commencement date, and on each April 1 thereafter. A monthly -
supplement is payable equal to $3 times the number of years of creditable service
to subsidize retiree's health insurance. However, only that portion of the increase
in excess of the supplement is payable. Members who terminate covered
employment with less than ten years of credited service shall be paid a refund of
100% of their contributions to the Plan. All members of the General Employees'
Pension Plan are required to contribute 8% of their earnings actuarially
determined and required by City Ordinance effective October 1, 1993. There is
no mandatory retirement age.

At September 30, 2000, the Plan's membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits

and terminated employees with future benefits 4,148
Current employees:
Vested 2,994
Nonvested 2,403
Total Current Employees 5,397
Total Membership ﬁ

Contributions - The City's funding policy provides for contributions at actuarially
determined rates that, expressed as percentages of annual covered payroll, are
adequate to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. Level
percentages of payroll employer contribution rates are determined using the
"entry age" actuarial cost method. Under this method, the cost of each member's
projected retirement benefit is funded through a series of payments, determined
as a level percentage of each year's earnings, from age at hire to assumed exit
age. The level-percentage-of-payroll method is also used to amortize the
unfunded liability and changes in Plan provisions, actuarial assumptions and
gains and losses over a period of 30 years. If the Plan is in a surplus position, the
surplus is recognized as an amortization credit in a level dollar amount over 10
years.
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9.

PENSION PLANS (continued)
B. General Employees Pension Plan: (continued)

City contribution requirements are, as part of the funding policy, met through two
sources; cash payments from the City, and allocations from the past excess
contribution account, maintained as part of the pension fund in accordance with
State requirements to track prior payments made in excess of the actuarially
required amounts. Contributions from all sources during fiscal year 2000 totaled
$29.8 million. The City contributed $11.7 million (5.67% of covered payroll) in
cash, and $.7 million (37% of covered payroll) from the past excess
contributions account. Employees paid $17.4 million ($16.4 million or 8% of
covered payroll in payroll deductions and $1.0 million in prior service
purchases). Contributions during fiscal 1999 and 1998 were $34.2 million (17.3%
of covered payroll) and $45.2 million (19.9% of covered payroll), respectively.
These contributions were made in accordance with contribution requirements
determined through an actuarial valvation performed October 1, 1999. The
actuarial methods used for this purpose are the same as those used in determining
funding progress.

Trend Information - Trend information gives an indication of the progress made
in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. Six-year historical
trend information is being developed on a year by year basis and is included in
the accompanying required supplemental information.

C. Police and Fire Pension Plan:

(1)

Plan Description - The Police and Fire Pension Plan (the “Plan™) is a single-
employer contributory defined benefit pension plan covering all full-time civil-
service members of the City of Jacksonville’s Sheriff’s Office and Fire and
Rescue Departments. The Plan is administered solely by a five-member board of
trustees. The City’s payroll for members covered by the Plan was $97.2 million
during the fiscal year, excluding DROP participants. The Plan, as amended
effective October 1, 1992, provides, in general, retirement benefits after twenty
years of credited membership, regardless of age, with a minimum benefit of 56%
of the average salary received for the fifty-two pay periods immediately
preceding retirement. An additional 2% for each completed year over twenty up
to a maximum of 80% may be earned. There is no mandatory retirement age.
Effective October 1, 1996, the Plan provides for a cost of living increase to
pensioners and their beneficiaries of 3% per annum.

Pension benefits may be vested after a minimum of five years of membership.

Benefits are computed based on average salary for the fifty-two pay periods
immediately preceding vesting multiplied by 2.5% times the number of credited
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9.

PENSION PLANS (continued)
C. Police and Fire Pension Plan: (continued)

2

€)

years of service. Employees, in this category, may alternatively select a 100%
payout of member contributions to the Plan without interest, upon withdrawal
from the Plan.

At September 30, 2000, the Plan's membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
and terminated employees with future benefits 1,389

Current Employees:

Vested 1,500
Nonvested 549
DROP Participants 408
Total current employees 2,457
Total membership 3,846

The City is currently contributing 8.75% of Plan members’ salaries. The Plan
members contribute 7.00% of salaries, and DROP participants contribute 2.00%.
Additional contributions are comprised of court fines, State premium tax refunds
and transfers from the Member Reserve Account, the Base Benefit Reserve
Account and the Enhanced Benefit Reserve Account. Investment costs of the
Plan are financed through investment earnings. Other administrative costs are
included in the annual required contribution amount.

The State of Florida requires funding of pension contributions to be made based
upon an actuarial valuation; the most recent valuation is as of April 1, 2000. The
City Council has the authority to amend its contribution to the Plan to not less
than the minimum state requirement.

Net Assets Available for Benefits - Net assets available for benefits are
designated pursuant to an agreement between the Police and Fire Pension Plan
Board of Trustees and the City dated October 1, 1992 (and recently updated
subsequent to September 30, 2000), consisting of the following actuarially
computed components as of September 30, 2000 (in thousands):

Combined Reserve Account ¢V $ 28,996
Base benefits fund 785,893
_ Total net assets available for benefits $ 814,889

) The value of the Combined Reserve Account is composed of the Base
Benefits Reserve Account, the Member Reserve Account, and the Enhanced
Benefits Account.
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9.

PENSION PLANS (continued)
C. Police and Fire Pension Plan: (continued)

(4)

The City stabilization reserve account was established for the purpose of
cushioning actuarial losses in the base benefits fund and giving the City greater
flexibility in its funding of the Plan. The enhanced benefits account was
established to hold any remaining State premium tax refunds not assigned to
offset City contribution requirements. The base benefits fund consists of the
assets pledged to provide fund benefits. The combined balances as of
September 30, 2000, have been calculated under the terms of the 2001 agreement
between the Plan and the City of Jacksonville.

Trend Information - Trend information gives an indication of the progress made
in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. Six-vear historical
trend information, on a year by year basis, is included in the accompanying
required supplemental information. See Note 1.B. concerning financial statement
availability.

D. Florida Retirement System:

(M

Plan Description - The City also participates in the Florida Retirement System
(FRS), a multiple-employer cost-sharing retirement system which covers less
than 1% of the City’s full-time employees. FRS is a defined-benefit contributory
retirement plan, administered by the State of Florida, Division of Retirement. The
City payroll for employees covered by FRS was $2.7 million during the fiscal
year; the City’s total payroll for all employees was $275.3 million.

The System provides vesting of benefits after ten (10) years (eight years for
elected officials) of creditable service. Members are eligible for normal
retirement after they have met one of the following; (1) after thirty years of
service regardless of age; (2) ten years (eight years for elected officials) of
service and age 62; or (3) twenty-five years special risk service (age 55 if not
continuous). Early retirement may be taken any time after completing ten years
of service (eight years for elected officials); however, there is a 5% benefit
reduction for each year prior to normal retirement. Benefits are computed on the
basis of age, average final compensation and service credit. Average final
compensation is the average of the five highest years of earnings. The System
also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are established by State
statutes.
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9.

10.

11.

PENSION PLANS (continued)
D. Florida Retirement System: (continued)

(2)  Contributions - During the years ended September 30, 2000, 1999, and 1998, the
City contributed $321 thousand, $409 thousand, and $697 thousand, respectively,
to the System for covered employees. For the fiscal year ended September 30,
2000, this contribution represented less than 1% of the total contributions
required by all participating employers which amounted to $2.2 billion.
Contributions in both fiscal 1999 and 1998 were less than 1% of the total
contributions required by all participating employers which amounted to $3.2 and
$3.1 billion, respectively. The funding methods and the determination of benefits
payable are provided in various Acts of the State Legislature. These Acts provide
that employers make required contributions actuarially determined at the rates in
effect at September 30, 2000, of 9.21% of the compensation for regular members,
20.22% for special risk members, and 17.05% for elected county officials.

(3) Trend Information - Ten-year historical trend information showing the System’s
progress in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due is presented
in the System’s June 30, 1999 annual financial report. The report may be
obtained from the State of Florida, Department of Management Services,
Division of Retirement at 2639-C North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida
32399-1560.

DEFERRED COMPENSATION PROGRAM

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation program created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 and Florida Statute 112.215. During the year
ended September 30, 1999, the City complied with the requirements of subsection (g) of IRC
Section 457 and, accordingly, all assets and income of the plan are held in trust for the
exclusive benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries. Pursuant to the provisions of
(GASB Statement No. 32, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code
Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans, the financial statements no longer display
deferred compensation balances in an Agency Fund.

POST RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The City does not provide any post-retirement benefits for retired employees, such as health
care or life insurance, other than those disclosed in Note 9.
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12. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The City's enterprise activities consist of five funds: Public Parking System; Sports
Complex, Convention Center and Auditorium; Motor Vehicle Inspection; Solid
Waste Disposal; and Mayport Ferry. Segment information for the year ended
September 30, 2000, is as follows (in thousands):

SPORTS
COMPLEX,
PUBLIC CONVENTION
PARKING CENTER AND
SYSTEM AUDITORIUM
Operating revenue $2,970 $ 10,590
Depreciation and amortization expense 412 6,872
Operating income (loss) (359) (11,316)
Operating grants - -
Operating transfers in 200 4,360
Operating transfers (out) (1,344, (943)
Net income (loss) {100y (5,936)
Net additions to (reductions in)
contributed capital - 2,539
Net additions (disposals) of property,
plant and equipment 552 3,145
Net working capital (deficiency) 3,661 1,910
Bonds and other long-term liabilities - .
payable from operating revenue 22,174 -
Total equity (deficir) (4,627) 225,341
Total assets 18,912 228,271
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MOTOR
VEHICLE

INSPECTION

$ 548
11

66

(12)

81

(1

21

509

22
597

627

SOLID TOTALS
WASTE MAYPORT
DISPOSAL FERRY 2000 1999
$ 32,501 $976 $ 47,585 $ 44,747
1,757 263 9,315 9,507
(25,917) (771) (38,297) (34.,745)
914 - 914 720
26,450 636 31,646 33,521
(282) - (2,581) (3,614)
3,529 (118) (2,544) {11,963)
1 - 2,539 82
36 116 3,870 (8,500)
41,156 (16) 47,220 18,040
79,682 - 101,878 100,929
41,147 5,059 267,517 267,522
125,564 5,242 378,616 378,146

-93-



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS :
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

13.

14.

CHANGES IN CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL ACCOUNTS

During the year, contributed capital increased (decreased) by the following amounts (in
thousands):

Enterprise Internal Service
Funds Funds
Balance, October 1, 1999 $232,237 $ 12,671
Additions to contributed assets 2,539 166
Deductions from contributed assets:
Current year depreciation on contributed assets (8,124) (1,492)

Balance, September 30, 2000 $ 226,652 $11,345

RISK FINANCING

The Risk Management Division (Division) of the City administers general liability, workers'
compensation (up to $1 million) and public liability insurance programs covering activities
of City general government, JEA, Jacksonville Housing Authority, and Jacksonville Port
Authority under a comprehensive self-insurance program wherein the City assumes
substantially all risks of losses. The City funds assets on a dollar-for-dollar basis for
actuarially determined estimated losses in the City's Self-Insurance Fund, an internal service
fund. The Self-Insurance Fund, established under Jacksonville City Ordinance, Chapter 128,
services claims for tort liability claims brought against the City, its officers, employees, or
agents; workers' compensation; and direct physical damage or injury due to operation of City
vehicles. The City is not involved in any risk pools with other governmental entities. The
City purchases conventional, commercial insurance coverage from various independent
carriers on all other types of insurable risks including group health and life, property and
casualty, and blanket excess policies. There have been no significant reductions in insurance
coverage in the last year. Settled claims have not exceeded commercial coverage in any of
the past three fiscal years.

The City's liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount
of that loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have
been incurred but not reported. Because actual claim liabilities depend on such complex
factors as inflation and changes in legal doctrines and damage awards, the process used to
compute claim habilities does not necessarily result in an exact amount. Claim liabilities are
reevaluated periodically with consideration of recently settled claims, the frequency of
claims, and other economic and social factors. The estimated liability for self-insured losses
is not discounted. Independent actuaries use all years of City claims data and the projected
number of employees, payroll, vehicles, and other property to estimate claims that have been
incurred, but not reported and to forecast ultimate losses by line of coverage.
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14.

15.

RISK FINANCING (continued)

The estimated liability for self-insured losses at September 30 (in thousands) consisted of:

2000 1999
Reported and known claims $ 34,695 $36,040
Incurred but not reported and claims development 21,452 29,540
Total estimated liability for self insured losses 356,147 $65,580

Changes in the estimated liability for self-insured losses were as follows (in thousands):

2000 1999
Balance, October 1 $ 65,580 $67,236
Current-Year Claims and Changes in Estimates 327 9,968
Claim Payments (9,760) (11,624)
Balance, September 30 $ 56,147 $ 65,580

OTHER REQUIRED INDIVIDUAL FUND AND COMPLIANCE DISCLOSURES
A. Compliance With Finance Related Legal and Contractual Provisions:

The City has no violations of finance related legal and contractual provisions.
B. Fund Deficits and Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations:

The following individual funds had a fund deficit at September 30, 2000, (in thousands):

Fund Balance/ Total Fund
Retained Earnings Contributed Balance/
(Deficit) Capital Fund Equity
Special Revenue Fund:
Jacksonville Children's Commission ($2,163) $ - (82,163)
Community Development Block Grant (85,503) $ - ($5,503)
Capital Projects Fund:
Grant Projects ($2,844) $ - (52,344)
Enterprise Fund:
Public Parking (87,248) $2.621 ($4,627)

It is anticipated future revenues will eliminate these fund deficits.

The Transportation Fund of the Special Revenue Funds had an excess of expenditures
over appropriations of $3.7 million for the year ended September 30, 2000.
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15.  OTHER REQUIRED INDIVIDUAL FUND AND COMPLIANCE DISCLOSURES

{continued)

C. Reconciliation is necessary because budgets for certain Special Revenue Funds are
prepared on a program basis rather than on an annual basis. The Combined Statement of
Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual — All
Budgeted Governmental Fund Types does not agree with the amounts of revenue and
expenditures reported in the Combined Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - All Governmental Fund Types. The differences between revenue,
expenditures and other financing sources (uses) between the budgetary and nonbudgetary
operating statements are as follows (in thousands):

Actual amounts reported per the Combined
Budget and Actual Statement, page 15

Add Special Revenue Funds not budgeted
on an annual basis:

Community Development Block Grant

Housing Rehabilitation and Home
Investment and Opportunity Grants

Job Training Partnership Act Grant
Maintenance, Parks and Recreation
Metropolitan Planning Organization
Other Federal, State and Local Grants
State Housing Initiative Partnership

Non-Budgeted General Government

Actual amounts reported per the Combined
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance, page 12

Total Other
Financing
Revenue Expenditures Sources (Uses)
§ 175,402 § 150,820 {$10,293)
10,432 9,062 (35)
2,936 2,703
23 - -
1,466 1,115 (117)
576 648 104
19,420 18,472 2,788
7,815 1,598 (389)
639 753 13
$218,709 $185,171 (87,929

D. Land{ill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs:

The State of Florida's Solid Waste Management Act of 1988 (the "Act") and regulations
of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the State of Florida Department
of Environmental Protection (FDEP) require the City to be responsible for constructing
and maintaining the final landfill cover, monitoring ground water and methane gas, and
continuing leachate management thirty years after its municipally owned landfills stop
accepting solid waste and are closed. The estimated total costs of municipal solid waste
landfill (MSWLF) closure and postclosure care costs reported by the City are based upon
professional consulting engineers' studies prepared annually pursuant to rules
promulgated by EPA and FDEP. However, existing EPA and FDEP closure and
postclosure regulations may change which might require the City to revise its MSWLF

cost estimates used in the future,
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15. OTHER REQUIRED INDIVIDUAL FUND AND COMPLIANCE DISCLOSURES
(continued)
D. Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs: (continued)

MSWLF costs, for open landfills, are recognized in accordance with GASB Statement
No. 18, Accounting for Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care
Costs. A liability of the Solid Waste Disposal Enterprise Fund (the "Fund") is recorded
based upon landfill capacity used at fiscal year-end and a current operating expense of
the Fund in the fiscal year in which the MSWLF costs are recovered through earned,
operating revenue.

The estimated liability for MSWLF closure and postclosure care costs at September 30,
2000, is (in thousands):

Balance, Accrual  Payment Balance,
October 1, of of September 30,
1999 Costs Costs 2000

Closed Landfills -

Postclosure care costs $11,238 $258 ($914) $ 12,910
Operating Landfill -

Closure costs - 345 (343) -

Postclosure care costs 6,965 312 - 7,277

6,965 657 (345) 7,277

Total Landfill Closure and

Postclosure Care Costs 18,203 3,243 (1,259) 20,187
Waste Dump Site -

Long Term Care Costs 1,330 235 ) 1,565
Total Liability for Landfill Closure,
Postclosure, Decontamination and

Long Term Care Costs $19,533 $3,478 (§1,259) $21,752

At September 30, 2000, the closure and postclosure care costs for the closed landfills
(North and East sites) had been fully recognized as these two landfills both stopped
accepting solid waste in April 1992. Of the total MSWLF closure and postclosure care
cost liability, $45.1 million had been paid for the cost of closure and $3.2 million had
been paid for postclosure care costs through September 30, 2000.

Funding MSWLF costs for these two closed landfills will be provided from future
operating revenues of Solid Waste Disposal Enterprise Fund activities. As discussed in
Note 1.P., after adjustments for the current year change in estimate, the $61.2 million in
MSWLF closure and postclosure care costs recorded for the City's two closed landfills,
North and East, and the $9.1 million in Waste Dump Site decontamination costs has been
capitalized and recorded as a deferred charge in the Solid Waste Disposal Enterprise
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15. OTHER REQUIRED INDIVIDUAL FUND AND COMPLIANCE DISCLOSURES
{continued)
D. Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs: (continued)

Fund. Through fiscal 1999, $30.0 million of this deferred charge had been expensed to
solid waste disposal operations. Additionally, during fiscal 2000, $1.9 million of this
deferred charge was expensed to solid waste operations, resulting in a balance at
September 30, 2000, of $38.4 million. It is the intent of the City that these costs be
recovered from future operating revenues of the Solid Waste Disposal Enterprise Fund,
and accordingly will be recognized as operating expense as such revenue is earned.

In addition, during fiscal 2000, the City charged to solid waste disposal operations $0.3
million in MSWLF closure and postclosure care costs for the operating landfill
("Trailridge"). This amount brings the cumulative cost reported to date to $12.0 million,
which represents the cumulative cost to date, based on the use of 31.5 percent of the
estimated capacity of Trailridge or a total of 5,199,550 landfill capacity tons used of an
estimated total capacity of landfill tons of 16,482,075, The City will recognize the
remaining estimated cost of closure and postclosure of $26.0 million as the remaining
capacity is filled. These amounts are based upon what it would cost to perform all closure
and postclosure care in 2000. The City expects to close the landfill in approximately
twelve years, in the year 2012. As mentioned, actual costs may be higher due to inflation,
changes in technology, or changes in environmental regulations.

The liability for the Waste Dump Site at September 30, 2000, of $1.6 million is based
on the most recent estimate by the Federal Government of the City's allocated share of
the clean-up and long term care cost of the site under a Participation Agreement and
Consent Decree with the Environmental Protection Agency. The City was identified as
a responsible party, sharing 65% of the total clean-up costs.

Annually, the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) requires the City
to meet a proof of financial responsibility for its two closed (East and North) and one
open (Trailridge) municipally owned landfills. This proof of financial responsibility
provides assurance to FDEP that future closure and postclosure care costs will be
adequately funded by the City. At September 30, 2000, this proof of financial
responsibility has been met by the City under Rule 17-701.630(5)(c) of the Florida
Administrative Code by $11.3 million in deposits made to a restricted cash escrow
account of the Solid Waste Disposal Enterprise Fund.

16, CHANGES IN REPORTING ENTITY

For the year ended September 30, 2000, the City had no changes in reporting entity.
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17.

18.

RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFER

The City Council approved ordinance 1999-99-E which eliminated the City’s Recreation
Lands and Parks Acquisition and Maintenance Fund. Remaining assets and fund equity were
transferred to the General Capital Projects Fund. A residual equity transfer was recorded, as
follows (in thousands):

Transfers Out Amount Transfers In
Special Revenue Fund - Maintenance, $ 166 Capital Projects Fund - General Projects
Parks and Recreation
Total $ 166
LESSOR OPERATING LEASE

The City has entered into a lease dated September 7, 1993, pursuant to which the City leases
the ALLTEL Stadium and adjacent practice facilities to the Jacksonville Jaguars, Inc.
(Jaguars) for a period of thirty years from the first NFL regular season play in 1995. The
lease entitles the Jaguars to use the Stadium on game days, for practices and summer training
camp, and for the period necessary before game days. During other periods of time, the City
has the right to use the Stadium, except for certain administrative spaces, training facilities,
suites, and other areas that are for the exclusive use of the Jaguars.

For the first five years, rent is deferred in the amount of $250,000 per vear; in years 6-10 rent
is $500,000 per year; in vears 11-20 $1,000,000; and in the final ten vears $1.25 million.
Rents from years eleven through the end of the lease are subject to escalation based on one-
half of any increase in the Consumer Price Index, but not to exceed 2.5% per year. In
addition, the Jaguars are obligated to pay supplemental rent in an amount equal to the annual
debt service incurred by the City for certain costs of renovation of $20 million requested by
the Jaguars over a thirty-year period with interest computed on a tax-exempt basis.

The lease generally permits the City to retain all revenues from all activities at the Stadium
not connected with pre-season, regular season or post-season Jaguar games. The City is
required to provide electricity, water and sewer services for the Stadium at its expense. The
City must maintain the Stadium and all leasehold improvements. The City is required to pay
for game day personnel on the days of Jaguar games. The Jaguars retain all net revenues
from concessions and similar sales on NFL game days. The lease obligates the Jaguars to
maintain its franchise at the Stadium in Jacksonville and to not relocate unless it pays the
City certain guaranteed amounts.
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19.

LITIGATION, CONTINGENCIES, AND COMMITMENTS

A. Litigation:

The City is named as party in legal proceedings which occur in the normal course of
government operations. Such litigation includes, but is not limited to, claims asserted
against the City arising from alleged torts, alleged breaches of contract, condemnations
proceedings and other alleged violations of State and Federal laws.

It is not possible at the present time to estimate the ultimate outcome or liability, if any,
to the City for these proceedings. However, it is the City's opinion that any ultimate
liability is not expected to have a material adverse effect on the City's financial position.

. Grants and Contracts:

The City participates in various federally assisted grant programs that are subject to
review and audit by the grantor agencies. Entitlement to these resources are generally
conditional upon compliance with the terms and conditions of grant agreements and
applicable federal regulations, including the expenditure of resources for allowable
purposes. Any disallowance resulting from a federal audit may become a liability of the
City.

All City agencies and departments are required to comply with various federal
regulations issued by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget if such agency or
department is a recipient of federal grant, contracts, or their sponsored agreements.
Certain agencies and departments may not be in total compliance with these regulations.
Failure to comply may result in questions concerning the allocability of related direct and
indirect charges pursuant to such agreements. It is believed that the ultimate disallowance
pertaining to these regulations, if any, will be immaterial to the overall financial
condition of the City.

. Self-Insurance;

Through the City's Risk Management Division, the City maintains an insurance and self-
insurance program, see Note 14. Workers' compensation, public liability and general
liability, including motor vehicles operated by the City under the City's Ordinance Code
Chapter 128, are self-insured. The City purchases commercial insurance for workers'
compensation claims in excess of $1 million. Under the laws of the State of Florida, the
City has limited sovereign immunity for certain self-insured losses in excess of
$200,000. The City retains coverage on all other types of insurance including real and
personal property damage. The self-insured programs of the City, which are included in
the Self-Insurance Internal Service Fund, are funded on a dollar-for-dollar basis
determined actuarially for the estimated losses for incurred but not reported and claims
development liabilities.
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19.

LITIGATION, CONTINGENCIES, AND COMMITMENTS (continued)

D. Environmental Matters:

There are claims pending against the City as a potentially-responsible party (PRP) for
cleanup of hazardous and other contaminated waste sites under federal and state
superfund and other environmental laws as follows:

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) has identified the City as one of
several parties responsible for the contamination at the Pickettville Road Landfill
Superfund Site, a former municipal landfill. The potentially responsible parties signed
a consent decree in 1992 agreeing to conduct remedial action at the site. That action has
been completed, and the site is now in a monitoring phase. The monitoring reports,
however, indicate that contaminated groundwater may be seeping from the landfill. The
PRPs have conducted a focused feasibility study that defines the extent of the
contaminated groundwater and recommends installing an iron reactive, permeable wall
to intercept groundwater migrating from the landfill. The cost of the remedy is
approximately $800 thousand. The PRPs have deposited funds with the Site Trustee to
underwrite the construction costs. The PRPs are awaiting U.S. EPA's approval of the
proposed remedial action.

The EPA has identified the City as one of over two hundred PRPs for contamination at
the Whitehouse Oil Pits Superfund Site in Whitehouse, Florida, a small community in
western Duval County. The EPA designated the site to participate in EPA’s Pilot
Allocation Program, under which EPA agrees to pay the remedial cost shares of insolvent
or defunct PRPs, and to settle a financially viable party’s liability based on an allocator’s
assignment of responsibility. EPA has accepted the Allocator's report. The Agency's
construction design contractor has finished the remedial design and EPA claims that the
past costs, construction costs, and post-construction operation and maintenance costs will
be about $16 million. The City's share of liability should be slightly under 10%.

The City has agreed with the Florida Department of Environmental Protection to survey
all landfills in Jacksonville, whether open or closed and regardless of ownership. Some
former City landfills may require remediation, but how many and at what cost is
presently unknown.

Beginning in the 1940's continuing through the 1970's, the City operated several
mumnicipal incinerators. The ash was disposed of at a location in which an elementary
school and surrounding residential neighborhood were later built. On August 31, 1999,
the City signed an administrative consent order with the EPA, to conduct a remedial
investigation and feasibility study at the site. The City hired a contractor who has
prepared a remedial investigation and feasibility study work plan for EPA review. It is
unknown at this time what remedial action, if any, will be required.
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19,

LITIGATION, CONTINGENCIES, AND COMMITMENTS (continued)
D. Environmental Matters: (continued) '

The City simultaneously signed Administrative Orders with EPA to investigate other
ash-contaminated sites in town. The remedial investigations and feasibility studies will
be conducted in tandem with those mentioned previously.

Because of the uncertainty as to the amount of any environmental cleanup costs which
may ultimately be paid by the City no accrual has been made in the accompanying
financial statements at September 30, 2000, except as disclosed in Note 15.D. Funding
for such payment, if any, will be from general revenue sources, environmental protection
trust fund monies, third-party recoveries, Federal assistance and earnings.

. Economic Development Commitments:

The City has entered info agreements that commit future revenues to promote the
community economic development goals. These future grants will be paid out based on
a contractual percentage of ad valorem taxes paid to the City over and above an
established benchmark for the individual project. The maximum grant amounts will be
paid to the following Developers:

Estimated  Estimated Maximum Maximum
Jobs Jobs Amount Number of
Developer Created Retention (in thousands) Years
Chase Manhattan Mortgage 350 - $ 1,000 10
Enkei, International 100 - 800 10
Household Corporation 400 - 300 10
Humana 584 1,000 4,000 20
Oliver — Jacksonville Associates 4,930 - 17,500 15
Southeast Toyota 50 400 6,000 20
Winn Dixie HDQ & Dist. Center 250 700 3,364 10
Elkins Construction, Inc. 60 70 210 10
Cathedral Housing n/a n/a 409 10
[-95 Interchange n/a /a 17,400 20
Harbor Residential n/a n/a 1,115
Villas of St. Johns n/a n/a 860
Lee & Cates - 65 119 10
Laney and Duke 110 110 675 20
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20.

MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

Financial disclosure about each of the City's major discretely presented component units
essential to the fair presentation of the General Purpose Financial Statements is presented
below. The City's nonmajor discretely presented component units are reported along
with the City's major component units in separate columns in the Component Unit
Combining Statements. Accordingly, no additional financial disclosure is presented here.

A. JEA

4} Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

(a)

Reporting Entity

JEA (formerly known as the Jacksonville Electric Authority) is currently
organized into four separate systems: the Electric System; the Bulk
Power Supply System which consists of Scherer Unit 4, a coal-fired 846
megawatt generating unit operated by Georgia Power Company and
owned by JEA (23.64% ownership interest) and Florida Power & Light
Company (FPL) (76.36% ownership interest); St. Johns River Power
Park System (SJRPP), which is two coal-fired generating units (638 net
megawatts each) jointly owned and operated by JEA (80% ownership
interest) and FPL (20% ownership interest); and the Water and Sewer
System. These financial statements include JEA’s ownership interest in
the Bulk Power Supply System and SJRPP. Separate accounting records
are currently maintained for each system. The following information
relates to JEA’s ownership of the respective plants as of September 30,
2000 (in thousands):

Bulk Power Supply System

Utility plant in service, net $ 107,362
Inventory 7,250
SJRPP

Utility plant in service, net $ 811,252
Restricted assets 418,098
Current assets 74,185
Other assets 550,409
Long term debt 1,586,686
Other liabilities 256,568

The Electric System, the SJRPP, and the Water and Sewer System each
has its own bond resolution. During fiscal year 1999, JEA defeased the
remaining principal amount of its outstanding Bulk Power Supply System
Bonds in advance of their scheduled due dates. As a result, all of the
covenants, agreements and other obligations of JEA under the Bulk
Power Supply System Bond Resolution have ceased, terminated and
become void and have been discharged and satisfied, and JEA no longer
is required to maintain the various funds and accounts established
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20.

MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
A. JEA (continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)

(1)

(a)

(b)

©

(d)

Reporting Entity (continued)

thereunder, nor to make any deposits thereto. For fiscal year 2000 and
going forward, JEA expects that all costs of operating and maintaining its
nterest in Scherer Unit 4 will continue to be paid as part of the Electric
System’s Cost of Operation and Maintenance.

Basis of Accounting

JEA consists of two enterprise funds: Electric, and Water and Sewer.
The Electric Enterprise Fund includes the Electric System, Bulk Power
Supply System, and SJRPP. JEA is presenting combined financial
statements for the two enterprise funds. JEA wuses the accrual basis of
accounting for both enterprise funds and has adopted the uniform system
of accounts prescribed by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission for
the Electric Enterprise Fund and the National Association of Regulatory
Utility Commissioners for the Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund. The
investment in The Energy Authority (TEA) joint venture is recorded on
the equity method.

The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the
pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB), including GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting
Entity, which defines JEA as a component unit of the City of
Jacksonville, Florida (the City). Accordingly, the financial statements of
JEA are included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the
City. JEA has elected to apply all Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) Statements and Interpretations except for those that conflict with
GASB pronouncements in accordance with GASB Statement No. 20,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other
Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting. Both
SJIRPP and the Bulk Power Supply System follow FASB Statement
No. 71, Accounting For the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation.

Revenue

Electric and water and sewer revenue is recorded as earned. JEA earned
15% of its electric revenue from electricity sold to FPL in fiscal year
2000. Operating revenues include amounts estimated for unbilled services
provided during the reporting period.

Utility Plant

The costs of utility plant additions and replacements are capitalized.
Maintenance and replacements of minor items are charged to operating
expenses. The cost of depreciable plant retired is eliminated from the
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20.

MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
A. JEA (continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies; (continued)
(d) Utility Plant (continued)

1)

(e)

®

(®

plant accounts, and such cost plus removal expense less salvage value is
charged to accumulated depreciation.

SJRPP is required by its bond resolution to deposit certain amounts in a
renewal and replacement fund. These amounts are then required to be
expended on capital expenditures to maintain and improve the system.
The amounts deposited in the fund are recorded as an expense when
deposited. As capital expenditures are made, the amounts funded from
the renewal and replacement fund are transferred to Utility Plant as a
reduction of installed cost.

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction

An allowance for funds used during construction (AFUDC) is included in
"Construction in progress” and as a reduction of interest expense. JEA
capitalizes interest on construction projects financed with the revenue
bonds and commercial paper in accordance with SFAS No. 34 and SFAS
No. 62. The AFUDC rate for the Electric System fixed rate debt was
5.250% for fiscal year 2000. The AFUDC rate for the Electric System
variable rate debt was 4.302% for fiscal year 2000. The AFUDC rate for
the Water and Sewer System was 5.346% for fiscal year 2000. The
amount capitalized is the interest cost of the debt less any interest earned
on investment of debt proceeds from the date of the borrowing until the
assets are placed in service. Total interest incurred was approximately
$167,238,000 for fiscal year 2000. Interest expense of approximately
$29,097,000 for fiscal year 2000 was capitalized, net of interest income
capitalized of approximately $12,240,000.

Depreciation

Depreciation of the JEA utility plant, all of which is charged to
operations, is computed on a straight-line basis at rates based upon the
estimated service lives of the various property classes. The effective rate
of depreciation based upon average depreciable property balances was
approximately 5% for fiscal year 2000. The JEA has commissioned a
depreciation study and once the study is finalized, the JEA will adjust
future depreciation rates in fiscal year 2001 in accordance with the
findings of the depreciation study.

Amortization

Amortization of debt issue costs and debt original issue discount is
computed on a straight-line basis, which approximates the effective
interest method over the remaining term of the outstanding bonds.
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20.

MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
A. JEA (continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)

M

()

()

()

®)

Losses on Refundings

Losses on refundings of JEA revenue bonds are deferred and amortized
as a component of interest expense using the straight-line method over
the remaining life of the old debt or the new debt, whichever is shorter, in
accordance with Statement of Governmental Accounting Standards Board
No. 23, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Refundings of Debt
Reported by Proprietary Activities. The losses on refundings are reported
as a reduction of long-term debt. Whereas JEA has incurred accounting
losses on refundings, calculated as the difference between the net
carrying value of the refunded and the refunding bonds, JEA has over
time realized economic gains calculated as the present value difference in
the debt service on the refunded and refunding bonds.

Investments

Investments in U.S. treasury and government agency securities are
recorded at fair value, as determined by quoted market prices.
Investments in overnight repurchase agreements and commercial paper
are recorded at cost, which approximates fair value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include
cash on hand, bank demand accounts, overnight repurchase agreements,
and short-term liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of
90 days or less.

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

JEA’s risk management policies allow the use of interest rate swaps and
caps 1o manage financial exposures, but prohibit the use of these
instruments for speculative or trading purposes. JEA utilizes interest rate
swaps and caps to manage the interest rate risk associated with various
assets and liabilities. Interest rate swaps are used in the area of
investment management to increase the yield on revolving short-term
investments. Interest rate swaps are also used in the area of debt
management to take advantage of favorable market interest rates, while
caps are used to limit variable rate debt exposure. Due to the policies
followed, JEA does not qualify for hedge accounting. Thus, all changes
in the fair value of these instruments are recorded in the combined
statements of operations. Under the swap program, JEA pays a variable
rate of interest, which is based on various indices, and receives a fixed
rate of interest. These indices are affected by changes in the market. The

- 106 -



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

20.

MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
A. JEA (continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)

D

(k)

M

(m)

(m)

(0)

Interest Rate Swap Agreements (continued)

net amounts received or paid under the swap agreements are recorded
either as an adjustment to interest income (asset management) or interest
expense (debt management). From the inception of the program through
September 30, 2000, JEA has earned approximately $7.3 million on the
asset management program and approximately $8.1 million on the debt
management program from the use of interest rate swaps and caps.

Inventory

Inventories are maintained for fuel and material and supplies. Fuel
inventories are maintained at levels sufficient to meet customer demands.
Inventories are valued at average cost.

Fuel Management Program

In connection with the purchase of oil and natural gas, JEA has developed
and implemented a fuel management program intended to manage the
risk of changes in the market prices of oil and natural gas. Pursuant to
this program, JEA executes futures and options contracts from time to
time to help manage fluctuations in the market prices of oil and natural
gas. The fair value adjustments of such contracts are recorded in
“Operating Expenses - Fuel” and “Prepaid expenses and other assets.”
The associated margin deposits are also recorded in “Prepaid expenses
and other assets.” The net amounts received or paid under the expired or
closed fuel contracts are recorded as an adjustment to “Operating
Expenses - Fuel.”

Contributed Capital

Contributed capital for the Water and Sewer System represents contri-
butions of fixed assets from third parties. Contributed capital is recorded
at cost at the time of receipt. Depreciation is recorded on contributed
fixed assets on the straight-line basis and is charged against the related
contributed capital account and is added back as an increase to retained
earnings.

Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities

"Deferred credits and other liabilities" includes long-term compensated
absences, accrued environmental liabilities, and the long-term obligation
to the City of Jacksonville for its Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, net of
unamortized losses on refundings.
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20.

MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
A. JEA (continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)

(1)

(p)

(@

(r)

Environmental Costs

JEA expenses, on a current basis, certain known costs incurred in
complying with environmental regulations and conducting remediation
activities. JEA also accrues liabilities in accordance with SFAS No. 5 for
certain potential future costs required for site restoration for which JEA
may be liable whenever, by diligent legal and technical investigation, the
scope or extent of damage has been determined, remedial measures have
been specifically identified as practical and viable, and the cost of
remediation and JEA’s proportionate share can be reasonably estimated.
Generally, the timing of these accruals coincides with completion of a
remedial investigation and feasibility study or JEA’s commitment to a
formal plan of action. Potential claims for recovery from other
potentially responsible parties (PRPs) effectively reduce the recorded
liability.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets subject to the requirements of SFAS No. 121,
Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived
Assets to Be Disposed Of, are evaluated for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of any
asset may not be recoverable.

Costs to be Recovered from Future Revenues / Revenues to be Used
for Future Costs

Cost-based Regulation - Due to the application of SFAS No. 71, JEA’s
Bulk Power and SJRPP Systems record certain assets and liabilities that
result from the effects of the ratemaking process that would not be
recorded under generally accepted accounting principles for nonregulated
entities. Currently, the electric utility industry is predominantly regulated
on a basis designed to recover the cost of providing electric power to its
customers. If cost-based regulation were to be discontinued in the electric
industry for any reason, market prices for electricity could be reduced or
increased and utilities might be required to reduce their balance sheet
amounts to reflect market conditions. Discontinuance of cost-based
regulation could also require affected utilities to write off their associated
regulatory assets and liabilitics. Management cannot predict the potential
impact, if any, of the change in the regulatory environment on JEA’s
future financial position and results of operations.

The rates for SIRPP and the Bulk Power Supply System arc established
on a cost of service basis, which is based upon debt service, if any, and
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20.

MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
A. JEA (continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)

@D

(r)

()

Costs to be Recovered from Future Revenues / Revenues to be Used
for Future Costs (continued)

operating fund requirements. Straight-line depreciation is not considered
in the cost of service calculation used to design rates.

Costs to be Recovered from Future Revenues - The deferred debt
related costs are resulting differences between expenses in determining
rates and those used in financial reporting and shown under Other Assets
on the Combined Balance Sheet. SJRPP has a contract with the Electric
System and FPL to recover these costs from future revenue that will
coincide with retirement of long-term debt of SJRPP. The amount
recovered each year will be the difference between debt principal
maturities (adjusted for the effects of premiums, discounts, and
amortization of gains and losses) and straight-line depreciation and results
in recognition of deferred costs on the Combined Statement of Revenue,
Expenses, and Changes in Retained Earnings. SJRPP recognized (in
thousands) $31,815 in deferred costs in fiscal year 2000.

Revenues to be Used for Future Costs - Early debt principal retirements
of the Bulk Power Supply System in excess of straight-line depreciation
are included in "Deferred credits and other liabilities” on the Combined
Balance Sheet and as an "Other non-operating revenue" in the Combined
Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Retained Earnings. In
the future, recognition of deferred revenues on the Combined Statement
of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Retained Earnings will coincide
with future costs for straight-line depreciation that exceed any debt
principal occurring at that time. The Bulk Power Supply System
recognized revenue (in thousands) of ($2,853) in fiscal year 2000.

Sumnmary:
Recognition of deferred costs from SJRPP $31,815
Recognized revenues from the Bulk
Power Supply Systermn (2,855)
Recognition of deferred costs and revenues, net $ 28,960

Pervasiveness of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
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20. MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
A. JEA (continued)
§)) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)
(s) Pervasiveness of Estimates (continued)

during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

(2) Restricted Assets:

Restricted assets were held in the following funds on September 30, 2000 (in

thousands):
Electric System:
Sinking Fund $ 19,057
Debt Service Reserve Fund 29,372
Construction Fund 124,539
Renewal and Replacement Fund 44,037
Customer Deposits Trust Fund 15,840
Self Insurance Fund 3,000
Debt Management Strategy Reserve 26,750
Adjustment to fair value of investments 133
Total Electric System 262,728
Bulk Power Supply System:
Renewal and Replacement Fund 241
Total Bulk Power Supply System 241
SIRPP System:
Sinking Fund 120,927
Debt Service Reserve Fund 175,493
Renewal and Replacement Fund 91,360
Revenue Fund 34,120
Adjustment to fair value of investments (3,802)
Total SIRPP System 418,098
Water and Sewer System:
Sinking Fund 19,778
Debt Service Reserve Fund 28,511
Construction Fund 33,112
Renewal and Replacement Fund and Capital Outlay Fund =~ 58,053
Customer Deposits Trust Fund 1,865
Debt Management Strategy Reserve 10,000
Adjustment to fair value of investments 239
Total Water and Sewer System 151,578
Total Restricted Assets $ 832,645

The Electric System, Bulk Power Supply System, SIRPP, and Water and Sewer
System are permitted to invest restricted funds in specified types of investments
until the time such funds are required to be disbursed for the designated

purposes.
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20.

MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
A. JEA (continued)

(3) Cash and Investments:

JEA maintains cash and investment pools that are utilized by all funds except
for those bond funds established subsequent to the 1986 Tax Reform Act.

Included in the JEA cash balances were amounts on deposit with JEA’s
commercial bank as well as amounts deposited with the Florida State Board of
Administration’s Local Government Investment Pool. The commercial bank
balances were covered by federal depository insurance or collateralized subject
to the “Florida Security for Public Deposits Act” of Chapter 280, Florida
Statutes. Amounts subject to Chapter 280, Florida Statutes are collateralized
by securities deposited by JEA’s commercial bank under certain pledging
formulas with the State Treasurer or other qualified custodians.

JEA i1s authorized to invest in securities as described in each bond resolution.
Investments in securities are categorized in accordance with GASB Statement
Neo. 3, Deposits with Financial Institutions, Investments (including Repurchase
Agreements), and Reverse Repurchase Agreements. Each category is a level of
risk assumed by JEA: Category | includes investments that are registered or
insured or which are held by JEA or by an agent in JEA’s name; Category 2
includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are
held by the broker’s or dealer’s trust department or agent in JEA’s name; and
Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the
securities are held by the broker or dealer, or by its trust department or agent,
but not in JEA’s name. For fiscal year 2000, all securities were classified as
Category 1.

During fiscal year 2000, JEA had a securities lending agreement with an
independent third party on certain securities of the Electric System, the Bulk
Power Supply System, and the Water and Sewer System for the purpose of
increasing investment income as permitted by the respective bond resolutions.
When JEA lends securities, the risk of failure by the borrower to return the
loaned securities is alleviated by such loans being continuously collateralized
by securities that are permitted investments under each bond resolution. The
collateral securities are in an amount equal to 103% of the market value of the
loaned securities and are held by a third party safekeeping agent. Under the
lending agreement, the collateral securities are deemed to be substituted for the
loaned securities, and are subject to the lien or pledge under each bond
resolution. JEA has the right and the ability to sell the collateral securities
upon default of the borrower to return the loaned securities to JEA under the
lending agreement. JEA cannot sell the collateral securities without a default
by the borrower. The borrower is required by the contract agreements to
indemnify JEA if upon a default the collateral securities are insufficient to
replace the loaned securities or if the borrower fails to pay JEA for income
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20.

MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
A. JEA (continued)

3)

Cash and Investments: (continued)

distributions from the loaned securities of the Electric System, the Bulk Power
Supply System, and the Water and Sewer System while they are on loan.
These loaned securities are considered Category 1 investments in accordance
with GASB Statement No. 3.

The JEA follows GASB No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools, which requires the
adjustments of the carrying value of investments to fair value to be presented as
a component of investment income. Investments are presented at fair value,
which is based on available or equivalent market values. The ILocal
Government Investment Pool operated by the Florida State Board of
Administration is a “2a-7-like” pool in accordance with GASB No. 31;
therefore, it is not presented at fair value but at its actual pooled share price
which approximates fair value. At September 30, 2000, the fair value of all
securities, regardless of balance sheet classification as cash equivalent or
investment, was as follows (in thousands):

Securities:

U.S. Treasury and Government Agency Securities $ 572,296

Repurchase Agreements 53,906

Commercial Paper 67,927

Local Government Investment Pool 32,444
Loaned securities:

U.S. Treasury and Government Agency Securities 76,481
Securities subtotal T,()Sﬁi
Fair value of interest rate swaps 289

Total securities, at fair value W

These securities are held in the following accounts (in thousands):

Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 344 844

Investments, at fair value 434411
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 50,949

Investments, at fair value 28,202
Total cash and investments 858,406
Plus: Interest due on securities 7,995
Less: Cash on deposit (63,058)

Total Securities, at fair value $ 803,343
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Cash and Investments: (continued)

For asset management purposes, JEA has entered into various interest rate
swap agreements that expire over the next five years with outstanding total
notional amounts of $35,000,000 for the Electric System at September 30,
2000, as well as $35,000,000 for the Water and Sewer System at September 30,
2000. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2000, the weighted average rates
of interest were:

Variable 3.989%
Fixed 4.291%

Asset management interest rate swap earnings and losses are recorded as an
increase to "Interest revenue" in the Combined Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Retained Earnings. As a result of these interest rate
swap earnings, JEA increased investment income for the Electric System by
$174,425 in fiscal year 2000, and for the Water and Sewer System by $50,392
in fiscal year 2000. For fiscal year 2000, the notional amounts of the interest
rate swaps are not reflected in the financial statements; however, the fair value
of the interest rate swaps are included in "Investments" on the Combined
Balance Sheet. Although JEA has no plans or expectations to terminate the
interest rate swaps prior to their maturity dates, the aggregate fair value of the
notional amount of the interest rate swaps as of September 30, 2000 were
$35,044,975 for the Electric System, and $34,591,883 for the Water and Sewer
System. These amounts were calculated using market rates as of September 28,
2000, and standard cash flow present valuing techniques. The Electric System
and the Water and Sewer System are exposed to a potential nonpayment in the
event of nonperformance by the counterparty of its interest rate swap
agreements. JEA believes that the risk of nonpayment in the event of
nonperformance by the counterparty under these agreements is not significant.
JEA does not anticipate nonperformance by the counterparty.

Renewal and Replacement Funds:

The requirements for contributions to the respective systems’ renewal and
replacement funds are as follows:

Electric System: An amount equal to the greater of 10% of the prior
year defined net revenues or 5% of the prior vear
defined gross revenues.

SJRPP System: An amount equal to 12.5% of aggregate debt service,
as defined.
Water and Sewer System: An amount equal to the greater of 10% of the prior

year defined net revenues or 5% of the prior year
defined gross revenues.
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Long-Term Debt:

The Electric System, Bulk Power Supply System, SJRPP System, and Water
and Sewer System Revenue Bonds (JEA Revenue Bonds) are payable from and
secured by a pledge of the Net Revenues of each of the respective JEA
Systems. JEA is required to deposit monthly, into separate debt service funds
for each System, approximately one-twelfth of the aggregate amount of
principal and interest becoming payable on the outstanding JEA Revenue
Bonds within the bond year. Interest on the fixed rate portion of the JEA
Revenue Bonds (excluding SJRPP capital appreciation bonds) is payable semi-
annually on April 1 and October 1, with the principal amount payable on
October 1. FPL is required to make certain debt service payments on SIRPP
Revenue Bonds. These payments are made in accordance with the requirements
of the SJRPP Bond Resolution and Joint Ownership Agreement between JEA
and FPL.

On September 23, 1999, all of the outstanding Bulk Power Supply System
Bonds were defeased. The debt service to maturity on the outstanding JEA
Revenue Bonds (excluding Commercial Paper Notes and Variable Rate
Obligations) as of September 30, 2000, is summarized in the following table (in
thousands):

Electric

Bond Yrs System SJRPP Water & Sewer

Ending

October 1 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Total
2000 © $ 1,605 § 15291 §$ 75,100 $ 45292 $ 8410 $11226 $ 156,924
2001 1,695 34,994 30,370 86,677 8,735 22,108 234,579
2002 1,795 34,511 84,715 82,321 7,360 21,741 232,443
2003 1,895 34425 85,735 78,161 8,935 21,380 230,531
2004 2,000 34,335 90,430 73,464 9,410 20,956 230,595

2005-2009 133,680 163,161 515,625 293,336 47,190 97,593 1,250,785
2010-2014 204,055 107,363 591,589 184,525 52,950 85,465 1,225,947

2015-2019 73,815 72,492 140,470 41,619 58,360 70,434 457,190
2020-2024 49,370 56,839 62,025 4,002 57,340 54,8908 284,474
2025-2029 60,795 42,433 - - 58,675 39,075 200,978
2030-2034 106,430 19,025 - - 24,700 26,331 176,486
2035-2039 6,465 363 - - 75,350 13,704 95,882
Total $643,600 $615,232 $1,726,059 $889,597 $417415 $484,911 $4,776,814

1)} Principal and interest to be paid on October 1, 2000, only, excludes interest paid on April 1, 2000 of this bond year.
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Long-Term Debt: (continued)

The estimated fair value of the outstanding fixed rate and variable rate JEA
Long-Term Debt (excluding commercial paper notes) at September 30, 2000
was approximately $3,052,948,000. The estimated fair value at September 30,
2000 for the fixed rate portion of the JEA Revenue Bonds was determined
through a nationally recognized third-party financial information service. The
estimated fair value at September 30, 2000 for the $240,000,000 of JEA
Variable Rate Electric System Subordinated Revenue Bonds and $50,250,000
of JEA Variable Rate Water and Sewer System Revenue Bonds were
determined to be the par amount outstanding at September 30, 2000.

JEA, at its option, may redeem specific outstanding JEA Revenue Bonds prior
to maturity, as discussed in the Official Statements covering their issue. A
summary of the redemption provisions is as follows:

Electric System SIRPP Water and Sewer
Earliest year for rédemption 2000 2000 2002
Redemption price ranges 101%-100%  101.5%-100%  101% - 100%

Electric System and Bulk Power Supply System

During fiscal year 1999, JEA established irrevocable escrows to defease
$65,145,000 in par amount of Electric System Bonds and to defease the
remaining $87,230,000 outstanding par amount of Bulk Power Supply System
Bonds. The defeasance escrow transactions are summarized in the following
table (in thousands):

Accounting Gain
Par Amount of  (Loss) on Debt

Date Issue Extinguishments Extinguishments
December 10, 1998  Bulk Power Supply, $ 22,505 s -
Series 1993A
January 13, 1999 Bulk Power Supply, 20,035 -
Series 1993A
May 25, 1999 Bulk Power Supply, 20,000 -
Series 1993A
September 2, 1999  Electric System, 65,145 -
Series 1993A and 1993B
September 23, 1999 Bulk Power Supply, 24,690 (33)

Series 1993A and 1991 A

$ 152,375 ($ 33)

During fiscal year 2000, JEA issued Electric System debt as summarized in the
following table (in thousands):
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Par Par Accounting
Priority Amount  Amount Losson
Debt Issued Purpose OfLien Month Issued  Issued Refunded Refunding

Series Three 2000A New Money/ Refunding Senior February 2000 $137,305 § 54,849 § 91
Series Three 2000B Refunding Senior May 2000 78,965 78,246 149
Series Three 2000C New Money Senior September 2000 56,930 - -
2000 Series A, B, C New Money Junior  January 2000 240,000 - -
2000 Series D Refunding Junior June 2000 69,285 68,587 118
2000 Series E New Money Junior September 2000 31,105 - -
Series E Commercial Paper New Money Junior  October 1999 40,000 - -

$656,590 $201,682 § 3

The payment of principal and interest on the 2000 Series A, B, and C, 2000
Series D, and 2000 Series E bonds is subordinate in all respects to the payment
of principal and interest on the Series Two and Three Electric System Revenue
Bonds from the Net Revenues of the Electric System.

The 2000 Series A, B, and C Subordinated Bonds are variable rate obligations
and are subject to mandatory and optional redemption prior to their scheduled
maturity on October 1, 2010 and to optional and mandatory tender for purchase
as set forth in the Official Statement relating to their issuance. Initially, the
Series 2000 Series A, B, and C Subordinated Bonds were issued in the daily
mode, and bear interest at a daily rate, which will be determined on each
business day. Interest is payable on the first business day of each month.
Liquidity support in connection with tenders for purchase of the 2000 Series A,
B, and C Subordinated Bonds are provided by separate liquidity providers with
respect to each separate Series pursuant to a standby bond purchase agreement
(“the liquidity facility”). The liquidity facility relating to the 2000 Series A
Bonds has a stated termination date of January 18, 2003; the liquidity facility
relating to the 2000 Series B Bonds has a stated termination date of January 16,
2001; and the liquidity facility relating to the 2000 Series C Bonds has a stated
termination date of January 17, 2001. With respect to each separate liquidity
facility, the JEA can and expects to request extensions of the termination dates.
The purchase price of the 2000 Series A, B, and C Subordinated Bonds
tendered or deemed tendered for purchase is payable solely from the proceeds
of the remarketing thereof and moneys drawn under the applicable liquidity
facility and are not payable from any funds of JEA.

SJRPP

In July 1995, JEA issued $141,755,000 of SJRPP Special Obligation Bonds, Fifth
Crossover Series (Fifth Crossover Series). The proceeds from the Fifth
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Crossover Series were held in a special escrow fund until October 1, 1999, the
“crossover date”. A portion of the invested proceeds and income of the special
escrow fund was used to pay the interest on the Fifth Crossover Series until the
crossover date. On the crossover date, the balance of the funds on deposit in
the special escrow fund was used to redeem $138,450,000 of Issue Two, Series
Five Bonds. Also, on the crossover date, the SJRPP Special Obligation Bonds,
Fifth Crossover Series were exchanged for the SJRPP Issue Two, Series
Twelve Bonds. JEA realized and deferred an accounting loss of $2,802,258 in
October 1999 on the redemption. However, a net economic gain of $9,963,165
was realized as a result of the transaction. After the crossover date, the SJRPP
Issue Two, Series Twelve Refunding Bonds that were exchanged for the Fifth
Crossover Series bear the same interest rates, have the same maturity dates, and
are subject to optional and mandatory redemption at the same times, in the
same amounts, and at the same redemption prices as the Fifth Crossover Series.

Water and Sewer System

JEA issued $110,000,000 of 1999 Series A Water and Sewer System Revenue
Bonds on June 9, 1999 and $78,890,000 of 2000 Series A Water and Sewer
System Revenue Bonds on February 3, 2000 to fund various additions and
improvements to the Water and Sewer System.

In February 2000, JEA also issued $50,250,000 of Variable Rate Water and
Sewer System Bonds 2000 Series B to fund projects of the Water and Sewer
System. The 2000 Series B Bonds are subject to mandatory and optional
redemption prior to their scheduled maturity on October 1, 2034 and to optional
and mandatory tender for purchase as set forth in the Official Statement
relating to their issuance. The 2000 Series B Bonds bear interest at variable
rates. Imitially, the 2000 Series B Bonds were issued in the weekly mode, and
bear interest at a weekly rate, which is determined on each Tuesday. Interest
on the 2000 Series B Bonds is payable on the first Wednesday of each month.
Liquidity support in connection with tenders for purchase of the 2000 Series B
Bonds is provided pursuant to a standby bond purchase agreement (“the
liquidity facility”). The liquidity facility relating to the 2000 Series B Bonds
has a stated termination date of February 1, 2001. With respect to the liquidity
facility, the JEA can and expects to request an extension of the termination
date. The purchase price of the 2000 Series B Bonds tendered or deemed
tendered for purchase is payable solely from the proceeds of the remarketing
thereof and moneys drawn under the liquidity facility and not payable from any
funds of JEA.
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Long-Term Debt: (continued)
Commercial Paper

During fiscal year 2000, JEA retired $20,751,000 of Series B and C
Commercial Paper Notes. Also, during fiscal year 2000, JEA refunded
$101,682,000 and $100,000,000 of Series A and Series E Commercial Paper
Notes, respectively, through an economic defeasance, from the proceeds of its
Series Three 2000A, Series Three 2000B and 2000 Series D bonds.

The following table summarizes the Electric System Commercial Paper Notes
(Commercial Paper Notes) as of September 30, 2000 (in thousands):

Pringipal Final Maturity ' Average Interest
Amount Date Not to Interest Rate Rate For
Outstanding Exceed Notto Exceed  Fiscal Year 2000
Series B Notes $ 20,647 June7,2033 20% 5.986%
Series C Notes 122,650  June 7, 2033 15% 3.718%
$ 143,297

The Commercial Paper Notes, shown in the previous table, have been classified
as long-term debt obligations and are subordinate in all respects to the Electric
System Revenue Bonds. The estimated fair value of the Commercial Paper
Notes at September 30, 2000 was $143,297,000. The Commercial Paper Notes
were valued at par.

In order to manage more effectively its finances and to reduce the net cost of its
debt, JEA from time to time enters into interest rate cap agreements to limit the
interest rate risk associated with the Commercial Paper Notes. As of
September 30, 2000, JEA has interest rate caps with a total notional amount of
$60 million associated with the Commercial Paper Notes. JEA is exposed to a
potential nonpayment in the event of nonperformance by the counter-party to
its interest rate cap agreements. JEA believes that the risk of nonpayment in
the event of nonperformance by the counter-party under these agreements is not
significant and furthermore, JEA does not anticipate nonperformance by the

counter-party.

In order to provide liquidity support for each series of Commercial Paper
Notes, JEA has two separate revolving credit agreements with a commercial
bank for its two remaining commercial paper programs. If moneys are not
available to pay the principal of any maturing Commercial Paper Notes during
the term of the credit agreements, JEA is entitled to make a borrowing under
the applicable credit agreements, provided that certain conditions are satisfied,
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Long-Term Debt: (continued)

in an amount equal to the principal amount of the maturing Commercial Paper
Notes. As of September 30, 2000, the expiration dates for the credit
agreements are as follows:

Series B Notes September 26, 2001
Series C Notes May 14, 2001

JEA has and will continue to request extensions of the credit agreements
expiration dates as provided for in the agreements, so that a current credit
agreement is in place for each of the outstanding Commercial Paper Notes. If
JEA is unable to fund any Commercial Paper Note maturities, JEA can utilize
the credit agreements prior to their expiration dates to the extent alternate
sources of financing are not available. Upon the expiration of the term of any
of the credit agreements, if any of the Commercial Paper Notes secured thereby
are outstanding, JEA is required to make a borrowing under the credit
agreements to repay the principal of all outstanding Commercial Paper Notes
secured thereby. Any loans outstanding under the credit agreements on the
expiration date thereof may be converted to a term loan that is repayable, in
general, in twelve equal semi-annual installments. JEA has not made any
borrowings under the credit agreements and does not expect to do so in the
future.

In May 2000, JEA obtained an unsecured line of credit for $50 million which
expires May 3, 2003. As of September 30, 2000, there was no outstanding
balance.

Debt Management Strategy

JEA has entered into various interest rate swap agreements in connection with
its debt management strategy that expire over the next five years and which
have total notional amounts outstanding of $535 million for the Electric System
and $200 million for the Water and Sewer System at September 30, 2000. For
the fiscal year ending September 30, 2000, the weighted average rates of
interest were as follows:

Variable 3.989%
Fixed 4273%

Debt management strategy interest rate swap earnings and the related
adjustments to fair value are shown as additions or reductions to "Interest
expense" in the Combined Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in
Retained Earnings. As a result of these interest rate swap earnings and fair
value adjustments, JEA increased "Interest expense" for the Electric System by
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Long-Term Debt: (continued)

$1,466,435 and decreased "Interest expense” for the Water and Sewer System
by $137,573 in fiscal year 2000. The fair value of the interest rate swap
instruments are also included as an addition to "Long-term debt and other long-
term obligations" on the Combined Balance Sheet; however, the notional
amounts of the interest rate swaps arc not reflected in the financial statements.
Although the Electric System and the Water and Sewer System have no plans
or expectations to terminate the interest rate swaps prior to their maturity dates,
the aggregate fair value of the notional amount of the interest rate swaps as of
September 30, 2000 were $532,619,734 for the Electric System and
$200,009,160 for the Water and Sewer System. These amounts were calculated
using market rates as of September 28, 2000 and standard cash flow present
valuing techniques.

The Electric System and the Water and Sewer System are exposed to a
potential nonpayment in the event of nonperformance by the counterparty to its
interest rate swap agreements. JEA believes that the risk of nonpayment in the
event of nonperformance by the counterparty under the agreements is not
significant and furthermore, JEA does not anticipate nonperformance by the

counterparty.

City of Jacksonville

JEA is a component unit of the City and utilizes various services provided by
departments of the City, including revenue collections, insurance, legal and
motor pool. JEA is billed on a proportionate cost basis with other user
departments and agencies.

JEA provides electric, water and sewer service to the City and its agencies and
bills for such service using established rate schedules. The revenues for
services provided and expenses for services received by JEA for these related
party transactions with the City were as follows (in thousands):

Revenues Expenses
Fiscal year 2000 $13,702 12,555

Beginning in fiscal year 1999, the JEA Electric System is required to contribute
annually to the General Fund of the City an amount not to exceed 7.5 mills per
kilowatt hour delivered by JEA to retail users in JEA’s service area, and to
wholesale customers under firm contracts having an original term of more than
one year, other than sales of energy to Florida Power & Light Company from
JEA’s St. Johns River Power Park System. The contribution rate, beginning
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City of Jacksonville: (continued)

with fiscal year 1999, is the greater of 5.5 mills per kilowatt hour delivered or
the 1998 fiscal year contribution of $§52,039,278 plus an increase of $3 million
a year for the next five years. The fiscal year 1999 contribution amount was
also subject to a one-time increase of $336,540, which was offset by a
reduction of $336,540 in the fiscal year 2000 contribution amount. The
contribution rate for fiscal year 2000 was 5.5 mills per kilowatt hour delivered
and amounted to $60,898,145. A contribution of $62,589,668 has been
budgeted for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2001.

Beginning in fiscal year 1999, the JEA Water and Sewer System is required to
contribute annually to the General Fund of the City an amount not to exceed
2.63 mills per cubic foot of potable water and sewer service provided,
excluding reclaimed water service. The contribution amount for fiscal year
2000 was $10,536,135. These amounts are based on a contribution rate of 1.75
mills and such rate will be in effect for the next five years. A contribution of
$11,048,610 has been budgeted for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2001.

Although the calculation for the annual transfer of available revenue from JEA
to the City is based upon formulas that are applied specifically to each utility
system operated by JEA, JEA may, in its sole discretion, utilize any of its
available revenues regardless of source to satisfy its total annual obligation to
the City.

In addition to the contributions described above, JEA is also obligated to make
semi-annual payments with respect to a portion of the debt service for the
City’s Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1988A and 1995A through fiscal
year 2009. In March 1999, the City refunded the Series 1988 A Bonds with the
City’s Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1999A. In fiscal year 2000, JEA
paid to the City $2,406,144 in principal and $794,669 in interest. The total
amount due the City as of September 30, 2000 was $20,501,581 and is
reflected in "Deferred credits and other liabilities" in the Combined Balance
Sheet.

Joint Projects Agreement

The Joint Projects Agreement (Agreement) between JEA and the City, entered
into on November 23, 1998, authorized the design and/or construction of
certain JEA water, sewer, and electric utility upgrades in conjunction with
certain City projects for streets and drainage to accomplish one-time
construction within the public rights of way.
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City of Jacksonville: (continued)

Pursuant to this Agreement, JEA funded a $750,000 working fund to be kept by
the City, from which monthly payments are made for JEA’s portion of these
projects. The working fund is replenished the following month for payments
made on behalf of JEA. JEA is not required to fund its unexpended project
commitments other than the working fund amount unless the working fund
becomes inadequate, which would require immediate wire transfer of needed
funds. At September 30, 2000, JEA’s unfunded project commitment to the
City in excess of the working fund is approximately $1.5 million.

Coal Purchase and Purchased Power Commitments:

JEA has commitments to purchase a majority of the coal for STRPP and the
Bulk Power Supply System under long-term contracts expiring in 2002 and
2008, respectively. Subsequent to September 30, 2000, the long-term contract
expiring in 2002 was extended to 2005. JEA also has commitments for the
transportation of coal purchases under a long-term contract for SJRPP expiring
in 2005. Commitments for transportation of coal purchases for the Bulk Power
Supply System are effective through 2002 and subject to renewal in 2003 for
the coal purchases through 2008. Contract terms specify minimum annual
purchase commitments at certain prices subject to adjustments for price level
changes according to the contract.

JEA also has contracts with certain operating subsidiaries of Southern
Company (such operating subsidiaries are referred to herein as “Southern™) for
the purchase of 200 MW of coal-fired capacity and energy through May 2010.
These capacity obligations of Southern are firm, subject to the availability of
the units involved (Miller Units 1-4 and Scherer Unit 3). Upon three years
notice to Southern, JEA may elect to reduce its capacity obligations by as much
as 150 MW,

Under these contracts with Southern, JEA is committed to purchase for the
Electric System certain energy output associated with the purchased generating
capacity entitlement. The total cost to be incurred by JEA depends upon future
costs Incurred by Southern in connection with its ownership and operation of
coal-fired generating facilities to which the agreements relate and upon the
amount of energy actually purchased by JEA. A portion of such future costs is
related to the electric generating capacity entitlement and is payable by JEA,
subject to certain contingencies, whether or not any energy is actually produced
by such units or purchased by JEA.
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Coal Purchase and Purchased Power Commitments: (continued)

The maximum aggregate amount of future payments, including the projected
effects of inflation for coal purchase commitments of SJRPP (at JEA’s 80%
ownership interest) and the Bulk Power Supply System and future estimated
fixed charges for electric generating capacity entitlement and transmission,
including the projected effects of inflation for JEA, appear in the following
table (in thousands). The electric generating capacity and transmission charges
do not reflect JEA’s option to reduce its capacity obligations with three vears
notice.

Electric
Generating
Coal Capacity/

Calendar Year Purchases  Transportation Energy Transmission
2001 $85,526 $39,088 $ 19,129 $ 4,330
2002 72,669 34,730 18,888 4,680
2003 66,121 19,699 19,128 4,992
2004 60,400 15,375 19,092 5,232
2005 61,745 15,449 19,056 5,304

2006 - 2010 3,781 1,815 82,523 25217

General Employees Pension Plan:
JEA Plan Description and Contributions

Substantially all of the employees of the Electric System and Water and Sewer
System participate in and contribute to the City of Jacksonville General
Employees Pension Plan (Plan), as amended. The Plan is a cost-sharing,
multiple-employer contributory defined benefit pension plan.

All full-time employees who successfully complete a physical examination and
meet the medical requirements for membership are eligible to participate in the
Plan. The Plan, based on laws outlined in the City of Jacksonville Ordinance
Code and applicable Florida Statutes, provides for retirement, survivor, death
and disability benefits.

Plan members are required to contribute 8% of their current-year annual
covered salary. JEA’s required contribution rate for fiscal year 2000 was
5.62% of annual covered payroll. The State of Florida requires Plan
contributions be made based upon an actuarial valuation and any contribution
shortfalls are the responsibility of the City to fund. JEA’s contributions (in
millions) to the Plan for the years ending September 30, 2000, 1999 and 1998
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General Employees Pension Plan: (continued)

were $4.5, $6.8, and $8.5, respectively, equal to the required contributions for
each year.

St. Johns River Power Park Plan Description

The JEA St. Johns River Power Park System Employees’ Retirement Plan
(Plan) is a single employer contributory defined benefit plan covering
employees of the JEA St. Johns River Power Park System (SJRPP).

All participants who have met the requirements for number of years of vesting
service and age are entitled to monthly Plan benefits as provided for retirement,
survivor, death and disability. SJRPP issues a publicly available financial
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information. The latest report (1998) may be obtained by writing to JEA,
Employee Services, Tower 6, 21 West Church Street, Jacksonville, Florida
32202-3139 or by calling (904) 665-6257.

Plan members are required to contribute 2% of their current-year annual
covered salary. JEA SJRPP’s required contribution rate for fiscal year 2000
was 8% of annual covered payroll. The Plan’s funding policy provides for at
least quarterly employer contributions at actuarially determined rates that,
expressed as percentages of annual covered payroll, are sufficient to
accumulate assets to pay benefits when due. JEA SJRPP contributions (in
millions) to the Plan for the years ending September 30, 2000, 1999, and 1998
were $1.9, §1.4, and $1.1, respectively, equal to the required contributions for
each year.

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities:
(a) Commitments

JEA has ongoing capital improvement programs for the Electric System
and the Water and Sewer System. The capital programs consist of: (2)
the Electric System capital requirements for additional generating
facilities, as well as improvements to existing generating facilities, that
are determined to be necessary as a result of JEA’s annual resource
planning process, (b) the Electric System’s remaining capital
requirements for transmission and distribution facilities and other capital
items, and (c) the Water and Sewer System capital requirements
necessary to accommodate system growth.,
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MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
A. JEA (continued)
(9 Commitments and Contingent Liabilities: (continued)

(a)

Commitments (continued)

JEA’s projected total capital expenditures for fiscal year 2001 through
fiscal year 2005 are as follows (in thousands):

Electric System - Generation, Transmission, Distribution, and Other § 1,127,248
Water and Sewer System 667,020

The City has authorized a capital improvement program, referred to as
the River City Renaissance Program (“RCR Program”), for the
acquisition, construction and improvement of various civic facilities. JEA
has assisted the City in structuring a financing plan, which currently
consists of City-issued commercial paper notes and long-term debt. The
City-issued commercial paper notes are expected to be converted to long-
term debt at some date in the future. The City and JEA have agreed that
JEA’s contribution to the City’s General Fund would be adjusted to offset
any increase (or a portion of any decrease) from $17,403,000 in the
annual debt service after October 1, 2000, on the debt issued by the City
to finance the RCR Program. This program was designed to provide the
City with funds sufficient to pay approximately $242.210,000 of project
costs. Any increase in the JEA contribution would not be effective until
after October 1, 2000. Current projections indicate that the revenue
streams will be sufficient to pay debt service on the outstanding bonds.
For fiscal year 2000, the average commercial paper interest rate under
this program was 3.907% and $60 million of commercial paper notes
were outstanding during this period. The average interest rate for the
$151.4 million of long-term debt outstanding as of September 30, 2000
was 5.33% with a final maturity on this fixed rate debt on October 1,
2018.

Beginning in fiscal year 1996, JEA entered into various interest rate swap
transactions on behalf of the Electric System to manage its interest rate
risk under the River City Renaissance Program. The total notional
amount of the various interest rate swap agreements outstanding at
September 30, 2000, was $95 million. Under these agreements, JEA pays
a variable rate of interest, based on various indices, and receives a fixed
rate of interest on outstanding swap agreements expiring over the next
five years. For the fiscal year ending September 30, 2000, the weighted
average rates of interest were as follows:

-125-



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

20.

MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
A. JEA (continued)
Commitments and Contingent Liabilities: (continued)

&)

(a)

Commitments (continued)

Weighted- Average Interest Rate

Variable 3.989%
Fixed 4.853%

All earnings on the interest rate swaps are paid to the City of Jacksonville
to supplement the cash flows available for debt service. The notional
amount of the various interest ratc swaps is not reflected on the
Combined Balance Sheets; however, the fair value of the interest rate
swaps are included in "Investments" on the Combined Balance Sheet.
Although JEA has no plans or expectations to terminate the interest rate
swaps prior to their maturity dates, as of September 30, 2000, the
aggregate fair value of the notional amount of the interest rate swaps was
$95,599,387. This amount was calculated using market rates as of
September 28, 2000, and standard cash flow present valuing techniques.
JEA is exposed to a potential nonpayment in the event of nonperformance
by the counterparty to its interest rate swap agreements. The risk of
nonpayment to JEA in the event of nonperformance by the counterparty
under these agreements is not significant. JEA does not anticipate
nonperformance by the counterparty.

In November 1996, the City issued a fixed rate bond issue to fund various
marine facilities for the Jacksonville Port Authority. JEA, through a
financing agreement, has committed to guaranteeing the growth of certain
revenue streams dedicated to paying the debt service for this bond issue.
The principal amount of the bonds outstanding is $51,775,000 at
September 30, 2000, with a final maturity of October 1, 2009. Coupon
rates for the bonds range from 4.60% to 5.70%. The City and JEA have
agreed that JEA’s contribution to the City’s General Fund would be
adjusted to offset any shortfall in the dedicated revenue streams to pay
the actual debt service. Current projections indicate that the revenue
streams will be sufficient to pay the debt service on the outstanding
bonds.

During fiscal year 1997, JEA entered into an interest rate swap agreement
on behalf of the Electric System to manage its interest rate risk under the
City/Jacksonville Port Authority Financing Agreement. The total notional
amount of the interest rate swap agreement outstanding at September 30,
2000 was $15 million. Under this agreement, JEA pays a variable rate of
interest, based on an index, and receives a fixed rate of interest on the
outstanding swap agreement, which will expire within the next five years.
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A. JEA (continued)
(9) Commitments and Contingent Liabilities: (continued)

(2)

(b)

()

Commitments (continued)

For the fiscal year ending September 30, 2000, the weighted average rates
of interest were as follows:

Weighted-Average Interest Rate

Variable 3.989%
Fixed 4.562%

All earnings on the interest rate swap are currently held by JEA for the
benefit of the Jacksonville Port Authority. The notional amount of the
interest rate swap is not reflected on the Combined Balance Sheet;
however, the fair value of the interest rate swaps is included in
"Investments" on the Combined Balance Sheet. Although JEA has no
plans or expectations to terminate the interest rate swap prior to maturity,
as of September 30, 2000, the aggregate fair value of the notional amount
of the interest rate swap was $15,052,647. This amount was calculated
using market rates as of September 28, 2000 and standard cash flow
present valuing techniques. JEA is exposed to a potential nonpayment in
the event of nonperformance by the counterparty to the interest rate swap
agreement.  The risk of nonpayment to JEA in the event of
nonperformance by the counterparty under the agreement is not
significant. JEA does not anticipate nonperformance by the counterparty.

General Litigation

JEA is party to various pending or threatened legal actions arising in
connection with its normal operations. Although the outcome of these
actions is not presently determinable, it is management’s opinion that the
resolution of these matters will have no material adverse effect on JEA’s
financial position or results of operations.

JEA is insured for worker’s compensation and general liability through
an internal service fund of the City of Jacksonville.

Grants and Contracts

JEA participates in various federally assisted grant programs that are
subject to review and audit by the grantor agencies. Entitlements to these
resources are generally conditional upon compliance with the terms and
conditions of grant agreements and applicable federal regulations,
including the expenditure of resources for allowable purposes. Any
disallowance resulting from a federal audit may become a liability of
JEA.
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A. JEA (continued)
(9 Commitments and Contingent Liabilities: (continued)

(@)

Environmental Matters

JEA’s generating stations are subject to regulation of their thermal and
wastewater discharges, hazardous wastes, and air emissions by the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), the Florida Department of
Environmental Protection (FDEP), and the Jacksonville Regulatory and
Environmental Services Department.

JEA has entered into two consent orders with the EPA related to various
solid waste management units and areas of concern at J. Dillon Kennedy
Generation Station and Northside Generation Station. These orders
require JEA to do studies and prepare demonstrations without presently
requiring remedial work. In connection with one area of concermn at
Kennedy Generation Station, JEA is in litigation with former owners and
operators of the site and negotiating with their insurance carriers to
recoup anticipated clean-up costs. It is estimated that the remedial cost
could be between $7 and $13 million, although additional costs are
possible.

Under Florida Department of Environmental Protection supervision, JEA
has investigated groundwater contamination in the vicinity of the San
Souci Substation in Jacksonville. The contaminants are solvents that may
be associated with substation operations. JEA proposed to monitor the
groundwater conditions to determine if the contaminants are naturally

_ attenuating. If FDEP approves, it will take several years and cost

approximately $500,000 to install monitoring wells and confirm natural
attenuation.

An accrued liability of $8.0 million is reflected in the Combined Balance
Sheet under "Deferred credits and other liabilities” applicable to the
corrective action plans for property acquired by JEA such as the one
adjacent to the J. Dillon Kennedy Generation site. This accrued liability
is based on facts known at the date reported. While the final outcome of
any of the proceedings referred to above cannot be predicted with
certainty, JEA does not believe that its potential liabilities for such
proceedings, either individually or in the aggregate, will have a material
adverse effect upon its financial position and results of operations;
however, changes in EPA standards, improvements in cleanup
technology and discovery of additional information concerning these sites
and other sites could affect the estimated costs in the future.

-128 -



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

20.

MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
A. JEA (continued)

(10)

(11)

Fuel Management Program:

The fuel management program is intended to help manage the risk of changes
in the market prices of oil and natural gas. During fiscal year 2000, JEA
entered into various fuel management contracts. It is possible that the market
price before or at the specified time to purchase fuel oil may be lower than the
price at which JEA is committed to buy. This would reduce the value of the
contract. JEA is also exposed to the failure of the counterparty to fulfill the
contract. JEA believes the risk of nonperformance by the counterparty under
these contracts is not significant. JEA does not anticipate nonperformance by
the counterparty.

At September 30, 2000, the fuel management program had 17 open oil
contracts with a fair value of $323,000 and no open natural gas contracts. It is
expected that the dollar value of such contracts in effect under the program wiil
not exceed $90 million.

For fiscal year 2000, expirations and closings of fuel management contracts
resulted in a $4,896,175 decrease in “Operating Expenses — Fuel.” The fair
value adjustment resulted in a $4,446,680 increase in “Operating Expenses —
Fuel” for fiscal year 2000. At September 30, 2000, the fuel management
program had margin deposits of $924,398, which are reflected as “Prepaid
expenses and other assets.”

Investment in The Energy Authority:

During fiscal year 2000, the four members of the power marketing joint
venture, The Energy Authority (TEA), agreed to accept two new members.
JEA’s ownership interest decreased from 25% to 21.43%. Additionally, JEA

- received a $434,000 prorata share of the membership fees, which are recorded

as deferred revenue and are being amortized over a 24-month period. In
accordance with a contractual agreement between JEA and its joint venture
members, JEA has advanced funds to TEA for the purpose of negotiating
power marketing transactions. As a result of the change in membership during
fiscal year 2000, JEA received partial repayment of the advance to TEA. The
$1.3 million remaining advance is reflected in “Prepaid expenses and other
assets” on the Combined Balance Sheet. JEA's equity in TEA’s net income was
$11.3 million in fiscal year 2000. The following is a summary of the unaudited
financial information of TEA for the 9 months ending September 30, 2000 (in
thousands):
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MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
A. JEA (continued)

(11)

Investment in The Energy Authority: (continued)

Condensed statement of operations:

Operating revenues $ 265,105
Operating expenses 189,827
Operating income T 75278
Net income $ 75,917
Condensed balance sheet:

Current assets $ 86,943
Noncurrent assets 22,377

Total assets “$109,320
Current liabilities "~ $75,906
Noncurrent liabilities 20,510
Equity 12,904

Total equity and liabilities ~$109,320

(12)

TEA issues separate audited financial statements on a calendar year basis.
Pursuant to the Electric Advance Agreement with TEA, JEA’s Board has
approved the use of $15,000,000 to support TEA’s trading activities in the form
of corporate guarantees, letters of credit and/or cash advances as determined by
management.

Segment Information

JEA’s electric segment consists of an electric utility engaged in generation,
purchase, transmission, distribution and sale of electricity primarily in
Northeast Florida. JEA’s water and sewer segment consists of water collection,
distribution, and wastewater treatment in Northeast Florida.  Segment
information for JEA’s electric segment and water and sewer segment activities
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2000 was as follows (in thousands):

Electric Water and Sewer

Operating revenue § 794,312 $ 139,242
Depreciation 106,073 31,584
Operating income 154,334 40,589
Net income 42208 36,226
Current capital contributions - 13,262
Additions to plant 429916 154,922
Total assets 3,868,897 1,264,622
Net working capital 161,643 55,462
Long-term liabilities 2,642 847 473,072
Total equity 745,271 737,857
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MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)

B. Jacksonville Port Authority

M

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

(2)

(b)

Reporting Entity

The Jacksonville Port Authority (the Authority) was created in 1963 by
Chapter 63-1447 of the Laws of Florida, to own and operate marine and
aviation facilities in Duval County, Florida. The Authority is governed by
an independent body (the Board) consisting of seven members, four of
whom are appointed by the Governor of Florida and confirmed by the
State Senate, and three of whom are appointed by the Mayor and
confirmed by the City Council of the City of Jacksonville, Florida (the
City or Council).

The Authority is considered a compenent unit of the City under
Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 14, The
Financial Reporting Entity. The Authority’s financial statements include
all funds and departments, which the Authority controls or which are
dependent on the Authority. No other agencies or organizations have
been included in the Authority’s financial statements.

Basis of Accounting

The Authority uses two enterprise funds, Aviation and Marine, to report
its financial position, results of operations and cash flows. These funds
are separately accounted for on a cost of services or capital maintenance
measurement focus. The accrual basis of accounting is used for reporting
purposes. Revenue is recognized when earned and expenses are
recognized as incurred.

The financial statements of the Authority have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as
applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The
Authority has elected to apply all applicable GASB pronouncements as
well as Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements
and Accounting Principles Board Opinions, issued on or before
November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or
contradict GASB pronouncements pursuant to GASB Statement No. 20,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprictary Funds and Other
Governmental Entities that use Proprietary Fund Accounting.
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B. Jacksonville Port Authority (continued}
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)

(1)

(c)

(d)

Budgeting Procedures

The Jacksonville Port Authority’s charter and related amendments,
Council resolutions and/or Board policies have established the following
budgetary procedures for certain accounts maintained within its
enterprise funds. These include:

1. Prior to July 1 of each year, the Authority shall prepare and submit
its budget to the City Council for the ensuing fiscal year.

ii. The Council may increase or decrease the appropriation requested
by the Authority on a total basis or a line-by-line basis, subject to
the following limitations:

The appropriation from the Council for construction,
reconstruction, enlargement, expansion, improvement or
development of any marine project or projects authorized to
be undertaken by the Authority, shall not be reduced below
$800,000 (see Note 20.B.(10)).

Once adopted, the total budget may only be increased through
action of the Council.

Operating budget item transfers may be made with the
approval of the President and CEO or his designee. Line-to-
line capital budget transfers may be made with the approval
of the President and CEO or his designee if it is cumulatively
less than or equal to $100,000 or with the approval of the
Board if over $100,000.

All appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year and must be re-
appropriated except for certain capital and maintenance related projects
that have been formally encumbered.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in operating accounts and cash
invested in the following highly liguid instruments: money market funds,
cash investment pools payable on demand or overnight repurchase
agreements. These investments have a maturity of three months or less
when purchased.
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MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
B. Jacksonville Port Authority (continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)

1)

(e)

()

(®

()

Investments

All investments are stated at fair value, in accordance with GASB No. 31.
Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Property and equipment, including assets acquired by issuance of
capitalized lease obligations, are depreciated on the straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful lives of
property and equipment are as follows:

Estimated Service Life (Years)

Asset Class Aviation Marine
Buildings 20-50 20-30
Other improvements 10-50 10-50
Equipment : 3-25 3-25

Depreciation applicable to assets acquired or constructed by use of
monies received as contributed capital is included in depreciation expense
but charged to contributed capital rather than retained earnings.

When property and equipment are disposed of, the related cost and
accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts with gains or
losses on disposition being reflected in current operations.

Dredging Related Costs

Dredged soil placement rights were acquired pursuant to an agreement
with the Florida Internal Improvement Trust Fund and are being
amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of
the rights acquired, which is 25 years.

The cost of periodic maintenance dredging of berthing areas adjacent to
the Authority’s wharves and of certain shipping channels not maintained
by the federal government is expensed as incurred.

Bond Issuance Costs
The costs incurred in connection with the issuance of the various bonds

outstanding are being amortized using the straight-line method over the
life of the related bonds.
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)

2)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)
(i) Contributed Capital/Grants Receivable

Contributed capital results from grants from the United States
Government, the State of Florida and the City for funding of various
capital projects. Such grants are recognized as a receivable and as
contributed capital as related project costs are incurred (see Note
20.B.(10)).

(3) Allocation of Administrative Services

The cost of general administrative services, including accounting and
finance, purchasing, personnel, planning, public relations, data
processing, risk management and the chief executive officer’s office, are
allocated to the marine and aviation enterprise funds at 55% and 45%,
respectively, based on internal studies which are periodically reviewed.

Cash and Investments:

The Governing Body has authorized the Authority to invest in obligations of
the U.S. Government and certain of its agencies, repurchase agreements,
investment grade commercial paper, money market funds, corporate bonds,
time deposits, bankers' acceptances, state and/or local debt, and the Florida
State Board of Administration Investment Pool. Restricted bond proceeds are
invested in accordance with the bond indenture agreements.

Cash, consisting of bank balances on deposit, is entirely insured or
collateralized with securities held by the Authority’s agent in the Authority’s
name. Securities are collateralized by the full faith and credit of the U.S.
Government and/or the guarantee of U.S. Govemment agencies. Repurchase
agreements are collateralized by U.S. Treasury or U.S. agency securities valued
at 102% of the value of invested funds.

The Authority’s investments are categorized to indicate the level of credit risk
assumed by the Authority. Category (1) includes investments that are insured
or registered or for which the securities are held by the Authority or its agent in
the Authority’s name; Category (2) includes uninsured or unregistered
investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty’s trust
department or agent, and in the Authority’s name; Category (3) includes
uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the
counterparty or by its trust department or agent, but not in the Authority’s
name. All of the Authority’s investments were included in category 1 for the
year ended September 30, 2000.
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B. Jacksonville Port Authority (continued)

@)

3)

Cash and Investments: (continued)

Investments are presented at September 30, 2000, (in thousands):

Fair Value Fair Value Change in

Security Type Cost at 9/30/99 Purchases Sales Subtotal at 9/30/00 Fair Value
U.S. Government
and their agencies’
securities $59.883 $78,445 § 6,881 ($23287) $62,039 § 59,212 ($2,827
Corporate bonds - 2,007 - (2,000) 7 - )]
Commercial paper - 18,966 48,998  (70,963)  (2,999) - 2,999
Investment
agreement note 35,322 - 41,951 (6,629) 35,322 35,322 -
Total 595205 $99.418 $97,830 (5102,879) $94,369  $ 94,534 $ 165

Restricted cash and cash equivalents and investments must be used for renewal
and replacement of existing facilities, construction and acquisition of property
and equipment, repayment of outstanding bonds, or operations and
maintenance. -

Interest earned on pooled cash accounts are allocated to the enterprise funds
based on relative daily balances in the pooled cash accounts.

Capitalization of Interest:

The Authority capitalizes interest expense on construction in progress under
FASB Statement No. 62. Capitalization of interest cost in situations involving
tax exempt borrowings and certain grants is applicable when “specified
qualifying assets” are constructed with proceeds that are externally restricted.
Interest costs are netted against the interest earned on the invested proceeds of
specific purpose tax-exempt borrowings. The capitalization period is from the
time of the borrowing until the completion of the project. The following
schedule summarizes capitalization of interest for the Authority for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2000, (in thousands).

Total interest expense incurred $ 10,009
Interest expense associated with construction _2,386._
Interest earned in construction accounts capitalized (1,819)
Net interest capitalized T 567
Net interest expense incurred W
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B. Jacksonville Port Authority (continued)

“@

®

Leasing Operations:

Minimum future rental income for each of the next five years and thereafter,
excluding contingent or volume variable amounts on noncancelable operating
leases at September 30, 2000, is as follows (in thousands):

Year Aviation Marine Total

2001 $14,208 $8,122 $22.330
2002 14,003 5,813 19,816
2003 13,646 5,396 15,042
2004 8,732 5,354 14,086
2005 6,922 2,916 9,838
Thereafter 24.461 9,032 33,493
Total $81,972 $36,633 $118,605

The Authority receives contingent rentals under certain leases if cargo
throughput or concessionaires’ receipts exceed minimum amounts. Contingent
rentals or volume variable amounts were received as follows (in thousands):

Aviation Marine Total
Total Contingent Rentals $10942 $732 $11.674

Pension Plans:
(a) Plan Description

All of the full-time employees of the Authority participate in the Florida
State Retirement System (the System), a cost sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit public retirement system. Certain “special risk”
employees who retire at or after age 55, with ten years of creditable
service and all other employees who retire at or after age 62, with ten
years of creditable service are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable
monthly for life, equal to the product of 1) average monthly
compensation in the highest five years of creditable service; 2) years of
creditable service; and 3) the appropriate benefit percentage. Benefits
fully vest on reaching ten years of creditable service. Vested employees
may retire after ten years of creditable service and receive reduced
retitement benefits. The System also provides death and disability
benefits. Benefits are established by Florida Statute. The system issues a
publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information. This report may be obtained by
writing to the Florida State Retirement System, Division of Policy,
Cedars Executive Center Building C, 2639 North Monroe Street,
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B. Jacksonville Port Authority (continued)

®)

(6)

(7)

Pension Plans: (continued)
(a) Plan Description (continued)

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1560, attention Research and Education, or by
calling (850) 414-6349.

(b) Funding Policy

The Authority is required by Florida Statute to contribute 20.29% of
special risk, 11.13% of senior management, 12.5% of deferred retirement
option and 9.15% of all other employee earnings. The contribution
requirement in the accompanying financial statements, was $1,855,000
and $2,206,000, for the years ended September 30, 2000 and 1999,
respectively. Covered employees are not required to make contributions
to the System.

Deferred Compensation Plan:

The Authority offers its employees a deferred compensation plan (the 457 Plan)
created in accordance with IRS Code Section 457. The Plan, which is available
to all full-time employees, permits employees to defer a portion of their salary
until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees
until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency.

All plan assets are held by trustees for the exclusive benefit of plan participants
and beneficiaries. Thus the assets and liabilities relating to the 457 Plan are not
reflected on the Authority’s balance sheet. The market value of the Plan’s
investments was $5,666,000 as of September 30, 2000.

During fiscal year 1999, the Authority began offering its employees a deferred
compensation plan (the 401(a) Plan), created in accordance with IRS code
Section 401(a). The Authority contributes a specified amount for each dollar
the employee defers to the 457 Plan. All 401(a) Plan assets are held by trustees
for the exclusive bencfit of plan participants and beneficiaries. The market
value of the 401(a) Plan’s investments was $182,000 as of September 30, 2000.

Risk Management:

The Authority participates in the City’s experience rated self-insurance plan
which provides for auto liability, comprehensive general liability, and workers’
compensation insurance, with excess coverage of $1,000,000 on an occurrence
basis for workers’ compensation claims over $1,000,000. Reserves related to
claims incurred by the Authority are accounted for in the financial statements
to the extent that these reserves are reflected in premiums charged to the
Authority. These premiums may be calculated on a retrospective or prospective
basis depending on the claims experience of the Authority and other
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B. Jacksonville Port Authoerity (continued)
(7) Risk Management: (continued)

participants in the City’s self-insurance programs. The Authority incurred
premium expense to the City of $666,000 for the year ended September 30,
2000. During 2000, the Authority received a retroactive rebate of
approximately $226,000 from the City’s self-insurance plan, which offsets the
Authority’s premium expense.

As a part of the Authority’s risk management program, certain commercial
insurance policies are purchased to cover designated exposures and potential
loss situations.

(8) Long-Term Debt and Capital Leases:

Long-term debt and capital leases at September 30, 2000 consisted of the
following (in thousands):

Airport Revenue Bonds:

_ Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2000, including serial bonds due in
varying amounts through 2024. Interest rates range from $ 47,460
4.50% to 6.125%.

Airport Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1998, including serial
bonds due in varying amounts through 2017, Interest rates range 62,375
from 4.00% to 5.00%.,

Airport Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1993, including serial bonds
due in varying amounts through 2009 and term bonds due October
2017, subject to annual sinking fund redemption. Interest rates
range from 4.60% to 5.65%.
Marine Revenue Bonds:
Marine Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1996, including serial bonds
due in varying amounts through 2019, subject to annual sinking 63,105
fund redemption. Interest rates ranging from 5.50% to 5.75%.
Marine Equipment Capital Lease Obligation:
Subordinated Equipment Lease-Purchase Agreement, Series 1999-A,

30,165

with semi-annual principal and interest payments through 2014 with 24,131
interest at an annual rate of 5.14%,
Marine Note Payable:
Subordinated Revenue Note, Series 1992, with quarterly principal and
interest payments of $188 through 2002 with interest at an 1,434

annual rate of 5.69%.
Note payable, with monthly principal and interest payments of $3 through

2002 with interest at an annual rate of 4.90%. 54
Total Long-Term Debt 228,754
Less: Current Portion (6,330)
Total, less current portion $222.424

- 138 -



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

20.

MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
B. Jacksonville Port Authority (continued)

@®)

Long-Term Debt and Capital Leases: (continued)

In February 2000, the Authority issued $47,460,000 principal amount of
Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2000. The proceeds from the bonds are being
used for the acquisition, construction and installation of capital improvements
at Jacksonville International Airport.

The Series 1993, 1998 and 2000 Airport Bonds are collateralized by a first lien
upon and pledge of the operating revenues derived from operation of the
Airport facilities. The Authority has agreed to take necessary actions to attain
and maintain operating revenues sufficient to achieve certain minimum
measures as to the ability of the Airport to service its outstanding indebtedness.

The Authority cash defeased $13,855,000 principal amount of Marine Revenue
Bonds, Series 1993 in September 1999. The Authority incurred a loss on
defeasance of $1,325,000. The Authority through the defeasance, reduced its
aggregate debt service payments by $2.847,000 over the next 4 years and will
obtain an economic gain (difference between the present value of debt service
of the refunded bonds and cash escrow) of $778,000.

The Series 1996 Marine Bonds are collateralized by a lien upon and pledge of
net revenues of the Marine Facilities and certain monies held in trust funds. The
Authority has agreed in its various bond related documents to establish and
maintain rates charged to Marine customers that will be sufficient to generate
certain levels of operating revenues and operating income in excess of its
annual debt service on the various outstanding Marine Bonds. The Series 1996
Marine Bonds also place restrictions on the Authority’s issuance of debt on a
parity with Marine Bonds currently outstanding.

In April 1999, the Authority entered into a fifieen year Equipment Lease-
Purchase Agreement Series 1999-A (the Capital Lease) in the principal amount
of $25,225,000. The proceeds from the Capital Lease are being used for the
acquisition, construction and installation of four container gantry cranes and
two rubber-tired cranes.

Revolving Line of Credit
In July 1999, the Authority entered into a $25,000,000 revolving line of credit
to provide interim financing for the acquisition, construction and installation of

certain capital improvements to the Marine Facilities. As of September 30,
2000, the Authority had not drawn against the line of credit.
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B. Jacksonville Port Authority (continued)
(8) Long-Term Debt and Capital Leases: (continued)

Debt Maturities

Required debt service for the outstanding revenue bonds and notes payable for
the next five years and thereafter to maturity are as follows (in thousands):

Years Ending Principal Interest Total ].:)ebt
September 30 Service
2001 5 5,116 $ 11,349 § 16,465
2002 6,038 10,618 16,636
2003 5,534 10,339 15,873
2004 5,775 10,073 15,848
2005 6,060 9,789 15,849
2006 to maturity 176,100 92,448 268,548

Total $ 204,623 § 144616 $ 349,239

The following is a schedule by years of future minimum lease payments under
capital lcases together with the present value of the minimum lease payments
as of September 30, 2000 (in thousands):

Years Ending September 30

2001 $ 2439
2002 2,439
2003 2,439
2004 2439
2005 2,439
Thereafter 21,948
Total minimum lease payments 34,143
Less: Amount representing interest (10,012)

Present value of minimum lease payments $24,131

Advance Refunding of Revenue Bonds

The Authority has defeased a revenue bond issue by placing funds in an
irrevocable trust restricted for payment of all principal and interest upon
maturity of the revenue bond. This transaction has been treated as an in-
substance defeasement and, accordingly, has been accounted for as though the
debt has been extinguished. The debt that has been defeased and the related
balances at September 30, 2000 are as follows (in thousands):
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®

Long-Term Debt and Capital Leases: (continued)

Investment
Balance with
Principal Balance Escrow Agent
Marine Revenue Bonds, Series 1993 $ 12,820 $ 13,824

Special Purpose Facility Revenue Bond

To provide for the construction of an air cargo shipping, storage and handling
facility at the airport, the Authority has issued one series of Special Purpose
Facility Revenue Bonds. These bonds are special limited obligations of the
Authority, payable solely from and secured by a pledge of rentals to be
received from a lease agreement between the Authority and an air cargo
company. The bonds do not constitute a debt or pledge of the faith and credit of
the Authority, the County, or the State, and accordingly have not been reported
in the accompanying financial statements.

At September 30, 2000, Special Purpose Facility Revenue Bonds outstanding
aggregated approximately $3.2 million.

Commitments and Contingencies:

At September 30, 2000, the Authority had commitments for purchases of
equipment and future construction work of approximately $28,623,000 for the
Marine Enterprise Fund and $43,004,000 for the Aviation Enterprise Fund. In
addition to its own funds, the Authority also has funding available from the
following sources for qualifying marine capital expenditures (in thousands):

City of Jacksonville £ 302
Florida Ports Financing Commission $30,311

On December 21, 1998, the Authority became aware that a piece of its real
property is contaminated and may be subject to undetermined cleanup efforts.
The Authority’s property was sampled by the Florida Department of
Environmental Protection in connection with testing at an adjacent site, not
owned by the Authority, but known to be contaminated. The Authority has
investigated the former uses of its property and is unable to identify any source
of contamination other than from the adjacent site not owned by the Authority.
The owner of the adjacent property and the United States Environmental
Protection Agency have entered into an Administrative Order of Consent
whereby the adjacent site will be further investigated and remediation
alternatives identified. The adjacent property owner has sampled soils and
groundwater from one well placed on the Authority's property; however, the
results are not yet available. Additional sampling may be conducted in the
future. The Authority believes that it is not a respensible party.
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B. Jacksonville Port Authority (continued)

(10) Contributed Capital and Retained Earnings:

A summary of the changes in contributed capital for the year ended September
30, 2000 is as follows (in thousands):

Aviation Marine Total

Balance at the beginning of the year $ 82,399 $191,979 $274,378
Contributions during the year:

City of Jacksonville - 10,778 10,778

State government 2,565 14,529 17,094

Federal government 77,075 78 77,153

Other contributions - -
Total contributions 79,640 25,385 105,025
Reductions during the year:

Depreciation of facilities provided by 4,888 4,032 8,920

government grants ’

Residual equity transfer to JEA - 36 36
Total reductions 4,888 4,068 8,956
Balance at the end of the year $157,151 $213,296 $370,447

City of Jacksonville Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds

In February 1993, the City issued $43,605,140 of Excise Tax Revenue Bonds,
Series 1993 (1993 Bonds) of which $38,880,000 of the total proceeds were
loaned to the Authority for marine port expansion. In October 1996, the City
issued $57,150,000 of Excise Tax Revenue Bonds (1996 Bonds), of which
$56,035,000 of the proceeds were contributed to the Authority for marine port
expansion. The City is responsible to the Bond Holders for payment of the debt
service on the 1993 and 1996 bonds.

The City has allocated to the Authority an amount equal to 50% of the increase
in the City’s telecommunication tax revenues over the base year and 50% of an
additional mill of revenue the City receives from the JEA (the Authority
Allocation).

The Authority is not required to pay the City any amount for debt service on
the 1993 Bonds. The City retains the Authority Allocation and the $800,000
annual appropriation (see Note 20.B.(1)) to the Authority which is used by the
City for debt service on the 1993 and 1996 Bonds. As the Authority expends
funds for marine port expansion, reimbursements from the City are accounted
for as contributed capital by the Authority.
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B. Jacksonville Port Authority (continued)
(10) Contributed Capital and Retained Earnings: (continued)

Florida Ports Financing Commission Revenue Bonds, Series 1996

On December 19, 1996, $222,320,000 Florida Ports Financing Commission
Revenue Bonds (State Transportation Trust Fund), Series 1996 (the “Series
1996 Bonds™) were issued to provide funds to finance the costs of acquiring
and constructing capital projects undertaken by 11 ports located in the State of
Florida (the “Ports™), including the Jacksonville Port Authority. The amount
allocated to the Authority was $32,680,000 plus earned interest which is
available for approved capital expenditures on a fifty-fifty matching basis. In
April, 2000, an additional $2,437,500 plus earned interest was allocated to the
Authority.

The Series 1996 Bonds do not create nor constitute an obligation or debt of the
Jacksonville Port Authority. The financing program of the Commission is in
substance a grant program, inasmuch as all debt service payments on the Series
1996 Bonds are payable solely from monies in the State Transportation Trust
Fund. As expenditures are incurred for the approved projects, the Authority
records a recejvable from the Commission for 50% of qualified amounts and
records the amount to be reimbursed as contributed capital. As of September
30, 2000, the Authority has drawn approximately $36,912,000 of eligible
expenditures.

Florida Ports Financing Commission Revenue Bonds, Series 1999

On October 14, 1999 the Florida Ports Financing Commission (the
Commission) issued $153,115,000 in Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 (the "Series
1999 Bonds"). The Series 1999 Bonds were issued to provide funds to finance
the costs of acquiring and constructing capital projects undertaken by 9 ports
located in the State of Florida (the Ports), including the Jacksonville Port
Authority. The amount allocated to the Jacksonville Port Authority was
$31,966,000 which is available for approved expenditures. Including earned
interest, the maximum amount approved for funding is $33,800,000.

The Authority has not recorded a lability for the Series 1999 Bonds since it
does not have any obligation except for moneys due it from the State
Transportation Trust Fund. As discussed above, all of such moneys have been
assigned to the Trustee to pay the debt. The Authority has no other obligation
for payment of the debt. As expenditures are incurred for the approved
projects, the Authority records a receivable from the Commission for 50% of
qualifying amounts (75% of certain qualifying amounts) and records the
amount % to be reimbursed as contributed capital. As of September 30, 2000,
the Authority has drawn approximately $3,875,000 of eligible expenditures.
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MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
B. Jacksonville Port Authority (continued)

(10)

(1)

(12)

(13)

Contributed Capital and Retained Earnings: (continued)

On October 1, 1999 the U.S. Department of the Navy conveyed certain aviation
assets of Cecil Field, a former U.S. Navy air base, to the Authority. The
property consisted of land, runways, taxiways, apron and flight line, building
and improvements with a total fair market value of $74,587,000. The
transaction was recorded with a credit to contributed capital of $74,587,000.

Segment Information:
The Authority consists of two enterprise funds, Aviation and Marine. Segment

information for each enterprise fund for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2000 is as follows (in thousands):

Aviation Marine
Operating revenue $ 37,758 § 26,502
Depreciation and amortization 11,414 12,417
Operating income 3,653 (3,419)
Net income (loss) 9,878 (7,954)
Current capital contributions 79,641 25,385
Additions to property and equipment 31,845 52,549
Total assets 420,894 346,251
Net working capital 35,780 14,279
Long-term liabilities, all payable from operating revenues 131,668 80,727
Total equity 268,025 255,867

Other Non-Operating Income, Net:

Other non-operating revenue (expense) is summarized as follows (in
thousands):

Passenger facility charges (restricted for qualified capital projects) $ 7,177

Net gain (Joss) on sale of assets (1,587)
Other 60
Total 35,650

Subsequent Events:

On October 30, 2000, a proposed local bill to implement the restructuring of
the existing Authority into separate Marine and Aviation Authorities was filed
with the Duval County State Legislative Delegation. The local bill proposes
that each of the two resulting governmental entities would be
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MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
B. Jacksonville Port Authority (continued)
(13) Subsequent Events: (continued)

governed by a seven-member board. As proposed, (i) three members of the
board of the governmental entity overseeing the Marine facilities would be
appointed by the governor of the State of Florida and four members would be
appointed by the mayor of the City of Jacksonville, and (ii) three members of
the board of the governmental entity overseeing the Aviation facilities would
be appointed by the mayor of the City of Jacksonville and four members would
be appointed by the governor of the State of Florida.

On January 9, 2001, the Jacksonville City Council passed a resolution
requesting the Duval County State Legislative Delegation to introduce and seek
the passage of this local bill. On January 18, 2001, the Duval County State
Legislative Delegation held a local bill hearing and voted to introduce and seek
the passage of this bill during the 2001 regular legislative session. If approved,
the restructuring would be scheduled to take effect on October 1, 2001,

In November 2000, the Authority issued $39,625,000 principal amount of
Seaport Revenue Bonds, Series 2000 including serial bonds due in varying
amounts through 2030. Interest rates range from 4.5% to 5.7%. The proceeds
from the bonds are being used for the acquisition, construction and installation
of capital improvements to the Authority's Marine Facilities.

C. Jacksonville Transportation Authority
(1) Reporting Entity:

The Jacksonville Transportation Authority (the Authority) is a public body
politic and corporate agency of the State of Florida under Chapter 349, as
amended, Florida Statutes. It is empowered to construct, improve, operate and
lease the Jacksonville Expressway System and improvements thereto, to fix and
collect rates, rentals and other charges for the services and facilities of such
system; and to secure its bonds by a pledge of such revenues and all or part of
Duval County gasoline tax and sales tax funds pursuant to a Lease-Purchase
Agreement between the Authority and the State of Florida Department of
Transportation (FDOT). FDOT maintains responsibility for the operation of the
Expressway System with the exception of certain contract maintenance
functions.

The Authority is also empowered to acquire, construct, operate and lease a
mass transit system; it may plan, coordinate and recommend methods and
facilities for the parking of vehicles and the movement of pedestrians and
vehicular traffic; it may issue evidences of indebtedness and secure
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C. Jacksonville Transportation Authority (continued)

1)

2)

Reporting Entity: (continued)

payment thereof by pledge of its revenues. These activities are not related to
expressway system activities or to the Authority’s obligations to holders of the
Jacksonville Transportation Authority Revenue Bonds.

The Authority has adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, for the purpose of
evaluating its financial statements. Based on the criteria in Statement No. 14,
the Authority has determined that there are no other units that meet the criteria
for inclusion in the Authority’s financial statements. However, the Authority
meets the criteria for inclusion in the State of Florida and the City of
Jacksonville as a component unit to be discretely disclosed in the financial
statements.

The Authority has adopted GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities that Use
Proprietary Fund Accounting. As provided by Statement No. 20, the Authority
has elected not to adopt any Financial Accounting Standards Board statements
issued after November 30, 1989 unless so directed by the GASB.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
(2) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation

The accounts of the Authority are organized and operated on the basis of
funds and account groups, each an independent fiscal and accounting entity.
The operations of each fund are accounted for by a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that comprise the assets, liabilities, fund equity, retained
earnings, revenues, expenditures and expenses, as appropriate. Authority
resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon
the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which
spending activities are controlled. Account groups are a reporting device to
account for certain assets and liabilities of the governmental funds not
recorded directly in those funds and are not involved with the measurement
of results of operations.

The Authority has the following fund types:

Governmental Fund Types. The focus of Governmental Fund Type
measurement 1 upon determination of financial position and changes in
financial position (sources, uses and balances of financial resources)
rather than upon net income. Governmental Fund Types use the flow of
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C. Jacksonville Transportation Authority (continued)
(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: {continued)
(a) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation
(continued)

current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual
basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis for accounting,
revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they are
“measurable and available™). “Measurable” means the amount of the
transaction can be determined and “available” means collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current
period.

Proprietary Fund Type. The focus of Proprietary Fund Type
measurement is the flow of economic resources and the accrual basis of
accounting is used. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. Proprietary
Funds of the Authority consist of the following fund type:

Enterprise Funds—These funds are used to account for Mass
Transportation operations (BUS—bus system and ASE—Automated
Skyway Express system) that are financed and operated in a manner similar
to private business or where the Authority’s board has decided that the
determination of revenues earned, costs incurred and/or net income is
necessary for management accountability.

(b) Cash and Equivalents

Cash and equivalents includes certain investments and cash on deposit. The
Authority considers all investments with an original maturity of three
months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. Such investments
include repurchase agreements, treasury bills and money market funds and
are reported at amortized cost, which approximates fair value.

(c) Investments

Investments are carried at fair value or amortized cost in accordance with
GASB Statement No. 31. Investments with a maturity date greater than one
year from the purchase date are reported at fair value as determined by
quoted market prices, and investments with a maturity date less than one
year from the purchase date are reported at amortized cost, which
approximates fair value.

(d) Inventory

Inventory consists of materials and supplies and is carried using the average
cost method.
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@)

(e) Fixed Assets and Infrastructure

™

Governmental Funds—Fixed assets and infrastructure are valued at
historical cost. The cost of expressway facilities (infrastructure) includes
right-of-way expenditures, construction costs and administrative and legal
expenditures made from Capital Projects Fund and General Fund monies.
The Authority does not record depreciation or capitalized interest on
governmental funds fixed assets and infrastructure.

Proprietary Fund—Proprietary fund fixed assets are valued at historical
cost. Depreciation commences when the assets are placed in service.
Property and equipment is depreciated by the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings 15 - 40 years
Vehicles 5 - 25 years
Other equipment 3 - 10 years

Because the rate structure of the Enterprise Funds (Mass Transportation
operations) is not sufficient to generate revenues to cover the acquisition,
replacement, and future expansion of property and equipment, the
Authority is compelled to seek contributions-in-aid for construction from
local, state and federal sources. As recommended in the Industry Audit
Guide for Audits of State and Local Govemmental Units prepared by the
State and Local Government Committee of the American institute of
Certified Public Accountants, depreciation applicable to assets acquired
through contributions-in-aid for construction is charged to contributions
rather than retained earnings.

Compensated Absences

Vested vacation, sick leave and related fringe benefits are accrued when
earned.

(g) Estimated Liability for Injury and Damage Claims

Periodic provisions for injury and damage claims are charged to operations
based on the estimated ultimate cost of settling claims, using past
experience adjusted for current trends, and other factors, if any, that would
modify past experience. Claims are charged to the estimated liability when
paid.
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C. Jacksonville Transportation Authority (continued)
(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)

(h) Subsidies and Grants

)

@

Subsidies and grants for operating assistance are recorded as nonoperating
revenues in the statement of revenues and expenses in the accounting
period in which they are earned and become measurable. Capital grants
from federal, state and local sources are recorded directly as contributions
to equity.

Grants received as reimbursements for specific purposes are recognized
when the expenditure is incurred.

Revenues and Expenditures

Sales taxes and investment earnings are recorded when earned (when they
are measurable and available). Passenger fares and miscellaneous revenues
are recorded as revenues when received in cash.

Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which the liability
1s incurred, if measurable, except expenditures for debt service and other
long-term obligations which are recognized when paid.

Operating Transfers

During the normal course of operations, numerous transactions occur
between funds. Transfers of net resources from a fund receiving revenue to
a fund in which the resources are to be expended are recorded as operating
transfers.

(k) Budget and Budgetary Accounting

M

The Authority prepares budgets for each of its governmental funds. The
budgets are approved by the City of Jacksonville. The Authority is
authorized to transfer appropriated funds from one of the purposes for
which funds are appropriated to another, if in the discretion of the
Authority, such transfer is necessary to carry out all of the purposes for
which funds are appropriated, subject to applicable law. Thus, the legal
level of budgetary control is at the fund level. All budgets are adopted in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and
appropriations lapse at year-end.

Fund Balance Reserves

Reservations of fund balance relate to amounts legally restricted as to their
use by debt agreements or other authority.
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(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)

{m)Fund Balance Designations

Designations of fund balance relate to amounts restricted as to their use at
the discretion of the Authority.

(3) Cash and Investments:

Cash and Equivalents—At September 30, 2000, all of the Authority’s cash
balances were insured by federal deposit insurance or collateralized pursuant to
Chapter 280, Florida Statutes. Cash of $16,000 was on hand. The Authority has
no compensating balance arrangements.

The Authority’s outstanding bond issues’ Trust Indentures provide that the
related Debt Service Funds will be deposited with the Florida State Board of
Administration.

Investments—The Authority’s investment practices are governed by Chapter
280, Florida Statutes and various legal covenants related to the outstanding
bond issues. In addition to investments listed below, the Authority also invested
in repurchase agreements during the year.

Cash and investments held at September 30, 2000 are categorized in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 3 in the following table to indicate the
level of credit risk assumed by the Authority. Category 1 credit risk
investments include investments that are insured or registered or for which the
securities are held by the Authority or its agent in the Authority’s name.
Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the
securities are held by the counterparty or by its trust department or agent in the
Authority’s name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments
for which the securities are held by the counterparty or by its trust department
or agent but not in the Authority’s name.

Certain investments cannot be categorized because they are not evidenced by

securities that exist in physical or book entry form, such as mutual funds. Cash
and investments held at September 30, 2000, are as follows (in thousands):
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C. Jacksonville Transportation Authority (continued)

(3) Cash and Investments: (continued)

Risk Category

Type

2

Recorded Fair
Amount Value

Investments Categorized:

U.S. Government obligations

- $28588 $28,588 % 28,837

b
Total $ -

- $28,588 28,583 28,837

Investments not categorized:
State treasury pooled investments
Cash and cash equivalents categorized:
U.S. government obligations
Cash and cash equivalents not categorized:
Cash in banks
Cash on hand

Total cash and equivalents and investments

117,163 117,163

31,471 31,755

16,161 16,161
16 16
$193,399  $193,932

The State Board of Administration controls and invests all of the $28,588,339
of U.S. Government obligations, at September 30, 2000.

Restricted cash and equivalents and investments with the State of Florida are
restricted for use for bond service and for construction expenditures described

in the applicable bond indentures.

(4) Fixed Assets:

(a) Changes in the General Fixed Assets Account Group

The following is a schedule of changes in the General Fixed Assets
Account Group for the year ended September 30, 2000 (in thousands):

Balance Balance
September 30, September 30,
1999 Additions  Disposals 2000
Land and improvements $ 13,501 $ 402 § - $ 13,903
Furniture and equipment 115 40 - 155
Vehicles 95 - - 95
Roads and bridges 215,644 - {93,465} 122,179
Construction in progress 55,073 31,958 (2,628) 84,403
Total $284,428 $32400 (5 96,093) $220,735
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Fixed Assets: (continued)

4)

(a)

(b)

Changes in the General Fixed Assets Account Group (continued)

As a result of the discharge of the 1963, 1977 and 1985 trust indentures
and related lease-purchase agreements between the Authority and FDOT,
title and ownership of the Jacksonville Expressway System will
eventually be transferred to the State of Florida. During the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2000, assets of approximately $94,850,000 were
transferred to FDOT.

At September 30, 2000, the General Fixed Assets Account Group
included assets of approximately $190,500,000 which will be transferred
to the City and/or State on various dates as determined by the City or
State, respectively.

Changes in Fixed Assets of the Enterprise Fund

The following is a schedule of changes in fixed assets of the Enterprise
Funds for the year ended September 30, 2000 (in thousands):

Balance Balance
September 30, Additions/ Disposals/ September 30,
1999 Provisions Deletions 2000

Land $ 13,131 $ - 5 - 13,131
Building and improvemenis 86,746 377 - 87,123
Vehicles 55,714 1,436 (1,512) 55,638
Other equipment 52,010 1,727 401 53,336
Construction in progress 17,717 10,915 (8) 28,624

TOTAL 225,318 14,455 (1,921) 237,352
Less: : :
Accumulated Depreciation {50,796) (10,596) 1,562 (59,830)

TOTAL, net of accumulated
Depreciation $174,522 & 3,859 (% 359) $178,022

(5) Interfund Balances:

The following is a schedule of interfund balances at September 30, 2000 (in

thousands):
Due To
Expressway  Mass Transit
System System Total

Due From

Expressway System 3 - $2.466 § 2,466
Mass Transit System 2,439 - 2,439
TOTAL $2,439 $ 2,466 $ 4,905
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C. Jacksonville Transportation Authority (continued)

(6) Revenue Bonds:

Changes in long-term debt are as follow (in thousands):

Beginning balance, September 30, 1999 $ 381,085
Additions -
Retired (10,550)

Ending balance, September 30, 2000 $370,535

Series 1989

Full Faith and Credit of the State of Florida, Jacksonville Transportation
Authority Senior Lien Bonds, Series 1989, were issued in the principal amount
of $172,575,000 and Full Faith and Credit of the State of Florida, Jacksonville
Transportation Authority Junior Lien Bonds, Series 1989, were issued in the
principal amount of $21,580,000. The Series 1989 Bonds were issued for the
purpose of paying a portion of the cost of refunding the Series 1963, 1977 and
1985 Bonds and to pay certain expenses related to the issuance and sale of the
Series 1989 Bonds. The Series 1989 Senior Lien Bonds are payable primarily
from the interlocal agreement payments derived from a discretionary sales
surtax of 0.5% levied by the City of Jacksonville, Florida and pledged county
gasoline tax funds and are additionally secured by the full faith and credit of
the State of Florida. The Series 1989 Junior Lien Bonds ascended to Senior
Lien status in August of 1990 after meeting the fiscal sufficiency test and
obtaining the necessary certifications from the State Board of Administration of
the State of Florida as further discussed in the trust indenture.

Optional Redemption—The Series 1989 Senior Lien Bonds maturing July 1,
1997 were not redeemable prior to their stated dates of maturity. The Series
1989 Senior Lien Bonds maturing on July 1, 1998 and therecafter are
redeemable prior to their stated dates of maturity, at the option of the State
Board of Administration of the State of Florida at the direction of the Authority
(1) in part, by lot within a maturity on July 1, 1997, or on any interest payment
date thereafter, or (2) as a whole on July 1, 1997, or at any time thereafter, at
the following redemption prices (other than the Series 1989 Senior Lien Bonds
maturing on July 1, 2015), expressed in percentages of the principal amount of
the Series 1989 Senior Lien Bonds, plus accrued interest to the redemption date
during the following periods.

Redemption Period

(Dates Inclusive) Redemption Price
July 1, 1997 to June 30, 1998 102.0%
July 1, 1998 to June 30, 1999 101.5%
July 1, 1999 to June 30, 2000 101.0%
July 1, 2000 to June 30, 2001 100.5%
July 1, 2001 and thereafter 100.0%
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MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
C. Jacksonville Transportation Authority (continued)
(6) Revenue Bonds: (continued)

The Series 1989 Senior Lien Bonds due July 1, 2015 are subject to optional
redemption on and after July 1, 1997 at a redemption price of par plus accrued
interest to the redemption date.

Mandatory Redemption—The Series 1989 Senior Lien Bonds maturing on
July 1, 2001, July 1, 2013 and July 1, 2015 are subject to mandatory
redemption, in part by lot, on July 1, at a redemption price equal to the
principal amount thereof, without premium, and accrued interest thereon
beginning 2006, 2009 and 2014, respectively.

Interest is payable semiannually on January 1 and July 1 of each year. Interest
rates and maturities for the Series 1989 bonds are as follows (in thousands):

Year Ending Interest

September 30 Rate Principal Interest Total
2001 6.50 £ 4,900 53,420 $ 8,320
2002 6.60 5,220 3,102 8,322
2003 6.60 5,565 2,757 8,322
2004 6.60 5,230 2,390 7,620
2005 6.60 5,575 2,045 7,620
2006 6.80 5,945 1,677 7,622
2007 6.80 - 1,272 1,272
2008 6.80 - 1,272 1,272
2009 7.00 - 1,272 1,272
2010 7.00 - 1,272 1,272
2011 7.00 - 1,273 1,273
2012 7.00 - 1,273 1,273
2013 7.00 - 1,273 1,273
2014 6.25 9,895 1,273 11,168
2015 6.25 10,465 654 i1,11¢%

Total $ 52,795 526,225 $ 79,020

A portion of the original proceeds from this bond issuance for the repayment
periods July 1, 2001 through July 1, 2006 and July 1, 2014 through July 1,
2015 as well as all of the repayments for the periods July 1, 2007 through July
1, 2013 was advance refunded during the prior year.

Series 1992

Full Faith and Credit of the State of Florida, Jacksonville Transportation
Authority Senior Lien Bonds, Series 1992, were issued in the principal amount
of $92,900,000. The Series 1992 Bonds were issued for the purpose of paying a
portion of the costs of acquisition and construction of additions, extensions and
improvements to the Jacksonville Expressway System, to fund a reserve
account, and to pay certain costs related to the issuance and sale of the Series
1992 Bonds. The Series 1992 Bonds are payable primarily from the interlocal
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20.

MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
C. Jacksonville Transportation Authority (continued)
(6) Revenue Bonds: (continued)

agreement payments derived from a discretionary sales surtax of 0.5% levied
by the City of Jacksonville, Florida and the pledged county gasoline tax funds
and are additionally secured by the full faith and credit of the State of Florida.

Optional Redemption—The Series 1992 Bonds maturing from July 1, 1998
through July 1 2002, both inclusive, shall not be redeemable prior to their
stated dates of maturity. The Series 1992 Bonds maturing on July 1, 2003 and
thereafter (including any Term Bonds designated pursuant to the Term Bonds
Option) shall be redeemable prior to their stated dates of maturity, at the option
of the State Board of Administration of the State of Florida at the direction of
the Authority (1) in part, by maturities to be sclected by the State Board of

Administration of the State of Florida, and by lot within a maturity if less than
an entire maturity is to be redeemed, on July 1, 2002, or at any time thereafter,
or (2) as a whole, on July 1, 2002, or at any time thereafter, in each case at the
following redemption prices (expressed in percentages of the principal amount
of the Series 192 Bonds to be redeemed) plus accrued interest to the
redemption date during the following periods:

Redemption Period

(Dates Inclusive) Redemption Price
July 1, 2002 to June 30, 2003 101.0%
July 1, 2003 and thereafter 100.0%

Interest rates and maturities for the Series 1992 Bonds are as follows (in
thousands):

Year Ending Interest

September 30 Rate Principal Interest Total
2001 5.600 3 1,900 $ 1,131 $ 3031
2002 5.750 2,000 1,024 3,024
2003 5.800 2,100 909 3,009
2004 5.900 2,300 788 3,088
2005 6.000 2,400 652 3,052
2006 6.125 2,600 508 3,108
2007 6.200 2,700 349 3,049
2008 6.250 2,900 181 3,081

Total $ 18,900 $ 5542 $24,442

The portion of the original proceeds from this bond issuance which related to
the repayment periods July 1, 2009 through July 1, 2022 was advance refunded
during the prior year.
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MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
C. Jacksonville Transportation Authority (continued)

(6)

Revenue Bonds: (continued)

Full Faith and Credit of the State of Florida, Jacksonville Transportation
Authority Senior Lien Bonds, Series 1992A, were issued in the principal
amount of $51,715,000. The Series 1992A Bonds were issued for the purpose
of refunding the Series 1990 Bonds and to pay certain expenses related to the
1ssuance and sale of the Series 1992A Bonds. The Series 1992A Senior Lien
Bonds are payable primarily from the interlocal agreement payments derived
from a discretionary sales surtax of .5% levied by the City of Jacksonville,
Florida and pledged county gasoline tax funds and are additionally secured by
the Full Faith and Credit of the State of Florida.

Optional Redemption—The Series 1992A Bonds maturing in the years 1997
through 2003, both inclusive, shall not be redeemable prior to their stated dates
of maturity. The Series 1992A Bonds maturing in 2004, and thereafter, shall be
redecmable prior to their stated dates of maturity, at the option of the Division
of Bond Finance of the State of Florid Department of General Services (2) in
part, and by lot within a maturity if less than an entire maturity is to be
redeemed, on July 1, 2003, or on any date thereafter, or (2) as a whole, on July
1, 2003, or on any date thereafter, in either case at the following redemption
prices (expressed in percentages of the principal amount of the Series 1992A
Bonds to be redeemed) plus accrued interest to the redemption date during the
following periods:

Redemption Period

(Dates Inclusive) Redemption Price
July 1, 2003 to June 30, 2004 101.0%
July 1, 2004 and thereafter 101.0%

Mandatory Redemption—The Series 1992A Bonds maturing on July 1, 2014
are subject to mandatory redemption by operation of the Bond Amortization
Account, in part by lot, on July 1, 2012 and on each July 1 thereafter and
including July 1, 2014, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount
thereof, plus accrued interest, without premium, as follows (in thousands):

Year Principal Amount
2012 51,685
2013 2,105
2014 2,205

Series 1992A Bonds maturing on July 1, 2018 are subject to mandatory
redemption by operation of the Bond Amortization Account, in part by lot, on
July 1, 2015, and on each July 1 thereafter to and including July 1, 2018, at a
redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest,
without premium, as follows (in thousands):
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MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
C. Jacksonville Transportation Authority (continued)
(6) Revenue Bonds: (continued)

Year Principal Amount
2015 $2,325
2016 4,835
2017 5,080
2018 5,340

The Series 1992A Bonds maturing on July 1, 2020 are subject to mandatory
redemption by operation of the Bond Amortization Account, in part by lot, on
July 1, 2019, and on July 1, 2020, at a redemption price equal to the principal
amount thereof, plus accrued interest, without premium, as follows (in
thousands):

Year Principal Amount
2019 $5,120
2020 5,390

Interest rates and maturities for the Series 1992A Bonds are as follows (in
thousands):

Year Ending Interest
September 30 Rate Principal Interest Total
2001 4.600 $ 1,005 $ 2,518 $ 3,523
2002 4.600 1,050 2,471 3,521
2003 4.600 1,095 2,423 3,518
2004 4.900 1,150 2,373 3,523
2005 4.900 1,200 2,317 3,517
2006 5.000 1,255 2,259 3,514
2007 5.100 1,320 2,196 3,516
2008 5.150 1,390 2,129 3,519
2009 5.200 1,455 2,057 3512
2010 5.250 1,530 1,981 3,511
2011 5.250 1,600 1,901 3,501
2012 5.300 1,685 1,817 3,502
2013 5.300 2,105 1,728 3,833
2014 5.300 2,205 1,616 3,821
2015 5.300 2,325 1,499 3,824
2016 5.300 4,835 1,376 6,211
2017 5.300 5,080 1,120 6,200
2018 5.300 5,340 851 6,191
2019 5.400 5,120 567 5,687
2020 5.400 5,390 291 5,681

Total - 548,135 $35.490 $ 83,625
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MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
C. Jacksonville Transportation Authority (continued)
(6) Revenue Bonds: (continued)

Series 1997

Full Faith and Credit of the State of Florida, Jacksonville Transportation
Authority Senior Lien Refunding Bonds, Series 1997, were issued in the
principal amount of $161,645,000. The Series 1997 Bonds were issued for the
purpose of refunding a portion of the outstanding callable Series 1989 and 1992
Bonds, funding a Senior Lien Reserve Account and paying certain expenses
related to the issuance and sale of the Series 1997 Bonds. The Series 1997
Senior Lien Bonds are payable primarily from the interlocal agreement
payments derived from a discretionary sales surtax of .5% levied by the City of
Jacksonville, Florida and pledged county gasoline tax funds and are
additionally secured by the Full Faith and Credit of the State of Florida.

Optional Redemption—The Series 1997 Bonds maturing in the years 1999
through 2007, both inclusive, shall not be redeemable prior to their stated dates
of maturity. The Series 1997 Bonds maturing in 2008, and thereafter, shall be
redeemable prior to their stated dates of maturity, at the option of the Division
of Bond Finance of the State of Florida Department of General Services (1) in
part, and by lot within a maturity if less than an entire maturity is to be
redeemed, on July 1, 2007, or on any date thereafter, or (2) as a whole, on July
1, 2007, or on any date thereafter, in either case at the following redemption
prices (expressed in percentages of the principal amount of the Series 1997
Bonds to be redeemed) plus accrued interest to the redemption date during the
following periods:

Redemption Period

(Dates Inclusive) Redemption Price
July 1, 2007 to June 30, 2008 101.0%
July 1, 2008 and thereafter 100.0%

Mandatory Redemption—The Series 1997 Bonds maturing on July 1, 2017
are subject to mandatory redemption by operation of the Bond Amortization
Account, in part by lot, on July 1, 2016 and July 1, 2017, at a redemption price
equal to the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest, without premium,
as follows (in thousands):

Year Principal Amount
2016 $4,975
2017 5,330

Series 1997 Bonds maturing on July 1, 2019 are subject to mandatory
redemption by operation of the Bond Amortization Account, in part by lot, on
July 1, 2018 and July 1, 2019, at a redemption price equal to the principal
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MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
C. Jacksonville Transportation Authority (continued)

(6)

Revenue Bonds: (continued}

amount thereof, plus accrued interest, without premium, as follows (in
thousands):

Year Principal Amount
2018 $5,575
2019 5,900

The Series 1997 Bonds maturing on July 1, 2022 are subject to mandatory
redemption by operation of the Bond Amortization Account, in part by lot, on
July 1, 2020, and on each July 1 thereafter to and including July 1, 2022, at a
redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest,
without premium, as follows (in thousands):

Year Principal Amount
2020 $6,220
2021 6,530
2022 6,825

Interest rates and maturities for the Series 1997 Bonds are as follows (in
thousands):

Year Ending Interest
September 30 Rate Principal Interest Total
2001 4.500 $ 1,615 $ 8344 $ 99359
2002 4.600 1,685 8,272 9,957
2003 5.000 1,760 8,194 9,954
2004 6.000 2,555 8,106 10,661
2005 ‘_ 6.000 2,705 7,953 10,658
2006 6.250 2,870 7,791 10,661
2007 6.250 9,395 7,611 17,006
2008 6.000 9,085 7,024 17,009
2009 5.000 13,680 6,425 20,105
2010 5.000 14,370 5,741 20,111
2011 5.000 15,080 5,022 20,102
2012 5.000 15,910 4,268 20,178
2013 5.000 14,915 3,473 18,588
2014 5.375 5,850 2,727 8,577
2015 5.250 6,080 2,413 8,493
2016 5.250 4,975 2,093 7,068
2017 5.250 5,330 1,832 7,162
2018 5.000 5,575 1,553 7,128
2019 5.000 5,900 1,274 7,174
2020 5.000 6,220 979 7,199
2021 5.000 6,530 668 7,198
2022 5.000 6,825 341 7,166

Total $ 159,810 $ 102,104 $ 261,914
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MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
C. Jacksonville Transportation Authority (continued)

(6)

Revenue Bonds: (continued)

Full Faith and Credit of the State of Florida, Jacksonville Transportation
Authority Senior Lien Refunding Bonds, Series 1997A, were issued in the
principal amount of $95,690,000. The Series 1997A Bonds were issued for the
purpose of acquisition and construction of additions, extensions and
improvements to the Jacksonville Expressway System, funding a Senior Lien
Reserve Account and paying certain expenses related to the issuance and sale
of the Series 1997A Bonds. The Series 1997A Senior Lien Bonds are payable
primarily from the interlocal agreement payments derived from a discretionary
sales surtax of .5% levied by the City of Jacksonville, Florida and pledged
county gasoline tax funds and are additionally secured by the Full Faith and
Credit of the State of Florida.

Optional Redemption—The Series 1997A Bonds maturing in the years 1998
through 2007, both inclusive, shall not be redeemable prior to their stated dates
of maturity. The Series 1997A Bonds maturing in 2008, and thereafter, shall be
redeemable prior to their stated dates of maturity, at the option of the Division
of Bond Finance of the State of Florid Department of General Services (1) in
part, and by lot within a maturity if less than an entire maturity is to be
redeemed, on July 1, 2007, or on any date thereafter, or (2) as a whole, on July
1, 2007, or on any date thereafter, in either case at the following redemption
prices (expressed in percentages of the principal amount of the Series 1997A
Bonds to be redeemed) plus accrued interest to the redemption date during the
following periods:

Redemption Period
{Dates Inclusive) Redemption Price
July 1, 2007 to June 30, 2008 101.0%
July 1, 2008 and thereafter 100.0%

Mandatory Redemption—The Series 1997A Bonds maturing on July 1, 2018
are subject to mandatory redemption by operation of the Bond Amortization
Account, in part by lot, on July 1, 2017 and July 1, 2018, at a redemption price
equal to the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest, without premium,
as follows (in thousands):

Year Principal Amount
2017 $ 3,605
2018 3,785
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C. Jacksonville Transportation Authority (continued)

(6)

Revenue Bonds: (continued)

Series 1997A Bonds maturing on July 1, 2022 are subject to mandatory
redemption by operation of the Bond Amortization Account, in part by lot, on
July 1, 2019 and on each July 1 thercafter to and including July 1, 2022, at a
redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest,
without premium, as follows (in thousands):

Year Principal Amount
2019 ' $ 3,980
2020 4,185
2021 ' 4,405
2022 4,630

The Series 1997A Bonds maturing on July 1, 2027 are subject to mandatory
redemption by operation of the Bond Amortization Account, in part by lot, on
July 1, 2023, and on each July 1 thereafter to and including July 1, 2027, at a
redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest,
without premium, as follows (in thousands):

Year ‘ Principal Amount
2023 $ 4,870
2024 5,120
2025 5,380
2026 5,660
2027 5,950

Interest rates and maturities for the Series 1997A Bonds are as follows (in
thousands):
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C. Jacksonville Transportation Authority (continued)
Revenue Bonds: (continued)

(6)

Year Ending Interest
September 30 Rate Principal Interest
2001 6.500 $ 1,725 5 4826
2002 6.500 1,795 4,714
2003 6.500 1,875 4,597
2004 5.750 1,955 4,476
2005 6.500 2,040 4,363
2006 6.500 2,130 4,231
2007 6.500 2,230 4,092
2008 5.750 2,330 3,947
2009 5.000 2,440 3,813
2010 5.000 2,560 3,691
2011 5.000 2,680 3,563
2012 5.000 2,815 3.429
2013 5.125 2,955 3,288
2014 5.125 3,105 3,137
2015 5.125 3,260 2,978
2016 5.250 3,430 2,811
2017 5.125 3,605 2,631
2018 5.125 3,785 2,446
2019 5.250 3,980 2,252
2020 5.250 4,185 2,043
2021 5.250 4,405 1,823
2022 5.250 4,630 1,592
2023 5.000 4,870 1,349
2024 5.000 5,120 1,106
2025 5.000 5,380 850
2026 5.000 5,660 581
2027 5.000 5,950 298
Total $ 50,895 $78,927

Advanced Refunding and Defeased Debt

Total

$

6,551
6,509
6,472
6,431
6,403
6,361
6,322
6,277
6,253
6,251
6,243
6,244
6,243
6,242
6,238
6,241
6,236
6,231
6,232
6,228
6,228
6,222
6,219
6,226
6,230
6,241
6,248

5 169,822

Debt considered defeased consists of the following (in thousands):

Series 1977 bonds
Series 1985 bonds
Series 1990 bonds
Series 1992 bonds

Total

Principal Balance

Principal Balance

September 30, September 30,
1999 Retirements 2000
$ 13,115 (3 1,640) $ 11,475
113,900 (3,000) 110,900
44,365 (44,365) -
68,000 - 68,000
$ 239,380 {$ 49,003) $ 190,375
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20.

MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
C. Jacksonville Transportation Authority (continued)

(7) Estimated Liability for Injury and Damage Claims

@®

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to injury and damage
claims arising from bus and ASE operations.

Liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Individual claims in excess of
$100,000 and $200,000 per occurrence would be subject to the Florida
Sovereign Immunity Law. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have
been incurred but not reported (IBNRs). Claim liabilities are calculated
considering the effects of inflation, recent claim settlement trends including
frequency and amount of pay-outs and other economic and social factors. The
liability is reported in the Proprietary Funds.

The estimated liability for injury and damage claims consisted of the following
(in thousands):

!

Reported and known claims $ 345
Estimated incurred but not reported claims 1,594
Total $1,939

Changes in the estimated liability for injury and damage claims consisted of the
following (in thousands):

Balance, beginning of year 51,582
Claims provision ‘ 650
Claims paid (293)
Balance, end of year $ 1,939

Management does not expect that these matters will have a material effect on
the financial position or results of operations of the Authority.

Commitments and Contingencies:

Commitments—Construction in progress represents capital costs of
approximately $28,625,000 incurred to date on the Automated Skyway Express
Phase 1B and River Crossing projects. This amount is exclusive of right-of-
way acquisition costs of approximately $6,100,000 included in land on the
balance sheet.
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MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
C. Jacksonville Transportation Authority (continued)
(8) Commitments and Contingencies: (continued)

The uncompleted portion of this project is financed primarily by the
unexpended balance in grants from the following agencies (in thousands):

Grant Amount

Federal Transit Administration 573,698
State of Florida 27,229
City of Jacksonville and the Authority 27,229

The Authority as a whole has commitments on outstanding contracts
amounting to approximately $43,000,000 at September 30, 2000.

Contingencies—The Authority is a party to a number of lawsuits and claims
primarily related to condemnation proceedings for right-of-way acquisitions
and injury and damage claims arising out of the normal conduct of its mass
transportation activities. The Authority is self-insured in regards to injury and
damage claims. In the opinion of Authority management, based on the advice
of legal counsel, the ultimate disposition of these lawsuits and claims will not
have a material adverse effect on the financial position or results of operations
of the Authority.

Federal grant awards are audited in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and
the Single Audit Act of 1984 to determine the Authority’s compliance with the
terms and conditions of the grant awards. State of Florida grant awards are
subject to audit by the respective Florida grantor agencies. It is management’s
opinion that no material liabilities will result from any such audits.

Self-Insurance—During January 1988, the Florida State Department of
General Services rendered an opinion which stated that the Authority was no
longer included in the State Self-Insurance Fund. The Authority is responsible
for any potential liability related to accidents on the Jacksonville
Transportation Authority expressway system. Any individual claim in excess of
$100,000 and $200,000 per occurrence would be subject to the Florida
Sovereign Immunity Law. Management does not expect that these matters will
have a material effect on the financial position or results of operations of the
Authority. The Authority has $200,000 designated for any potential liability
related to accidents on the Jacksonville Transportation Authority expressway
system. There have been no claims of liability against the Authority or any
claims payments by the Authority related to such accidents in the last three
years.
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MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
C. Jacksonville Transportation Authority (continued)

(9) Employee Benefits:

Florida Retirement System—The Authority participates in the Florida
Retirement System (System), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public
employee retirement system administered by the State of Florida Department of
Administration, Division of Retirement, to provide retirement and survivor
benefits to participating public employees. Chapter 121, Florida Statutes,
establishes the Authority for participant eligibility, contribution requirements,
vesting eligibility and benefit provisions.

Benefits are determined by category and Iength of service as follows:

Employer
Contribution Rate
Membership July 1,  July 1,
Category Benefit Vesting 2000 1999
Regular 1.6% times years of service times After 10 9.15% 10.15%
average compensation (5 highest years of
years) if age 62 or 30 years of creditable
service at any age. service.
Senior 2.0% times years of service times  After 7 years 11.13% 12.13%
Management average compensation (5 highest of creditable
years) if age 55 or 25 years of service.

special risk service.

Employer contributions include 0.94% for a post-retirement health insurance
subsidy and 0.10% administrative fee.

Participating employer contributions are based upon actuarially determined
state-wide rates established by the State of Florida, that expressed as
percentages of annual covered payroll are adequate to accumulate sufficient
assets to pay benefits when due. No employee contributions are required.

The contributions required for the years ended September 30, 2000, 1999 and
1998 were $501,449, $677,184 and $659,438, respectively, which is equal to
the required contribution for each year.

During the year ended June 30, 2000, the System held no securities issued by
the Authority.

The Florida Retirement System issues a publicly available financial report that

includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the
plan. That report may be obtained by writing to the Division of Retirement,
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20. MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
C. Jacksonville Transportation Authority (continued)
(9) Employee Benefits: (continued)

2639-C North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1560, or by calling
850-488-5541.

JTM Money Purchase Pension Plan—The Authority also contributes to the
Jacksonville Transit Management, inc. (JTM) Money Purchase Pension Plan,
which covers all employees on JTM’s payroll whose job classification is within
the bargaining unit represented by a union. Such contributions for the year
ended September 30, 2000 were based on the collective bargaining agreements
in effect and are included in operating expenses in the amount of $1,821,816.

(10) Enterprise Fund Contributed Capital:

Following is a summary of contributed capital by source at September 30, 2000

(in thousands):
United States capital grants $ 149,580
State of Florida capital grants 45,252
City of Jacksonville capital grants 22,879
General Fund contributed capital 30,983
Total 248,694
Less: Accumulated depreciation (60,440)
Less: Grant assets consumed (6,793)

Total, net of accumulated depreciation
and grant assets consumed $ 181,461

(11) Grants and Receipts from Other Governments:
FDOT
The Authority and FDOT have entered into a contract whereby FDOT
reimburses the Authority for certain highway and bridge maintenance costs.

Under the current year contract, certain reimbursements may be offset against
amounts owed by the Authority to FDOT.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
(in thousands)
Plan Year Annual City Allotted from Total
Ending Required Cash Past Excess Employer Percentage
September 30 Contributions Contributions Contributions Contributions Contributed
1995 $ 42,046 $ 41,787 3 259 $ 42,046 100%
1996 42,719 42,634 85 42,719 100%
1997 25,754 21,930 3.824 25,754 100%
1998 28,782 20,668 8,114 28,782 100%
1959 17,673 16,081 1,592 17,673 100%
2000* 12,429 11,681 748 12,429 100%

* The financial statement expense requirement for the fiscal vear ended September 30, 2000, was equal to the annual

required contribution of $12,429.

Certain adjustments are made to the annual required contribution if the plan carries a net pension obligation, The net
pension obligation (asset) is defined in GASB Statement No. 27 as the cumulative difference at date of adoption (or

transition) between annual requirements and actual contributions plus the cumulative difference between the requirements

and contributions after that date. Because the plan has no net pension obligation, no other adjustments were made to

determine expense this year.

Note that the net pension asset is not the same as "past excess contributions," which stand for the difference, including
interest, between the City's contributions for a plan year and that year's funding requirement determined as though the

fund's assets did not include any contributions made in a prior year in excess of that year's requirement.

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
POLICE AND FIRE RETIREMENT SYSTEM

SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
(in thousands)
Plan Year Annual City Alloted from Court Fines and Total Total
Ending Required Cash Contribution Preminm-Tax Employer Member Percentage
September 30 Contribution Contributions Reserves Refunds* Contributions Contribations Contributed
1993 $ 15,552 100%
1996 15,366 100%
1997 28,910 100%
1998 34,618 100%
1999 30,201 100%
2000 ** 32,146 $ 9,187 $ 8144 $ 6,830 ¥ 24,161 $ 7,985 100%

* Includes refunds from premium tax under Florida Statutes Chapters 175 and 185.

** The financial statement expense requirement for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2000 was equal to the annual required

contributions of $32,146. The Plan has no net pension obligation.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
(in thousands)
Actuarial
Actuarial Accrued Annual UAAL
Value of Liability Unfunded Funded Covered as a % of
Valuation Assets {AAL) (1)(2) AAL Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
Date (a) (b) {(b-a) {a/b) () ({(b-a)/c)
GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
09/30/95 § 856,474 $ 1,032,427 $175,953 82.96% § 193,266 91.04%
09/30/96 980,205 1,093,222 113,017 85.66% 193,418 58.43%
09/30/97  (3) 1,137,301 1,153,551 16,250 98.59% 196,510 8.27%
09/30/98 1,261,363 1,217,641 (43,722) 103.59% 192,859 N/A
09/30/99 1,324,735 1,321,083 (3,652) 100.28% 197,781 N/A
09/30/00 (&) 1,426,926 1,426,745 (181) 100.01% 202,321 N/A
POLICE AND FIRE RETIREMENT SYSTEM
09/30/95 492,017 544,816 52,799 30.31% 98,332 53.69%
09/30/96 546,914 726,299 179,385 75.30% 101,621 177.57%
09/30/57 615,421 842,849 227,428 73.02% 106,111 214.33%
09/30/98 675,414 902,035 226,621 74.88% 110,598 204.91%
09/30/99 738,461 970,418 231,957 76.10% 97,666 237.50%
09/30/00 814,889 939,802 124,913 86.71% 97,207 128.50%

(1) General Employees - Actuarial present values determined under the Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method.

(2) Police and Fire - Actuarial present values determined under the Entry Age Actuarial Cost Methed for the 2000 valuation and
the Frozen Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method for 1999 and prior valuations.
Actuarial Assumptions:

Net investment rate of retum 8.50%
Projected salary increases 5.00%
Includes inflation percent of 325%
Cost-of-living adjustments 3.00%

(3) Actuarial present values calculated after changes in Plan provisions. The decrease in AAL (and UAAL) due to changes in
Plan provisions was measured to be $6,343.
(4) Net of the unassigned past-excess contributions separate account of $71,006,

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is the principal fund of the City and is used to account for all activities
not included in other funds. The General Fund accounts for the normal recurring activities
of the City (i.e, police, fire, public works, courts, general government, etc.) These activities
are funded principally by property taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and licenses and fees.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
BALANCE SHEET

GENERAL FUND (in thousands)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

TOTALS
2000 1999
ASSETS
Equity in cash and investments.........c..cc.cccciiiientvisiinnnnineenns $ 52,245 $ 60,331
Receivables (net, where applicable, of
allowances for uncollectibles):
K G S U O RPN 28 4,225
ACCOUNES. ... oiituiriniitiinsrrenstreiasetr i st rnernenrerneanasssnnns 2,049 4,809
MOTtEaEES. .t vttt e e e - 33
L PPN 214 218
Due from other funds...........coovviiiiii 4,199 12,324
Due from independent agencies and other governments.............. 37,440 14,359
JEar 110 o Y TN 1,287 1,210
TOTAL ASSETS....c.ciiiriniiriniiiinriniis s s sisssanns . $ 97,462 $ 97,507
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities............................ $ 9,304 $ 19,524
Due to other funds........cooviviiiiin e 37 37
Due to independent agencies and other governments.............. 4,935 2,860
Deferred T€VEMUE.....cooiiiiiniiiiii e 6,831 6,610
TOTAL LIABILITIES............ccocuuee. Cerreersabersrtrisrisarensanee 21,107 29,031
FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for encumbrances.........oovvvvneeiiiieeniieiiceaenns 14,314 11,027
Reserved for imprest cash and cash in escrow..................... 330 332
Reserved for INVeRtories. .....ccouvvvervi i reree e rerercrnanens 1,287 1,210
Unreserved:
Designated for capital projects........cocovviiieiiiviciiniennan. 8,018 4,294
Designated for budget stabilization...........ccccevevreninnnn, 17,205 17,486
Designated for changes in fair value of investments.......... 271 202
Designated for next year's budget appropriation............... 34,042 33,242
Undesignated. ...........ocoivniiinniiei i, 888 683
TOTAL FUND BALANCE....cviiiittvirmeresrnerassncsnsrassnssncsanse 76,355 68,476
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES.........ccocenuen $ 97,462 $ 97,507

See accompanying independent auditors' report. _172 -



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GENERAL FUND (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

TOTALS
2000 1999
REVENUE:
B (T PO UTPUPTSP $ 355,610 $ 334,80%
Licenses and Permits......c.coo it ee e e anas 13,970 13,194
Intergovernmental......... ..o 125,119 108,546
Charges fOr SEIVICES. .. oiii ittt iraa v e asrr s an i rrnrtrrasraarans 48,430 42 170
Fines and forfeitures. ..ot 7,744 7,062
Payment in liew of taXe5.....vuuvvieriiiirniie s 3,583 3,799
1S (= R 10,171 8,094
10 11T S OSSN 7,575 8,579
TOtal REVEIUE. ... ittt eeie et e n e e e e eeneaass 572,202 526,253
EXPENDITURES:
General SOVEITIMENL......co.iuiiiiititiiitricen e e et eaeee e eeenannens 86,101 80,055
HUMAN SBIVICES. . vnntreeriinenntinrnernrrs it ere st eeneneenesnianaasiaseans 55,610 50,089
Public safety.........cooiiiiiiiii i e 280,895 261,788
Culture and reCreation. ... ..ovvuirneeaeiearcrearneeraeieanieeeneannn 37,032 34,448
TranSPOTIALION. . .veoeo it ittt et rr v e e s s aanraenan 30,792 30,193
Economic enviromment. . ......ooiviriiiiie e e e eeeiie e eeeae e anes 4,357 1,303
Physical environment.............c.ccoviiiiiiriniiies e 11,019 9,991
Total EXPenditires. .....oooiuiniieiniirernrrrirseirirtsearnttraressienisininanns 505,806 467 877
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES......ccccceaerunnnns 66,396 58,376
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): b
Operating transfers iM.........coociiiiiiiiicii e cee e aaes 6,399 9,023
Operating transfers OUL.......coveeiiiiiicrr e e {130,428) (125,911)
Transfers - In from component umits. ..............c.ocoiiiivitiiiniin, 71,434 66,494
Transfers - Out to COMPONENt WNILS. .. .eevvvveniiiiteniiiieireaeeaeennn. {5,999) (4,161)
Total Other Financing (USes). ..o..curenirieieireieieiiaiiireerirrnnesinenns (58,594) (54,555)
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER SOURCES
OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES.....c..ceccenceinaenne 7,802 3,821
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR..............ccooiiinai. 68,476 64,209
Change in reserve for inventory of SUpplies.......covvuviiviieninveninnes 77 230
Residual equity transfer in.........oooi - 216
FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR......cccoevierireieniriciirrenranrnnnes $ 76,355 $ 68476

See accompanying independent auditers’ report.
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than
expendable trusts and major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditure for
specific purposes as described below.

The Concurrency Management Fund provides funding for maintenance and update of the
Concurrency Management System which is the basis for ensuring compliance with the 2010
Comprehensive Plan.

The Air Pollution Control and Monitoring Fund receives revenue from licenses and fees,
and contributions from the federal government to monitor and control environmental
problems related to the air quality in Jacksonville.

The Sports, Convention and Tourism Development Fund collects revenues from tourist
and convention development taxes and sales tax rebate revenue from the State to support
ALLTEL Stadium and surrounding sports complex and convention center facilities and to
fund tourism programs sponsored by the Tourist Development Council through the City.

The Transportation Fund accounts for revenue from the City's six cent local option gas
tax, the state shared 5th and 6th cent gas tax, and the one-half cent local option sales tax used
to fund major road and related capital infrastructure construction and maintenance and the
City's mass transit and automated skyway express system operations.

The Budgeted General Government Fund accounts for numerous smaller accounts whose
revenues are dedicated to a variety of specific purposes.

The Public Safety Fund funds specific public safety programs through user fees and
intergovernmental revenue for emergency management planning and disaster medical
services provided by the Office of the Sheriff and the City Department of Fire and Rescue.

The Emergency 9-1-1 Fund receives revenues from a fee added to the telephone bill of
telephone customers that may be used for system operations and improvements.

The Tax Increment Districts Fund receives a distribution of ad valorem tax revenue levied
and collected in the City's four tax increment districts used to promote future commercial
business development that expands property tax base values in the City's core downtown
areas and the northwest region.

The Jacksonville Children's Commission Fund receives City funds, and various grants,
to serve as the community coalition for children. The autonomous board has the ongoing
responsibility of improving the lives of Jacksonville's children by serving as the central focus
for the evaluation, planning and distribution of funds for children's services that are
consistent with City programs and goals.



The Community Development Block Grant Fund receives monies from the federal
government in the form of community development block grants made available to specific
targeted areas of Jacksonville to assist in rehabilitation and revitalization in support of the
area's future economic growth and stability.

The Housing Rehabilitation and Home Investment and Opportunity Grants Fund
accounts for federal grant funds expended within federal guidelines to help Jacksonville
citizens to secure home ownership through a variety of private/public partnership mortgage
and rehabilitation loan programs.

The Job Training Partnership Act Grant Fund accounts for direct federal assistance to
the Private Industry Council of Jacksonville in providing employment and training services
to the economically disadvantaged and displaced citizens of Jacksonville through cooperative
efforts with local private sector businesses.

The Maintenance, Parks and Recreation Fund receives revenues from user fees and
charges from parks and recreation facilities that are dedicated to parks maintenance and
improvements, and acquisition of new recreational facilities.

The Metropolitan Planning Organization Fund receives funds from the Federal Highway
Department and the Federal Urban Mass Transportation Administration, and the Florida
Department of Transportation for planning the future of Jacksonville's metropolitan area,
principally in the area of transportation.

The Other Federal, State and Local Grants Fund records all other miscellaneous grants
administered by the City from federal, state and local sources not specifically accounted for
by other funds covering diverse programs such as: day care, adult homemaker, beach
erosion, base conversion and redevelopment, economic capital development, aids treatment
care, senior services and nutrition, crime prevention and drug abuse, teenage pregnancy and
childhood development, foster grandparents, and waste tire disposal.

The State Housing Initiative Partnership Fund accounts for revenue collected by the
Clerk of the Circuit Court on certain property transactions in Duval County passed from the
State earmarked for housing assistance and financial incentive programs to increase the
availability of affordable housing in Jacksonville including down payment assistance,
homeowner repair and rehabilitation and acquisition of existing single family dwellings for
home ownership.

The Non-Budgeted General Government Fund accounts for the Public Records
Modernization activity which receives revenues from a service charge authorized by Florida
Statute 28.24(15)(d) to be held in trust and used exclusively for equipment, personnel
training, and technical assistance in modernizing the official public records system of the
Clerk’s office and also accounts for numerous smaller funds whose revenues are dedicated
to a variety of specific purposes.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (in thousands)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

BUDGETED ON AN ANNUAL BASIS

SPORTS,
AIR POLLUTION CONVENTION AND
CONCURRENCY CONTROL AND TOURISM
MANAGEMENT MONITORING DEVELOPMENT
ASSETS
Equity in cash and investments..........c.oooiiiiniiiiinicnnnss $2,351 $ 817 $ 4,458
Cash in escrow and with fiscal agents................ocovvriernnns - - 100
Receivables (net, where applicable, of
allowances for uncollectibles):
ACCOUNES .ottt ittt ee e e - - 23
MOTEZAZES. ..o ce e - - -
Due from other funds.........ooiiiiiiiriirin s reees - - -
Due from component Umits...........viiinimcuniniennicniaiennnenes - - -
Due from independent agencies and other governments.......... - 321 -
TOTAL ASSETS..cvvirniieireieerirererre st s snansas $ 2,351 $ 938 $ 4,581
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities........................ $ 5 5 N $ 18
Due to other funds. ..........cocoiiiiniiie e enenenes - - -
Due to other governments.........cocoooviiiiiiiiinieinananns - - -
DEPOSIS. L vt ivriirrnr i e aeas 55 - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES......cccoituirimiinnireinssecncanionreresnes 80 11 18
FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for encumbrances.........covuveieniiiieiiiiiinininnnnn. 267 a1 632
Reserved for cash in eserow......oocovveeiiiicii i, - - 100
Reserved for mortgages receivable.......cocevvvverniernenieinn. - - -
Unreserved:
Designated for subsequent years' budget..................... - 28 -
Designated for changes in fair value of investments........ 11 3 22
Undesignated (deficit).............cooiiiiii, 2,013 805 3,809
Total Fund Balantes.....c..ccevuevanierinininrrnrerasinearerereaanns 2,291 927 4,563

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES.............

$ 2,351

- 178 -

$ 938

$ 4,581



BUDGETED ON AN ANNUAL BASIS

BUDGETED JACKSONVILLE

GENERAL PUBLIC EMERGENCY TAX INCREMENT CHILDREN'S

TRANSPORTATION GOVERNMENT SAFETY 9-1-1 DISTRICTS COMMISSION
$ 55,936 $ 12,258 $492 $1,842 $ - $ 2,790
- 149 - - - -
- 224 - - - -
$ 77,409 $ 12,835 $ 492 $ 1,842 $ - $ 5,979
§ 7,387 $ 506 $ 7 $ 15 5 - $3,173
4,103 - - - - -
11,480 506 7 15 - 3,173
26,930 497 166 3 - 4,955
26,243 - - - - -
275 60 3 9 - 14
12,471 11,772 316 1,487 - {2,163)
65,919 12,329 485 1,827 - 2,806
$ 77,409 $ 12,835 3 482 $ 1,842 3 - $ 5,979

(continued)
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (in thousands; continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

HOUSING
REHABILITATION
COMMUNITY AND HOME
DEVELOPMENT INVESTMENT AND JOB TRAINING MAINTENANCE,
BLOCK OPPORTUNITY PARTNERSHIP PARKS AND
GRANT GRANTS ACT GRANT RECREATION
ASSETS
Equity in cash and investments............covieieenieiiennnnn.s $ - $1,773 $§ 457 $ 5,363
Cash in escrow and with fiscal agents............cevvvenennenn 1,975 2,351 - -
Receivables (net, where applicable, of
allowances for uncollectibles):
ACCOUDNLS 11 iuititiinnteaeeeree e st cmeaneraaasananaen - - - -
MOTTZAZES. .. vt e 1,683 13,647 - -
Due from other funds............... i - - - -
Due from cOMmMPpOnent Units........o.cvvveeeveemenineieniuennenss 584 - - -
Due from independent agencies and other governments.... 1,384 741 - -
TOTAL ASSETS.....ccuiceieceireiarnscnsasscnsennanes $ 5,626 $18,512 $ 457 $ 5,363
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities..........cooouve. $ 436 $ 332 $ - 5 59
Due to other funds........c.cooiiiii s 2,182 - - -
Due to other governments............cccoeeeiieiiiieninnn... - - - -
DI POSITS . vvseereeireeer e e e e e e e e e ar e aa e e 6 77 - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES........ccocceiiireinincriesncniannanas 2,624 409 - 59
FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for encumbrances..............cccooeeeiiieiiiannnn. 4,847 1,308 - 674
Reserved for cash in escrow..........ccociiiiiiiininn, 1,975 2,351 - -
Reserved for mortgages receivable.........cooevenvininnnns 1,683 13,647 - -
Unreserved:
Designated for subsequent years' budget................. - - - 707
Designated for changes in fair value of investments.... - 9 2 27
Undesignated (deficit)......ccooviveiiniiiiiiieinicinens (5,503) 788 455 3,896
Total Fund Balances......ccovvevveiieiieiiieeeiiieervrvnenenens 3,002 18,103 457 5,304
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES........ $ 5,626 $ 18,512 $ 457 $ 5,363
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METROPOLITAN  OTHER FEDERAL, STATE HOUSING NON-BUDGETED TOTALS
PLANNING STATE AND INITIATIVE GENERAL
ORGANIZATION  LOCAL GRANTS PARTNERSHIP GOVERNMENT 2000 1999
s - $ 11,397 $ 6,321 $ 532 $ 108,587 $ 93,331
. - 100 225 4,751 4,915
- - - - 172 175
- - 5,281 - 20,611 13,550
. ] - 3 227 185
; ] - . 584 584
406 3,635 - - 31,353 24,128
$ 408 $ 15,032 $ 11,702 $ 760 $ 164,285 $ 137,368
$ - $ 721 $ 278 $ 19 $ 12,967 $ 7,442
152 - - . 2,334 10,523
. - - - 4,103 -
- . ; ; 138 103
152 721 278 19 19,542 18,068
17 6,008 361 29 47,203 30,350
- . 100 225 4,751 4915
- - 5,281 - 20,611 13,550
. . ; . 26,978 14,720
- 56 31 2 524 307
237 8,157 5651 485 44,676 55,458
254 14,311 11,424 741 144,743 119,300
$ 406 $ 15,032 $ 11,702 $ 760 $ 164,285 $ 137,368
- 181 -

See accompanying independent auditors' report.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

BUDGETED ON AN ANNUAL BASIS

SPORTS,
ATR POLLUTION CONVENTION AND
CONCURRENCY CONTROL AND TOURISM
MANAGEMENT  MONITORING DEVELOPMENT

REVENUE:

5 T TP $ - $ - $ 9,864

Intergovernmental. .. ...c..ooviviunrinreneiernne i rn et aeaeaseees - 2,009 2,000

Charges fOr SEIVICES. .. .iuiu it et cee e et a e rens 1,225 - -

Fines and forfeitures.........ocovvriiiieniiiii i e, - - -

4] 3 = PSSP 100 51 167

L - - 560
Total ReVEIUE. ...ttt eere et eee s s e earaaneaaenns 1,325 2,150 12,591
EXPENDITURES:

General gOVEIMMENL. .........c.iiuiiiiiii it rine e e e raae e 183 - -

THuman SeIVICES. ... uuvireie et ree e eeaae s - - -

Public safety...........oooiiii e - - -

Culture and reCreation. .........ccvoviiiiii i e eas - - 813

TranSPOITAtION. covu v veie e sa st ee st e e e e e e e e e e enas - - -

Economic environment. . ...........veriviieiniiisiisnnesinrinanans - - 3,437

Physical envITONMent. ... ...coieninienieei e eeea e e - 2,225 -
Total Expendiftures. ... ...cccveuerieiiocii i irei e eee e eeaa e e 183 2,225 4,250
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES....ccovttiiiiiniireieiissiissssseseesmerseesamsenmans 1,142 (75) 8,341
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Operating transfers in..............c.oioviiiiinii e - 50 -

Operating transfers OUl........c.o.vvuir i, (110) - (8,880)

Transfers - Out to COMPONENt UNIS . ...oevveniveininiianieneannnen. - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (USes).........oovirieiiieininnenenranses (110) 50 (8,880)
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER SOURCES OVER '

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES........cc00.. 1,032 (25) (539)
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR....................... 1,259 952 5,102

Residual equity transfer out.........coociiiiiiniiinin e - - -
FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR.......cccccviiiiiriiirinrnnnnnes $ 2,291 $ 927 $ 4,563
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BUDGETED ON AN ANNUAL BASIS

BUDGETED JACKSONVILLE
GENERAL PUBLIC EMERGENCY TAX INCREMENT CHILDREN'S
TRANSPORTATION GOVERNMENT SAFETY 9-1-1 DISTRICTS COMMISSION
$ 94,267 $ - ¥ - 5 - $4,263 $ -
6,979 1,693 257 - - 24,621
- 8,209 - 2,799 - -
- 2,083 - - - -
4,495 421 54 73 - 180
- 2,848 - - - 6,094
105,741 15,254 311 2,872 4,263 30,885
- 3,935 - - - -
- 820 - - - 18,178
- 6,069 433 2,330 - -
88,927 - - . _ .
- - - - - 21,906
- 1,564 - - - -
88,027 12,388 433 2,330 - 40,084
16,814 2,866 {122) 542 4,263 (9,189)
448 150 - - 168 11,889
- (712) - - {4,390) (391)
{8,200) - - - (315) -
(7,752) (562) - - {4,537) 11,498
9,062 2,304 (122) 542 {274) 2,309
56,857 10,025 607 1,285 274 497
$ 65919 $ 12,329 $ 485 $ 1,827 $ - $ 2806
(contimed)

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (in thousands; continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

HOUSING
REHABILITATION
COMMUNITY AND HOME
DEVELOPMENT INVESTMENT AND JOB TRAINING MAINTENANCE,
BLOCK OPPORTUNIEY PARTNERSHIP PARKS AND
GRANT GRANTS ACT GRANT RECREATION

REVENUE:

TS, 1t vnernenanetrunrnennenssnranseerernannsnnsaanssaanensensnnsnnn $ - $ - $ - $ -

Intergovernmental.. ..., 10,135 2,567 - -

Charges for ServiCes.. oo i - - - 1,195

Fines and forfeitures.........cocovvvviiiiiiiica - - - -

B3 () S PR 122 176 23 170

L8441 U U 175 193 - 101
Total ReVENUE. ...t ivr v e ree e e raenans 10,432 2,936 23 1,466
EXPENDITURES:

General OVermment. ... ...coiviiniii e veee e eaaaees - - - -

Human Services. ..ot - - - -

Public Safety. .. ..ot e aeaas - - - -

Culture and TeCreation.......ovoveioerec e eeeereans e, - - - 1,115

TranspOrtation. ... ...vvuvinrerener et ee et eneeeeenns - - - -

Economic environment. . .......c.vvvveivririirenraneresnrennsnenns 9,062 2,703 - -

Physical environment..........oovvveeiieiieniiiieiiiee e, - - - -
Total Expenditures. ........oooiiviiiii i eeeee e een e anes 9,062 2,703 - 1,115
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES. .....ouitieitiitiniciinicnicisirsssssensronres 1,370 233 23 351
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Operating transfers IM.........coooiiiiiiriiicii e eeens - - - 132

Operating transfers out..........cooviiiiniiiieri e (35) - - (249)

Transfers - Out to component UMits. . .....ovvvveeeiieeieiinennnnn... - - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses).....cuvevninienieeeeninnnnnss (35) - - (117)
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER SOURCES OVER

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES........... 1,335 233 23 234
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR..................... 1,667 17,870 434 5,236

Residual equity transfer out............cccooiiiiiiiiiiiiininnnnns - - - {166)
FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR.....cccccviiiiiieninririannes $ 3,002 $ 18,103 $ 457 $ 5304
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METROPOLITAN OTHER FEDERAL, STATE HOUSING NON-BUDGETED
PLANNING STATE ANP INITIATIVE GENERAL TOTALS
ORGANIZATION LOCAL GRANTS PARTNERSHIP GOVERNMENT
2000 1999

3 - 3 - $ - $ - 108,394 $ 91,103
576 18,494 6,359 - 75,780 72,597

. - - 444 13,872 13,105

- - - 111 2,194 1,886

- 753 598 8 7.391 5,029

- 173 858 76 11,078 5,838

576 19,420 7,815 639 218,709 189,558

648 834 - 580 6,180 5,158

- 6,721 - 122 25,841 25,259

- 8,378 - 26 17,236 14,573

- 1,740 - 25 3,693 3,902

- 22 - - 88,949 79,826

- 233 1,598 - 38,939 43,252

- 544 - - 4,333 3,800

648 18,472 1,598 753 185,171 175,870

(72) 948 8,217 (114} 33,538 13,688

104 2,861 - 13 15,815 15,988

- (73) - - {14,840) (17,354)

- - (389) - (8,904) {8,754)

104 2,788 (389) 13 {7,929) {10,120)

32 3,736 5,828 (101) 25,609 3,568

222 10,575 5,596 842 119,300 115,732

- - - - {166) -

$ 254 $ 14,311 $ 11,424 $ 741 $ 144,743 $ 119,300

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ALL BUDGETED SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

CONCURRENCY MANAGEMENT

VARIANCE
BUDGETARY FAVORABLE
ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BASIS BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUE:

S $ - $ - 3 - $ - $ -

Intergovernmental.................. - - - - -

Charges for Services. ......ooovciiiiiiiiiieanicinnnnn. 1,225 - 1,225 1,150 75

Fines and forfeitures. ., ......ovievevnnrireniiirnnennnns - - - - -

FE1L (T 100 - 100 30 70

Other.. ..o, - - - - -
Total Revenue...........ooviiii i aens 1,325 - 1,325 1,180 145
EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES:

General government.............cooooiveiiiiiieniannan.. 183 267 450 1,829 1,379

Human services.......ocovoiviiiiiiiiiiinei e, - - - - -

Public safety.....ccooovvnieii e - - - - -

Culture and recreation.............coccevieeieiiianinn... - - - - -

Transportation. ... ... cveeiici i - - - - -

Economic environment............ccoeeiieveirvnenrsnen.s - - - - -

Physical environment............oeeeeiieiieiiiinennnn.. - - - - -
Total Expenditures.... ..., 183 267 450 1,829 1,379
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES......cccvvvueeerrmrscreeneansernasses 1,142 {267) 875 (649) 1,524
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Operating transfers in.............coocoiieiiennien, - - - - .

Operating transfers out............c.ocoeviceeininnn.. (110) - (110) (110} -

Transfers - Out to component Units.........coveuvenns - - - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses).......cceeuven.... (110) - (110) (110} -
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER

SOURCES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES

AND OTHER USES......cooiiiimmenrarnccrenrcnennas 1,032 (267) 765 (759) 1,524
FUND BALANCE ALLOCATION................c.v.s - - - 759 {(759)
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER

SOURCES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES

AND OTHER USES.....ccocivimrmimencenranrenronnnas $ 1,032 ($ 267) $ 765 $ - $ 785
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AIR POLLUTION CONTROL AND MONITORING

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

BUDGETARY
ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BASIS BUDGET
$ - $ - $ - 5 -
2,099 - 2,099 2,125
51 - 51 21
2,150 - 2150 2,146
2,225 91 2,316 2,577
2,225 91 2,316 2577
(75) (91) (166) {431}
50 - 50 50
50 - 50 50
(25) (91) {116) (381)
- - - 381
] 25) ($ 91) ($ 116} $ -
{continued)
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VARIANCE
FAVORABLE

(UNFAVORABLE)

$ -
{26)

30

261

265

265

(381)

(5 116}



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ALL BUDGETED SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (in thousands; continued)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

SPORTS, CONVENTION AND TOURISM DEVELOPMENT

VARIANCE
BUDGETARY FAVORABLE
ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BASIS BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUE:

B D S $ 9,864 $ - $ 9,864 $9,200 $ 664

Intergovernmental..........ccovviveviieriiniiiene, 2,000 - 2,000 2,000 -

Charges for Services......oocoovvrniiiiiiiiircianans - - - - -

Fines and forfeitures..........cocoeeeviviniinnninnnen.. - - - - .

1) 167 - 167 100 67

L0111 1= N 560 - 560 142 418
Total ReVENUE. . v eeivairees 12,591 - 12,591 11,442 1,149
EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES:

General government.........occeveieieniniiiniieneennan. - - - - -

Human Services. ... .v.eevivraviriisiriiieireiniivanins. - - - - -

Public safety.....ccuveieniiiii i e - - - - -

Culture and recreation.......ccouvvviviiievnrennnnennn.. 813 - 813 998 185

Transportation. ........cvocvvenn i e - - - - -

Economic envIronment. ........cvveveeveeninernsreniness 3,437 632 4,069 6,370 2,301

Physical environment............cocovvieiieneniennnnn.. - - - - -
Total Expendittires........ocovvveieeiiiieiiieaiieieieneanss 4,250 632 4,882 7,368 2,486
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES.....c.cciicvireierrecnssrensansens 8,341 (632) 7,709 4,074 3,635
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Operating transfers in...........o..ooooeveieiiinn, - - - - -

Operating transfers OUl........coevviiveieiiniieiiiineons.s (8,880) - (8,880) (8.880) -

Transfers - Out to component uNits.............oceveees - - - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)....c.oovvnvnen..... (8,880) - (8,880} (8,880) -
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER

SOURCES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES

AND OTHER USES....ccoteviiriereeriereeeeenaaeesnes (539) (632) (1,171 (4.806) 3,635
FUND BALANCE ALLOCATION...........covvvrvnenen, - - - 4,806 ‘ (4,808)
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER

SOURCES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES

AND OTHER USES......ccocerinieiiirciirinnrnnnes ($ 539 ($ 632) (& 1,171) $ - & 1.171)
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TRANSPORTATION

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

VARIANCE
BUDGETARY FAVORABLE
ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BASIS BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE)
$ 94,267 3 - $ 94,267 $ 77,500 $ 16,767
6,979 - 6,979 5673 1,306
4,435 - 4,485 3,833 662
105,741 - 105,741 87,006 18,735
88,927 26,930 115,857 112,135 (3.722)
88,927 26,930 115,857 112,135 (3,722)
16,814 (26,930) (10,116) (25,129) 15,013
448 - 448 448 -
(8,200) - (8,200} (8,000) {200}
(7,752) - (7,752} (7,552) (200}
9,062 (26,930) {17,868) (32,681) 14,813
- - - 32,681 (32,681)
$ 9,062 ($ 26,930) ($ 17,868) $ - {$ 17.868)
(continued)
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ALL BUDGETED SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (in thousands; continued)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

BUDGETED GENERAL GOVERNMENT

VARIANCE
BUDGETARY FAVORABLE
ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BASIS BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUE:

TAXES. .t eeeeeeeeieeeeeie e e eaerinerertrraeearanenns $ - $ - $ - $ - L -

Intergovernmental...............oooiiiiiiinan.. 1,693 - 1,693 1,370 323

Charges for Services..........ooevierireiriinennnns 8,208 - 8,209 7,443 766

Fines and forfeitures...............ccevviviininnnns 2,083 - 2,083 1,923 160

3] =5 g1 421 - 421 242 179

Other. .o 2,848 - 2,848 602 2,246
Total Revenue........cooviiiiiiiiiiieei s 15,254 - 15,254 11,580 3,674
EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES:

General GOVErnmMEnt. ......ooeviuveniineraiiiananans 3,935 106 4,041 4,412 37

Human services...c..o.ovviiriieiniiieiiiieninnnn, 820 65 885 1,462 577

Public safety......cccoveirriiieeiirniirr e eeeans 6,069 195 6.264 6,716 452

Cuiture and recreation............ccoccoienivennnn... - - - - -

Transportation............cccoovvvvinnivennriiennans . - - - - -

Economic environment............................. - - - - -

Physical environment..........ccoceeveineiennnnen.n 1,564 131 1,695 2,199 504
Total Expenditures............coooviiiiiiiiiiaiiiiaan e, 12,388 497 12,885 14,789 1,904
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER {UNDER)

" EXPENDITURES.....cccuvueerreerereerssnannssnes 2,866 {497) 2,369 (3,209) 5,578

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Operating transfers in........................lL 150 - 150 150 -

Operating transfers out...........coccoiiinenn... (712) - (712} (712} -

Transfers - Out to component units............... - - - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)................. (562) - (562) (562) -

EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER
SOURCES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES

AND OTHER USES.......cccovmiiminionmennennes 2,304 (497) 1,807 (3.771) 5578
FUND BALANCE ALLOCATION.................. - - - 3,771 (3,771)
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER

SOURCES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES

AND OTHER USES.........ccooiiviiniininnannans $ 2,304 (3 497) $ 1,807 5 - $ 1,807
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PUBLIC SAFETY

VARIANCE
BUDPGETARY FAVORABLE
ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BASIS BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE)

s - s - 5 - s - $ -
257 - 257 257 -

54 - 54 - 54

31 - 311 257 54

433 166 599 663 64

433 166 599 663 64
{122} (166} (288) (406) 118
{122) (166) {288) (406) 118

- - - 406 (406)

(& 122) ($_166) (3 288) 3 - ($ 288)

{continued)

See accompanying independent auditors’ report. - 191 -



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ALL BUDGETED SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (in thousands; continued)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

EMERGENCY 9-1-1
VARIANCE
BUDGETARY FAVORABLE
ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BASIS BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUE:

TRXES.eoerecneerineinrenrannraaesreensaeranernarnanss $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Intergovernmental..........cccoociveiiivinviennanenns - - - - -

Charges for services........oovvveeiieiieninnnnnn.. 2,799 - 2,789 2,332 467

Fines and forfeitures...........oceiiieinnnnes - - - - -

Interest....ooviiein 73 - 73 25 48

Other. ..o e - - - - -
Total REVENUE. . ....vvvvinriireiiriesiiciee e eaans 2,872 - 2,872 2,357 515
EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES:

General GOvernment..............cc.ovvvrvniinenanas - - - - -

Human 8erviCes.....oceovverireieeiiereaeaaaananns - - - - -

Public safety.......ooooiiiii 2,330 33 2,661 3,810 1,149

Culture and recreation....................oveennens - - - - -

Transportation. ........co.ovveeniieniciiaciineenns - - - - -

Economic environment..........ccovvvvvivennnninns - - - - -

Physical environment................ccoooiiinen. - - - - -
Total EXpenditures.......cccovvvveenivuirennreieianninnns 2,330 331 2,661 3,810 1,149
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES......cocteierenracisiinnineseses 542 (331) 211 (1,453) 1,664
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Operating transfers in................c.occeeeeienes, - - - - -

Operating transfers out............ovecviineinnnnen. - - - - -

Transfers - Out to component Units............... - - - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)................. - - - - -
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER

SOURCES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES

AND OTHER USES......ccicovververinrmarnonnenss 542 (331) 211 (1,453) 1,664
FUND BALANCE ALLOCATION................... - - - 1,453 (1,453)
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER

SOURCES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES

AND OTHER USES....ccvvtitiienranronranransens $ 542 (5 331) $ 21 $ - $ 21
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TAX INCREMENT DISTRICTS

4,263

168
{4,390)

(315)

{4,537)

(274)

$ 274

ENCUMBRANCES

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.

BUDGETARY
BASIS

$ 4,263

4,263

168
(4,390)
(315)

(4,537)

(274)

($ 274)

{continued)
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BUDGET

$ 5,551

1,014

4,537

168
(4,390)
(315)

(4,537)

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
{(UNFAVORABLE)

($ 1,288)

1,014

(274)

(274)

($ 274)



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ALL BUDGETED SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (in thousands; continued)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

JACKSONVILLE CHILDREN'S COMMISSION

VARIANCE
BUDGETARY FAVORABLE
ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BASIS BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUE:

TaXES. e $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Intergovernmental...........ooevviiiiiinviiiinienan, 24,621 - 24,621 34,259 (9,638)

Charges for Services......covireinvirrinsirennrenanns - - - - -

Fines and forfeitures...............ccoceivivinninnn - - - - -

Interest. ...t rr e 180 - 180 100 80

L011T= S PN 6,094 - 6,094 2,721 3,373
Total REVENUE.....coeiinii i irevrsveresrneinnenns 30,895 - 30,895 37,080 {6,185)
EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES:

General government.............ccoceeeieninanann... - - - - -

Human ServiCes. .. ouviviiieiiiriarineaiiiieiinnns 18,178 4,868 23,047 23,799 752

Public safety.......cccocieiniiine e, - - - - -

Culture and recreation.........ccocoeeveinenennnnns - - - - .

Transportation......co.ovevreiiciieniniisinennen.s - - - - -

Economic environment. ... .co.v.vvveevrvrensieennns 21,906 886 21,982 47,404 25,412

Physical environment............ccccoviveieninannas. - - - - -
Total Expenditures.......c.cooovveiiniiierininirasaneeans 40,084 4,955 45,039 71,203 26,164
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES......cccicivricrrienesncnnes (9,189) {4,955) (14,144) (34,123) 19,979
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES):

Operating transfers in............ccooooeeeininenn... 11,889 - 11,889 11,974 (85)

Operating transfers out...........coovevvvenivininnns (391) - (391) {391) -

Transfers - Qut to component units............... - - - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)......oooeennn. 11,498 - 11,498 11,583 (85)
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER

SOURCES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES :

AND OTHER USES.......coveveemerrvrsrssssessans 2,309 (4,955) (2,646) {22,540) 19,894
FUND BALANCE ALLOCATION.................. . ; ; 22,540 (22,540)
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER

SOURCES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES

AND OTHER USES....cvivuirserrsisaresrssrecres $ 2,309 (3 4,955) (3 2,646) 3 - {$ 2,646)
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ALL BUDGETED SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

See accompanying independent auditors’ report,

YARIANCE
BUDGETARY FAVORABLE

ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BASIS BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE)
$ 108,394 $ - $ 108,394 $ 92,251 $ 16,143
37,649 - 37,649 45,684 (8,035)
12,233 - 12,233 10,925 1,308
2,083 - 2,083 1,923 180
5,541 - 5,541 4,351 1,180
8,502 - 9,502 3,465 6,037
175,402 - 175,402 158,599 16,803
4118 373 4,491 6,241 1,750
18,998 4,934 23,932 25,261 1,329
8,832 692 9,524 11,189 1,665
813 - 813 998 185
88,927 26,930 115,857 112,135 (3,722)
25,343 718 26,081 54,783 28,727
3,789 222 4,011 4,776 765
150,820 33,869 184,689 215,388 30,699
24 582 {33,860) (9,287) {(56,789) 47,502
12,705 - 12,705 12,780 (85)
(14,483) - (14,483) {14,483) -
(8,515) - (8,515) {8,315) (200)
(10,293) - (10,293) (10,008) (285)
14,289 (33,869) (19,580) (66,797) 47,217
. . - 66,797 {66,797}
$ 14,289 {($ 33,869) {3 19,580) 3 - ($ 19,580)
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Debt Service Funds account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of]
interest and principal on most general governmental obligations that are included in the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group. Individual debt service funds are described
below.

The General Bonded Debt Obligations Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources
for, and the payment of, principal and interest on the Duval County Certificates of
Indebtedness of 1972 General Obligation Bonds of the construction of the Police
Administration Complex.

The Special Bonded Debt Obligations Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources
for, and the payment of, principal and interest on the City's special and limited bonded
obligations payable solely from and secured by a lien upon and pledge of the revenues under
the respective bond ordinances.

The Other Non-Bonded Debt Obligations Fund accounts for the accumulation of
resources for, and the payment of, principal and interest on other non-bonded debt
obligations including the River City Renaissance Commercial Paper debt.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMBINING BAIL.ANCE SHEET

ALL DEBT SERVICE FUNDS (in thousands)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

OTHER
GENERAL SPECIAL NON-BONDED
BONDED DEBT BONDED DEBT DEBT TOTALS
OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS 2000 1999
ASSETS

Equity in cash and investments............cocovveeeniirannnenns $ - $ 46,553 $ B840 $ 47393  $ 42,37
Cash in escrow and with fiscal agents.......................... 39 - 210 249 265
TOTAL ASSETS......cuiiiiricrvriitiniississsisisinsnsnrans $ 39 $ 46,553 $ 1,050 $ 47642 § 42,636

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:

Due to other funds.........cccoeveenieeeenns e e $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 602
Matured bonds and
interest payable........... s 39 - - 39 39
TOTAL LIABILITIES.......occviireirininiiernriceisesnnians 39 - - 39 641
FUND BALANCES:
Reserved:
Reserved for cash in escrow and with fiscal agents.... - - 210 210 -
Reserved for debt service.......ccooovvvviveveiiiieeieens - 46,324 836 47,160 41,859
Unreserved:

Designated for changes in fair value of investments - 229 4 233 136
TOTAL FUND BALANCE.....cciviiriiiciecicenenienens - 46,553 1,050 47 393 41,995
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND

FUND BALANCES.......ccciiniitiincnieincrsosscnsaninnennne $ 39 $ 46,553 $ 1,050 $ 47642 5 42636
- 198 -

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
ALL DEBT SERVICE FUNDS (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

REVENUES:
1= = S N

Total ReVENUES. ..ot e e e eeen

EXPENDITURES:
Principal......cooiiirii s
Interest and fiscal agent charges....................ooh.0,

Total Expenditures.......cocvviiaiiiimeiii e ineneans

EXCESS OF REVENUE UNDER
EXPENDITURES.......ciotriinninnninicasearncnniniasees

OTHER FINANCING SOQURCES (USES):
Proceeds from sale of notes and bonds
and issuance of other debt obligations................
Proceeds from sale of refunding bonds..................
Operating transfers I .....ovcviieeieniinmaieeane s
Operating transfers out. ..........c.coiiiiiiiiiinciiinnan,
Payment to refund escrow agent.............cceevnennenns

Total Other Financing Sources ............coooeiieninans
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND

OTHER SOURCES OVER

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES..............
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR...........

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR.......c.ccovvnrnnen

OTHER
GENERAL SPECIAL NON-BONDED TOTALS
BONDED DEBT BONDED DEBT DEBT
OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS 2000 1999

$ - $ 1,756 $ 1,196 $ 2,952 $ 2342

- 1,756 1,196 2,952 2,342

- 24,495 3,705 28,200 25,437

- 38,386 3,865 42,251 39,006

- 62,881 7,570 70,451 64,443

- (61,125) (6.374) (67,499) (62,101)

- - - - 220

- - - - 43,492

- 66,694 7.413 73,107 63,858

- ; y - {1,217)

- - - - (43,492)

- 65,694 7,413 73,107 62,861

- 4,569 1,039 5,608 760

- 41,984 11 41,995 41,235

$ - $ 46,553 $ 1,050 $ 47,603 $ 41,995

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital Projects Funds account for financial resources segregated for the construction or
acquisition of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds). Descriptions of individual funds in this fund type follow.

The Bond Projects Fund receives proceeds from the sale of bonded debt issued by the City
to fund major capital improvement projects.

The General Projects Fund receives monies appropriated from the General Fund and other
- sources including proceeds from non-bonded debt for general capital improvements.

The Grant Projects Fund accounts for monies received by the City under various federal,
state and local grants restricted to expenditure of specific capital improvements funded under
the grant program.

The River City Renaissance Project Fund accounts for proceeds of a comprehensive
capital improvement initiative (the "River City Renaissance") for projects concerning the
environment, children, health and social services, economic development, neighborhoods
and downtown, parks and recreation, and the arts.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

ALL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS {in thousands)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2400

Equity in cash and inVestments........veueveiernenieirenesnianesniieennennenn.
Cash in escrow and with fiscal agents............cooviiiiiinimenieineienns
Due from independent agencies and other governments. ...................

TOTAL ASSETS...cc.iviiruiieierrriniiosirrirssrsisrsersssssssssnsssarssans

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued labilities...........cc.oeeiii i,

Contracts payable.......ooooviiii i

Due to other TUnAS. ...t e eanas

Unreserved:
Designated for capital projects.. oo vereirviieaieieariiieerienennnss.
Designated for changes in fair value of investments..................
Undesignated (deficit)........coeiriiiniiiiiii e

Total Fund Balantes. ... . cvueeieieeiiee et e ta et vt eeam e eaen

$ 78,935

BOND GENERAL
PROJECTS PROJECTS
$ 78,168 $ 78,657
767 -

- 7

$ 78,035 $ 78,664

$ 1,953 $ 2,410
475 308

- 13,551

- 689

2,428 16,958
19,367 13,214
767 .
55,990 48,105
383 387
76,507 61,706

$ 78,664
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GRANT
PROJECTS

330

2,911

$ 3,241

$ 271
49

998

1,318

4,437
330

(2.844)

1,923

$ 3,241

RIVER CITY
RENAISSANCE

PROJECT

$ 5,483

11

$ 5,494

68

262
11

5126
27

5,426

3 5494

TOTALS

2000

$ 162,308

1,108

2,918

$ 166,334

$ 4658
876

998
13,551

689

20,772

37,280
1,108

109,221
797

(2,844)
145,562

$ 166,334

1999

$ 127,072
14,716
2,824

$ 144,612

$ 3157
499

569
14,000
151

18,376

34,811

91,009
416

126,236

$ 144,612

See accompanying independent auditors' report.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

ALL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

REVENUE:

Intergovernmental. ..ot e aeas

INteTest. s et

EXPENDITURES:
Capital outlay.......ccccvvevriiiineaon.

EXCESS OF REVENUE UNDER EXPENDITURES.......ccvtvsrssinvens

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds from sale of notes and bonds and issuance of other

debt obligations.......................
Operating transfers in..................

Operating transfers out..................o

Transfers - Out to component units. .

Total Other Financing SOUICES ........cvviriiiiiiiiiieci i e eenas

EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER SOURCES OVER

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND

OTHER USES....cocvvvarriavnnne

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR........ccviiviiiiiinienene

Residual equity transfer in................o.oooiiiii

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR

.........................................

BOND GENERAL
PROJECTS PROJECTS
$ - $ -
4,501 4213
- 5,137
4,501 9,350
37,262 34,469
(32,761) (25,119)
44939 -
- 34,165
(388) (80)
44,571 34,085
11,810 8,966
64,697 52,574
- 166
$ 76,507 $ 61,706
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GRANT
PROJECTS

$ 1,251
55

1,306

1,620

(314

314

314

1,923

$1,923

RIVER CITY
RENAISSANCE

PROJECT

581
581

2197

(1,616)

(1.6186)

7,042

$5426

TOTALS

2000

$ 1,23
9,350

5,137

15,738

75,648

(59,810)

44939
34,479
(448)

78,970

19,160
126,236

166

$ 145,562

1999

$ 1,400
6,908

4,403

12,711

61,826

(49,115)

32,779
31,494
(750

(270}

63,253

14,138

112,088

_51262%

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar
to private business enterprises and where the costs of providing goods or services to the
general public are recovered primarily through user charges; or where the city has decided
that determination of net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy,
management control, accountability or other purposes. Individual enterprise funds are
described below.

The Public Parking System Fund accounts for the City's on-street, off-street, and parking
garage facility operations, including revenue collection and enforcement.

The Sports Complex, Convention Center and Auditorium Fund accounts for the
operation of the ALLTEL Stadium-Wolfson Baseball Park-Veterans Memorial Coliseum
sports complex, the Prime Osborn Convention Center and Performing Arts Center.

The Motor Vehicle Inspection Fund accounts for the operations of the City's motor vehicle
inspection stations.

The Solid Waste Disposal Fund accounts for collection, recycling, and disposal of
commercial and residential garbage services throughout the City, including operation of three
municipally owned landfill sites, two of which are closed.

The Mayport Ferry Fund accounts for the operation of the City’s ferry across the St. Johns
River at Mayport.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS (in thousands)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

SPORTS
COMPLEX,
PUBLIC CONVENTION
PARKING CENTER AND
SYSTEM AUDITORIUM
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Equity in cash and investments......o.uuciriniiiini i iiaa e e e $ 3989 $ 3,659
Receivables {net, where applicable, of
allowances for uncollectibles):
ACCOUNTS. . v\t taetieane st ea s e e r et o rae i tbe s e e et et amam e e en e s e nnaeaan - 302
Due from independent agencies and other ZOVErMMENtS. .......vvenvvuneenianciienss - -
B 11 o =N - -
Prepaid expenses and other a3$ets.......ovieiiier it aaas - 124
Total CUrTeNE ASSEES. ..\ vvnivrvrivrin i rasss ittt rsatiarra s aeese e st maraneeanennes 3,989 4,085
RESTRICTED ASSETS:
Cash and eqQUIVAIBRLS. .. ... ..ccoiiimiiiiiert e s r s e raa e aaas - -
Sinking fund cash and InVesStMents. .........ccoceoeniiiiiiii e - 697
Construction fund cash and INVESINENES. ... vuiervreanrinranrcerair e raereaeiiens - -
Accounts and interest receivable.....ooeiiiiiiiiii - 58
Total ReStricted ASSELS. . ..o iieiiiie it ce et cr et e r et vrene s rns e ra s - 755
PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT
| 2 11 S PSP OT RN 4,573 17,038
Buildings and improvements. ... ....uvermeiriueiieiieieirariereent et e eeeee e e 11,669 209,611
Improvements other than buildings...........coviiiive i e 4,266 42,956
Furniture and eQUIPMENT. . ......ooiuiiiii it et ee e e et eee e e eeeaaranas 298 6,032
Construction WOTK In PrOCESS. .. vvvvrurierusersen et enreaensatrarateraersrenreneenns 522 -
B PR 21,328 275,637
Less accumulated depreciation..........oooooviviiii i (6,405) {52,206}
Total Property, Plant and Equipment - Net. .. oooviiieiiiiiniciin i eeees 14,923 ' 223,431
DEFERRED CHARGES:
Landfill closure and pOSICLOSUIE CAIE COSTS.vvurrnreariarerrseniarseretnemeannennannns - -
Other deferred charges. ... ..o e eaas - -
Total Deferred Charges........oviviirrri i ae e crei et ieeaat e e et e nesraees - -
TOTAL ASSETS...ciiiiriciirissisissiisssstrssisnrsensersensensensosssesssessnssessnns $ 18912 $ 228,271
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MOTOR

VEHICLE
INSPECTION

$ 515

32
296
51
97

476
(366)

110

$ 627

SOLID

WASTE
DISPOSAL

$ 41,439

2,164
375

43,978

11,333

11,333

1,859
1,690
39,404
6,153
134
49,240

{18,025)

31,215

38,421
617

39,038

$ 125,564

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.

TOTALS
MAYPORT
FERRY 2000 1999
$ 79 $ 49,681 $ 18,645
7 2,473 3,016
- 375 580
- 2 1
81 205 202
167 52,736 22,444
- - 22,193
- 697 3,398
- 11,333 8,867
- 58 697
- 12,088 35,155
610 24 112 22,304
127 223,393 223,237
1,310 87,987 86,885
4,804 17,384 17,785
- 656 168
6,851 353,532 350,379
(1,776) (78,778) (70,180}
5,075 274,754 280,199
- 38,421 40,348
- 617 -
- 39,038 40,348
$ 5,242 $ 378,616 $ 378,146
(continued)
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

ALL ENTERFPRISE FUNDS (in thousands; continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

SPORTS
COMPLEX,
PUBLIC CONVENTION
PARKING CENTER AND
SYSTEM AUDITORIUM
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES {(PAYABLE FROM CURRENT ASSETS):
Accounts payable and accrued Habilities. .......oovvviieiiiiiieii e 3 76 $ 2105
Contracts payable. ... ..ot e 56 -
Due to other Tunds. . ... e - -
Due t0 other SOVEIMINENLS. ......ovei ittt reriet e e e et rre e saes e e eaesannsassn 25 ' -
Accrued compensated absences, CUITENT POTHOM. ... vvuvueueaeneeaerarierirnianrenns 16 -
DIEPOSIES. . o eruierneee e eenreea e e re s e e e e e ea e e s bt e ran e e e n e e et ean e enaeaaan 66 -
Deferred reVemUE.....coviiiii et eas 89 70
Total Current Liabilities (Payable From Current ASSelS)...ouuvevivuiiriiiiriiinrnennns 328 2,175
CURRENT LIABILITIES (PAYABLE FROM RESTRICTED ASSETS):
Deposits held for construction and evVents.............cocvivvviniiirreniircir e ennenns - 755
Accrued IHerest PAYADLE. . ... .c.eire et e e e 277 -
Current portion of bonds payable. ... ..o 760 -
Total Current Liabilities (Payable From Restricted ASSES).....cvveviveirinneerenennss 1,037 755
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES, net of current portion:
Liability for landfill closure and postClOSIIE CAE.......cvvevvirivurriierrreerenins - -
Accrued compensated abSEICES. .. .vvuiiiiieiiir et 119 -
Revenue bonds. ... e 22,055 -
Total Long-Term Liabilities. .....ooiiiiiiii e e eenea e 22,174 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES......c.ceuucirieicaniennnrinsirstssssstvosrermossosaossassansrsenresans 23,538 2,930
FUND EQUITY:
Contributed capital.........ooooiiii e 2,621 207,314
Retained earnings (deficit):
Unreserved (deficit)........ooovviieirire e ee e (7,248) 18,027
Total Retained Earnings (deficit)..........ovviveiiininiee e (7,248) 18,027
TOTAL FUND EQUITY (DEFICIT)....cccccoiimiiinniincarerrmassersrmssssseessssrronass (4,627) 225,341
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY ...cvuvriurenrmenseranrensaesassnersasnns $ 18,912 $ 228,271
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MOTOR SOLID TOTALS

VEHICLE WASTE MAYPORT
INSPECTION DISPOSAL FERRY 2000 1999
$ 5 $ 2,257 $ 151 $ 4,594 $ 3743
457 1 514 336
- ; - B 48
- - . 25 -
3 57 - 76 87
51 - 117 107
- - 31 190 83
8 2,822 183 5,516 4,404
. - - 755 1,180
- 558 - 835 2,186
- 1,355 - 2,115 1,925
- 1,913 - 3,705 5,291
- 21,752 - 21,752 19,533
22 421 - 562 635
- 57,509 - 79,564 80,761
22 79,682 - 101,878 100,929
30 84,417 183 111,099 110,624
- 12,290 4,427 226,652 232,237
597 28,857 632 40,865 35,285
597 28,857 632 40,865 35,285
597 41,147 5,059 267,517 267,522
$ 627 $ 125564 $ 5242 $ 378,616 $ 378,146

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT)

ALL ENTERFPRISE FUNDS (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

SPORTS
COMPLEX,
PUBLIC CONVENTION
PARKING CENTER AND
SYSTEM AUDITORIUM
OPERATING REVENUE:

[0/ E1 (i 20 TS T o SR UR PR $ 2,970 $ 10,590
Total Operating REVENUE. ......civviiiieniiiie i eii e e eieaenn e 2,970 10,590
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Personal SEIVICES. . .c.vvitrruereeet it eer et et e caeaea e aa i 1,203 7772

Supplies and materials. ... 158 1,014

Central SETVICES. ..t iuittiatieet i et te e e e e eeme e ar e e eaan e eneneanans 64 -

Interdepartmental charges..................ccoii e, 401 165

Other services and Charges.....oovv it i eeaaas 1,091 6,016

Bad debts, net of recOVeries........ovveeivvii i - 67

Depreciation and amOrtiZation.........oe.uvevniceeeiriariieasrenraereenens 412 6,872
Total Operating EXPeISes. . .ueuuer e iareeeniaetree i itern e emeeneanana 3,329 21,906
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)....ccoueruirincmcensancencnnnencnnrensssssnnaes {359) (11,316)
NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES):

INMBIBSE TEVEIUE. .. .ottt it e e e e s eeem e e s st abinna e ans 209 151

INFErEst EXPEIMSE. .vuuiiiniiniiin it iii i e e ccie v v e re e e e en e - -

OPEIating Zrants.......euuvuermernrniernenierersetieraestennennenaeenseaeensennes - -

L8 11T TN 1,194 1,812
Total Non-Operating Revenue (EXPENSES)....voviveieniiiciaiiariinrraineennn. 1,403 1,863
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS................. 1,044 (9,353)
OPERATING TRANSFERS:

Operating transfers ifl..........coovniion i et 200 4,360

Operating ransfers OUt.. .........covoiiiii i (1,344) (943)
Total Operating Transfers In {OUL) ......ooovviniuiiiie e, (1,144) 3,417
NET INCOME (LOSS)..ccuviiresrurcrinirasserrsmmceruesssrsercossrssessrassersees (100) (5,938)
Add depreciation on contributed aSSelS..........oveeeiineiiniiieeiieirieaanns 164 6,977
Increase (decrease) in retained earmings.......ooeeeerieeeereeneiieeneineans.n, 64 1,041
RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR............ (7.312) 16,986
RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR........cc.ocovuerenn ($ 7,248) $ 18,027
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MOTOR SOLID TOTALS
VEHICLE WASTE MAYPORT
INSPECTION DISPOSAL FERRY 2000 1999

$ 548 $ 32,501 $ 976 $ 47,585 $ 44,747

548 32,501 976 47,585 44 747

352 4,817 765 14,909 15,398

16 975 121 2,284 1,640

8 88 - 160 181

- 20 - 586 629

23 50,761 598 58,489 52,015

72 - - 139 122

11 1,757 263 9,315 9,507

482 58,418 1,747 85,882 79,492
66 (25,917) (771) (38,297 (34,745)

27 2,583 17 2,987 931
- (2,087} - (2,097) (1,8086)

- 914 - 914 720
- 1,878 : 4,884 (6,970)
27 3,278 17 6,688 (7,125)
93 (22,639) (754} (31,609) (41,870}

- 26,450 636 31,646 33,521
{12) (282) - (2,581) {3,614)

{12) 26,168 636 28,065 29,907
81 3,529 (118) (2.544) (11,963)

- 732 251 8,124 8,360
81 4,261 133 5,580 (3.603)

516 24,596 499 35,285 38,888

$ 597 $ 28,857 $ 632 $ 40,865 $ 35285

See accompanying independent auditors' report. - 213 -



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

SPORTS
COMPLEX,
CONVENTION
CENTER AND
AUDITORIUM

PUBLIC
PARKING
SYSTEM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
OPERATING INCOME (LOS8S). e ciiiiiiiienreniienientrr e raeenseensarenreaenannan ($ 359)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used in} operating activities:
Depreciation and amOrtization. .......c..cooiio et e rae e 412
Bad debt expense, net of 16COVEIIES. .. .ot -
Other non-operating revenUe/(EXPENSES). ... c.uvrereervrierrierrerirernrearmreens 1,194
Change in assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in receivables and other current assets, net....................... -
Decrease (increase) in due from independent agencies and other governments..... -
Decrease (InCrease) in MVENIOTIES . ....u.vuerrereeriearre e rereieacrrsarieesasieesaesienans -
Decrease (increase) in prepaid eXPemses. ... .cove i irieerenranerrranererrearnrenrereennes -
Decrease (increase) in deferred charges.......oooovoiiiiiiiiiiiii -
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued eXpenses....oceeeveuciiernnsn. 30
Increase (decrease) in due to other fundS.........ccoovimvivriviiiive e nas 25
Increase (decrease) in contracts payable.........oooiiiiiii i, 56
Increase (decrease) in current portion long-term Habilities........cvcviiveniiiiininnns (N
Increase (decrease) in dePoSiS. . .ocvre i e 8
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenUe...........veeeviviiniiiiiesiinirinireeananes 47
Increase (decrease) in liability for landfill closure and postclosure care............. -
Increase (decrease} in accrued compensated absences....ooouaiieerernieeenieneennnnn. (2)
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS. ..ottt e e 1,769
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES. .. oottt ev e 1,410
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Operating grants received.... ... -
Cash received through operating transfers from other funds............................., 200
Cash payments through operating transfers to other funds...........coocovieeeiiinin. (1,344)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES. ..ottt ete et er e s rrae e e s e e r e s e ar e sae s iass (1,144}
CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to property, plant and eqUIPMENt. ... ..o iiiiii e (578)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and eqUIPMENT. ... .urvnreieireireriaciivianiens 26
Principal paid on long-term obligations.............ooviiieiiiiiiii e (457)
Interest and payments to refunded bond escrow agent........o.coovviiiniiinioninnnnn... (845)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES. ...t e ($ 1,654)
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6,872
67
1,812

866

(1

($ 608)



MOTOR
VEHICLE

INSPECTION

§ 66

11
72

{72)

67

(12)

{12)

(82)
60

(3 22

SOLID
WASTE

DISPOSAL

(3 25,917)

1,757

1,878

212
121

1,310
710
169
(10)

2

2,219
&1

8,287

(17,620)

914
26,450
(282)

27,082

(542)
507
(550)

(2,803)

($ 3,388)

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.

MAYPORT
FERRY

{3771)

263

37

313

(458)

636

636

(118)

($116)

{continued)
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2000

(3 38,297)

9,315
138
4,884

1,043
205
(1}
{3}
1,310
851
(23)
178
(11)
(415)
107
2,219
(73)

15,725

(18,572)

914
31,646

(2,581)

28,979

(1,925}
584
(1,007}

(3,448)

__(s 5786)

1999

($ 34,745

9,507
122
(6,973)

689
(227)

1

156

10,133
(1,336)
(153)
(8}

628
(202)
(6,445)
(59)

5,833

(28,912)

720
33,569

(3.614)

30,675

(12,843)
21,425
18,038

(1,397)

$ 25,223



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS (in thousands; continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Interest and dividends on INVEStMENES. .....uuviiviiiiie it
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES...........ccoooieeennen..
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS.............
Cash and cash equivalents at October 1.......ccvvvvvieinieriiiiiiiri e i

Cash and cash equivalents at September 30...........cooeieinriiin i

CLASSIFIED AS:

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Acquisition of contributed capital a5sets............oooviiiiiiiiinii e,
Accrual of landfill closure, postclosure care and decontamination costs..................

TOTAL NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING

ACTIVITIES. ... e et

SPORTS
COMPLEX,
PUBLIC CONVENTION
PARKING CENTER AND
SYSTEM AUDITORIUM
$ 209 $ 151
209 151
(1,179) 991
5,168 3,365
__$3089 ___§ 43%
$ 3,980 $ 3,659
- 697
$ 3,689 $ 4,356
$ - $ 2,539
5 - __$ 25%

-216 -



MOTOR SOLID TOTALS

VEHICLE WASTE MAYPORT
INSPECTION DISPOSAL FERRY 2000 1999
$ 27 $ 2,583 $ 17 3 2,987 $ 812
27 2,583 17 2,987 812
60 8,657 79 8,608 27,798
455 44 115 : - 53,103 25,305
$515 $ 52,772 $ 79 $ 61,711 $ 53,103
$515 $41,439 79 $ 49,681 $ 18,645
- 11,333 - 12,030 34,458
$ 515 $ 52,772 $ 79 $ 61,711 $ 53,103
G 1N $ 1 3 - $ 2,539 $ 82
- 40 - 40 40
& 1 $ 41 $ - 3 2,579 $122

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods and services provided by one
City department or agency to other City departments or agencies on a cost-reimbursement
basis. Descriptions of individual funds in this category are presented below.

The Fleet Management Fund accounts for the operation of the City's fleet of police cars,
fire and rescue vehicles, public works and public utilities trucks, and many other automotive
on and off road type equipment.

The Copy Center Fund accounts for the operation of the centralized copy center, mait and
messenger service functions for City agencies.

The Information Technologies Fund accounts for centralized information management and
computer services that includes data processing, central telephone and network
communications, and other voice/data electronic media services.

The Legal Fund accounts for centralized legal services to all City departments and agencies
through the Office of General Counsel.

The Self-Insurance Fund accounts for centralized risk management and safety and loss
prevention services to all City departments self-insured for workers' compensation, public,
and general and vehicle liability.

The Group Health Fund accounts for employee health and life insurance premiums and
manages third party health care contracts to all City employees.

The Insured Programs Fund accounts for providing all forms of property and casualty,
commercial liability and other types of coverage to City departments.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

ALL INTERNAIL SERVICE FUNDS (in thousands)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Equity in cash and investments...........c..c.oevvuvvuvininvenennnns
Accounts receivable. .. i
Other receivables.. ..o ierinir i

Due from independent agencies and other governments........
Advances to other funds............cooovieiiiiiiiiiiin
LI (171 o [ F RN

Buildings and IMpProvements...........covvveusiviinninnennsnnennans
Improvements other than buildings................................
Furniture and eqUIPIMEIIt. ... oveeeveeriiieeeieeeeeeee e eneennass

Less accumulated depreciation.............ccooeeviiiiinnnenon.e.
Total Property, Plant and Equipment, Net.............covovevennnn...

TOTAL ASSETS.....cn s resesessasssensne

- 220 -

FLEET

$ 55,706

1,260

1,084

58,062

36
3,429
329
79,540

83,334

(61,662)

31,672

$ 89,734

COPY

138

138
— (13%8)

$ 317

INFORMATION
TECHNOIOGIES

$ 14,567

14
996

277

15,854

22

457
4,430
33,336

38,245
{29,976)
8,269

$ 24,123



TOTALS

SELF- GROUP INSURED
LEGAL INSURANCE HEALTH PROGRAMS 2000 1999

$ 1,180 $ 70,393 $ 3472 $ 1,807 $ 147,439 $ 137,485
2 164 79 - 245 113

- - - 75 75 102

21 3,332 - - 3,369 12,622

476 351 - - 3,086 4,666

- 13,551 - - 13,551 14,000

- - - - 1,371 1,378

- - 14 - 14 14

1,679 87,791 3,565 1,882 169,150 170,380

- - - - 58 58

- - - - 3,886 3,886

62 - - 47 4,858 4,868

160 12 161 155 113,502 106,950

- - - 132 132 342

222 12 161 334 122,448 116,104
(199) (8) {(110) {133) (82,226) (80,308)

23 4 51 201 40,220 35,798

§ 1,702 $ 87,785 $ 3618 $ 2,083 $ 209,370 $ 206,178

(continued)

See accompanying independent auditors’ report. =221 -



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS (in thousands: continued)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
FLEET COPY INFORMATION
MANAGEMENT CENTER TECHNOLOGIES
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.......................... 5 876 & 2 3 1,003
Due toother funds.........o.oi i - - -
Due to independent agencies and other governments............ - - -
Capitalized lease obligations, current portion.................... - - 332
Estimated liability for self-insured fosses........................, - - -
Accrued compensated absences, current portion................. 113 5 122
Total Current Liabilities. .. ..ooeiniiniiiiiiiiiie e e 989 7 1,457
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES, net of current portion:
Accrued compensated abSences. ... .ooiiiiiiiii i 830 51 898
Capitalized lease obligations.........ccc.vcieiieiieericiraniinnnnn, - - 777
Total Long-Term Liabilities. ...........ocooooiiiiiinniiiiineen., 830 - 51 1,675
TOTAL LIABILITIES......cctiiiiiiiiniinieinissceisnscssesans 1,819 58 3,132
FUND EQUITY:
Contributed capital. ... ..o 6,282 - 5,001
Retained earnings:
Unreserved. ....co e e aen 81,633 259 15,990
Total Retained Barnings......ccocvvcevviiiciniiiciiaieaeeenine, 81,633 259 15,990
TOTAL FUND EQUITY ... e, 87,915 259 20,991
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY ...c.cevreeerennnen. $ 89,734 $ 317 $ 24,123
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TOTALS

SELF- GROUP INSURED

LEGAL INSURANCE HEALTH PROGRAMS 2000 1999
s 122 3$ 31 $ 2,761 $ 1 $ 4,796 S 4,600
- y - - - 560
- 16 - y 16 1,855
. - - - 332 ag
- 56,147 y - 56,147 65,580
72 3 10 2 327 345
194 56,197 2,771 3 61618 72.879
526 19 71 15 2,410 2,420
- - - - 777 -
526 19 71 15 3187 2,420
720 56,216 2,842 18 64,805 75,399
2 1 20 39 11,345 12,671
980 31,578 754 2,026 133,220 118,108
980 31,578 754 2,026 133,220 118,108
982 31,579 774 2,065 144,565 130,779
$ 1,702 $ 87,795 $ 3616 $ 2,083 $ 200,370 $ 206,178

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 273



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND

CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT)
ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS (in thousands)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

OPERATING REVENUE:

Total Operating Revenue. ... ..o e,

OPERATING EXPENSES:
PerSONAl SEIVICES. oot e e
Supplies and materials. ... s
L0001 11 L T o o S O U OO U
Other services and charges.........ccocviivieriiiieniiie e e
Bad debts, net of recOVEIIES. . uuverre e irra e resaneaanans
DEPreciation. . ... covii it
Claims and 1088eS. ... vireiriieri s et naens

Total Operating Expenses. ..o e

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)......cooiiiiiiiiiiiii e

NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES):
4 E T = 11O N

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE
OPERATING TRANSFERS.............. i,

OPERATING TRANSFERS:

Operating transfers in.............oooiiiii s

Operating transfers OUE........oviieiriimeeiarer e s e e eneaeens
Total Operating Transfers In (OUt)..........oecevviiriiiiiiniii e
NET INCOME (LOSS)....uiieieiiit i eaeeeie it st eee e eeeeetaeen e e e eaaeeen
Add depreciation on contributed asSets.........coveeiiiiiiirin s
Increase (decrease) in retained earnings.........c...cocciiiiiniiiienirrininn
RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR...........

Residual equity transfer Out.......ooveviiiiiiiiiiiiici s

RETAINED EARNINGS, END OF YEAR.......ccocvvciiniiienecieie e

37,073

7,051
10,393
78
4,868
10,634
24
33,048
4,025

2,462
1,048

3,510

7,535

4,275
4,275
11,810
1,127
12,937

68,656

$ 81,633

COPY INFORMATION
CENTER TECHNOLOGIES
$ 488 $ 20,277

1 53
489 20,330
201 6,891

14 1,004
58 3,729
257 6,222

. 2,514

- 39
530 20,489
(41) (159)

1 648
(17) (993)
(18) (345)
(57) (504)
(57) (504)

- 346
(67 (158)
316 16,148

$ 259

$ 15,990
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TOTALS

SELF- GROUP INSURED

LEGAL INSURANCE HEALTH PROGRAMS 2000 1999
$ 6,556 $ 21,573 $ 34,430 $ 3,384 $ 123,781 $ 113,009
23 231 44 - 352 1,146
6,579 21,804 34,474 3,384 124,133 114,245
4318 492 668 216 19,837 20,107
78 12 16 2 11,609 9,156
86 22 60 13 4,046 3,210
912 4,605 822 422 18,108 13,964
- . - - - 8
12 1 18 19 13,198 12,879
- 327 - - 327 9,968
3 1,792 32,995 2,869 37,722 35,877
5,409 7,251 34,579 3,541 104,847 105,169
1,170 14,553 (105) (157) 19,286 9,076
6 4,638 138 75 7,968 4,465
(262) (525) (274) 526 {497) (370)
(256) 3113 {136) 601 7 471 4,095
914 18,666 (241) 444 26,757 13,171
426 1,072 3 - 5,776 10,366
- {18,910) - (3) (18,913) (15,183)
426 (17,838) 3 (3) (13,137) (.817)
1,340 828 (238) 441 13,620 8,354
. - 6 13 1,492 1,553
1,340 828 (232) 454 15,112 9,907
(360) 30,750 986 1,572 118,108 108,417
- - - - - (218)
$ 980 $ 31,578 $ 754 $ 2,026 $ 133,220 $ 118,108

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALL INTERNAL SERVICE ¥UNDS (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

FLEET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS). ...t iiriciiiieaeiiarie e iieeia s ani e seneaaenas $ 4,025

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amoOrtiZation. . .....couyueivtirrsrnirasiisisreiiiaisiiinannns 10,634
Other non-operating revenue/ (EXPenses) .. ..o e eee e aeeenererinirenearens 1,048
Change in assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in receivables and other current assets, NEt.........ocevvveuvenn. 2
Decrease (increase) in due from other funds...............ooooiiiiiiinii i, -
Decrease (increase) in due from independent agencies and other governments.... 487
Decrease (InCrease} in inVentOrIES. ..vvrvevie e iricririiienieeeeeeeemeeerneenennes (107}
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and
ACCTHEU X PBTISES . 1 e uateruatatrnsiarsestunenrtennansseensesanensensnastonensreneananens (816}
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds.........o.oooiiiiiiiiiiiini e, -
Increase (decrease) in due to COMPONENT UNMIS......ceiviiariirieirieiieeieneieneanss -
Increase (decrease) in due to independent agencies and other governments........ -
Increase (decrease) in compensated absENCeS. .......c....ociiriiiiiinrienienrnreinenns 2
Increase (decrease) in liability for self-insured losses...........coooevvvieeiininnan...
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS .....iitiimiiieiiciieiieee e vt tenaran s enenaes 11,450
NET CASH PROVIDED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES. ... e 15,475
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received through operating transfers from other funds............occoveeeennnnnon. 4,275
Cash payments through operating transfers to other funds..................cocevvneen.. -
Cash payment on advances reCeiVed. ... ..uuueerernieiesniiieetieieenieeenieeeneaeeenninns -

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN)

NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:.....c.coocoiiiiinnieieiiceeee s 4,275
CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to property, plant and eqUIPMent...........ccviiieeieeinviiie e eeenae {26,615)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment...........cccoevvvreinniennannnens 11,307
Principal paid on long-term obligations. ............ovvuiiieiiiiei i rea e -
Transfer of net assets to General Fund..........cco..iceiiiiiiiiniieei i, -

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES.......cooovviiiiiriieeie e e ($ 15,308)

(341)

(7

38
63

(13)

27

98

57
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INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGIES

& 159

2,514
(993}

14
(400)
51

524

(181)

1,549

1,390

{1,907)
87
777

{$ 1,043)



$§ 1,170

12
(262)

(17}
431

(82)
(560)

87

{421)

749

426

426

{1

& 1

SELF-
INSURANCE

$ 14,553

1
(525)

(164)
9,705
1,022

(37)

(1.839)
3
(5.433)

(1,267)

13,286

1,072
(18,910}

{17,838)

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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GROUP INSURED
HEALTH PROGRAMS
(3 105) ($ 157)
18 19
(274) 526
30 27
2 -
439 (9)
44 (1)
259 552
154 395
3 -
- 3}
3 )
(31) {n
{$ 31) (3 1)
{continued)

TOTALS

$ 195,286

— (9,433

12,220

31,508

(13,137)

(3 16,383}

2000

13,198
(497)

(105}
9,702
1,580

7

196
(560)

(1.839)
(29)

5,776
(18,913)

(28,554)
11,394
777

1998

$ 9076

12,879
(370)

40
(21,435)

1,433

160

1
&80
83
1,588
(384)

{1,656)

{6.993)

2,083

10,366
(15,183)
{700)

(5,517)

(17,881)
6,677
(441)

(216)
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALY, INTERNAL SERYICE FUNDS (in thousands; continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

FLEET COPY INFORMATION
MANAGEMENT CENTER TECHNOLOGIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest and dividends o iNVESIMENES.......uviiiiiett i een v i aenas $ 2462 $ 1 5 648
NET CASH PROVIDED BY
INVESTING ACTIVITIES. ...ttt iineant e e e e eereene e 2,462 1 648
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS ... oottt e e e eai e e e e e aaanes 6,904 58 995
Cash and cash equivalents at October 1......cooieiiiioiiiiiiiec e, 48,802 256 13,572
Cash and cash equivalents at September 30............covveiiirieiiineiieieni e, $ 55,706 5314 $ 14,567
CLASSIFIED AS:
CUFTEIE ASSEES ... ittt e eeeci e i eeerr e te e s ae s e eetncenneeneean s ennnertnrererenaees $ 55,706 $314 $ 14,567

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Acquisition of contributed capital 885EL8.. ... v.eiiiieiniiiiii it $ 150 $ - $ 10

TOTAL NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES. ...ttt cieeii it ee e e eea e § 150 5 - 3 10
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1,180

$1.180

$ 1,180

SELF-

$ 4,638

4,638

87

70,306

$ 70,393

$ 70,3983

GROUP
HEALTIH

$ 138

138

264

3,208

$3.472

$3.472

TOTALS

INSURED
PROGRAMS 2000 1999

§ 75 $ 7.968 § 4,465

75 7,868 4,465

466 9,954 (10,830)

1,341 137,485 148,315

$ 1,807 $ 147,438 $ 137,485

$ 1,807 $ 147,439 $ 137,485

$ - $ 166 $ 766

5 - 3 166 $ 766

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary Funds account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent for
individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds. Below are
descriptions of the generic fund types within this category and specific funds within each
fund type.

PENSION TRUST FUNDS are funds administered by independent boards for which the
City performs a fiduciary role under a defined benefit program those retirement funds for
which the participant's retirement annuity is based on a statutory formula utilizing such

factors as age, average salary, length of service and others. The City has two pension trust
funds as described below.

The General Employees Pension Trust Fund includes resources accumulated to
pay present and future retirement annuities to eligible employees of the City except
for employees of the Office of the Sheriff and City Department of Fire and Rescue.

The Police and Fire Pension Trust Fund accounts for a single employer,
contributory defined benefit plan for City police officers and firefighters.

NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS are funds whose resources, excluding principal may
be expended in the course of the fund's designated operations.

The Nonexpendable Trust Fund receives funds from donors who legally restrict
the resources so that only earnings may be spent for the trusts' intended purpose,
maintaining the principal for future eamings.

EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS are funds whose resources, including principal and
interest, may be expended in the course of the fund's designated operations.

The Expendable Trust Fund receives revenue from many miscellaneous
governmental and non-governmental sources in the form of contributions, donations,
gifts, and grants to be held in trust that can be expended only for those purposes
specified by the donors as set forth in the City ordinance under which the expendable
trust was established.

AGENCY FUNDS are funds which hold monies in an agency capacity for varjous
government units, individuals or funds. Individual fund descriptions follow.

The Treasurer Fund is the clearing fund used to account for all cash received and
disbursed on behalf of the City's payroll.

The Tax Collector Fund accounts for assets and liabilities from the collection of all
taxes, revenues and other cash amounts on behalf of the City and various of its
agencies, authorities, organizations, individuals, and funds.

The Clerk of the Circuit Court Fund accounts for assets and liabilities from
revenues collected on behalf of the State and City by the Court System for various
judgements, fines, bonds, fees and licenses, and other miscellaneous amounts.



Plat Deposits Fund accounts for the deposits placed with the City as collateral to
insure the completion of improvements in the event of default by a developer or
failure by the developer to complete improvements within the time specified by the
ordinance approving the Final Plat,

The Florida Retirement System Fund accounts for a multiple-employer, cost-
sharing defined benefit plan for certain City employees who elected to remain with
the State of Florida Retirement System.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS (in thousands)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
PENSION TRUST FUNDS
GENERAL POLICE NONEXPENDABLE EXPENDABLE
EMPLOYEES AND FIRE TRUST TRUST
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Equity in cash and investments...........c..c.cvevviivrneniinnnns $ 1,529,681 $ 843663 $ 311 $ 5,255
Receivables (net, where applicable, of
allowances for uncollectibles):
ACCOUIIES. . ..\ttt e e e et eeevenenns 2] 72 - 41
Due from individuals.............ooo - - - -

Due from other funds..........c.cciiiiiviieivnrierireieeeeeenas - 246 - -

Due from independent agencies and other governments...... - - - -
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS. .. .o evaaes 1,528,690 843,981 311 5,296
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT:

Land. s e - 24 - -

Building and improvements.............vceuvieiiiniieieninennenss - 155 - -

Improvements other than buildings.........c.ccooveeiiiinncnnen. - 97 - -

Furniture and equipment..........c..ooocoviiiiiiiiciiinann., 128 193 - -

Less: accumulated depreciation.........cc.covvveviiiicniannnn. (68) (235) - -
TOTAL PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, Net....... 60 234 - -
TOTAL ASSETS....c et resrissestavsssesssnarreree $ 1,529,750 $ 844,215 3 311 $ 5,296

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.............cc.co.co.e. $ 13 $ 880 $ 1 $ 75

Contracts Payable......ov.vveueeuenrirenerenreaneneseaaansan. - - - 35

Due to other funds. ... - - - -

Due to independent agencies and other governments......... - - - -

Due to individuals........cooeiiieieniinrin e - 28,408 - -

Current portion of long-term liabilities......................... 1 5 - -

Deposits held in eScrow. .vuvviniieiiniiiie v - - - 8
Total Current Liabilities........c.cooooiiiiiiiiiiiii i, 14 28,293 1 118
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES, net of current portion:

Accrued compensated abSENCES. .........ociiiiritierrniiiiaiie. 11 33 - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES. .. ... itreiiiieier e iee e eee e eneaaens 25 289,326 1 118
FUND EQUITY:

Fund balance:

Reserved:
Reserved for employees’ retirement benefits............ 1,528,725 814,889 - -
Unreserved:
Designated for changes in fair value of investments.... - - - 26
Undesignated. ... ...ocuiiieiivnnenirr e iceiaenannans - - 310 5,152

Total Fund Balances........coouiiiiiniiiiciiecrriieeeaneanan 1,528,725 814,889 310 5178
Total Fund EQUity....ccocvviiiiiiiiiiicii i eceeens 1,529,725 814,889 310 5,178
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES.............. $ 1,520,750 $ 844,215 $ 311

$ 5,296
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AGENCY FUNDS

FLORIDA TOTALS
TAX CLERK OF THE PLAT RETIREMENT
TREASURER COLLECTOR CIRCUIT COURT DEPOSITS SYSTEM 2000 1599
$ 2,803 $ 19,987 $ 14,726 $ 299 $ 14 $ 2,416,739 $ 2,266,445
68 . 129 - - 319 620
- 3,940 - - - 3,840 2,978
- - . - . 246 197
- - - - - . 7.413
2,871 23,927 14,855 299 14 2,421,244 2,277,654
. . - - - 24 24
. N . - - 155 155
. . - . - 97 97
. . - - . 321 317
) . . . - (303) (252)
. ~ N - - 294 341
$ 2,871 $ 23,027 $ 14,855 $ 299 S 14 $ 2,421,538 $ 2,277,995
$ 2,871 $ - $ - $ 88 $ - $ 3,928 $ 1,393
- - - - - 35 1
- 2,246 2,426 - - 4,672 12,989
- 11,962 2,483 - 14 14,459 13,729
- 323 1,550 . - 30,281 28,429
- - - - - 6 6
- 9,396 8,396 211 - 18,011 13,319
2,871 23,927 14,855 299 14 71,392 69,866
. - - - - 44 42
2,871 23,927 14,855 299 14 71,436 69,908
- . - - . 2,344,614 2,203,816
- - - - - 28 13
N - . - . | 5,462 4,258
. . - - - 2,350,102 2,008,087
. B - - - 2,350,102 2,208,087
$ 2,871 $ 23,927 $ 14,855 $ 299 $14 $ 2,421,538 § 2,277,495

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FIDUCIARY FUNDS - NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

OPERATING REVENUE:

Earnings on investmients. ... ...oc.oir it rerirere e e rae e aeraaeaas

Total Operating Revenue............covvvvvenneenns

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Total Operating Expenses...........o.ccoveene.

OPERATING INCOME......ccuiiiiimiiiitiinnan s naistisrsssssssressasnssnnane

NET INCOME.....coutiermrsrnsirrrernssnsenssessssessrsossasssrissasssssstssresssasrsanss

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR.......coocirimiuiririraraiiessiinssrisasns

TOTALS

2000 1999
$ 19 5 11
19 11
8 6
8 6
11 5
11 5
299 294
—3$310 $ 299

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FIDUCIARY FUNDS - EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND (in thousands)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

TOTALS
2000 1999

REVENUE:

Fines and forfeitures. ... .coooviiiiiiiiiii e 3 - $ 1

BE 11 U OO TP 96 7

L6441 3,051 1,769
Total REVEIUE. ...ttt e v r e et reaneeeennaanen 3,147 1,777
EXPENDITURES:

General BOVEIMUTIENT. ....vuiiusiir it eiei ettt eea e e e aa e nes 478 110

U BB VIO . ettt eiii it vt e e tra et et e ae et eeaas 87 54

Public Safety....c.ooii e e e 1,057 1,287

Culture and FeCreation.......ccoiiitiirrisirrarr e ereerre e rarensas 281 328

ECOnOmic enVITONIMENT, .. .uutinninineiee it eeeeeseneeeearaeniaianeenrnrarensnns 127 226

Physical environment. .........c.oouviieiiiii e e 61 86
Total EXpenditures........ccvviiieiiiiari it e, 2,091 2,091
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES............. 1,056 {314)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Operating transfers in...........ocoeeiiiieiiiii e 162 -

Operating transfers OUl. ... vve et e e (12) (98)
Total Other Financing (USE8)....cceiuiieeieiiiai et vioveen v reeens 150 (98)
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER SOURCES

OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES............. 1,206 (412)
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR.....coiiiiiiiciee e 3,972 4,384
FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR......cccctiovcrinraceiresersrnsnsssarsveses $ 5,178 $§ 3,972
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FL.ORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LYABILITIES
FIDUCIARY FUNDS - ALL AGENCY FUNDS (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAIL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

BALANCE BALANCE
OCTOBER 1, SEPTEMBER 30,
1999 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 2000
TREASURER
ASSETS

Equity in cash and investments..............ccocveeen.., 5 - $ 462,638 $ 459,835 $2,803
Accounts receivable............oc 142 237 311 68
TOTAL ASSETS...coieiiiiiee e eces e $ 142 $ 462,875 $ 460,146 $ 2,871

LIABILITEES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.................. 5 - $ 616,952 $ 614,081 $2,871
Due to other funds. ... 142 - 142 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES......ccooiviiiiirieiiieeeeeeaeiens $ 142 $ 616,952 $ 614,223 $2,871

TAX COLLECTQR
ASSETS

Equity in cash and investments...........ovevevvnvenennennn. - $43,352 $ 597,926 $ 621,291 519,987
Due from individuals..........coovvvveiniiiviciieeirienen 2,978 3,540 2,978 3,840
TOTAL ASSETS. ..ot e, $ 46,330 $ 601,866 $ 624,269 $ 23,927

LIABILITIES
Duetoother funds...........oiiviiviiivirrii i ieenas § 2,223 $ 2,246 $ 2223 $ 2,246
Due to independent agencies and other governments. ... 18,496 11,962 18,496 11,962
Due to individuals........cocoviiiiiiiiiie . 18,059 323 18,059 323
Deposits held in escrow...............c.ciiiiiniiniina, 7,552 594,466 592,622 9,398
TOTAL LIABILITIES.......covveiiiiniineeieeeeeeeanens $ 46,330 $ 608,997 $ 631,400 $ 23,927
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FIDUCIARY FUNDS - ALL AGENCY FUNDS (in thousands; continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

BALANCE BALANCE
OCTOBER 1, SEPTEMBER 30,
1999 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 2000
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT
ASSETS
Equity in cash and investments...........ccovveeereirenniennnns $12,755 $ 1,961 $ - $ 14,726
Accounts receivable........oooiioiiiiiiiii 143 - 14 129
TOTAL ASSETS....coiiiiiieie et $ 12,908 $ 1,961 $ 14 $ 14,855
LIABILITIES
Ductoother funds.........ocooiiiiiiii $ 2,239 $ 1,178 $ 991 $ 2426
Due to independent agencies and other governments....... 3477 991 1,985 2,483
Due to individuals. ... oo e, 1,647 - . 97 1,550
Deposits held in eSCTow. covvuviveiiiiiiii e 5,545 2,851 - 8,396
TOTAL LIABILITIES........cii e $ 12,908 $ 5,020 $ 3,073 $ 14,855
PLAT DEPOSITS
ASSETS
Equity in cash and investments..............ccevevvenivennnsen $319 $ 400 $ 420 $ 299
TOTAL ASSETS..... e, $319 $ 400 $ 420 $ 299
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities...................... $ 108 $ 400 $ 421 % 88
Deposits held In eSCrow.......cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiei i, 210 400 389 211
TOTAL LIABILITIES......ccooiiiiiiiiisiiee e eeeeee s $ 318 $ 800 $ 820 $ 299

{continued)

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FIDUCIARY FUNDS - ALL AGENCY FUNDS (in thousands; continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

BALANCE BALANCE
OCTOBER 1, SEPTEMBER 30,
1999 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 2000
FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM
ASSETS
Equity in cash and investments...............ccooeeecnenenn. $ - $ 402 $ 388 $14
Accounts receivable. ... 141 - 141 -
TOTAL ASSETS. ... $ 141 $ 402 $ 528 $14
LIABILITIES
Due to other funds. ..., $ 141 5 - 5 141 $ -
Due to independent agencies and other governments..... - 14 - 14
TOTAL LIABILITIES.......cooiii e erceeeeae $ 141 $ 14 $ 141 $14
TOTALS - ALL AGENCY FUNDS
ASSETS
Equity in cash and investments...........c.cceuveennenenn.n. $ 56,436 $ 1,083,327 $1,081,934 $ 37,829
Accounts receivable.........oooiiiii 426 237 466 197
Due from individuals...........coviniviieee e 2,978 3,940 2,978 3,840
TOTAL ASSETS. ..o e $ 59,840 $ 1,067,504 $ 1,085,378 $ 41,966
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.................... $ 109 $§ 617,352 $ 614,502 $ 2959
Duetoother funds.......cccoiiiiiiiii e 4,745 3,424 3,497 4,872
Due to independent agencies and other governments..... 21,973 12,967 20,481 14,459
Due to individuals..........ooviiiinii e 19,706 323 18,156 1,873
Deposits held in 5Crow. oo 13,307 597,717 593,021 18,003
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ...t ceiec e eans $ 59,840 $ 1,231,783 $ 1,249,657 $ 41,966

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

OPERATING INCOME...... .ot ee e ee

Change in assets and liabilities:

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses...................
Interest ON INVESIIMENES. ... ..o\ ittt errarraaeasrre st rrretseranss st ansansesasnis

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS ..ottt seria et cs e

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES.............ooiiiiiiinnes

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

INterest OMN VS IIIEIIES . oottt e esesaeae et eeae it en i et e e m e e e e e e e e e e ea e e neanran

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS.........oooevvivvnvnnnnnn.
Cash and cash equivalents at October 1.............coiiiiiiciinei e,

Cash and cash equivalents at September 30........o.coviiiiiiiii i

CLASSIFIED AS:

TOTALS
2000 1999
5 N $ 5
1 (3)
{19) (11)
(18) (14)
N @
19 11
19 11
12 2
299 297
$311 $ 299
3311 $ 299
3311 $ 299

See accompanying independent auditors' report,
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GENERAL FIXED ASSET ACCOUNT GROUP

The General Fixed Asset Account Group is maintained to account for fixed assets acquired

or constructed for use by the City, other than those accounted for in proprietary and fiduciary
funds.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
BY SOURCE (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

BALANCE RETIREMENTS BALANCE
OCTOBER 1, AND OTHER SEPTEMBER 30,
1999 ADDITIONS DELETIONS RECLASSIFICATION* 2000
GENERAL FIXED ASSETS:
Land.....coooiveiiiiniiiiiiiinioneniiinen.... $ 91,233 $ 7,651 5 1 $ - $ 93,883
Buildings and improvements............. 449,720 14,911 1,629 - 463,002
Furniture and equipment.................. 54,137 3,838 4,941 - 53,034
TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS... § 595,090 $ 26,400 $6,571 $ - $614,919
INVESTMENT IN
GENERAL FIXED ASSETS FROM:
CUFTENT TEVENUL. ouvvveeeireneieeeenenns $ 277,664 $ 8,370 $ 3,748 ($ 56,654) $ 225,632
Bond proceeds........ooooiieiiiiiiiienn. 292,376 371 85 - 292,662
Federal grants.............coccvievnvinnnnnns 22972 17,607 2,712 56,654 94,521
Gifts. .o 2,078 52 26 - 2,104
TOTAL INVESTMENT IN
GENERAL FIXED ASSETS.........c.os. $ 595,090 $ 26,400 $6,571 $ - $ 614,919

* Reclassification of Investment Source of General Fixed Assets

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY :

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Legislative
Executive
Financial and Administrative
Comprehensive Planning
Pension Benefits
Other General Governmental Services

TOTAL GENERAL GOYERNMENT

PUBLIC SAFETY
Law Enforcement
Fire Control
Detention and/or Correction
Protective Inspection
Emergency and Disaster Relief Services
Ambulance and Rescue Services
Medical Examiners
Consumers Affairs
Other Public Safety

TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY

PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT
Conservation and Resource Management
Other Physical Environment

TOTAL PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT

TRANSPORTATION
Road and Streets Facilities
Other Transportation Services

TOTAL TRANSPORTATION

ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT
Employment Opportunity and Development
Industry Development
Veterans Services
Housing and Urban Development
Other Economic Environment

TOTAL ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

HUMAN SERVICES
Health
Mental Health
Developmental Disabilities
Other Human Services

TOTAL HUMAN SERVICES

CULTURE AND RECREATION
Libraries
Parks and Recreation
Special Events
Special Recreation Facilities

TOTAL CULTURE AND RECREATION

GENERAL ADMINISTRATION (COURT-RELATED}

State Attorney Administration
Clerk of Court Administration
Court Administration

Information System (Court Related)
Public Law Library

TOTAL GENERAL ADMIN, (COURT-RELATED)

OTHER UNCLASSIFIED

TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

Building & Furniture &

Land Improvements Equipment TOTAL
3 - 3 - § 1273 $ 1,273
- - 229 229
3,050 28,339 3,386 34,775
- - 609 609
- 469 128 597
- 13,358 1,223 14,581
3,050 42,166 6,848 52,064
5,693 90,915 14,095 111,003
992 13,383 3,689 18,064
- - 332 332
- 232,244 426 232,670
- - 371 371
- - 3,818 3,818
- - 354 354
- - 45 45
- - 7 7
6,985 336,542 23,137 366,664
- - 4,061 4,061
- - 524 524
- - 4,585 4,585
- - 927 927
- - g 8
- - 935 935
- - 21 21
- - 200 290
- - 109 109
2,601 - 965 3,566
- - 2,625 2,625
2,601 - 4,010 6,611
- 12,825 2,469 15,294
- - 181 181
- - 41 41
- - 1,086 1,086
- 12,825 3,777 16,602
1,981 - 2,218 4,199
28,664 22,980 2,830 54,474
- - 77 77
- - 24 24
30,645 22,980 5,149 58,774
- - 125 125
- 12,282 1,468 13,750
- - 1,372 1,372
- 1,911 - 1,911
- - 1 1
- 14,193 2,966 17,159
35,602 34,296 1,627 91,525
§ 98,883 3 463,002 $ 53,034 $ 614919
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

Retirements

Balance and Other Balance
FUNCTION AND ACTEVITY : October 1, 1999 Additions Deletions September 30, 2000
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Legislative $ 1,220 $ 53 $ - $ 1,273
Executive 226 3 - 229
Financial and Administrative 34,455 320 - 34,775
Comprehensive Planning 587 22 - 609
Pension Benefits 597 - - 597
Other General Governmental Services 16,571 524 2,514 14,581
TOTAL GENERAL GOYERNMENT 53,656 922 2,514 52,064
PUBLIC SAFETY
Law Enforcement 110,237 766 - 111,003
Fire Control 18,683 1,010 1,629 18,064
Detention and/or Correction 196 136 - 332
Protective Inspection 232,579 91 - 232,670
Emergency and Disaster Relief Services 263 108 - 3T
Ambulance and Rescue Services 3,460 358 - 3,818
Medical Examiners 342 12 - 354
Consumers Affairs 45 - - 45
Other Public Safety 7 - - 7
TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY 365,812 2,481 1,629 366,664
PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT
Conservation and Resource Management 3,540 521 - 4,061
Other Physical Environment 618 170 264 524
TOTAL PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT 4,158 691 264 4,585
TRANSPORTATICN
Road and Streets Facilities 886 41 - 927
Other Transportation Services 8 - - 8
TOTAL TRANSPORTATION 894 4] - 935
ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT
Employment Opportunity and Development 21 - 21
Industry Development 280 10 - 290
Veterans Services 106 3 - 109
Housing and Urban Development 3,525 g0 49 3,566
Other Economic Environment 2,138 552 65 2,625
TOTAL ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT 6,070 655 114 6,611
HUMAN SERVICES
Health 2,384 12,910 - 15,294
Mental Health 181 - - 181
Developmental Disabilities 41 - - 41
Other Human Services 932 168 i4 1,086
TOTAL HUMAN SERVICES 3,538 13,078 14 16,602
CULTURE AND RECREATION
Libraries . 4172 27 - 4,199
Parks and Recreation 46,146 8,328 - 54,474
Special Events 77 - - 77
Special Recreation Facilities 16 8 - 24
TOTAL CULTURE AND RECREATION 50,411 8,363 - 58,774
GENERAL ADMINISTRATION (COURT-RELATED)
State Attorney Administration 102 23 - 125
Clerk of Court Administration 13,686 64 - 13,730
Court Administration 1,290 82 - 1,372
Information System (Court Related) 1911 - - 1.511
Public Law Library 1 - - 1
TOTAL GENERAL ADMIN. (COURT-RELATED) 16,990 169 - 17,159
OTHER UNCLASSIFIED 93,561 2,036 91,525
TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS $ 595,090 $ 26,400 $ 6571 $ 614919
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GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS ACCOUNT GROUP

The General Long-Term Obligations Account Group accounts for unmatured principal
of bonds, notes and other forms of long-term indebtedness which are not accounted for in
proprietary or fiduciary funds.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF GENERAL

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000, and 1999

2000 1999

Amount Available for the Retirement of General Long-Term Obligations:

Special bonded debt obligations............oovvvniiiiiii e, $ 48,324 $ 41,848

Non-Bonded debt obligations. ..........oieiiiiii i 1,046 1

Total Available....vvierriiiieniiiiiriiiisserierciieeranreresierisisssisessssecnesnas 47,370 41,859

Amount to be Provided for the Retirement of General Long-Term Obligations:

General TUNG. ... e e 680,827 667,225

B E BT 15 T T ] T o SO 11,219 12,345

Sports, Convention and Tourism Development.............oooiiiiiiniciien i ianns 111,260 111,994

Totzl to be Provided. ..o vveerieiceiieicriinieiiis s s 803,306 791,564

TOTAL AMOUNT AVAILABLE AND TO BE PROVIDED.........ccocoeceueennnnen $ 850,676 $ 833,423
GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLEGATIONS:

Due 10 COMPONENT UNILS. ....u.i.neetieiieiiie i v e e ans 3 800 5 1200

Accrued compensated abSENCES. .. uuiuiiiii i ey 53,017 52,132

Commercial PAPET NOLES. .......inivrversrieueanrarernenrranrareserairssiatentteennenennns 60,000 60,000

General obligation bonds payable.........o.ooi i 1,755 2,285

Special obligation bonds payable...........ooiiiiiiiiii 718,300 697,915

Notes payable..........oooviiiiniii et e en e 15,565 19,425

Capitalized lease oblIZations..........o..iiiiiviiriieiiri e e e e iee e, 239 466
TOTAL GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS.......cc.ccoiieuuicnninirnsransanes $ 850,676 $ 833,423

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

The Supplemental Information provided herein contains schedules
of the Debt Service Funds bonded indebtedness and debt service
requirements detail.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF LONG-TERM BONDED INDEBTEDNESS (in thousands)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

INTEREST PAYMENT ISSUE
RATES DATES DATE
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE
FROM AD VALOREM TAXES:
Duval County Certificates of Indebtedness of 1972........ccoovviiriiirininiicinn e, 4.50 - 5.25% 41; 101 10/01/72
TOTAL PAYABLE FROM AD VALOREM TAXES.......c.c.convieieniicnnenns
SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE FROM SPECIFIC REVENUE
SOURCES OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXES:
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1991 . ..ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiirnnnes 6.20 -6.30 % 4/1; 101 08/13/91
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1992.......0iviiniiiiieciiicieeeenne, 5.80 -6.50 % 4/1; 101 02/25/92
Guaranteed Entitlement Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1992A.................oceell 530 -590 % 4/1: 1011 09/17192
Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 1993 ... 490 -6.30 % 4/1; 101 02/23/93
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1993A. .. ..ooviieiniiiieiiiie e, 480 - 5375% 4/1; 101 08/11/93
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1994..........coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinane, 4.95 - 5875% 4f1; 1011 08/17/94
Sunshine State Governmental Finance Commission Bonds, Series 1994.................. 9.20 % (1) Monthly 08/24/94
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1995..... .o, 4.90 -5875% 4/1; 1011 03/14/95
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1005, ... cirieireeesciearrteneneiaeisntimananannns 5.00 -6.00 % 4/1; 10M1 06/28/95
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1995A. ... cvvvvn i 4.875-5.125% 4/1; 1041 01/04/96
Guaranteed Entitlernent Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1995A....................... 4375-440 % 41; 101 11/29/95
Sunshine State Governmental Finance Commission Bonds, Series 1995A................ 475 -565 % 4/1; 101 10/05/95
Sunshine State Governmental Finance Commission Bonds, Series 1995B (AMT)...... 4,50 -5.75 % 4/1; 10/1 10/05/95
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1996.......cocivuiiiiniiiin e 4.05 -550 % a/1; 101 01/07/97
Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 19968 ....vvvvvvieirvrinriicnriicenasneneasrsensninnes 460 -570 % 4/1; 101 11/05/06
Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 1996C ... o ereanas 425 -485 % 4/1; 1011 11/05/96
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1997....ccoiirriiiieiiiecianiaiinnicnnnnns 410 -525 % 4/1; 10/ 0311197
Capital Project Revenue Bonds, Series 1997-1.........c.iiiiiiiiminiirini e e, 7.81 % (1) Monthly 01/22198
Capital Project Revenue Bonds, Series 1997-2... ... i ceiaceean, 8.89 % (1) Monthly 11/04/99
Capital Improvement and Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1998...............ccceeeeee 3.80 -5.00 % 4/1; 101 0B/26/98
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding and Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 1999A..... 3.30 -5.00 % 4/1; 10/1 03/09/98
TOTAL PAYABLE FROM SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES.....ccttarverrerasrnersenss
TOTAL GENERAL AND SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS.......ccccevniiniiniinnnnnnn .

{1) The above rates represent assumed rates on variable rate debt for coverage analysis or other purposes.
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FINAL

MATURITY
DATE AUTHORIZED ISSUED RETIRED OUTSTANDING
10/01/02 3 9,370 $ 8,370 $ 7615 $ 1,755
9,370 9,370 7,615 1,755
10/01/01 25,070 25,070 22,090 2,980
10/01113 ) 80,690 80,690 16,360 64,330
10/01/112 66,880 66,880 4,050 62,830
10/01/20 43,605 43,605 565 43,050
10/01/09 35,085 35,085 8,650 26,435
10/01/119 74,995 74,995 31,300 43,695
09/15/06 10,075 9,825 4,250 5,575
10/01/25 27,855 27,855 875 26,980
10/01/18 100,000 100,000 5,340 94,660
10/01/09 7,580 7,580 - 7,580
10/01/01 12,205 12,205 5,875 6,330
10/01/11 9,050 9,050 - 9,050
10/01/15 15,945 15,945 2,555 13,390
10/01/18 65,640 65,640 3,905 61,735
10/01/09 57,150 57,150 5,375 51,775
10/01/06 4,055 4,055 760 3,295
10/01/25 8,285 8,285 305 7,580
10/01/17 54,000 30,000 - 30,000
10/01/22 45,000 45,000 - 45,000
10/01/25 37,310 37,310 890 36,420
10/01/19 75,890 75,890 - 75,210
856,365 832,115 113,815 718,300
8 865,735 $ 841,485 $ 121,430 $ 720,055
(continued)}

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF LONG-TERM BONDED INDEBTEDNESS (in thousands; continued)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

PAYABLE FROM ENTERPRISE FUNDS:

Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1993A
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1995A
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1996A

Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding and Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 1999B......

TOTAL PAYABLE FROM ENTERFRISE FUNDS

PAYABLE FROM GENERAL REVENUE:

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1994A (Vistakon)
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1995 (Coach)

......................

U.8. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1996 (Sally Beauty).................

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1996-B (Hilton)
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (LaVilla)

U.3. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (HTV Associates)............
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (Jax Landing).................
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 {Armor Holdings)............
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (Hampton Tons)...............

TOTAL PAYABLE FROM GENERAL REVENUE

TOTAL BONDED INDEBTEDNESS

........................................

......................

....................

--------------------

INTEREST PAYMENT ISSUE
RATES DATES DATE
4.60 - 5.375% 4/1; 10H 08/11/93
4.25-5125% 411; 101 01/04/96
3.90-500 % 415101 02/28/96
420-575 % 4/1; 101 09/23/99
6.31-653% 21; 81 03/02/94
8.22-9.03% 2/1; 81 02/01/95
621-6.88% 2/1; 81 12/18/96
6.21-7.03% 2M1; 81 11/20/96
6.21-7.08 % 201; 81 0219197
6.21-6.78 % 2/1; 81 04/02/97

6.21% 2/1; 81 04/23/97
6.21-7.08 % 2/1; 81 10/28/97
6.21-7.03 % 2M1; 81 10/28/97
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FINAL

MATURITY

DATE

10/01/11
10/01/09
10/01/16
10/01/16

08/01/03
08/01/14
08/01/112
08/01/15
08/01/16
08/01/10
08/01/00
08/01/16
08/0115

AUTHORIZED

14,780
12,270
19,965

40,835

87,850

10,000
3,845
1,065
2,850
1,700

700
3,400
775
550

24,885

$ 978,470

ISSUED

40,835

87,850

24,885

$ 954,220

14,780
12,270
19,965

10,000
3,845
1,065
2,850
1,700

700
3,400
775
550

RETIRED OUTSTANDING
2,750 12,030
- 12,270
- 19,965
- 40,835
2,780 85,100
5,300 4,700
110 3,735
210 855
140 2,710
- 1,700
130 570
2,380 1,020
20 755
30 520
8,320 16,665
$ 132,500 $ 821,720

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
COMPARED TO CASH IN SINKING FUND
LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

PRINCIPAL
OUTSTANDING
General Obligation Bonds Payable from Ad Valorem Taxes:
Duval County Certificates of Indebtedness of 1972 .. ...t $ 1,755,000
L O T OO 1,755,000
Special Obligation Bonds Payable from Specific Revenue Source other than Ad Valorem Taxes:
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1991, oot 2,980,000
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1992, ... i 64,330,000
Guaranteed Entitlement Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1992A ... .ovoiiviiiiniiinniiiennns 62,830,000
Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 1993, ..ttt ettt eee e 43,050,140
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1993A.....o..coviiiiiieiii e 26,435,000
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1994..........cooviiiiiii i 43,695,000
Sunshine State Governmental Finance Commission Bonds, Series 1994........c.cocvviivveninnne. 5,575,000
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1995.... .o, 26,880,000
"~ Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1005, . .ottt teresreraaereeaeearaaraneaneans 94,660,000
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1995A.. ...t 7,580,000
Guaranteed Entitlement Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1995A......ccviviiiiniiieiiieiaeineans 6,330,000
Sunshine State Governmental Finance Commission Bonds, Series 1995A. ...cccorivivivnnnn, 9,050,000
Sunshine State Governmental Finance Commission Bonds, Series 1995B (AMT)................. 13,390,000
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1006, .. ...t cer et eee e e e eaenannan 61,735,000
Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 1996B......ciiuiiniiiieiiie e en 51,775,000
Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series T006C ... .. .viviiieiiis it iiia e eae e eeeeeaeenns 3,295,000
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1997.........c..iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeei e, 7,980,000
Capital Project Revertze Bonds, Series 1997-1. . v eenens 30,000,000
Capital Project Revenue Bonds, Series 1997-2. ...t iiiiiiiiiicaiieciniceee e 45,000,000
Capital Improvement and Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1998..........cooivviviviniiiinninns 36,420,000
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding and Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 1999A................ 75,210,000
| O 718,300,140
Payable from Enterprise Funds;
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1993A. ... oot eeeeeeaaeaans 12,030,000
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1995A.. ... oo 12,270,000
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1996A. ... ......oociiiiiiiiiiiiiii s 19,965,000
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding and Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 1999B................ 40,835,000
B L S YU 85,100,000
Other Long - Term Obligations: :
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1994A (Vistakon}........oo.oonveeeennenon... 4,700,000
U.8. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1995 (Coach).........cocovvvvvvivrieirnenann.n 3,735,000
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1996 (Sally Beauty).................c......... 855,000
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1996-B (Hilbon}.........cocvvrveiviionennnn... 2,710,000
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (LaVilla)..........covvvuvrinirenrinnnnen. 1,700,000
U.S. Gevernment Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (HTV Associaties)...................... 570,000
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (Jax Landing).......cucevviuivneeneenn... 1,020,000
U.5. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (Armor Holdings).............cevevee.. 755,000
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (Hampton Inns)...................v.eee, 520,000
4 Y SO ORS 16,565,000
Grand Total.. ..ot e e as $ 821,720,140
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TOTAL
INTEREST
TO

MATURITY

$ 129,226

128,226

189,852
30,164,582
27,680,100
54,608,030

7,400,292
31,777,670
1,835,400
26,420,702
57,204,503
3,170,854
281,213
3,861,996
7,527,555
34,719,613
17,240,471
558,978
6,492,539
25,188,620
65,786,859
37,469,961
23,756,165

463,335,955

4,129,790
4,576,441
9,703,351
21,423,898

39,833,480

590,965
3,263,365
390,684
1,857,128
881,039
233,145
63,342
555,760
366,523

8,201,951

$ 511,500,612

TOTAL
DEBT SERVICE
REQUIREMENTS
TO MATURITY

$ 1,884,226

1,884,226

3,169,852
94,494 582
90,510,100
97,658,170
33,835,292
75,472,670

7,410,400
53,400,702

151,864,503
10,750,854

6,611,213
12,911,996
20,817 555
96,454,613
69,015,471

3,853,978
14,472,539
55,188,620

110,786,859
73,889,961
98,966,165

1,181,636,095

16,159,790
16,846,441
29,668,351
62,258,898

124,933,480

5,290,965
6,998,365
1,245,684
4,567,128
2,581,039

803,145
1,083,342
1,310,780

886,523

24,766,951

$ 1,333,220,752

1,605,396
5,476,252
2,509,884
1,288,548
2,827,870
1,388,219
570,219
1,078,950
5,523,359
207,913
3,265,084
282,870
1,291,435
3,614,038
3,890,398
525,446
359,917
1,220,121
865,182
$86,630
6,747,425

45,526,156

1,086,811

299,780
1,115,464
1,756,793

4,238,848

1
9,310
38,203
944

1
7,454
4,592
14,031
75,636

_5 49840540

NET
DEBT

$ 1,884,226

1,884,226

1,564,456
89,018,330
88,000,216
96,369,622
31,007,422
74,084,451

6,840,181
52,320,752

146,341,144

10,542,941

3,346,129
12,628,126
19,626,120
92,840,575
65,125,073

3,328,532
14,112,622
53,068,499

109,921,677
72,903,331
92,218,740

1,136,108,939

15,082,979
16,546,661
28,552,887
60,502,105

120,694,632

5,290,965
6,898,364
1,236,374
4,528,225
2,580,085

803,144
1,075,888
1,305,768

872,492

24,691,315

$ 1,283,380,112

Unaudited - see accompanying independent anditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FL.ORIDA

SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY -
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

PAYABLE FROM AD VALOREM TAXES

SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

Purpose: Construction
of Police
Administration
Complex

Duval County

Certificates of
Indebtedness of 1972

Fiscal
Year Principal Interest
2001 $ 580,000 $ 72,900
2002 590,000 42,713
2003 605,000 13,613

$ 1,755,000 $ 129,228

Interest Rates: 4.50 - 5.25%

Total
Principal

and Interest

$ 632,900
632,713
618,613

$ 1,884,226

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FL.ORIDA

SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY -

SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE FROM SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES
OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXES

SEPTEMBER 38, 2000

Purpose: To Refund Excise To Refund Excise To Refund a Portion
Taxes Revenue Bonds, Taxes Revenue Bonds, of Criminal Justice
Series 1983 Series 1986A & 198SB Capital Improvement

Revenue Bonds, Series 1988

Excise Taxes Excise Taxes Revenue Guaranteed Entitlement
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Refunding Bonds, Revenue Refunding
Series 1991 Series 1992 Bonds, Series 1992A

Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2001 $ 1,445,000 $ 141,500 $ 3,440,000 $ 3,972,744 $ 715,000 $ 3,505,752
2002 1,535,000 48,352 3,635,000 3,763,934 755,000 3,466,420
2003 3,860,000 3,539,084 4,170,000 3,331,360
2004 4,085,000 3,298,601 4,400,000 3,093,485
2005 4,340,000 3,039,559 4,645,000 2,837,903
2008 4,605,000 2,761,112 4,915,000 2,562,985
2007 4,895,000 2,458,119 5,195,000 2,267,197
2008 5,215,000 2,132,803 5,505,000 1,851,548
2009 5,545,000 1,786,362 5,830,000 1,628,825
2010 5,910,000 1,414,075 6,150,000 1,299,375
2011 6,285,000 1,017,738 6,490,000 951,775
2012 6,695,000 595,887 6,845,000 585,062
2013 2,815,000 286,812 7,215,000 198,413
2014 3,005,000 97,662
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2025

$ 2,980,000 $ 189,852 $ 64,330,000 $ 30,164,582 $ 62,830,000 $ 27,680,100
Interest Rates: 6.20 - 6.20% 5.80 - 6.50% 5.30 - 5.90%

(continued)
Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY -

SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE FROM SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES
OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXES (continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

Purpose: Development of Third To Refund Excise Superstructure
Terminal for Operation by the Taxes Revenue Refunding Renovation of the
Jacksonville Port Authority Bonds, Series 1987A ALLTEL Stadium
Excise Taxes Excise Taxes Revenue
Revenue Bonds, Refunding Bonds, Capital Improvement
Series 1993 Series 1993A Revenue Bonds, Series 1994

Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2001 $ 255,000 $ 2,025,692 $ 2,115,000 $ 1,285,023 $ 130,000 $ 2,408,177
2002 310,000 2,011,695 2,210,000 1,188,443 715,000 2,386,906
2003 350,000 1,994,845 2,315,000 1,080,948 785,000 2,348,639
2004 225,000 1,979,783 2,430,000 965,853 860,000 2,305,850
2005 260,000 1,966,800 2,545,000 842,693 940,000 2,258,365
2006 300,000 1,951,530 2,670,000 710,315 1,025,000 2,205,780
2007 355,000 1,833,340 2,805,000 567,931 1,625,000 2,133,418
2008 395,000 1,912,142 2,850,000 415,018 1,755,000 2,039,550
2009 445,000 1,887,980 3,115,000 253,968 1,890,000 1,836,585
2010 180,465 2,209,610 3,280,000 86,100 2,040,000 1,823,560
2011 1,076,112 3,978,963 2,200,000 1,699,775
2012 1,061,197 4,148,878 2,370,000 1,569,975
2013 1,352,429 5,042,646 2,545,000 1,434,812
2014 1,313,363 5,276,712 2,730,000 1,289,750
2015 1,288,056 5,507,019 2,930,000 1,134,100
2016 1,263,518 5,746,557 3,135,600 967,313
2017 5,360,000 1,720,875 3,615,000 781,687
2018 5,800,000 1,387,250 3,865,000 575,388
2019 6,480,000 1,041,325 4,120,000 356,125
2020 7.100,000 650,900 4,410,000 121,275
2021 7,770,000 223,388
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026

$ 43,050,140 $ 54,608,030 $ 26,435,000 $ 7,400,292 $ 43,695,000 $ 31,777,670

Interest Rates: 4.90 - 6.30% 4.60 - 5.375% 4.95 - 5.875%
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Construction of the
Automated Skyway Express
River Crossing Leg

Sunshine State

Governmental Finance
Commission Bonds, Series 1994

Superstructure
Renovation of the
ALLTEL Stadium

Capital Improvement
Revenue Bonds, Series 1995

River City
Renaissance
Projects

Sales Tax Revenue
Bonds, Series 1995

Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
$ 870,000 $ 512,900 $ 300,000 $ 1,544,906 $ 2,915,000 $ 5,129,268
890,000 432,860 335,000 1,529,181 3,090,000 4,949,117
815,000 350,980 370,000 1,511,371 3,275,000 4,758,168
940,000 266,800 415,000 1,491,250 3,470,000 4,555,817
965,000 180,320 460,000 1,468,604 3,680,000 4,341,318
995,000 91,540 510,000 1,443,256 3,900,000 4,133,417
560,000 1,415,029 4,095,000 3,931,485
610,000 1,383,719 4,305,000 3,715,143
670,000 1,348,824 4,525,000 3,483,300
735,000 1,309,819 4,765,000 3,234,732
805,000 1,266,296 5,025,000 2,967,890
880,000 1,218,274 5,300,000 2,683,953
955,000 1,165,738 5,590,000 2,380,285
1,040,000 1,107,731 5,805,000 2,055,551
1,130,000 1,043,988 6,240,000 1,712,455
1,230,000 974,663 6,595,000 1,358,934
1,320,000 899,756 6,950,000 994,913
1,345,000 821,472 7,320,000 611,406
1,370,000 741,719 7,715,000 207,341
1,400,000 660,350
1,430,000 577,219
1,455,000 492 472
1,485,000 406,109
1,510,000 318,131
2,210,000 208,856
2,450,000 71,969
$ 5,575,000 $ 1,835,400 $ 26,980,000 $ 26,420,702 $ 94,660,000 $ 57,204,503
Variable Rate 4.90 - 5.875% 5.00 - 6.00%

Assumed at 9.20%

(continued)

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY -
SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE FROM SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES
OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXES (continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

Purpose: To Partially Refund To Refund Criminal Closure of
Excise Taxes Revenue Justice Capital Improvements North Landfill
Refunding Bonds, Series 1988A Revenue Bonds, Series 1988
Excise Taxes Revenue Guaranteed Entitlement Sunshine State Governmental
Refunding Bonds, Revenue Refunding Finance Commission
Series 1995A Bonds, Series 19954, Bonds, Series 1995A

Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2001 $ 379,182 $ 3,095,000 $ 210,043 $ 479,958
2002 379,181 3,235,000 71,170 479,957
2003 379,181 479,958
2004 379,181 479,957
2005 379,182 $ 670,000 464,045
2006 379,181 1,180,000 415,683
2007 379,181 1,240,000 352,232
2008 $ 2,850,000 309,713 1,310,000 287,828
2009 2,995,000 163,497 1,380,000 217,335
2010 1,735,000 43,375 1,460,000 140,087
2011 1,545,000 57,460
2012 265,000 7,486
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026

$ 7,580,000 $ 3,170,854 $ 6,330,000 $ 281,213 $ 9,050,000 $ 3,861,996

Interest Rates: 4.875- 5.125% 4.375 - 4.40% 4.75 - 5.65%
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Expansion of Trail
Ridge Landfill

Sunshine State Governmental
Finance Commission
Bonds, Series 19958 (AMT)

River City
Renaissance
Projects

Sales Tax Revenue
Bonds, Series 1996

Port Improvements
by the Jacksonville
Port Authority

Excise Taxes
Revenue Bonds
Series 1996B

Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
$ 930,000 $ 701,945 $ 2,070,000 $ 3,044608 $ 2,450,000 $ 2,703,457
970,000 658,710 2,155,000 2,984,265 2,875,000 2,578,826
1,020,000 612,175 2,250,000 2,857,894 3,360,000 2,428,225
1,070,000 562,538 2,350,000 2,755,519 4,060,000 2,243,390
450,000 525,875 2,455,000 2,646,179 4,655,000 2,019,845
514,625 2,570,000 2,529,319 5,310,000 1,758,100
514,625 2,690,000 2,404,364 6,015,000 1,454,980
514,625 2,820,000 2,270,714 6,805,000 1,105,438
514,625 2,955,000 2,127,749 7,665,000 703,680
514,625 3,105,600 1,974,696 8,580,000 244,530
514,625 3,260,000 1,814,019
1,370,000 475,237 3,425,000 1,646,894
1,735,000 385,969 3,595,000 1,462,406
1,835,000 283,331 3,795,000 1,259,181
1,945,000 174,656 4,005,000 1,044,681
2,065,000 59,369 4,225 000 826,278
4,440,000 804,237
4,665,000 370,922
4,905,000 125,690
$ 13,350,000 $ 7,527,555 $ 61,735,000 $ 34,719,613 $ 51,775,000 $ 17,240,471
4.50-5.75% 4.20 - 5.50% 4.60-570%
(continued)

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY -

SPECTAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE FROM SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES
OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXES (continued)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

Purpose: Jacksonville Superstructure Drainage and
Beach Downtown Renovation of the General Capital
Revitalization ALLTEL Stadium Programs
Excise Taxes Capital Project
Revenue Bonds Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds
Series 1996C Revenue Bonds, Series 1997 Series 1997 - 1
Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2001 $ 425,000 $ 141,321 $ 160,000 $ 399,873 $ 1,110,000 $ 2,345157
2002 440,000 122,720 170,000 393,022 1,155,000 2,254,232
2003 455,000 103,026 175,000 385,690 1,200,000 2,166,103
2004 470,000 82,210 180,000 377,968 1,255,000 2,072,383
2005 485,000 60,241 180,000 369,827 1,305,000 1,876,186
2006 505,000 36,971 200,000 361,148 1,365,000 1,870,723
2007 515,000 12,489 210,000 351,817 1,430,000 1,765,841
2008 215,000 341,935 1,495,000 1,654,158
2009 230,000 331,363 1,565,000 1,538,814
2010 240,000 319,962 1,640,000 1,413,869
201 250,000 307,833 1,720,000 1,287,088
2012 265,000 294,825 1,805,000 1,152,756
2013 275,000 280,986 1,895,000 1,012,717
2014 290,000 266,365 1,895,000 862,991
2015 305,000 250,819 2,095,000 707,977
2016 320,000 234,412 2,205,000 544,357
2017 340,000 217,087 2,320,000 372,489
2018 355,000 198,844 2,445,000 190,779
2019 375,000 179,681
2020 395,000 159,469
2021 415,000 138,208
2022 435,000 115,894
2023 460,000 92,400
2024 485,000 67,594
2025 510,000 41,475
2026 535,000 14,044
$ 3,295,000 $ 558,978 $ 7,980,000 $ 6,492,539 $ 30,000,000 $ 25,188,620
Interest Rates: 4.25-4.85% 4.10-5.25% Variable Rate

Assumed at 7.81%
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Drainage and To Refund a Portion To Refund a Portion
General Capital of Capital Improvement of Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding
Programs Revenue Bonds, Series 1994 Bonds, Series 1988A and 1991 and
Preservation and Recreational Programs

Capital Praject Capital Improvement Excise Taxes Revenue
Revenue Bonds and Refunding Revenue Refunding and Capital Improvement
Series 1997 -2 Bonds, Series 1998 Bonds, Series 1999A Total
Principal
Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest and Interest
$ 700,000 $ 4,004,183 $ 135,000 $ 1,719,767 $ 5,170,000 $ 3,051,450 $ 68,140,904
800,000 3,934,644 140,000 1,714,473 5,370,000 2,859,445 68,962,553
800,000 3,867,150 145,000 1,708,842 7,185,000 2,645102 69,178,741
800,000 3,796,030 155,000 1,702,843 7,435,000 2,389,252 66,398,800
900,000 3,728,340 160,000 1,686,462 7,690,000 2,066,890 69,663,634
900,000 3,641,544 165,000 1,689,718 8.075,000 1,721,215 69,968,162
1,000,000 3,564,890 175,000 1,682,577 7,385,000 1,383,165 68,762,890
1,000,000 3,475,990 180,000 1,675,078 3,670,000 1,125,140 67,390,582
1,100,000 3,390,209 190,000 1,667,167 3,815,000 975,440 67,870,723
1,100,000 3,286,271 195,000 1,658,793 1,410,000 870,540 64,379,854
1,200,000 3,191,510 205,000 1,649,890 1,465,000 811,608 53,042,582
1,200,000 3,084,830 215,000 1,640,332 1,530,000 747,965 53,078,551
1,300,000 2,980,892 225,000 1,630,100 1,590,000 680,473 50,029,678
1,400,000 2,859,944 235,000 1,619,231 1,665,000 608,030 42,794 842
1,400,000 2,738,120 245,000 1,607,525 1,740,000 530,548 39,774,944
1,500,000 2,613,680 260,000 - 1,594,900 1,820,000 447,758 39,986,719
1,600,000 2,482,594 270,000 1,581,650 1,905,000 359,744 38,135,132
1,700,000 2,335.917 285,000 1,587,775 1,895,000 264,625 38,209,978
4,400,000 2,186,940 300,000 1,663,150 2,095,000 162,375 38,324,346
4,600,000 1,795,780 315,000 1,538,169 2,200,000 55,000 25,400,943
4,900,000 1,388,117 5,035,000 1,411,106 23,288,036
5,200,000 950,354 5,330,000 1,164,937 15,143,657
5,500,000 488,950 5,640,000 904,400 14,976,859
5,970,000 628,663 8,979,388
5,640,000 352,925 8,963,256
4,610,000 109,488 7,790,501
$ 45,000,000 $ 65,786,859 $ 36,420,000 $ 37,469,961 $ 75,210,000 $ 23,756,165 $ 1,181,636,095
Variable Rate 3,80 - 5.00% 3.30 - 5.00%

Assumed at 8.89%

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY -
PAYABLE FROM ENTERFPRISE FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
Purpose: Te Refund Parking and To Refund Parking and Excise
Excise Taxes Revenue Taxes Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 1986A Bonds, Series 1987
Excise Taxes Revenue Excise Taxes
Refunding Bonds, Revenue Refunding
Series 1993A Bonds, Series 1995A
Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest
2001 $ 760,000 § 596,142 $ 599,560
2002 790,000 560,097 $ 130,000 596,798
2003 825,000 521,733 420,000 584,847
2004 870,000 480,617 440,000 565,980
2005 810,000 436,552 460,000 545,950
2006 960,000 389,082 485,000 524,384
2007 1,010,000 337,850 1,500,000 477,544
2008 1,080,000 282,850 2,800,000 373,669
2009 1,120,000 224,962 2,935,000 230,209
2010 1,180,000 164,587 3,100,000 77,500
2011 1,240,000 101,062
2012 1,305,000 34,256
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
$ 12,030,000 $ 4,129,790 $ 12,270,000 $ 4,576 441
Interest Rates: 4.60-5.375% 4.25-5.125%
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To Partially Refund
Excise Taxes Revenue
Bonds, Series 1991A

Excise Taxes

Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 1996A

Principal Interest
$ 635,000 $ 948,545
660,000 922,962
695,000 895,863
930,000 862,781
970,000 822,987
1,610,000 774,600
1,085,000 717,538
1,120,000 662,490
1,175,000 609,117
1,230,000 551,985
1,285,000 490,983
1,350,000 425,750
1,420,000 356,500
1,480,000 283,750
1,565,000 207,375
1,645,000 127,125
1,720,000 43,000
$ 19,965,000 $ 9,703,351

3.90 - 5.00%

To Partially Refund
Excise Taxes Revenue
Bonds, Series 1991B
and Construction of Trail

Ridge Landfill
Excise Taxes Revenue
Refunding and Capital
Improvement Bonds, Series 19998
Principal Interest
$ 720,000 $ 2,059,905
1,735,000 2,009,790
1,805,000 1,934,548
1,885,000 1,855,212
1,970,000 1,771,345
2,055,000 1,681,768
2,145,000 1,585,527
2,245,000 1,483,005
2,355,000 1,372,283
2,465,000 1,253,255
2,590,000 1,120,405
2,730,000 974,105
2,880,000 816,230
3,050,000 645,742
3,220,000 471,115
3,400,000 290,675
3,585,000 08,588

$ 40,835,000 $ 21,423,898

4.20-575%

Total
Principal

And Interest

$ 6,319,152
7,404,647
7,681,991
7,889,590
7,886,834
7,879,834
8,838,859

10,027,014
10,021,571
10,022,327
6,827,450
6,819,111
5,472,730
5,489,492
5,463,490
5,462,800
5,446 588

$ 124,933,480

Unzudited - see accompanying independent auditors™ report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TQO MATURITY -
PAYABLE FROM GENERAL REVENUE

SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

Purpose: HUD Section 108 HUD Section 108 HUD Section 108 HUD Section 108
Program Loan for Program Loan for Program Loan for Program Loan for
Vistakon Project Coach Distribution Project Sally Beauty Project Hilton Hotel Project
U.S. Government U.S. Government U.S. Government U.8. Government
Guaranteed Note Guaranteed Note Guaranteed Note Guaranteed Note
Payable, Series 1994A Payable, Series 1995 Payable, Series 1996 Payable, Series 1996-B
Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2001 $ 1,700,000 $ 301,775 $ 45,000 $ 328,044 $ 55,000 $ 55,966 $ 60,000 $ 182,698
2002 1,550,000 194,505 75,000 324,344 65,000 52,5651 70,000 178,969
2003 1,450,000 94,685 80,000 318,165 65,000 48,501 80,000 174,809
2004 115,000 311,548 65,000 44 399 90,000 169,560
2005 150,000 302,073 65,000 40,266 105,000 163,837
2006 170,000 289,487 70,000 36,099 140,000 157,108
2007 235,000 275,089 75,000 31,577 160,000 148,062
2008 285,000 254,549 75,000 26,709 175,000 137,678
2009 335,000 230,239 80,000 21,752 195,000 126,11C
2010 385,000 200,860 80,000 16,392 215,000 113,046
2011 420,000 166,749 80,000 10,968 250,000 08,468
2012 455,000 129,327 80,000 5,504 275,000 81,394
2013 500,000 88,656 295,000 62,473
2014 485,000 43,795 300,000 42,030
2015 300,000 21,090
2016

$ 4,700,000 $ 590,965 $3,735000 53263365 $ 855000 _$390684

$2,710,000 _$1,857.128

—_—

Interest Rates: 6.31 -6.53% 8.22-9.03% 6.21-6.88%
{Taxable) (Taxable) {Taxable)
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HUD Section 108
Program Loan for
LaVilla Project

U.S. Government
Guaranteed Note
Payable, Series 1997

HUD Section 103
Program Loan for
HTV Associates Project

U.S. Government
Guaranteed Note
Payable, Series 1997

Principal Interest

$ 595,000 $ 112,117
25,000 75,187
30,000 73,609
35,000 71,717
40,000 69,490
45,000 66,927
55,000 64,019
60,000 60,450
60,000 56,484
70,000 52,464
90,000 47,718
100,000 41,571
110,000 34,691
125,000 27,068
130,000 18,343
130,000 9,204

Principal Interest

$ 40,000 $§ 37,074

45,000 34,550
50,000 31,787
60,000 28,631
50,000 25,452
50,000 22,246
50,000 19,017
55,000 15,771
85,000 12,136
85,000 6,441

$ 1,700,000 $ 881,039

6.21-7.08%
(Taxable)

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors’ repert.

$ 570,000 $ 233,145

6.21-6.78%
(Taxable)

{continued)
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HUD Section 108
Program Loan for
Jacksonville Landing

U.S. Government
Guaranteed Note
Payable, Series 1997

Principal Interest

$ 1,020,000 $63,342

$ 1,020,000 $ 63,342

6.21%
{Taxable}



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY -
PAYABLE FROM GENERAL REVENUE (continued)
SEPTEMRER 30, 2000

Purpose:

Fiscal
Year

2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016

Interest Rates:

HUD Section 108
Program Loan for
Armor Holdings

U.S. Government
Guaranteed Note
Payable, Series 1997

Principal Interest
$ 15,000 $ 51,180
20,000 50,258
20,000 49,012
25,000 47,750
30,000 46,160
30,000 44,237
35,000 42,299
40,000 40,027
45,000 37,384
55,000 34,368
60,000 30,640
65,000 26,541
75,000 22,070
80,000 16,872
80,000 11,288
80,000 5,664
$ 755,000 $ 555 760
6.21-7.08%
{Taxable)}

HUD Section 108

Program Loan

for

Hampton Inns

U.8. Government
Guaranteed Note
Payable, Series 1997

Principal Interest
$ 10,000 $ 35,148
10,000 34,526
15,000 33,904
15,000 32,957
20,000 32,003
20,000 30,721
25,000 29,429
40,000 27,808
40,000 25,163
45,000 22,482
45,000 19,432
50,000 16,358
55,000 12,818
65,000 9,106
65,000 4,570
$ 520,000 $ 366,523

6.21-7.03%
(Taxable)

Total
Principal
And Interest

$§ 4,707,352
2,804,910
2,614,272
1,101,562
1,139,281
1,171,823
1,244,492
1,293,390
1,349,268
1,391,053
1,318,975
1,325,695
1,255,848
1,193,871

630,291
224,868

524766851

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report,
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

SUMMARY OF PLEDGED REVENUES AND BOND COVERAGE

DISCLOSURE OBLIGATION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

Laocal Government 1/2 Cent Sales Tax;
Local Government 1/2 Cent Sales Tax

7th Cent Gasoline Tax:
Tth Cent Gasoline Tax

Excise Taxes:
Utilities Service Taxes:
City Water Department
Peoples Gas
Telecommunications Tax
JEA
Miscellaneous
Total Utilities Service Tax
Fuel Qi] Tax
Occupational License Taxes
Total Excise Tax Pledged Revenues

Junior Lien Excise Taxes:

Total Excise Taxes

Net Parking Garage Revenues
Tota} Junior Lien Excise Tax Revenues

Sports Facilities Capital Improvements:
Franchise Fees:
Peoples Gas
Southermn Bell
Cable Television
Total Franchise Fees
Sports Facility Sales Tax Rebate
Convention Development Tax (2%)

Sports Facility Tourist Development Tax (2%)
Total Sports Facility Capital Improvements Pledged Revenues

Pledged Revenue for the Fiscal Year Ended September 30

1996 1997 1998
$ 52,073,203 $ 53,189,883 $ 57,608,792
$ 2,610,460 $ 2,670,932 $ 2,814,214
$ 3,833,754 $ 4,136,209 $ 4,408,422
1,380,202 1,091,841 1,135,414
16,689,932 17,387,934 19,370,522
39,975,747 37,217,093 36,211,220
3,302,785 3,183,882 3,217,673
85,192,420 63,016,959 64,343,251
366,168 212,660 237,661
6,255,272 8,394,220 6,493,254
$ 71,813,860 § 69,623,839 $ 71,074,166
$ 71,813,860 $ 69,623,839 $ 71,074,168
251,367 - -
$ 72,065,227 $ 60,623,839 § 71,074,166
$ 1,075228 $ 867,108 $ 824720
2,217,873 2,459,832 2,731,112
2,539,625 2,732,213 2,902,976
5,832,727 6,059,153 6,458,808
1,999,884 1,999,884 1,999,884
2,253 466 2,542,967 2,883,081
2,426,932 2,739,428 3,094,453
$ 12,513,008 $ 13,341,432 $ 14337126
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1999
$ 61,775,050

$ 3,231,997

$ 4633183
1,120,391
23,013,866
40,054,957
2,764,122
~ 71,586,519
232,255
6,674,579

~§ 78,493,353

$ 78,493,353

$ 78,493,353

$ 720692
2,835,185
2,804,064
6,468,941
1,999,944
3,058,553
3,285,332

~§ 14812770

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors’ report.

2000

$ 67,373,395

$ 3,447,789

$ 4,878,361
1,068,503
23,894,586
44,486,956
2,534,348
76,862,734
245,233
6,720,992

$ 83,828,959

$ 83,828,959

$ 83,828,959

$ 685978
3,405,328
3,127,769
7,199,075
1,999,944
3,134,146
3,365,147

S 15598312

Maximum
Annual Debt
Service

$ 20,454,516

$ 14358540

$ 41,484 461

$ 41,484,461

$ 9,179,513

{continued)
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3.29x

2.40 x

202 x

2.02x

1.71x

Additional
Bonds
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1.35x

1.50 x

1.40 x

1.25x

1.35x



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

SUMMARY OF PLEDGED REVENUES AND BOND COVERAGE

DISCLOSURE OBLIGATION (continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

Guaranteed Entitlement Revenues:
County Revenue Sharing:
Cigarette Tax
Intangible Tax
County Total
County Guaranteed
County Coverage

City Revenue Sharing:
Cigarette Tax

City Guaranteed
City Coverage

Aggregate City / County Guaranteed

Statewide Revenue Sharing - Counties:
Intangible Tax
Cigarette Tax
Total Receipts
Guaranteed Entitlement for all Florida Counties
Average Coverage - All Florida Counties

Statewide Revenue Sharing - Municipalities:

Cigarette Tax

8th Cent Motor Fuel Tax

Special Tax and Alternative Fue] User Decal Fee
Total Receipts
Guaranteed Entitlement for all Florida Municipalities
Average Coverage - All Florida Municipalities

Pledged Revenue for the Fiscal Year Ended September 30

1996 1997 1998
8 547,310 $ 660,771 $ 742,319
16,099,289 17,167,089 21,322,225
$ 16,646,599 $ 17,827,860 $ 22,064,544
$ 1,999,042 $ 1,989,042 $ 1,999,042
8.33x 8.92 x 11.04 x
$ 10,279,213 $ 9,864,797 $ 10,169,136
$ 5,826,077 $ 5826077 $ 5826077
176 x 1.69 x 1.75x
$ 7.825119 $ 7.825119 $ 7,825119
$ 281,323,862 $ 302,454,662 $ 380,824,284
11,624,914 11,271,362 11,875,417
$ 202,948,776 $ 313,726,024 $ 392,699,701
$ 95,086,330 $ 05,086,330 $ 95,086,330
3.08x 3.30x 413 x

$ 130,058,478

$ 125,928,324

$ 132,677,078

69,714,659 72,220,880 74,511,080

526,069 1,055,508 438,636

$ 200,299,206 $ 199,204,712 $ 207,626,794

$ 110,738,433 $110,811,385 $ 110,811,385
1.81x 1.80 x 1.87 x
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1999

3 705,953
22,025,365

$ 22,731,318
$ 1,999,042

11.37

$ 9,366,612

$ 5,826,077

1.61x

$ 7825119

$ 409,844,667
10,494,672

$ 420,339,539
$ 95,086,330

442 x

$ 127,545,634
76,852,577
736,176

$ 205,134,387
$ 112,261,230

1.83 x

2000

3 673,724
19,509,391

$ 20,183,115
S 1990082

10.10 x

$ 9,803,251

$ 5,826,077

1.68 x

$ 7825119

$ 409,844 867
10,494 872

$ 420,339,539
$ 95,086,330

442 x

$ 123,878,513
80,870,856
1,028,891

$ 205,778,260
$ 112,261,230

1.83x

Maximum
Annual Debt
Service

$ 7.532,899

Pledged
Revenue

Coverage

1.04 x

Additional
Bonds
Test

1.10x

Unaudited - ses accompanying independent auditors' report.
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STATISTICAL SECTION

The Statistical Section presents comparative data for the past ten
years, and other pertinent information involving taxes, revenues,
expenditures, demographic data and other miscellaneous statistics.

The statistical data is presented to give report users a better historical
perspective and assist in assessing current financial status and trends
of the governmental unit. Economic data is presented to allow a
broader understanding of the economic and social environment in
which City government operates.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (in thousands)

2000 % 1999 % 1998 % 1987 Yo

SOURCE
TaAXES. .o $ 464,004 57.31 $425912 58.28 § 406,372 57.60 $378665 56.87
Licenses and Permits........................... 13,970 1.73 13.194 1.81 13,028 1.85 12,489 1.88
Intergovernmental..............coooi 202,150 2497 182,543 24.98 166,477 23.60 149,085 22,39
Charges for Services.......ccoovviviniennnnen.. 62,302 7.70 55,275 7.56 57,652 8.17 55,209 8.29
Fines and Forfeitures...........cocoocoeinnne. 9,038 1.22 8,843 1.21 9,914 1.40 7.485 112
Payment in Lieu of Taxes..................... 3,583 0.44 3,799 0.52 3,904 0.55 4,027 060
Interest....cccvcveviriie e 29,864 3.69 22,373 3.06 22,055 3.13 18,900 2.84
Other....cooei e 23,790 2.94 18,820 2.58 26,068 3.70 39,892 6.01

Total General Governmental Revenue.... $809,601 100.00 $730,884 10000 $ 705470 _100.00 $665,872 100.00

Note: This schedule includes Revenues of the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds and Capital Projects Funds.
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1996 % 1995 % 1994 % 1993 % 1992 % 1991 %o
$ 370,590 59.11 $348,208 58.34 $329,993 59.83 $319,032 56.04 $ 301,666 56.04 $290,374 5544
12,129 1.93 11,592 1.94 11,442 2.07 11,377 2.00 11,246 208 11,433 218
148,789 23.74 143141 23.91 132,535 2403 162,282  28.51 149,613 27.30 133,064 2540
51,192 8.17 50,644 8.46 45,725 8.29 44,387 7.80 41,289 7.53 38,180 7.29
6,521 1.04 6,380 1.07 7,232 1.3 5917 1.04 6,782 1.24 5974 1.14
4,275 0.68 3,612 0.60 3,808 0.69 4,134 0.73 4,991 0.91 4,843 0.93
16,217 3.07 22,153 3.70 12,717 2.3 13,188 2.32 15,648 2.86 20,085 3.83
14,161 2.26 11,825 1.98 8,089 1.47 8,893 1.56 16,818 3.07 19,845 3.79
$ 626,874 100.00 598,555 100.00 $551.541 100.00 $569,210 100.00 $548.053 100.00 §$ 523,813 100.00

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (in thousands)

2000 % 1999 % 1958 % 1997 Yo

FUNCTIONAL AREA
General Government............cccoeeeeiivininnnn.. $ 92,281 11.03 $ 85213 11.07 § 85213 11.51 § 75,064 0.37
Human Services. ......coerveriernernireinsriornrrnns 81,451 9.73 75,358 9.79 71,290 9.63 63,071 7.88
Public Safety......covveeenriierneiriinrinransenrasionas 298,131 35.61 276,361 35.88 267,017 36.04 257,565 3217
Culture and Recreation..........cccoovvvivinnnnnn... 40,725 4.87 38,350 4.98 36,202 4.89 36,413 . 4.55
Transportation .......................................... 119,741 14.31 110,019 14.29 106,854 14.43 106,943 13.36
Economic ENvIronment.....c.ooovvieiviiiiiiiiinans 43,296 517 44 555 5.79 40,663 5.49 43,215 5.40
Physical Environment............ccocoviiiininnnannn.. 15,352 1.83 13,891 1.80 11,812 1.80 15,220 1.80
Debt Service... oo 70,451 8.42 64,443 8.37 59,147 7.99 104,298 13.03
Capital Outlay.......coovieiiiiiieae, R 75,548 9.03 61,826 8.03 62,330 8.42 98,830 12.34

Total General Governmental Expenditures..... $836,976 100.00 $770,016 100.00 §$740528 100.00 §800.619 100.00

Note: This schedule includes Expenditures of the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds and Capital Projects Funds,
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1996 % 1995 % 1994 % 1993 % 1992 % 1991 %
$ 69,054 945 $ 69527 842 §$ 65120 1023 $ 63,882 1014 § 58622 10.04 §$ 57,535  §.85
59,991 821 53,866  6.53 . 50,768  7.47 51,993 826 48571 832 46561  7.97
243139 3326 232,820 2820 218350 31.49 204,971 3253 192443 3298 191,831 32.84
33854 463 34263 415 32490 478 30,264 481 28289 485 26016 461
103606 1417 102,145 1237 100,169 1474 99915 1586 98072 1680 104,608 17.91
39,899 546 40937 496 42776 629 75008 1191 82506 1413 68066 11.66
15937 218 16180 196 21,099  3.10 18235 290 14267 244 14,113 242
58,145 795 78635 053 30871 587 36380 578 41,102  7.04 46118  7.80
107,370 _ 1469 _ 197,118 2388 _ 108921 1603 _ 49167 _ 7.81 _ 19,843 340 28257 4.84
$730.995 100.00 $825491 100.00 $679,564 100.00 $629,815 100.00 $583,715 100.00 $584,005 100.00

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
TAX REVENUE BY SOURCE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2000 1999 1998 1997
Ad Valorem Taxes (1)
General Services DISEHICE. ....ovvvinvieiniiieiienenes $ 278,501,775 $ 266,765,762 $ 255,789,300 $ 231,645,388
Urban Services District......cocvevviiiiiiniiinnnnne, - 24,024 1,887,009 1,735,471
Tax Increment DISTICE. ..ooeeeinveeirivieernnreenns 4,263,400 5,441,737 3,806,224 4,569,270
Total Ad Valorem Taxes.........ocevvvivninnnnns 282,765,184 272,231,623 261,672,533 237,950,129
Utility Service Taxes
Fuel Oil Companies.............ovveevnieenennennanns 245,233 232,255 237,661 212,660
(01 T S 4,878,361 4,633,183 4,408,512 4,136,209
People’s Gas....ocovriviiiiiiiiiiiies e s 1,068,503 1,120,391 1,135,414 1,091,841
TelecommUNICALIONS. ....o.vveneirieieeneieaninnsens 23,864 566 23,013,614 19,370,288 17,387,934
FE A i e 44,486 956 36,255,365 36,068,367 37,217,093
L 1 7= - F P 2,534,348 2,764,122 3,217,673 3,183,882
Total Utility Service Taxes....................... 77,107,967 68,018,930 64,437,915 63,228,619
Tourist Development Tax.............c...oviviinnnnne. 6,729,490 6,570,683 6,189,018 5,478,886
Convention Development TaX........c..oceeienannan... 3,134,146 3,058,553 2,883,981 2,542 967
Local Option Gas Tax (2).cceveeniiniiiiiciiaianannn, 27,408,778 24,055,882 22,948,341 24,228,183
Local Option Sales Tax (3)...cvvervviiernriiiiininrnnans 66,858,197 51,876,585 48,240,640 45,235,670
Total Tax Revenue.......o.vevvvevninereeninenanenn $ 464,003,762 $ 425,912,166 $ 406,372,428 $ 378,665,454

(1)  Property taxes include interest and penalties on delinquent taxes.

(Z) A six cent local option gas tax was instituted in 1987 to fund capital road construction projects throughout Duval County.

(3) A one-half cent local option sales tax was passed by Jacksonville voters in 1989 to replace bridge tolls. All revenue received
from this tax is remitted directly to the Jacksonville Transportation Authority {a component unit of the primary government)

to fund Duval County transportation operations.

Source: Tax Collector's Office
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1986 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991
$ 225,044,088 $ 215,496,848 $ 204,462,560 $ 200,036,912 $ 192,080,189 $ 188,536,097
1,794,848 1,727,718 1,762,200 1,781,704 1,763,654 1,711,897
4,355,758 4,662,265 4,627,753 5,872,261 8,080,949 6,808,703
231,194,694 221,886,831 210,852,513 207,690,877 201,804,792 197,056,687
366,168 330,737 406,171 280,361 316,341 251,001
3,833,754 3,202,330 2,698,922 2,048,399 1,751,914 1,831,870
1,390,202 1,282,169 1,317,215 1,422,389 1,535,100 1,659,578
16,689,932 13,452,383 12,977,579 11,227,650 7,872,779 8,503,600
39,975,747 37,649,886 36,807,357 36,020,218 31,467,325 19,881,705
3,320,476 2,975,258 3,172,871 3,349,904 3,284,299 3,073,523
65,585,279 58,892,762 57,380,115 54,348,921 46,227,758 35,201,377
4,853,878 4,022,243 2,531,120 1,871,328 2,013,039 1,562,479
2,253,466 1,891,287 1,679,594 1,754,974 1,884,032 1,637,968
22,508,967 21,847,527 21,975,041 21,317,284 21,181,275 21,169,016
44,193,979 40,565,755 35,573,977 32,048,807 31,756,871 33,745,671
$ 370,580,263 § 349,206,415 $ 329,992,360 $ 319,032,191 $ 304,967,767 $ 280,373,208

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

(N

@

December - 3%
Janmary -2%
February -1%

Source: Tax Collector's Office

Beginning in 1999, the amounts for USD represent delinquent collections.

Tax levies are final certified amounts net of discounts allowed. The discount schedule is as follows:
For taxes paid in: November - 4%

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Percent
Current Current Tax of Levy
Year Tax Levy (1) Collections Collected
1991 General Fund - General Services District $ 188,959,625 $ 175,071,799 92.7%
General Fund - Urban Services District 1,690,824 1,546,014 91.5%
Totals $ 190,650,449 $176,618,713 92.6%
1992 General Fund - General Services District $ 193,553,996 $ 180,856,747 93.4%
General Fund - Urban Services District 1,766,042 1,617,332 81.6%
Totals $ 195,320,038 $ 182,474,079 93.4%
1993 General Fund - General Services District $ 206,741,651 $ 196,190,115 94.9%
General Fund - Urban Services District 2,029,008 1,893,355 93.3%
Totals $ 208,770,659 $ 198,083,470 94.9%
1994 General Fund - General Services District $ 211,012,591 $ 201,414,185 95.5%
General Fund - Urban Services District 1,956,505 1,835,711 93.8%
Totals $ 212,969,096 $ 203,249,896 95.4%
1995 General Fund - General Services District $ 224,122,401 $ 212,579,284 94.8%
General Fund - Urban Services District 1,948,887 1,821,716 93.5%
Totals $ 226,071,288 $ 214,401,000 94.8%
1986 General Fund - General Services District $ 229,855,681 $221,114,198 96.2%
General Fund - Urban Services District 1,969,347 1,870,103 95.0%
Totals $ 231,825,028 $ 222,984,301 96.2%
1997 General Fund - General Services District $ 244 345,056 $ 234,578,511 96.0%
General Fund - Urban Services District 2,022,502 1,893,107 93.6%
Totals $ 246,368,558 $ 236,471,618 96.0%
1998 General Fund - General Services District $ 257,656,758 $ 244,965,131 95.1%
General Fund - Urban Services District 2,075,611 1,919,421 92.5%
Totals $ 259,732,369 § 246,884 552 95.1%
1999 General Fund - General Services District $ 275,432,033 § 261,480,331 94.8%
General Fund - Urban Services District (2) - - 0.0%
Totals $ 275,432,033 $ 261,480,331 94.9%
2000 General Fund - General Services District $ 287,849,421 $ 274,189,507 95.3%
General Fund - Urban Services District (2) - - 0.0%
Totals $ 287,849,421 $ 274,189,507 95.3%
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Total
Delinquent Collections
Tax Total Tax as Percent of
Collections Collections Current Levy
$ 13,083,022 $ 188,154,821 99.6%
162,863 1,709,777 101.1%
$ 13,245,885 $ 189,864,598 99.6%
$ 11,440,526 $ 192,297,273 99.4%
142,815 1,760,147 99.7%
$ 11,583,341 $ 194,057,420 99.4%
$ 9,656,052 $ 205,846,167 99.6%
112,899 2,006,254 98.9%
$ 9,768,951 $ 207,852,421 99.6%
$ 8,159,804 $ 208,573,890 99.3%
98,170 1,934,882 98.9%
$ 8,258,974 $ 211,508,872 99.3%
$ 7,885,069 $ 220,464,353 98.4%
93,859 1,915,576 98.3%
$ 7,978,928 $ 222,379,829 98.4%
$ 8,120,025 $ 229,243,224 99.7%
94,724 1,964,827 99.8%
$ 8,223,749 $ 231,208,051 99.7%
$ 7,839,598 $ 242,418,100 99.2%
97,423 1,890,530 98.4%
$ 7,937,021 $ 244,408,639 99.2%
$ 8,950,810 $ 253,915,941 98.5%
97,861 2,017,282 97.2%
$ 9,048,671 $ 255,933,223 98.5%
$ 10,916,310 $ 272,356,641 98.9%
108,071 108,071 0.0%
$ 11,024,381 $ 272,504,712 98.9%
$ 8,866,740 $ 283,056,247 98.3%
12,057 12,057 0.0%
$ 8,878,797 $ 283,068,304 98.3%

Outstanding
Delinquent
Taxes

$ 13,887,826
143,910

$ 14,031,736

$ 12,697,249
148,710

$ 12,845,959

$ 10,551,536
135,653

$ 10,687,189

$ 9,598 406
120,793
$ 9,719,199

$ 11,543,117
127,171

$ 11,670,288

$ 8,741,482
99,244
$ 8,840,726

$ 9,767,548
129,395
$ 9,896,941

$ 12,691,627
156,151
$ 12,847,818

$ 13,951,702

$ 13,951,702

$ 13,659,914

$ 13,659,914

Outstanding
Delinguent

Taxes as Percent

of Current Levy

73 %
85 %
7.4 %

66 %
8.4 %
6.6 %

51 %
6.7 %
51 %

45 %
6.2 %
48 %

52 %
6.5 %
52 %

3.8 %
5%
3.8 %

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUES OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (in thousands)

Assessed Taxable Values
Centrally Total Estimated Ratio of
Real Personal Assessed Taxable Actual Assessed to

Year Property (1) Property (2) Property (3) Property Values (4) Actual Values
1991 14,858,230 2,909,259 73,663 17,841,152 28,410,728 62.80%
1992 15,657,898 3,061,922 73,622 18,793,442 29,754,657 63.16%
1883 15,995,946 3,238,039 72,328 19,306,313 30,648,378 62.99%
1594 16,141,786 3,321,345 65,037 19,628,168 30,750,732 63.50%
1995 16,577,725 3,553,360 70,912 20,201,897 31,944,549 63.24%
1996 17,425,021 3,947,455 75,478 21,447,954 33,474,993 64.07%
1897 18,459,034 4,137,983 85,635 22,682,652 35,304,582 64.25%
1998 19,683,790 4,230,470 124,628 24,038,888 37,202,821 64.62%
1999 21,189,081 4,414,181 138,561 25,741,803 39,448,272 65.25%
2000 22,747,401 4,51 ?,8.16 108,934 27,374,151 41,803,761 65.48%

{1y Prior to fiscal year 1981, State Homestead Exemption Laws exempted from taxation the first $5,000 of assessed value for
qualified homeowners. For 1981, the homestead exemption was increased to $15,000; for 1982, it was increased to
$20,000; and for 1983 and subsequent years, it was increased to $23,000.

(2) Personal property values are also net of certain allowable exemptions - primarily for inventories (which have not been
assessed since 1982) and government property.

(3) Centrally assessed property is primarily railroad property and private car line property, which must be separately assessed.
4 Estimated actual values are the total "just" values or property subject to taxation, as defined by Section 193.011 of the

Florida Statutes,

Source: Property Appraiser's Office

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
PROPERTY TAX RATES - DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (Per $1,000 of Assessed Value)

City of Jacksonville Other Taxing Authorities
Water Combined
District Debt Management FIND Millage
Year (Note 1) Operations Service Total Schools District (Note 3) Total
1991 GSD (2) 11.3457 0.1860 11.5317 9.8800 0.3690 0.0550 21.8357
USDh 11.8424 0.2612 12.1036 9.8800 0.3690 0.0550 22.4076
1992 GSD(2) 11.1054 0.1722 11.2776 9.8420 0.3580 0.0530 21.5306
USD 11.552 0.2975 11.8495 9.8420 0.3580 0.0530 221025
1993 GSD(2) 11.1367 0.1791 11.3158 9.8420 0.3580 0.0520 21.5678
UsSD 11.5823 0.3054 11.8877 9.8420 0.3580 0.0520 221397
1994 GSD(2) 11.1628 0.1530 11.3158 9.8420 0.4700 0.0530 21.6808
USD 11.6008 0.2869 11.8877 9.8420 0.4700 0.0530 22.2527
1995 GSD(2) 11.2131 0.1027 11.3158 10.3210 0.4820 0.0490C 22.1678
UusD 11.6934 0.1943 11.8877 10.3210 0.4820 0.0490 22.7397
1996 GSD{(2) 11.1196 0.0962 11.2158 10.3070 0.4820 0.0400 22.0448
USD 11.6 0.1877 11.7877 10.3070 0.4820 0.0400 22,6167
1997 GSD(2) 11.0866 0.0292 11.1158 10.0670 0.4820 0.0380 21.7028
UsD 11.6417 0.0460 11.6877 10.0670 0.4820 0.0380 22.2747
1998 GSD(2) 10.9883 0.0275 11.0158 9.8750 0.4820 0.0500 21.4228
UsD 11.5602 0.0275 11.5877 9.8750 0.4820 0.0500 21.9947
1999 GSD (4) 10.8901 0.0257 10.9158 9.8560 0.4820 0.0470 21.3008
2000 GSD (4) 10.7618 0.0243 10.7861 9.3660 0.4820 0.0440 206781
4] The GSD (General Services District) millage rate is the one which applies to most taxpayers in the City of Jacksonville,

and it is effectively a county-wide rate. Due to the existence of six other taxing districts, a total of seven combined millage
rates apply to taxpayers within the City of Jacksonville. The two most prevalent millage rates are shown here.

The USD (Urban Services District 1) millage rates apply to the area of the preconsolidation City of Jacksonville, The
millage rates shown include the GSD rate.

{2) Beginning in 1981, as the result of a double-taxation suit settlement, the four independent Urban Services Districts within
Duval County began paying 18.8% less than the GSD millage rate, subject to a limit of 10.0000 mills plus debt service.
Each of the four levies additional taxes for its own municipal services.

(3) Florida Inland Navigational District

4) Beginning in 1999, the same rates apply to the consolidated City of Jacksonville.

Source: Property Appraiser's Office

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

RATIO OF NET GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEET

TO ASSESSED VALUE AND NET BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Net General Obligation

Gross Less Bonded Debt
General Respective
Obligation Debt Ratio to
Assessed Bonded Service Assessed Per
Year  Population (1) Value (2) Debt (3) Funds Amount Value Capita
1981 681,631 17,841,152,000 18,625,000 1,224,331 17,300,669 0.10% 25.38
1982 633,758 18,793,442,000 15,475,000 1,102,469 14,372,531 0.08% 20.72
1993 701,608 19,306,313,000 12,310,000 1,108,244 11,201,756 0.06% 15.97
1994 716,472 19,528,168,000 9,090,000 696,559 8,393,441 0.04% 11.71
1995 732,034 20,201,997,000 6,335,000 - 6,335,000 0.03% 8.65
1966 740,870 21,447 954,000 4,190,000 - 4,180,000 0.02% 5.66
1987 754,048 22,682,652,000 3,260,000 - 3,260,000 0.01% 4.32
1968 766,705 24,038,888,000 2,785,000 - 2,785,000 0.01% 3.63
199% 778,341 25,741,803,000 2,285,000 - 2,285,000 0.01% 2.94
2000 791,507 27,374,151,000 1,755,000 - 1,755,000 0.01% 2.22

(1) Population estimates for Duval County from the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research
as revised after the 2000 census analysis. General obligation bonded debt applies to all of Duval County.

(2)  Assessed values are the final adjusted appraisals as reported by the Duval County Property Appraiser.

{(3)  Gross general obligation bonded debt represents bonds payable from ad valorem taxes only.

»

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAFPING GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT

SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
Percentage City of
Applicable to Jacksonville's
Name of Governmental Debt City of Share of
Agency Qutstanding (1) Jacksonville (2) Gross Debt
City of Jacksonville, Florida $ 1,755,000 100% $ 1,755,000
Duval County School Board 108,900,000 100% 108,900,000

$ 110,655,000

(1) The gross debt cutstanding includes debt which is secured by the authority to levy taxes on real estate,

{2) The applicable percentage is based on the municipality's geographical boundaries within Duval County.

CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
LEGAL DEBT LIMIT
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

Neither the City of Jacksonville charter or code nor the Florida State Statutes limits the amount of debt the City of

Jacksonville can issue.

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES FOR GENERAL
OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT TO TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Total Ratio of
General Obligation Debt General Debt Service
Governmental to General

Expenditures (1) Governmental
Year Principal Interest Total (in thousands) Expenditures
1991 2,925,000 859,177 3,784,177 584,005 0.65%
1992 3,050,000 736,235 3,786,235 583,715 0.65%
1993 3,165,000 607,645 3,772,645 629,815 0.60%
1994 3,285,000 476,449 3,771,449 679,564 0.55%
1995 2,755,000 357,992 3,112,992 825,491 0.38%
19896 2,145,000 260,424 2,405,424 730,995 0.33%
1997 930,000 178,905 1,108,805 799,495 0.14%
1998 475,000 154,144 629,144 740,528 0.08%
1999 500,000 128,550 628,550 770,016 0.08%
2000 530,000 101,513 631,513 836,976 0.08%

)

Includes General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds and Capital Projects Funds.

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

REVENUE BOND COVERAGE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Net Revenue
Available for
Year Revenue (1) Expenses (2) Debt Service
1991 $75,263,704 $57,799,338 $17,464,366
1992 79,847,000 57,283,000 22,564,000
1993 86,618,000 57,943,000 28,675,000
1994 95,615,000 68,923,000 26,692,000
1995 112,292,000 60,975,000 51,317,000
1996 122,927,000 63,086,000 59,841,000
1097 (4) 84,019,000 45,413,000 38,606,000
1998 (4) 5,508,000 . 2,473,000 3,035,000
1999 {(4)5) (6,071,000} 2,392,000 (8,463,000}
2000 4,373,000 2,917,000 1,456,000
(1 Revenue includes interest earned and other nen-operating revenue.
@) Expenses exclude depreciation and interest expense.
(3) Coverage is an expression of the number of times "Net Revenue Available for Debt Service” exceeds

"Debt Service Requirements” (P & I).

{4) Reduced amounts reflect the transfer of the Water and Sewer Utility Enterprise Fund to JEA on June 1, 1997:
the "Debt Service Requirements” shown here are not covered by Enterprise Fund pledged revenues.

(5) Parking Garage given to Adam’s Mark Hotel.
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Debt Service Requirements

Principal Interest Totals Coverage (3)

$4,588,171 $7,063,706 $11,651,877 1.50
4,858,245 7,268,211 12,226,456 1.85
5,238,770 14,715,676 19,954,446 1.44
6,086,809 13,888,233 19,975,142 1.34
7,530,661 13,187,611 20,718,272 2.48
8,231,974 13,048,240 21,280,214 2.81
1,665,000 3,840,694 5,505,694 7.01
1,740,000 3,598,168 5,338,168 0.57
1,830,000 3,508,238 5,338,238 -1.59
1,925,000 4,027,263 5,852,263 0.24

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
PROPERTY VALUE, CONSTRUCTION AND BANK DEPOSITS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (in thousands)

New Construction (1)

Real Property (3)

Year Residential Commercial Alterations (1) De:):?tl; 2) Comimercial Residential Nontaxable

1981 $ 263,234 $ 156,274 $ 228,342 $5884947 57584327615 $12423957457 §$4,178,293,625
1992 285,018 132,934 195,775 5,982,421 7,619,437,880 12,794,480,200 4,254,319,300
1993 345,648 220,053 230,408 6,192,683 7,618,317,883 13,228,964,522 3,938,609,825
1994 352,166 124,571 363,420 6,365,459 7,604,099,466 13,864,791,273 4,081,588,110
1995 361,588 209,100 337,284 7,502,639 7,730,829,569 14,770,621,802 4,095,070,672
1996 510,739 162,925 370,106 8,118,088 8,034,155,678 16,121,151,945 4,381,582,635
1997 453,670 301,790 671,128 8,583,244 8,445, 725,666 17,207,002,871 5,978,050,566
1998 472,076 309,018 783,196 10,973,592 9,108,427,299 18,789,586,995 4,362,323,727
1999 594,438 376,158 479,738 10,127,170 9,688,132,922 20,147,735,943 4,357,721,556
2000 600,833 259,934 854,827 9,780,491 10,610,894,887 21,736,221,819 4,362,900,928

Source (1) Building and Zoning Division

(2) Florida Bankers Association

(3} The Property Appraiser's Office

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.

-202 -



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

POPULATION
Year JACKSONYVILLE DUVAL COUNTY
1910 57,699 75,163
1920 92,588 113,540
1930 129,549 155,503
1940 173,065 210,143
1950 204,517 304,029
1960 201,030 455411
1970 504,265 (1) 528,865
1980 - 540,920 (1) 571,003
1990 635,230 (1) 672,971
1995 690,996 (1) 732,034
2000 747,270 (1}(2) 791,507 (2)

(1) After Consolidation
(2) Asof April 1

POPULATION PROJECTIONS (3)

YEAR DUVAL COUNTY STATE OF FLORIDA
2005 846,458 16,882,830
2010 896,652 18,121,273
2015 953,508 19,400,913

Source: University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research, June 2000
City of Jacksonville, Planning and Development Department
(3) Five year projections done in 2000

POPULATION DISTRIBUTION BY AGE

AGE DUVAL COUNTY STATE OF FLORIDA
0-14 22.35% 19.54%

15-24 12.61 11.73

25-44 32.29 29.00

45-64 21.77 20.68

65+ 10.98 19.03

Source: Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census - April 1, 2000
University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research, June 2000

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
TEN LARGEST TAXPAYERS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

Taxpayer Type of Business Valuation Percentage
Bell South/Jacksonville MSA Limited.............. Communications $ 465,803,971 1.54%
Anheuser-Busch/Metal Container Corp............. Manufacturing 306,475,884 1.01%
AT&T/American TransTech........ccccvvveennennnn. Communications/Telemarketing 21 7,596.956 0.72%
Cedar Bay Generating Co.......ccocvvvecerirncnnnnnes Utilities 211,572,453 0.70%
MediaCne/Continental Cablevision.................. Communications 206,694 686 0.68%
Liberty Property Limited Partnership............... Real Estate Management/Development 190,778,788 0.63%
Bank of America..........cceevevueiiernciniineinannnn. Banking 186,768,565 0.62%
Gran Central Corp.......covvvviviininrinrricnvnranens Real Estate Owner/Developer 170,831,903 0.57%
Vistakon/Johnson & Johnson Vision................ Manufacturing 163,689,609 0.54%
Florida Power & Light Company.................... Utilities 161,887,861 0.54%
Total Taxable Assessed Value of 10 Largest Taxp 2,282,100,676 7.55%
Total Taxable Assessed Value of Other Taxpayers 27,932,597,703 92.45%
Total Taxable Assessed Value of All Taxpayers $ 30,214,698,379 100.00%

Source: Tax Collector's Office

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
MISCELLANEQUS STATISTICAL DATA
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

First Charter
Consolidation

Form of Government
Area of City

Miles of Streets:

Streets - Paved

Streets - Unpaved

State Maintained Primary
Interstate

Wastewater System:
Number of Treatment Plants
Total Miles of Sewer Lines

Fire Protection:
Stations

Employees - Sworn
Employees - Civilian

Police Protection:
Employees - Sworn
Employees - Civilian

Vehicular Patrol Units - Patrol Cars

Motorcycles

Other Vehicles

Unmarked
Horse Patrol

Electric Utility Customers
Water Utility Customers
Sewer Utility Customers

Recreation:

Acreage of parks and open spaces
Basketball courts

Boat ramps

Community Centers

Softball and baseball diamonds
Swimming pools

Tennis Courts

Soccer Fields

February 11, 1832
October 1, 1968

Mayor and City Council
840.1 square miles

3,351.0
3,346.9
4.1
362.7
95.1

10
2,521

52
1000
76

1,508
987
1,115
15
150
343

355,573
192,250
143,604

9,804
206
21

55
223
31
144
28

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors’ report,
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

FUND CONVERSION TABLE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
FINANCIAL FINANCIAL
STATEMENT STATEMENT SUBFUND
FUND TYPE FUND TITLE NUMBERS
General Fund General Fund
General Services District 011
Mosquito Control State I 012
Property Appraiser 015
Special Revenue Funds Special Revenue Funds
Concurrency Management
Concurrency Management System 112
Concurrency Management Traffic Data 113
Fair Share Sector Areas Transportation Improvement 114
Air Pollution Controt and Monitoring Fund
Air Pollution Tag Fee 121
Air Pollution EPA 122
Air Monitoring 123
Ambient Air Monitoring 124
Title V 125
Air Monitoring - Grants 126
Sports, Convention and Tourism Development Fund
Alltel Stadium Revenue 131
Tourist Development Council 132
Convention Development 133
Special Events 134
Transportation Fund
Streets & Highways 5-Year Road Program 141
Local Option 1/2 Cent Transportation 142
Local Option Gas Tax 143
General Government Fund (Budgeted)
Tax Collector / JEA Modernization 151
Local Government Criminal Justice 152
Construction Trades Qualifying Board 153
Hazardous Waste Program 154
Gas Storage Tank Inspections and Cleanup 155
Duval County Drug Abuse Program 156
Alcoholic Rehabilitation Trust 157
Court Facilities/Civil Trust 158
Building Inspection 159
Environmental Protection 15A
Duval County Law Library 15B
Family Mediation/County Mediation 15C
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

FUND CONVERSION TABLE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
FINANCIAL FINANCIAL
STATEMENT STATEMENT SUBFUND
FUND TYPE FUND TITLE NUMBERS
Special Revenue Funds (continued) General Government Fund (Budgeted)
Animal Care and Conirol 15D
Victim Assistance Services 15E
Tree Protection & Related Expense 15F
Veterinary Services 15G
Tax Collector / JEA Modernization 151
Court Capital Improvement 15)
Public Safety Fund 161
Emergency 9-1-1
911 Emergency User Fee 171
911 Capital Equipment Replacement 172
E%11 Emergency Wireless User Fees 173
Tax Increment Districts Fund
USD1 C Northeast Tax Increment 181
USD1 A Southside Tax Increment 182
USD1 B Northwest Tax Increment 183
JIA Area Redevelopment Trust 185
Jacksonville Children's Commission
Jacksonville Children's Commission 191
Jacksonville Children's Commission Grants 192
Jacksonville Children's Commission Projects 193
Community Development Block Grant Fund
Community Development 1Al
Housing Opportunity for Persons with AIDS 1A2
Housing Rehabilitation and Home Investment and
Opportunity Grants Fund
Rehabilitation Loan Program 1B1
HOME Investment Trust 1B2
HOPE Program 1B3
HUD Miscellaneous Grants 1B4
Housing UDAG 1B3
Rental Rehabilitation Program 1B6
Job Training Partnership Act Grant Fund
JTPA Title II ABC & III 1C1
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

FUND CONVERSION TABLE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
FINANCIAL FINANCIAL
STATEMENT STATEMENT SUBFUND
FUND TYPE FUND TITLE NUMBERS
Special Revenue Funds (continued) Maintenance, Parks and Recreation Fund
Huguenot Park 1D1
Kathryn A. Hanna Park Improvement 1D2
Recreation Lands and Park Acquisition 1D3
Metropolitan Park Maintenance 1D4
Recreation Maintenance and Improvements 1D5
Parks and Recreation Facilities Trust 1D6
Woodstock Park Development Trust 1D7
FL Boating Improvement Program 1D8
Sisters Creek Park Maintenance and Improvements 1D9
Metropolitan Planning Organization Fund 1E1
Other Federal, State and Local Grants Fund
Miscellaneous Federal Projects 1F1
Prepaid Grants 1F2
Beach Erosion - State 1F3
Beach Erosion - Local 1F4
Library Grants (Council Appropriated) 1F5
Community Service Graunts 1F6
Sheriff's Office Grants 1F7
Library Grants (Self-Appropriated) 1F8
Fire and Rescue Grants 1F9
Parks, Recreation and Enterntainment Grants 1FA
Regulatory and Environmental Grants 1FB
DCHFA State Housing Initiatives Partnership Fund 1G1
Generat Government Fund (Non-Budgeted)
Public Records Modernization 1H1
Animal Care and Control Programs 1H2
Legal Aid Program 1H3
Senior Services 1H4
James Brady Disabled Scholarship 1HS
Fire/Rescue Production Revolving Fund 1H6
Parks & Recreational Activities 1H7
Handicap Parking Fines 1HS8
Debt Service Funds Debt Service Funds
General Bonded Debt Obligations Fund 211
Special Bonded Debt Obligations Fund
1992 ETR Refunding S/F 221
1993 Excise Tax Revenue Bonds §/F 222
1993A ETR Refunding S/F 223
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
FUND CONVERSION TABLE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

FINANCIAL FINANCIAL
STATEMENT STATEMENT SUBFUND
FUND TYPE . FUND TITLE NUMBERS
Debt Service Funds (continued) Debt Service Funds
Special Bonded Debt Obligations Fund
ETR Refunding 1984C New Money S/F 224
1988A ETR Refunding S/F 226
1991 ETR Refunding S/F 228
Criminal Justice Bond S/F 22A
1992 Guaranteed Entitlement Revenue 22D
1995A ETR Refunding S/F 22E
1994 Municipal Stadium Capital Improvement Bonds S/F 22F
1995 Sales Tax Bonds (RCR) S/F 22G
1996 Sales Tax (RCR) S/F 221
1995 Municipal Stadium Capital Improvement Bonds S/F 22]
1995A Guaranteed Entitlement Revenue Refunding $/F 22K
1996B ETR Bonds S/F 22L
1996C ETR Bonds S/F 22M
Special Bonded Debt Obligations Fund (continued)
1995 Sunshine State S/F 22N
1997 Municipal Stadium Capital Improvement Bonds S/F 22P
1997 Capital Project Revenue Bonds S/F 22R
1999 Alltel Stadium S/F : 228
1995A ETR Refunding S/F 227
Other Non-Bonded Debt Obligations Fund
Sunshine State S/F 231
River City Renaissance Bond S/F 232
HUD 108 Loan S/F - Vistakon 233
HUD 108 Loan S/F - Coach Distribution 234
HUD 108 Loan S/F - Southside Harbor 235
HUD 108 Loan S/F - Hilton Hotel 236
HUD 108 Loan S/F - Sally Beauty 237
HUD 108 Loan $/F - LaVilla 238
HUD 108 Loan S/F - HTV Associates 239
HUD 108 Loan S/F - Jax Landing 23A
HUD 108 Loan S/F - American Body Armor 23B
HUD 108 Loan 8/F - Hampton Inn 23C
Capital Projects Funds Capital Projects Funds
Bond Projects Fund
1983 Capital Improvement Revenue Construction 311
1985A Excise Tax Revenue Bond Construction 312
1986A Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds 313
1988A ETR Refunding Construction 314
19888 ETR Bond Construction
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
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FUND CONVERSION TABLE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
FINANCIAL FINANCIAL
STATEMENT STATEMENT SUBFUND
FUND TYPE FUND TITLE NUMBERS
Capital Projects Funds {continued) Capital Projects Funds
Bond Projects Fund
1991 ETR Refunding Construction 316
1992 ETR Refunding Construction, 1986A 317
1992 ETR Refunding Construction, 1988B 318
1993 ETR Bond Construction 319
1993A ETR Bond Construction 31A
Streets and Drainage Bond Construction 31B
1994 Alltel Stadium Bond Construction 31C
1956B ETR Bonds Construction Fund 31D
1996C ETR Bond Construction Fund 31E
1988 Capital Improvement Revenue Construction 31F
Criminal Justice 1987A Construction 31G
1995A ETR Refunding Construction 31H
1995 Alltel Stadium Bond Construction 311
1995 Sunshine State Construction 31
1997 Alltel Stadium Bond Construction Fund 31K
Capital Project Revenue Bond Construction 31L
1999 Alltel Stadium Construction 3I1IM
1999A ETR Bond Construction 31R
General Projects Fund
River City Renaissance Pay-As-You-Go 321
General Capital Projects 322
First Municipal Loan Construction 323
Jacksonville Environmental Land Acquisition 324
St Andrews Church Renovation 325
Grant Capital Improvements Projects Fund 331
River City Renaissance Bond Construction Project Fund 341
Enterprise Funds Enterprise Funds
Public Parking System Fund
Public Parking System 411
Parking Garage Revenue 412
Parking & ETR S/F RSV 413
1986 Parking & ETR Construction 414
1987 Parking & ETR Refunding S/F 415
Sports Complex, Convention Center and Auditorium Fund
Sports Complex 421
Convention Center and Auditorium 422



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

FUND CONVERSION TABLE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
FINANCIAL FINANCIAL
STATEMENT STATEMENT SUBFUND
FUND TYPE FUND TITLE NUMBERS
Enterprise Funds {continued) Enterprise Funds
Public Parking System Fund
SMG - Jacksonville 423
Alltel Stadium 424
Motor Vehicle Inspection Fund 431
Solid Waste Disposal Fund
Solid Waste Disposal 441
Contamination Assessments 442
Landfill Closure 443
Solid Waste Grants 444
Solid Waste Facilities Mitigation 445
Solid Waste Class IH Mitigation 446
1991A Excise Tax Bonds S/F 447
1991B Excise Tax Bonds S/F 448
1991A Construction 449
1991B Construction 44A
1996A. ETR Refunding S/F 44B
1999B ETR Construction 44C
1999B ETR Refunding S/F 44D
Mayport Ferry 451
Internal Service Funds Internal Service Funds
Fleet Management Fund
Motor Pool 511
Motor Pool - Vehicle Replacement 512
Copy Center Fund
Copy Center 521
Storeroom/Printing 522
Information Technologies Fund
Information Technologies 531
Information Technelogies (Lapse/Self-appropriating) 532
Communications 533
Communications - Radio Replacement 534
Office of General Counsel 551
Self Insurance Fund 561
Group Health Fund 571
Insured Programs Fund 581
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
FUND CONVERSION TABLE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
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FINANCIAL FINANCIAL
STATEMENT STATEMENT SUBFUND
FUND TYPE FUND TITLE NUMBERS
Fiduciary Funds Fiduciary Funds
Expendable Trust Fund
Pickettville Rd Dump Site 641
Cemetery Perpetual Care and Maintenance 642
City Council Parks Acquisition, Development
and Maintenance 643
Treaty Oak Park Trust 644
Jacksonville Veterans Memorial Wall Trust 645
Child Services Trust 646
City Access Cable Enhancement Trust 647
Mimi & Lee Adams Trust 648
Board of Library Trustees Trust 649
Sheriff's Trusts (Carryforward/Council-appropriated) 64A
Sheriff's Trusts (Lapse/Self-appropriated) 64B
Sheriff's Trusts (Carryforward/Self-appropriated) 64C
Sheriff's Trusts (Lapse/Council-appropriated) 64D
Federal Forfeitures Trust 64E
General Trust & Agency (Carryforward/Council-appropriated) 64F
General Trust & Agency (Carryforward/Self-appropriated) 64G
General Trust & Agency (Lapse/Council-appropriated) 64H
General Trust & Agency (Lapse/Self-appropriated) 641
Flexible Spending Plan 64K
Lavilla Cultural and Heritage District Trust 64L
Youth Travel Trust (Jacksonville Children's Comm.) 64M
Art in Public Places Trust Fund 64N
Unclaimed Checks 662
Tax Deed Sale - Surplus 663
QOutstanding Checks - Treasury 664
Unclaimed Refunds 66Y
Execution Funds 5 Year 667
Non-expendable Trust Fund
Michael Jackson Music Scholarship Trust 651
Cemetery Maintenance Trust 652
J. B. Smith Memorial Scholarship Trust 653
Treasurer Agency Fund 661
Plat Deposits 665
Tax Collector Agency Fund 671
Clerk of the Circuit Court Fund 681



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

FUND CONVERSION TABLE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
FINANCIAL FINANCIAL
STATEMENT STATEMENT SUBFUND
FUND TYPE FUND TITLE NUMBERS
Fiduciary Funds (continued) Fiduciary Funds
Florida Retirement System 6A1
Pension Trust Funds Pension Trust Funds
General Employees 611
Police and Fire 621
Discretely Presented Component Units Discretely Presented Component Units
Duval County Housing Finance Authority 721
Jacksonville Economic Development Commission
Jacksonville Economic Development Commission 751
Sports Development Events 752
Jacksonville Film & Television Office Trust 753
International Marketing Trust 754
S8 Redevelopment Trust Parks and Recreation 755
Greenleaf/Tacobs Clock Restoration 756
JEDC Prepaid Grants 757
JEDC Miscellaneous Federal/State/Local Grants 758
JEDC Cecil Field Trust 759
Jacksonville Game Trust Fund 760
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